
THE CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 1777 Broadway 
April 21, 2015 

6 PM 
 

1. 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

2. 
 

OPEN COMMENT and COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE (Limited to 45 minutes.)  
Public may address any city business for which a public hearing is not scheduled later in 
the meeting (this includes the consent agenda and first readings).  After all public 
hearings have taken place, any remaining speakers will be allowed to address council.  
All speakers are limited to three minutes. 
 

3. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA (to include first reading of ordinances) Vote to be taken on the 
motion at this time.  Roll call vote required. 
 

 A. Consideration of a motion to approve the minutes for the February 3, 2015 city 
council meeting 
 

 B. Consideration of a motion to accept the March 31, 2015, City Council Study 
Session Summary regarding Civic Area Park Site Plan & Master Plan Update, 
Including Preliminary Evaluation of Boulder Community Health, Broadway 
Campus 
 

 C. Consideration of a motion to accept the March 31st, 2015 City Council Study 
Session Summary – Update on Planning for the Boulder Valley 
Comprehensive Plan (BVCP) 2015 Update and the Design Excellence and 
the Form Based Code Pilot Project 
 

 

 D. Authorization of the City Manager to enter into an IGA regarding Community 
Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) funding with the 
City of Longmont 
 

 E. Third reading and consideration of a motion to adopt and order published by title 
only Ordinance No. 8038 allowing for production and sale of certain foods in 
residential zone districts, amending Section 9-6-3(e) “Specific Use Standards – 
Residential Uses”; amending Section 9-9-21 “Signs” and adding a new Chapter 
6-17 “Cottage Foods and Fresh Produce”  
 

 

 F. Introduction, first reading and consideration of a motion to order published by 
title only Ordinance No. 8044 approving supplemental appropriations to the 
2015 Budget  
 

 

 G.   Introduction and consideration of a motion to pass on first reading and order 
published by title only Ordinance No. 8043 amending chapter 10-12 “mobile 
homes” adding a new section 10-12-25 “limitation on park owner’s right to 

Packet Page 1



prohibit sales,” amending section 10-12-2 to add definitions, amending section 
10-12-3 to make section 10-12-25 applicable to all mobile home parks amending 
section 10-12-4 to provide for administrative remedies and setting forth related 
details  
 

 

4. 
 

POTENTIAL CALL UP CHECK IN 
Opportunity for Council to indicate possible interest in the call-up of an item listed under 
agenda Item 8-A1. 
 

5. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 A. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8036 
designating the building and property at 977 7th St., to be known as the Krueger-
Cunningham Property, as an individual landmark under the city’s Historic 
Preservation Ordinance. 
 
Owner/Applicant: Janelle C. Krueger & Cosima Krueger-Cunningham 
 

 B. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8037 
designating the building and property at 1029 Broadway Street, to be known as 
the Evans Scholars House, as an individual landmark under the city’s Historic 
Preservation Ordinance.  
 
Owner/Applicant: Evans Scholar Program  
 

 

 C. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8039 
related to the annexation of the following properties and right-of-way in the Old 
Tale Road neighborhood with the initial zoning of Residential-Rural 2 (RR-2): 
 
Applicants/Owners: 
 
1165 Old Tale Rd., Macinko Exempt Trust 
1193 Old Tale Rd., Cynthia and Charles Anderson 
1228 Old Tale Rd., Steven Erickson 
1245 Old Tale Rd., Harold and Sherlynne Bruff 
1270 Old Tale Rd., Jeffrey and Wendy Mortner 
1275 Old Tale Rd., Thomas and Barbara Corson 
1305 Old Tale Rd., Monty Moran 
1315 Old Tale Rd., Joanne M Simenson 
1325 Old Tale Rd., Sarah Kingdom 
1402 Old Tale Rd., Kellie Masterson-Praeger 
1409 Old Tale Rd., William Dick III 
1412 Old Tale Rd., John and Penelope Bennett 
1435 Old Tale Rd., Joyce Peterson Thurmer 
1436 Old Tale Rd., Thomas Perry 
1457 Old Tale Rd., Cameron Bradley Peterson 
1483 Old Tale Rd., Jason and Jennifer Kiefer 

Packet Page 2



1507 Old Tale Rd., Richard and Jeanie Leddon 
1510 Old Tale Rd., Mark and Mary Beth Vellequette 
1533 Old Tale Rd., Laurie Duncan-McWethy 
1566 Old Tale Rd., Stewart and Robin Elliott 
 

6. MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER 
 

 A. Consideration of a potential Application as a Host City for the 2017 
IRONMAN® 70.3® World Championships  
 

 

 B. Update on Response to Council Direction for the City Manager to Provide Funds 
for Legal Assistance to Mobile Home Owners In Boulder 
 

7. MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY 
 

 None 
 

8. MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS 
 

 A. Call Ups  
 

  1. Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery Brewing Company 
 

  2. 2440 Junction Place Concept Plan Review 
 

 B. Consideration of a motion to support city participation in a Consortium of 
Cities Permanent Supportive Housing Study and authorize the city manager 
to allocate up to $20,000 for the city’s contribution  
 

 

 C. Request for the Council’s sub-committee on the Housing Process to transition 
their work to the BVCP 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS (15 min.)  
Public comment on any motions made under Matters. 
 

10. FINAL DECISIONS ON MATTERS Action on motions made under Matters. 
 

11. 
 

DEBRIEF (5 Min.) Opportunity for Council to discuss how the meeting was conducted. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Packet Page 3



 This agenda and the meetings can be viewed at www.bouldercolorado.gov/citycouncil. Meetings 
are aired live on Municipal Channel 8 and the city’s Web site and is re-cablecast.  
 
Anyone requiring special packet preparation such as Braille, large print, or tape recorded 
versions may contact the City Clerk’s Office at 720- 564-2175, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m. Monday through 
Friday. At least two business days notification prior to the meeting or preparation of special 
materials is required.  
 
If you need Spanish interpretation or other language-related assistance for this meeting, please 
call (303) 441-1905 at least three business days prior to the meeting. Si usted necesita 
interpretación o cualquier otra ayuda con relación al idioma para esta junta, por favor 
comuníquese al (303) 441-1905 por lo menos 3 negocios días antes de la junta.  
 
Electronic presentations to the city council must be pre-loaded by staff and will not be accepted 
after 3:30 p.m. the day of a regularly scheduled council meeting. Electronic media must come on 
a prepared USB jump (flash/thumb) drive. 
 

 

Packet Page 4



CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY OF BOULDER 
February 3, 2015 

 
The 2015 State of the City was broadcast at 5:30 PM 

 
  
1. 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Appelbaum called the January 20, 2015 Special City Council meeting to order at 6:14 PM in 
Council Chambers. 
 
Those present were: Mayor Appelbaum and Council Members Cowles, Jones, Karakehian, Morzel, 
Plass, Weaver and Young.  Council Member Shoemaker was absent. 
 
Mayor Appelbaum moved, seconded by Council Member Morzel, to amend the agenda as follows: 
amend Item 3D to include calling another special meeting on February 26  for the Height 
Amendment Ordinance; Changing the order of the items under Matters from the City Manager by 
moving 6A to 6C, 6C to 6B and 6B to6A and; Under matters form Council adding Item 8D – Letter 
of opposition to Rocky Flats Prescribed Burn.  The motion carried 8:0 at 6:04 PM. 
 

 A. A DECLARATION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR COLLABORATION ON AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE CITY OF BOULDER’S EFFORTS TO SECURE TRASH AND PROTECT 
BLACK BEARS 
 
Mayor Appelbaum presented this declaration and thanked each of the entities who partnered 
in this important effort. 
 

2. 
 

OPEN COMMENT and COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE (Limited to 45 minutes.)  Public may 
address any city business for which a public hearing is not scheduled later in the meeting (this 
includes the consent agenda and first readings).  After all public hearings have taken place; any 
remaining speakers will be allowed to address council.  All speakers are limited to three minutes. 

1. Rob Smoke – commented on the 2015 State of the City noting that it was self congratulatory 
propaganda that did not reflect that the city continues to ignore the plight of the homeless. 

2. Erik Johnson –as one of the property owners, spoke in opposition to the landmarking of 747 
12th Street. Asked the council to set the matter aside. 

3. Dan Benavidez – Longmont resident spoke of the Revolution of Belonging lead by Chief 
Butler in Longmont to walk neighborhoods of low income a minorities in order to establish 
relationships and connections. He expressed thanks to Council Member Jones, Police Chief 
Testa, Sergeant Dowd and former Council Member Allyn Feinberg for meeting and 
supporting a similar effort in Boulder in the near future. 

4. Kristin Lopez – Another property owner of 747 12th Street that spoke in opposition to the 
landmarking of 747 12th Street over the owners objections. 

5. Karey Christ-Janer –regarding Municipalization effort – took exception to emails from 
another member of the public regarding the PUC hearings and the ability to participate in that 
process. 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 1Packet Page 5



6. Marilyn Jorrie – owner of a recent annexed property expressed concerns about the annexation 
process. 

7. Mark Twietmeyer – Regarding Trinity Lutheran Church MOU spoke to the church’s plan for 
creating Senior Housing. He highlighted the importance of the parking proposal that was part 
of the MOU. 

8. Geneva Reichert – neighbor and supporter of the proposed landmarking of 747 12th Street. 
9. Jim Scarboro – 725 12th Street - next door neighbor spoke in support of the landmarking of 

747 12th Street. Noting that the entire block is in tack and should remain so. 
10. Don Reichert – also spoke in support of the landmarking of 747 12th Street. Spoke to the 

importance of preserving the historic homes on University Hill.  
11. Jyotsna Raj – also spoke in support of the landmarking of 747 12th Street. It is a wonderful 

example of Craftsman architecture with a significant historic value. 
12. Angelique Espinoza – applauded the State of the City presentation and also spoke to the 

importance of the balancing act of the cost of housing and the need to maintain the economic 
vitality efforts.  She urged holding off on the linkage fee discussion as it needed a process to 
engage all of the community before taking action. 

13. Linda Wilson – Another neighbor of 747 12th Street who spoke in support of the landmarking. 
 
Staff Response:  – none 
Council Response:  

1. Council Member Morzel spoke to the comments by Marilyn Jorrie urging her council 
colleagues to visit her property. 
 

3. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  

 A. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO APPROVE THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES FROM 
NOVEMBER 18, 2014    
 
Council Member Cowles recused himself from this vote as he was not present at that meeting. 
 

 B. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE JANUARY 13, 2015 STUDY SESSION 
SUMMARY ON FINANCIAL UPDATE 
 

 C. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE UPPER BOULDER SLOUGH FLOODPLAIN 
MAPPING STUDY UPDATE, SUBMIT THE STUDY TO FEMA, AND DIRECT STAFF TO CONSIDER 
AND USE THE STUDY RESULTS IN THE REGULATION OF ALL ANNEXATIONS AND 
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS DURING THE INTERIM PERIOD IN WHICH FEMA IS REVIEWING 
THE STUDY RESULTS. 
 

 D. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO CALL A SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR AN 
EXECUTIVE SESSION ON THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 2015 AT 6 PM AND A MOTION TO CALL A 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING ON THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2015 AT 6 PM ON HEIGHT 
MODIFICATIONS. 
 

  E. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 1154 AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE TRUST AGREEMENT FOR THE COLORADO FIREFIGHTER 
HEALTH AND CIRCULATORY BENEFITS TRUST AND SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 2Packet Page 6



 F. INTRODUCTION, FIRST READING AND CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO ORDER PUBLISHED 
BY TITLE ONLY ORDINANCE NO. 8029 DESIGNATING THE BUILDING AND PROPERTY AT 747 
12TH ST., TO BE KNOWN AS THE COWGILL PROPERTY, AS AN INDIVIDUAL LANDMARK UNDER 
THE CITY’S HISTORIC PRESERVATION ORDINANCE.  
 
OWNER: 747 TWELFTH STREET, LLC 
APPLICANT:  LANDMARKS BOARD 
  
Council Member Karakehian voted in opposition to this item.  
 

 G. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT IN THE LITIGATION BROUGHT AGAINST THE CITY BY DANIELLE 
GOWER AND CAROL STIMMEL. 
 

 H. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO CALL A SPECIAL MEETING FOR AN EXECUTIVE SESSION 
ON THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 12, AT 6 PM AND A MOTION TO CALL A SPECIAL MEETING ON 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 26, ON HEIGHT MODIFICATIONS.   
 
Council Member Cowles moved, seconded by Council Member Weaver, to approve Consent 
Agenda Items 3A through 3H. The motion carried 8:0 with Cowles recused from 3A and 
Karakehian opposed to 3F. Council Member Shoemaker was absent. Vote was taken at 7:00 
PM. 
 

4. 
 

POTENTIAL CALL UP CHECK IN - none 
 

5. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 A. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF 5 ACRES OF LAND AND ALL 
MINERAL RIGHTS LOCATED AT 38474 BOULDER CANYON DR. FROM THE BONNIE L. 
SCHNELL REVOCABLE TRUST FOR $400,000 FOR OPEN SPACE AND MOUNTAIN PARKS 
PURPOSES AND AN ADDITIONAL $20,000 IS RECOMMENDED TO BE AUTHORIZED FROM THE 
ACQUISITION BUDGET FOR THE POTENTIAL DECONSTRUCTION AND RECYCLING OF THE 
EXISTING HOUSE. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO RECOMMEND THAT THIS PARCEL BE 
INCLUDED AS PART OF THE WESTERN MOUNTAIN PARKS HABITAT CONSERVATION AREA. 
 
Open Space Property Agent Jim Schmidt presented this item to council. 
 
Tom Issacson, Chair of the Open Space Board of Directors, outlined the discussion and 
action by that board. 
 
There being no speakers the public hearing was closed. 
 
Council Member Jones moved, seconded by Young, to approve the purchase of 5 acres of 
land and all mineral rights located at 38474 Boulder Canyon Dr. from the Bonnie L. Schnell 
Revocable Trust for $400,000 for Open Space and Mountain Parks purposes and an 
additional $20,000 is recommended to be authorized from the acquisition budget for the 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 3Packet Page 7



potential deconstruction and recycling of the existing house; and to recommend that this 
parcel that a portion of the property to recommend that this parcel be included as part of the 
Western Mountain Parks Habitat Conservation Area. The motion carried 8:0 with 
Shoemaker absent. Vote was taken at 7:29 PM 

  
B. 

 
SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO ORDER PUBLISHED, BY TITLE 
ONLY, AND ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 8015 AMENDING CHAPTER 6-4, B.R.C. 1981, ADDING A 
NEW SECTION, 6-4-3.5 “SMOKING PROHIBITED IN PUBLIC PLACES,” INCLUDING 
ELECTRONIC SMOKING  DEVICES IN THE DEFINITION OF SMOKING, AND SETTING FORTH 
RELATED DETAILS; OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO ORDER 
PUBLISHED, BY TITLE ONLY, AND ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 8017 AMENDING CHAPTER 6-4, 
B.R.C. 1981, ADDING A NEW SECTION, 6-4-3.5 “SMOKING PROHIBITED IN PUBLIC 
PLACES,” AND SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 
 
Urban Parks Manager Lisa Martin presented this item. 
 
The public hearing was opened: 

1. Kevan Masters – urged the council not to include electronic smoking devices. Noted 
studies that state e-devices are not dangerous. It was a viable alternative for addicted 
smokers. 

2. Nicholas Wessel – Also urged council to allow electronic smoking devices. He noted 
that statistics indicate that e-cigarettes are predominately used by smokers who 
smoke 60+ cigarettes a day. The alternative of using e-devices was a substantial 
improvement. 

3. Miles Moore – CU student – expressed that primary focus of smoking ban should be 
health. Yet the council was considering the inclusion of electronic devices in the 
smoking ban even through e-cigarettes remove the intake of carcinogens and 
preventing the danger of second hand smoke. He maintained that vaping was a 
viable cessation tool. 

4. Pete Bialick – President of GASP Colorado (Group to alleviate Smoking and 
Pollution), also representing the Colorado Tobacco Free Alliance voiced support for 
the smoking ban extension with the inclusion of e-devices. 

5. Jeff Zayach – Public Health Director of Boulder County Health Department urged 
council to adopt Ordinance No. 8015 banning smoking in public places with the 
inclusion of Electronic Smoking devices. He and his staff provided information that 
supported that position. 

6. Donald Misch – Member of the Boulder County Board of Health spoke to nicotine 
as the Number one addictive substance and the most powerful gateway drug. E-
nicotine would fall into that category as well. Council was urged to adopt the 
ordinance with E-Devices prohibited as well. 

7. Zachory Jacobs – CU student applauded council for asking about who funded 
various studies. He also noted that the nicotine in tobacco contained various 
alkaloids that increase the addictive nature of cigarettes. Hi indicated that was quite 
different from what we present in the pure nicotine found in vaping. Studies 
indicated that a high percentage of smokers significantly reduced cigarette 
consumption once they started vaping. 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 4Packet Page 8



8. Todd Dempster – Owner of Elements of Vapor in Arvada rebutted reports from 
major news outlets that formaldehyde was found in E-cigarettes. He clarified that 
report was based on temperatures that could not be met through normal use of the 
device. Suggested that people needed to be open to the benefits vaping provided to 
many smokers. 
 

There being no further speakers the public hearing was closed. 
 
Council Member Plass moved, seconded by Council Member Cowles, to amend 
Ordinance No. 8015 amending Chapter 6-4, B.R.C.1981, adding a new section, 6-4-3.5 
“Smoking Prohibited in Public Places,” including electronic smoking devices in the 
definition of smoking, incorporating the amendment made on Attachment C, and 
including Option 1 and Option 2 as presented on the handout prepared by the City 
Attorney’s Office and including any outdoor restaurants and taverns where food or  
beverages are served or consumed.  
 
Council Member Cowles moved, seconded by Appelbaum, to change the boarders on the 
map to extend the boundary north to the middle of Spruce Street and extend from the 
alley west to Walnut.  The motion failed 2 – 6 Appelbaum and Cowles in favor and 
Shoemaker absent. Vote was taken at 9:31 PM 
 
Vote was taken on the main motion at 9:33 PM  
 
The motion carried 8:0, with Council Member Shoemaker absent.  
 

 
6. MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER 

 
 A. DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION ON DEVELOPMENT-RELATED IMPACT FEES AND EXCISE 

TAXES. 9:35 PM 
 
Presentation on this item was provided by Deputy Director of Community Sustainability and 
Planning Susan Richstone. She indicated that the goal was to ensure that growth pays its 
own way, that development related fees and taxes reflect current capital costs and impacts 
attributable to new development and to address concerns that non-residential sector does not 
contribute proportionately to mitigate impact of job growth on affordable housing. 
 
Questions for Council 

1. Does council support the proposed next steps for updating studies and fees?  
• Assess current range of fees and taxes identify scope of new study(ies) with 

council in February. 
• Hire firm(s) to prepare studies to update fee structure 

2. Is council interested in moving forward in the short term to adopt a housing linkage 
fee based on the 2009 Study?  

Council Consensus was to move forward with the next steps and to direct staff to come back 
with a housing linkage fee ordinance.  

Agenda Item 3A     Page 5Packet Page 9



 B. UPDATE ON P&DS ADVISORS GROUP – 10:05 PM 
 
Presentation on this item was provided by Executive Director of Public Works Maureen 
Rait. She spoke to the history of the creation of the P&DS Advisors group which first met in 
April of 2006 after a study indicated the arduous permitting and development review 
process in Boulder was impeding businesses from relocating in Boulder. The meetings were 
used to provide information updates and to obtain feedback on process improvements such 
as land use review, engineering review and building permit issuance. The meetings did not 
involve discussion of particular or specific projects or any sort of policy deliberations.  
Topics included things like the hours of operation for the P&DS Services Center, providing 
more services on line, and improving public access to information such as the status of 
projects. A summary of this group was recently added the City Web site that providee the 
information compiled and the record of history for this group.    
 
Council thanked staff for the thorough memo and provided input for moving forward. It was 
also noted that this group was perhaps really more of a “user” group than an advisor group.  
 

 C. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) BETWEEN THE CENTRAL AREA GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (CAGID) AND TRINITY LUTHERAN CHURCH OF BOULDER, 
COLORADO, REGARDING THE FEASIBILITY OF A PUBLIC/PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP FOR 
PARKING AT THE TRINITY COMMONS PROJECT IN DOWNTOWN BOULDER. 10:32 PM 
 
Presentation of this item was provided by Downtown/University Hill Management Division 
and Parking Services Director Molly Winter  
 
CAGID Board Member Weaver moved, seconded by CAGID Board Member Cowles, to 
authorize the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 
the Central Area General Improvement District (CAGID) and Trinity Lutheran Church of 
Boulder, Colorado, regarding the feasibility of a public/private partnership for parking at the 
Trinity Commons project in downtown Boulder.  
 
Mayor Appelbaum moved, seconded by Council Member Morzel, to suspend the rules and 
continue the meeting at 10:58 PM. The motion carried 7:1 with Council Member 
Karakehian opposed. 
 

7. MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY - None 
  

8. MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS 
 

 A. CALL UPS  - None 
 

 B. CONSIDERATION OF A MOTION TO APPROVE THE PROCESS FOR PERFORMANCE 
EVALUATIONS AND SALARY ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE CITY MANAGER, CITY ATTORNEY 
AND MUNICIPAL JUDGE. 10:56 PM 
 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 6Packet Page 10



The Council Evaluation Subcommittee, Council Members Plass and Morzel, reviewed the 
evaluation process and asked for Council’s approval. 
 
Council Member Cowles indicated that he had sent an email to Hotline that provided a 
report on the progress to date of the Compensation Equity Subcommittee 
 
Council Member Plass moved, second by Council Member Weaver to approve the process 
for performance evaluations and salary adjustments for the City Manager, City Attorney and 
Municipal Judge. 
 

 C. APPOINTMENT OF TWO COUNCIL MEMBERS TO THE HOUSING STRATEGY PROCESS SUB-
COMMITTEE. – 11:06 PM 
 
Council Member Cowles moved, seconded by Council Member Plass, to appoint Council 
Members Morzel, Shoemaker and Young to the Housing Strategy Process sub-committee. 
 

 D. LETTER OF OPPOSITION TO ROCKY FLATS PRESCRIBED BURN – 11:19 PM 
 
Council Member Plass moved, seconded by Council Member Weaver, to send the letter of 
opposition  to Rocky Flats Prescribed Burn. 
  

9. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS - none 
 

10. FINAL DECISIONS ON MATTERS Action on motions made under Matters. 
 
Vote was taken on the motion to authorize the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the Central Area General Improvement District (CAGID) and Trinity 
Lutheran Church of Boulder, Colorado, regarding the feasibility of a public/private partnership for 
parking at the Trinity Commons project in downtown Boulder. The motion carried 8:0 with Council 
Member Shoemaker absent. The vote was taken at 11:24  PM. 
 
Vote was taken on the motion to approve the process for performance evaluations and salary 
adjustments for the City Manager, City Attorney and Municipal Judge. The motion carried 8:0 with 
Council Member Shoemaker absent  The vote was taken at 11:24 PM. 
 
Vote was taken on the motion to appoint Council Members Morzel, Shoemaker and Young to the 
Housing Strategy Process sub-committee. The motion carried 8:0 with Council Member Shoemaker 
absent  The vote was taken at 11:24 PM. 
 
Vote was taken on the motion to send the letter of opposition  to Rocky Flats Prescribed Burn. The 
motion carried 8:0 with Council Member Shoemaker absent  The vote was taken at 11:24 PM. 
 

 
11. 

 

 
DEBRIEF (5 minutes) Opportunity for Council to discuss how the meeting was conducted. - none 
 
 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 7Packet Page 11



12. ADJOURNMENT  
 
There being no further business to come before Council at this time, BY MOTION  
REGULARLY ADOPTED, THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED on February 3, 2015  
at 11:04  PM 
 
Approved this 21st day of April, 2015. 

 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
       ____________________________   

                           Matthew Appelbaum 
                  Mayor   

ATTEST:       
 
 

_____________________     
Alisa D. Lewis, 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

 
 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 8Packet Page 12



  

 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM  

MEETING DATE: April 21, 2015 
 

 
 
 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This agenda item provides a summary of the March 31, 2015, City Council study session 
on the Civic Area Park Site Plan & Master Plan Update, Including Preliminary 
Evaluation of Boulder Community Health, and Broadway Campus. The purpose of the 
study session was for City Council to review and provide feedback on the park site plan, 
master plan update process, and potential locations for municipal services. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 
 
 

Staff requests council consideration of this summary and action in the form of the 
following motion: 
 
Motion to accept the summary (Attachment A) of the March 31, 2015, study session on 
the Civic Area Park Site Plan & Master Plan Update, Including Preliminary Evaluation 
of Boulder Community Health, Broadway Campus.  

PRESENTERS: 
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works 
David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Sustainability & Planning 
Yvette Bowden, Director of Parks and Recreation  
Jeff Dillon, Capital Investment Manager, Parks and Recreation 
Sam Assefa, Senior Urban Designer, Project Coordinator 
Jeff Haley, Project Coordinator 
Joanna Crean, Project Coordinator 

AGENDA TITLE: Consideration of a motion to accept the March 31, 2015, City Council 
Study Session Summary regarding Civic Area Park Site Plan & Master Plan Update, 
Including Preliminary Evaluation of Boulder Community Health, Broadway Campus. 

Agenda Item 3B    Page 1Packet Page 13



  

BACKGROUND 
The background information for this topic can be found by clicking the link to review the study 
session memorandum dated March 31, 2015.  

 
NEXT STEPS 
Staff will incorporate City Council’s feedback from the March 31 discussion and revise the 
Park Site Plan and Civic Area Master Plan accordingly. The updated Civic Area Master Plan 
will be presented to the Planning Board as a public hearing item on May 21, 2015 for a 
recommendation to the City Council. It is anticipated that the Civic Area Master Plan will then 
be presented to City Council as a public hearing item for review and consideration on June 16, 
2015.  During the fourth quarter of 2015, the Park Site Plan will be brought to the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board, Planning Board and City Council for review and consideration.  
 
Based on council’s feedback from the March 31 discussion on the preliminary analysis of the 
Boulder Community Health, Broadway campus, staff will further evaluate estimated costs and 
the potential locations for municipal services. The results of the additional analysis will be 
presented to City Council as part of the June 16 meeting on the Park Site Plan and updated 
Civic Area Master Plan.  

 
ATTACHMENT  

 
A: Summary of the March 31, 2015, study session on the Civic Area Park Site Plan & 

Master Plan Update, Including Preliminary Evaluation of Boulder Community Health, 
Broadway Campus 

Agenda Item 3B    Page 2Packet Page 14

https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/20150331_SS-1-201503201445.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/20150331_SS-1-201503201445.pdf


  

ATTACHMENT A: 
City Council March 31, 2015 Study Session Summary 

Civic Area Park Site Plan & Master Plan Update,  
Including Preliminary Evaluation of Boulder Community Health, Broadway Campus 

 
 

PRESENT 
City Council: Mayor Matt Appelbaum, Mayor Pro Tem Suzanne Jones, Macon Cowles, George 
Karakehian, Lisa Morzel, Tim Plass, Andrew Shoemaker, Sam Weaver, and Mary Young 

 
Staff Presenters: Sam Assefa, Senior Urban Designer, Project Coordinator; Joanna Crean, Project 
Coordinator; and Jeff Haley, Project Coordinator 
 
Consultant: Tom Leader of Tom Leader Studio 
 
Other Staff Present: Mike Banuelos, Kathleen Bracke, Joe Castro, Matt Chasansky, Bill 
Cowern, Jeff Dillon, David Driskell, Bob Eichem, David Farnan, Lauren Holm, Glenn Magee, 
Karen Rahn, Maureen Rait, Patrick Von Keyserling, and Molly Winter 

 
 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of the March 31, 2015 study session was to update City Council on the Civic 
Area implementation and obtain feedback on the Civic Area Park Site Plan and updated Civic 
Area Master Plan. 
 
Key questions for council consideration were: 
 
Civic Area Park Site Plan Development 
1. Does council have any comments or questions on the preferred option for the Park Site 

Plan development? 
 
Civic Area Master Plan Update 
2. Does council support staff’s proposed analysis of the feasibility and trade-offs between 

relocating some or all city services and programs from the downtown campus to the 
Boulder Community Hospital site on Broadway in comparison to keeping those 
services and programs in the Civic Area? 

3. Does council have any comments or questions about the proposed process to amend the 
vision plan to replace the 1992 Civic Area Master Plan? 

 
 
PRESENTATION SUMMARY 
Jeff Haley presented an overview of the development of the Creek Valley Hybrid park site 
plan, including the three initial design options, summary of public feedback, and key 
characteristics. The hybrid site plan was then explained in a series of diagrams, plans, and 
renderings. Staff then turned the discussion over to council. Tom Leader, lead Civic Area 
design consultant from Tom Leader Studio, Jeff Haley and Sam Assefa answered questions 
about the design of the hybrid plan. Kathleen Bracke, Go Boulder Manager, answered 
questions about transportation demand management strategies. 
 
Following discussion on the Civic Area Park Site Plan Development, Sam Assefa presented 
the proposed process to amend the Civic Area Vision Plan and use it to replace the 1992 Civic 
Area Master Plan. Preliminary configurations for the east and west ends of the site, as well as 

Attachment A - March 31, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary for the Boulder Civic Area

Agenda Item 3B    Page 3Packet Page 15



  

various vision plan elements were presented. Joanna Crean presented the preliminary analysis 
of the Boulder Community Health, Broadway Campus site. This included initial estimates for 
potential renovation and preliminary ideas regarding financing, an overview of public 
feedback to date, and a recommendation for further analysis. Joe Castro, Facilities and Asset 
Manager, answered questions about the status of the 13th Street Plaza remediation project and 
Karen Rahn, Director of Human Services, answered questions about Meals on Wheels and the 
West Senior Center. David Farnan, Director of Library and Arts, answered questions about 
implementing art in the Civic Area.  
 
DISCUSSION SUMMARY 
 
Civic Area Park Site Plan Development 
In regard to the Creek Valley Hybrid Park Plan, City Council generally indicated that the key 
characteristics listed (most green space, dynamic topography, most access to the creek, largest 
entrance to promenade, enhanced circulation, increased plaza spaces, relocated Bandshell, 
expanded Farmers’ Market loop) were appropriate. The discussion that followed involved 
several aspects of the plan including the Bandshell, circulation, and parking. 
 
It was generally acknowledged that the Bandshell is not functional in its current location. 
Council recognized the landmark status of the Bandshell and the area surrounding it; however, 
there was interest in exploring its potential move to a different location including an 
alternative location in the Civic Area. Special attention needs to be paid to the orientation of 
the Bandshell if relocation is to happen. There was also discussion about examining if the 
Bandshell could be repurposed for another use so as not to compete with a potential state of 
the art performance space elsewhere in the park. There was general interest for a new, flexible 
state of the art performance space, potentially without back side concerns of the Bandshell. 
 
The proposed promenade space along Canyon Boulevard was viewed as potentially being 
used for larger special events. Council was interested in understanding how the connection to 
the Civic Use Pad relates to the presented plan, specifically to the connections across Canyon 
Boulevard. There was also discussion about the plaza spaces along Canyon Boulevard around 
the Municipal Building, specifically the Sister City Plaza.  A comment was made that there 
needs to be some connection and enhancement of the Sister City Plaza in the hybrid plan. 
 
Questions were raised about including public art in the Civic Area and how the 2A funding 
will support this use. David Farnan, Library and Arts Director, explained that the current 
process for commissioning art and the proposed locations will be further explored through the 
final design of the park improvements later this year and in coordination with the Community 
Cultural Plan. 
 
Regarding circulation, there was general support for the design concept related to creating a 
“spine” along 11th Street that would connect the Civic Area to Pearl Street (to the north) and 
to University Hill area (to the south). This 11th Street connection will allow for both visual and 
physical access to the Civic Area from the adjacent businesses and neighborhoods.  Council 
also commented that the bridge (as part of the 11th Street spine) presented the opportunity to 
do something special in terms of public art or design that made the bridge a distinctive feature 
of the park.  However, there was concern about the number of paths currently shown on the 
hybrid site plan and how that potentially interferes with the design of the park. Tom Leader 
agreed that there is an opportunity for refinement of circulation to indicate primary and 
secondary pathways. Also in regard to circulation, there was some concern about the bike path 
along 13th Street Plaza. There was discussion that the path design shown in the hybrid plan 
may not be appropriate for all types of uses, including commuters on bikes. Council 

Attachment A - March 31, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary for the Boulder Civic Area

Agenda Item 3B    Page 4Packet Page 16



  

highlighted the importance of connectivity and access of pathways in the final design. Council 
indicated that the alignment of paths must work well for the users and the ease of connectivity 
is critical to the success of the project.  
 
Staff answered questions about the Market Hall/Conservatory concept. There was general 
interest but agreement that the concept needs further exploration. Concern was expressed 
about building a structure in the park area, and that a more appropriate location for a Market 
Hall/Conservatory might be the Atrium location, but again this needs further exploration. 
 
There was discussion about the implications of the hybrid plan for access to and potential 
relocation of parking in the short-term and long-term. Kathleen Bracke, GO Boulder Manager, 
responded to questions about the Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategies that 
are being evaluated with the assistance of city employee focus groups to gain input about 
proposed strategies. Kathleen explained the process and timeline for the employee feedback 
and described a series of parking incentives, off-site parking options and multi-modal 
opportunities that are being explored. Concerns were expressed about impacts to staff, 
especially those who attend night meetings. Concerns were also raised about the success of 
some of the TDM strategies and potentially making the parking problem worse.  
 
Council asked about 2A ballot funding, the timing of implementation and the extent to which 
funding is sufficient for the proposed park site improvements. Staff indicated that everything 
is still included, will be refined and prioritized based upon final design, and a refined estimate 
and schedule will be presented for review and consideration at the June council meeting. 
 
Civic Area Master Plan Update 
After the presentation of the preliminary feasibility evaluation of the Boulder Community 
Health (BCH) facility as a potential opportunity to relocate city services and programs, there 
was general support for staff to perform further analysis. There was discussion about the 
parking advantages at the Boulder Community Health, Broadway site and the opportunity to 
consolidate city services at one campus. Council offered that relocating city services to the 
BCH site may provide some efficiencies and opportunities in the long-term plan for the 
“bookends” of the Civic Area by allowing other uses and innovative strategies for 
development. However, there was also discussion about keeping some municipal services in 
the Civic Area to take advantage of the transit options and the downtown infrastructure. The 
general interest was that council would like further analysis including an example of what 
municipal services would remain in the downtown to support the “civic heart of Boulder.”  
 
While council acknowledged that the cost estimates presented were very preliminary, there 
were questions about accuracy and what is included in those numbers. Council discussed the 
opportunity to sell some city property to offset the costs and acknowledged the expenditures 
currently associated with the various properties that are being leased around the city. There 
was also interest in examining opportunities for public/private partnership at the BCH 
location. Council would like to see more analysis of all the available options.  
 
The study session concluded with discussion about some of the ongoing programmatic 
elements of the master plan. There was discussion about the performing arts center and 
council generally agreed that exploration of the north wing of the main library was the right 
location for this use. There was concern about the potential performing arts location on the 
east bookend creating a “dead zone” as the goal is 24 hour activation.  
 
Regarding the West Senior Center, Karen Rahn, Human Services Director, responded to a 
question regarding the current status and long-term viability of Meals on Wheels in the 

Attachment A - March 31, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary for the Boulder Civic Area

Agenda Item 3B    Page 5Packet Page 17



  

context of the West Senior Center. Karen explained the schedule and process for the Human 
Services Strategic Plan and the Civic Area, which will inform the long-term plan for the West 
Senior Center and Meals on Wheels co-location with city services. She indicated that the city 
will continue to coordinate with Meals on Wheels on long-term location options. Related to 
the east bookend along 13th Street, Joe Castro, Facilities and Fleet Manager responded to a 
question regarding the environmental remediation work at the 13th Street Plaza and status of 
the project. Joe explained that the majority of the project was complete and the site can 
accommodate the future development that will be informed by subsequent design phases of 
the bookends.  
 
At the conclusion of the study session, staff reminded council that several of the Civic Area 
program elements will be returning for further review and consideration. These elements 
include: 
 Performing Arts Center – Discuss as part of the Community Cultural Plan. Scheduled 

to discuss with council at a Study Session on May 26, 2015. 
 Civic Use Pad –Memorandum of Understanding and Letter of Intent will be presented 

to City Council May 19th. 
 West Senior Center – Long-term location to be evaluated as part of Human Services’ 

Strategic Plan and Needs Assessment. Scheduled to discuss with council at a Study 
Session on April 28, 2015. 

 
 

Attachment A - March 31, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary for the Boulder Civic Area

Agenda Item 3B    Page 6Packet Page 18



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE:  April 21, 2015  

AGENDA TITLE:  Consideration of a motion to accept the March 31st, 2015 City Council 
Study Session Summary – Update on Planning for the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan 
(BVCP) 2015 Update and the Design Excellence and the Form Based Code Pilot Project. 

 

PRESENTERS 
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning & Sustainability (CP&S) 
Lesli Ellis, Comprehensive Planning Division Manager, CP&S 
Courtland Hyser, Senior Planner, CP&S 
Sam Assefa, Senior Urban Designer, CP&S 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this item is approval of the March 31, 2015 Study Session Summary 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  

Suggested Motion Language: 
Staff recommends Council consideration of this summary and action in the form of the 
following motion: 
Motion to accept the March 31st, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary on the Boulder 
Valley Comprehensive Plan (BVCP) 2015 Update and Design Excellence and the Form Based 
Code Pilot Project. 
  
ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: March 31st, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 3C   Page 1Packet Page 19



March 31st, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary  
Planning Update on the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan (BVCP) 2015 
Update and Design Excellence and the Form Based Code Pilot Project. 
 
PRESENT 

City Council: Mayor Matt Appelbaum, Mayor Pro Tem Suzanne Jones, Council Members Macon 
Cowles, George Karakehian, Lisa Morzel, Tim Plass, Andrew Shoemaker, Sam Weaver, and Mary 
Young. 
 
Staff members: Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager; David Driskell, Director of Community Planning and 
Sustainability; Lesli Ellis, Comprehensive Planning Manager; Sam Assefa, Senior Urban Designer; 
Courtland Hyser, Senior Planner 
 
 

1. BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
Staff introduced the discussion item and provided an overview on the Comprehensive Plan’s purpose and 
elements, as well as an update on the project’s schedule and community engagement plan.  The 
presentation included an overview of the seven foundation tasks underway.  Staff requested feedback on 
the project schedule, ideas for the Community Engagement Plan, and the Foundations Tasks. 
 
(Note:  Presentation and discussion of the Resilience Strategy was deferred until April due to shortage of 
time.  Chief Resilience Officer Greg Guibert also was not present for the Study Session.)   
 
Discussion Summary  
 
Council members provided the following feedback: 
 
Work Plan and General Feedback 
General support for the work plan and schedule.  The consultant report contains helpful suggestions on 
ways to improve the plan and how to translate planning into people's lives. 
 
3D Tool 
Generally liked the concept of a 3D urban form tool that will enable people to envision what growth and 
different types of building forms may look like.  Council members asked if the 3D tool will be used to 
visualize different scenarios, potentially based on different growth rates.  Can information be presented 
dynamically to convey growth rates or different futures?  

 
Staff responded that the 3D tool is being scoped.  The Envision East Arapahoe project is an example of 
one way to use such a tool to discuss and assess options.  We will likely work with a consultant on this, 
and look at best practices from other communities. 
 
Land Use and Map Changes 
Asked about the timing for map use changes; specifically about the process of moving an area of land 
from Area II to Area III, whether or not this is considered a service area expansion, and who other than a 
property owner can request such a change. 
 
Staff response: The discussion will return to Council in June with a Study Session about the service area 
question, followed up in July for specific direction. The land use request process will begin in August or 
September, as it is a part of every Comprehensive Plan update. The service area expansion or contraction 
issue is different and will depend on Council’s discussion and direction in June and July.  Moving an area 

Attachment A - March 31, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary

Agenda Item 3C   Page 2Packet Page 20



from Area II to Area III requires a different level of analysis compared with a service area expansion.  A 
request may be submitted by either community members or property owners. 
 
Regional Data and Context 
Many council members stressed the importance of considering the regional context of growth and 
planning when assessing data for the BVCP update.  A lot of activity is happening in the region that 
affects Boulder, and the Denver Regional Council of Government (DRCOG) has some new tools worth 
using.  For example, the regional increase in rent and housing costs puts Boulder’s activity in perspective. 
 
RTD and transit is extremely important, and the community should participate regarding the RTD fare 
increase proposal. 
 
Survey, Polling and Multi-Pronged Outreach  
Several council members gave feedback that a statistically valid survey to assess community opinions 
regarding some focused planning issues could help inform this process and is important despite the cost 
associated with it. Specific comments included:   

• Internet Participation:  Internet or technology-based approaches may not reach a representative 
segment of the population.  Some council members expressed concern that online polling can be 
skewed.  Staff explained some ways for online polls to be secured (e.g., restricting each IP 
address to only one entry).  Members of the community who are not as active in these processes 
tend to prefer online engagement, younger people in particular. 

• Hybrid Outreach and Survey Methods:  Many council members agreed that some sort of 
hybrid survey (i.e., mail, Internet, phone) may be the best solution.  

• Multi-Pronged Outreach:  Outreach should involve multiple methods and include mail in order 
to engage hard-to-reach people.  Get 360 degree picture of the community; not interested in 
putting more weight on one group over another. 

• Statistically Valid Survey:  Some council members expressed concern about unscientific polls 
that could potentially lead to misleading information and expressed support for conducting such a 
poll to provide an idea of how people feel about planning issues, since the community is divided.  
Such a survey needs to be handled with extreme care however, and it needs to ask the right 
questions to provide meaningful results. 

 
Planning 101 
It was also pointed out that we used to do a “Planning 101” session at the beginning of Comprehensive 
Planning updates, and that exercise was valuable. 
 
Data Requests 
This BVCP clearly will bring forward a lot of data and analysis which is important and useful.  Some 
council members advised that student data be segmented out of overall data so it doesn’t skew economic 
data and jobs numbers.  College students are members of the community, however aggregating students 
into the overall demographics can change statistics such as poverty rate.  Consider segmenting students 
out of some calculations. 
 
Provide existing and trends data on net commercial and industrial space, both public and private if 
possible.  It would be good to be able to show realistic growth numbers (trends from past 5-10 year and 
forecasts for the next 10 years+) so Boulder can understand the current building boom.  Do the same with 
jobs and housing units.   
 
Stability and Change 
Asked for clarification about the task noted as “assess stability and change factors” and the intent for 
analyzing neighborhoods.  Staff replied that they are doing mapping and data analysis at the 

Attachment A - March 31, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary

Agenda Item 3C   Page 3Packet Page 21



subcommunity level.  Some neighborhoods will not change at all, and others show trends of change.  The 
analysis being done can look at those factors to assist in the community discussion.  
 

2. DESIGN EXCELLENCE AND FORM BASED CODE 
 
Staff updated Council on the status of the Design Excellence and Form Based Code Pilot.  
 
Discussion Summary  
A council member pointed out that Landmarks Board seems to be missing from the board representation 
and could provide useful design ideas.  Staff responded that because Boulder Junction has no landmark 
issues it may be less important for Landmarks Board to be part of the discussion.   
 
A council member asked for clarification as to why this Form Based Code pilot is being used in an area 
that has already been largely master planned, while other places such as 28th have less of a vision.  What 
do we hope to learn from doing a Form Based Code in this location? 
 
Staff responded that a Form Based Code is a regulatory tool used to achieve a defined vision.  Because 
there is an established vision for Boulder Junction, the code can simply focus on implementing this 
vision, as opposed to an area like 28th Street where there is little community vision in regards to building 
form. This process could inform the implementation of future vision plans. 

Attachment A - March 31, 2015 City Council Study Session Summary

Agenda Item 3C   Page 4Packet Page 22



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: April 21, 2015 

 
AGENDA TITLE 
Authorization of the City Manager to enter into an IGA regarding Community Development 
Block Grant - Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) funding with the City of Longmont.  
 
 
PRESENTER/S  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works, Flood Recovery Manager 
Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
Jeff Yegian, Housing Division Manager 
Joel Wagner, Flood Recovery Coordinator – Finance  
Chris Meschuk, Flood Recovery Coordinator – Community Services 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this item is for City Council to consider authorizing the City Manger to enter into 
an intergovernmental agreement with the City of Longmont and other Boulder County 
communities for the purposes of administering Community Development Block Grant – Disaster 
Recovery (CDBG-DR) funds at a countywide level.   
 
Following the September 2013 flood, the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) awarded the State of Colorado $320 Million dollars of CDBG-DR funds to support 
recovery efforts in three separate awards (aka “rounds”).   
 
When the first round of funds ($63M) were announced by the State of Colorado in 2014, 
representatives of the various local governments in Boulder County came together to coordinate 
and collaborate our respective applications, to ensure funds were directed to the smaller and 
more impacted communities, and to address the most urgent needs at the time.   
 
The collaborative process was successful, and appreciated by the State of Colorado and HUD.  
For the round 2 funds ($199M) the collaborative worked with the state to implement an option 

    
Agenda Item 3D     Page 1Packet Page 23



for local communities to form a collaborative, and administer a portion of the CDBG-DR funds 
locally as a sub-allocation, rather than applying to the State of Colorado as was done in round 1.   
 
Round 3 funds ($57M) are still in the planning and HUD approval process.  All CDBG-DR 
funds must be spent within 2 years of being obligated by HUD to the State of Colorado.    
 
This sub-allocation approach was approved by HUD, and applies to the portion of funds to 
support housing and infrastructure activities.  The collaborative participants selected the City of 
Longmont to serve as the fiscal agent for the group, to administer the suballocation of funds.  
This IGA outlines the process and procedures for the allocation, administration, and reporting of 
the sub-allocated funds.   
 
This intergovernmental agreement is modeled from the HOME Consortium agreement and IGA, 
which is administered by the City of Boulder for the communities in Boulder County.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motions: 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  

Motion to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with the City of 
Longmont and other Boulder County Communities for the purposes of administration of 
funds through the Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery program 
and to grant the City Manager the authority to withdraw from the agreement and make 
modifications to the agreement as the City Manager deems necessary.   

 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 
• Economic:  It is in the interest of the city to utilize these federal disaster recovery funds to 

support our community’s recovery and resilience.   
• Environmental:  There are numerous potential projects that could be funded through CDBG-

DR that will improve floodways, restore infrastructure, and individual homes.   
• Social:  These funds will support the rehabilitation of private homes, and infrastructure that 

will reduce floodplains and reduce community flood risk.   
 
OTHER IMPACTS 
 
• Fiscal: The City of Boulder will benefit from the CDBG-DR grant funding, and requires no 

local financial match.      
• Staff time:  The staff time to administer the funds and ensure compliance with HUD 

regulations is within the flood recovery work program for the city.    
 
 
 

    
Agenda Item 3D     Page 2Packet Page 24



PUBLIC FEEDBACK 
The Boulder County Collaborative is currently collecting feedback on the draft partial action 
plan, and has held four public hearings to date (Boulder, Longmont, Lyons, and Jamestown).  
The deadline for public comment is April 20.  Limited comments have been received to date, 
including one from a Weld County resident seeking assistance, and one comment regarding 
mobile homes.   
 
Indirect public feedback has been  obtained as part of the extensive outreach ongoing related to 
city flood recovery efforts.  During these public interactions, city staff has learned a great deal 
about housing and infrastructure needs throughout the Boulder Community.  In addition to flood 
recovery outreach, the city hired a full time, temporary Flood Recovery Coordinator for 
Community Services.  This staff member has worked with affected residents and has identified 
services and resources to address the feedback offered about unmet needs.  
 
In addition, the city’s coordination with the Long Term Flood Recovery Group (LTFRG) and 
Boulder County Housing and Human Services case managers on CDBG-DR has provided insight 
into the remaining housing needs to assist residents.   
 
   
ANALYSIS 
 
The City of Boulder was included in the area declared a federal disaster area from the September 
2013 flood.  HUD awarded the State of Colorado a total of $320 million in federal CDBG-DR 
funds to support recovery efforts within the areas of housing, infrastructure, and economic 
recovery.  Eighty percent of the funds must be spent in Boulder, Larimer and Weld counties.   
 
To date through the round 1 CDBG-DR funds, the city has received $500,000 in assistance for 
infrastructure funding, $75,625 in resilience and planning assistance, and Boulder households 
have been awarded $342,000 in housing rehabilitation and rental assistance, for a total of 
$917,625.   
 
The State of Colorado, at the encouragement of the City of Boulder and other communities in 
Boulder County, created a path for a countywide collaborative group to receive a “fair share” 
suballocation of the CDBG-DR funds for local administration.  The sub-allocation approach and 
this IGA will allow the city to fund infrastructure projects faster, direct funding to projects that 
will have the highest impact and leverage funding to help our community recover while 
becoming more resilient, and allow the continuation of funding for housing assistance and 
rehabilitation.  Most importantly, this allows our local communities to prioritize projects and 
coordinate funding, rather than compete against each other for funding through a state 
application process.   
 
The Boulder County collaborative will receive between $45 to $57 million to fund infrastructure 
and housing assistance projects through the round 2 funding allocation of $199 million.  The 
remaining programs developed for CDBG-DR funding will continue to be administered by the 
State of Colorado through a competitive grant process.  The funding will be allocated according 
to the action plan developed by the collaborative, pending approval by the State of Colorado and 

    
Agenda Item 3D     Page 3Packet Page 25



HUD.  See Attachment B for a copy of the draft partial action plan.   Projects in each 
community will be funded based on the proportional share of damage (see chart below), urgency 
of the project, project cost, compliance with the HUD objectives and meeting the low/moderate 
income benefit percentages, and completing the project within the time frame allowed (as 
described in the IGA in Attachment A).  
 
 
 

Participating 
Government 

Total 
Infrastructure  
PA Damages 

Percentage of 
Infrastructure  
PA Damages 

Total Housing  
IA & NFIP 
Damages 

Percent of 
Housing 
Damages 

Boulder County 127,878,792 51.2% $31,043,975 35.58% 
Boulder 16,636,348 6.7% $35,363,922 40.54% 
Jamestown 10,109,702 4.0% $1,425,930 1.63% 
Lafayette 908,305 0.4% $186,356 0.21% 
Louisville 4,177,830 1.7% $211,896 0.24% 
Longmont 53,308,102 21.4% $9,367,906 10.74% 
Lyons 35,700,615 14.3% $9,564,157 10.96% 
Nederland 656,589 0.3% $75,517 0.09% 
Total 245,053,928 100.00% $87,239,659 100.00% 

 
 
The city anticipates funding a portion of the Wonderland Creek Greenways Improvement Project 
– Foothills to Winding Trail, and continuing to provide assistance to single family and rental 
households seeking rehabilitation funding assistance and temporary rental assistance while their 
housing unit is reconstructed.    
 
NEXT STEPS 
Funds awarded to the city will be reported as a part of a future update on Flood Recovery efforts.      
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery Collaborative 
Intergovernmental Agreement.   

B. Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan 
 

 

    
Agenda Item 3D     Page 4Packet Page 26



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT – DISASTER RECOVERY 
COLLABORATIVE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ______ day of 

______________, 2015, by and between Boulder County, the cities of Boulder, Lafayette and 
Louisville, the towns of Lyons, Jamestown and Nederland and the City of Longmont 
(“Longmont” or the “Lead Agency”) (collectively the “Participating Governments”), 

 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) Community 

Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (“CDBG-DR”) Program has appropriated funds for 
disaster assistance and is distributing appropriated funds to the State of Colorado; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State of Colorado has determined it is in its best interest to sub-allocate 

CDBG-DR Program funding to the City of Longmont, the Lead Agency for the Participating 
Governments named above, to administer such federal funds, subject to certain conditions, for 
the purpose of completing public works, infrastructure and housing projects to aid in the 
recovery of our communities from the September 2013 flood for the second phase, or Round 2, 
of CDBG-DR funding; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State of Colorado entered into separate CDBG-DR Housing Grant 

Agreements with Boulder County for $2,500,000 in September, 2014, and with the City of 
Longmont for $2,750,000 for the first phase, or Round 1, of CDBG-DR funding, and those funds 
are separately administered by Boulder County and the City of Longmont, respectively, and are 
not subject to this Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Participating Governments and the Lead Agency recognize the need to 

address the flood impacts and recovery of our communities in a coordinated and collaborative 
way ensuring that the unmet needs of our residents and our communities resulting from the flood 
are addressed in a logical, productive and locally determined fashion, and have determined that it 
will be mutually beneficial and in the public interest to enter into this Agreement to accept this 
funding and lay out principles around the management and distribution of the CDBG-DR 
Program funding; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Participating Governments and Lead Agency are authorized to enter 
into cooperative agreements pursuant to the Colorado Constitution, Article XIV § 18, and § 29-l-
203, C.R.S. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 

in this Agreement, the parties mutually agree to the following terms and conditions. 
 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 5Packet Page 27



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

 
I. DEFINITIONS 

 
For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings provided in this 
section: 
 
“Disaster Act” means the Disaster Relief Appropriations Act, 2013 (Pub. L. 113-2) appropriating 
funds for the purpose of assisting recovery in the most impacted and distressed areas declared a 
major disaster event in calendar years 2011, 2012 and 2013. 
 
 “HCD Act” means Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended,  
 
Stafford Act” means the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 
1974. 
 
“CDBG-DR” means the Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery funding 
provided to the Collaborative through an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of 
Longmont acting as the Lead Agency and the State of Colorado. 
 
“Committee” means the Collaborative Committee made up of representatives from each 
Participating Government that will review project proposals and recommend funding 
options/scenarios to the Collaborative. 
 
"Collaborative" means the Participating Governments and Lead Agency acting as a collective, 
pursuant to this Agreement as the Boulder County Flood Recovery Collaborative. 
 
"Lead Agency" means the one member unit of general local government designated to act in a 
representative capacity for itself and the Participating Governments for the purposes of 
implementing the CDBG-DR Program and Regulations. The Lead Agency shall assume overall 
responsibility for ensuring that the CDBG-DR Program is carried out in compliance with the 
requirements of 24 CFR Part 570 and all Federal Register Notices pertaining to CDBG-DR funds 
appropriated by the Disaster Act, 2013 (Pub. L. 113-2), including requirements concerning 
eligibility, meeting a national objective and others outlined in the agreement with the State of 
Colorado.  The lead agency for the Collaborative shall be the City of Longmont.   
 
“Participating Governments” means Boulder County, the cities of Boulder, Lafayette, Longmont 
and Louisville, and the towns of Lyons, Jamestown and Nederland. 
 
"Regulations" means the rules and regulations promulgated pursuant to the HCD Act, the 
Stafford Act and the Disaster Act, including all Federal Register Notices relevant to the Disaster 
Act and the CDBG regulations, including but not limited to 24 CFR Part 570. 
 
“State Agreement” means the CDBG-DR Grant Agreement between the State of Colorado, 
Department of Local Affairs (“DOLA”), and the City of Longmont, as Lead Agency, for 
disbursement of CDBG-DR Round 2 funds.    

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 6Packet Page 28



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

 
 

II.  TERM 
 
a.  Term. The term of this Agreement begins on the date of the last signature affixed hereon 
and shall continue for a period of three years until May 1, 2018 (“Initial Term”); provided 
however that this Agreement shall further remain in effect during the period necessary to 
complete all eligible activities funded during the term of the State Agreement, and any 
extensions of the State Agreement.  Except as provided in paragraph II.b., Collaborative 
members are prohibited from withdrawing from the Agreement during this Initial Term. 

 
This Agreement shall automatically be renewed for one year periods if necessary to comply with 
the State Agreement and to ensure the Collaborative’s participation in successive funding periods 
(Round 3 and/or succeeding or additional funding Rounds with funding made available and 
agreed on to pursue or accept by the Collaborative) from the State.  The Lead Agency shall 
notify each Participating Government in writing of its right to decide not to participate in the 
Collaborative for the next funding period.  If a Participating Government decides not to 
participate in the Collaborative for the next funding period, the Participating Government shall 
notify the Lead Agency within 30 days after the date of the Lead Agency’s notification.  If a 
Participating Government fails to notify the Lead Agency that it is withdrawing from the 
Collaborative, the Participating Government shall be deemed to have consented to the renewal of 
this Agreement.  The automatic renewal of the Agreement will not be binding upon a 
Collaborative member if the Lead Agency fails to notify a Collaborative member as required 
under this automatic renewal provision.  
 
The Lead Agency shall provide a minimum of thirty (30) days advance written notice to each 
Participating Government of any new funding periods.  Notice shall be sent by the Lead Agency 
to the following: 
 
Commissioners’ Deputy 
Boulder County Commissioners 
PO Box 471 
Boulder, CO  80306 

Town Administrator 
Town of Lyons 
PO Box 49 
432 5th Ave 
Lyons, CO 80540 

City Manager 
City of Boulder 
PO Box 791 
Boulder, CO  80306 

Mayor 
Town of Jamestown 
PO Box 298 
Jamestown, CO  80455 

Planning and Building Director 
City of Lafayette 
1290 S. Public Rd. 
Lafayette, CO 80026 

Town Administrator  
Town of Nederland  
45 W. 1st St., PO Box 396  
Nederland, CO 80466 

Deputy City Manager 
City of Louisville 
749 Main Street 
Louisville, CO 80027 

Housing and Community Investment Manager 
City of Longmont 
350 Kimbark St. 
Longmont, CO  80501 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 7Packet Page 29



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

 
 
b. Termination.  Participating Governments may withdraw from this Agreement in the 
following circumstances: 

1.  If a Participating Government has received its anticipated funding and completed its 
obligations under this Agreement, the Participating Government may voluntarily 
withdraw upon 30 days written notice to the Lead Agency. The Participating 
Government will be required to complete its responsibilities under Section V. of this 
Agreement before being released from this Agreement. 

2. If a Participating Government objects to the manner in which the Collaborative is 
administering this Agreement, the Participating Government shall first notify the 
Collaborative of its objection and seek to resolve its differences with the 
Collaborative.  If the Participating Government is unable to resolve its differences 
with the Collaborative, the Participating Government may withdraw from this 
Agreement upon 30 days written notice to the Lead Agency.  After withdrawal, the 
Participating Government shall continue to be bound by the provisions of Section V. 
concerning reporting obligations to the Lead Agency and Disallowed Expenditures.  
This Agreement shall continue as to all remaining Collaborative members if a 
Participating Government withdraws. 

3. This Agreement will terminate if a majority of the members of the Collaborative vote 
to terminate.   In such event the Agreement shall remain in effect until the CDBG-DR 
funds from each of the contracted Funding Rounds are expended on eligible 
activities. 

   
 
c. Termination Notices.  Notices of termination or non-renewal, if any, shall be sent to the 
Lead Agency. Notices to the Participating Governments shall be sent to the addresses above in 
Section II.a.  Notices to the Lead Agency shall be sent to: Housing and Community Investment 
Manager, City of Longmont, 350 Kimbark Street, Longmont CO 80501.   

 
III.  FUNDING 

 
a. Allocating CDBG-DR Program Funding.  The Committee will develop a Partial Action 
Plan for submission to the State, including obtaining public comment.  Except as provided in 
Section IV of this Agreement, after review and approval of the Partial Action Plan by the State, 
the Committee will determine the specific allocation of funds for specific Housing Assistance 
and Infrastructure projects of the Participating Governments and rank such projects from first 
priority to last priority.  In developing the Partial Action Plan and determining the specific 
allocations to the Collaborative members, the Committee shall focus on the following items:  
Percentage of Damage, Unmet Need and Guiding Principles as described in more detail below.  
Special rules for allocation of Housing Development funds are provided in paragraph c, below.   

 
b. Housing Assistance Programs.  Boulder County will administer Housing Assistance 
Programs providing individual assistance to households impacted by the flood for all the Boulder 
County communities, except Longmont.  Longmont will administer Housing Assistance 
Programs for its residents, except it will continue to administer the Down Payment Assistance 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 8Packet Page 30



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

Program countywide.  Funding priorities for the Housing Assistance Programs will be presented 
by Boulder County and Longmont to the Committee for review and approval and will stay within 
the Housing and Infrastructure percentages outlined and approved in the Unmet Needs 
Assessment.  Program delivery costs up to 20% of each program amount will be allowed to come 
from the program funding. 
 
c. Housing Development Projects.  New construction housing development projects will 
not be included in the Partial Action Plan submitted to the State for CDBG-DR Phase 2 funding. 
The State intends to directly administer funds for new housing construction within Boulder 
County.  

 
d. Infrastructure Projects.  Infrastructure amounts for each Participating Government will 
be determined by identifying proportionality of damage, and then adjusting amounts to reflect 
the Unmet Needs Assessment and to ensure that each Participating Government can complete 
their highest priority projects that are in alignment with the Collaborative’s Guiding Principles.   

1. Percentage of Damages.  A percentage of damages will be calculated for each 
Participating Government and every attempt shall be made to ensure that each 
Participating Government receives funding for projects in approximately their 
percentage of the damages impacting their community. However, Participating 
Governments recognize that allocated amounts will not exactly match 
proportionality, as Participating Governments might require more or less than 
their proportional amount due to extent of damage in their jurisdiction, urgency of 
projects, and cost of highest priority projects. Funded Infrastructure Projects must 
comply with the following overriding requirements of the CDBG-DR program: 
project eligibility, meeting low/moderate income benefit percentages, being able 
to start and complete a project within the required time frame allowed, etc. The 
percentages and approximate funding levels set out below represent the damage 
estimates for each Participating Government.  
 

Participating 
Government 

Total 
Infrastructure  
PA Damages 

Percentage of 
Infrastructure  
PA Damages 

Total Housing  
IA & NFIP 
Damages 

Percent of 
Housing 
Damages 

Boulder County 127,878,792 51.2% $31,043,975 35.58% 
Boulder 16,636,348 6.7% $35,363,922 40.54% 
Jamestown 10,109,702 4.0% $1,425,930 1.63% 
Lafayette 908,305 0.4% $186,356 0.21% 
Louisville 4,177,830 1.7% $211,896 0.24% 
Longmont 53,308,102 21.4% $9,367,906 10.74% 
Lyons 35,700,615 14.3% $9,564,157 10.96% 
Nederland 656,589 0.3% $75,517 0.09% 
Total 245,053,928 100.00% $87,239,659 100.00% 

 
2. Unmet Need.  The Committee will also review and consider the Unmet Need, as 

determined by the Collaborative’s consultant, for each Participating Government.  
Every attempt shall be made to ensure that each Participating Government 
receives funding for projects to address their Unmet Need. 

3. Guiding Principles.  The Committee will also review and consider the Guiding 
Principles developed by the Collaborative, and will make every attempt to ensure 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 9Packet Page 31



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

that each Participating Government receives funding for projects in accordance 
with the Guiding Principles, which are attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A, 
and by this reference made a part of this Agreement. 
 
The actual amount of funding will be determined based on the prioritization of 
projects by the Committee.  The Committee will review projects submitted by the 
Participating Governments and will discuss and prioritize projects and determine 
funding for projects based on the above criteria.  The Committee shall also 
consider strategic priorities, programmatic requirements (i.e. CDBG-DR 
eligibility and national objective achievement), project readiness, and 
administrative burden.  

4. Award to Special Districts.  The Committee may also allocate funds to projects 
that wholly or partially benefit the special districts shown in Exhibit B (the 
“Special Districts”).   The Participating Governments recognize that projects of 
the Special Districts may provide community benefits and be consistent with the 
principles behind this Agreement.      Any Participating Government may submit a 
project for consideration to the Committee that includes one of the Special 
Districts as a participant or wholly benefits one of the Special Districts. 

5. Matching and Leveraging Funds. Each Participating Government and the Lead 
Agency shall be responsible for identifying additional funding resources and 
submitting the applications required to those funding resources in order to provide 
matching and/or additional funds when a project cannot be fully funded with 
CDBG-DR funding.  

 
e. Distribution and Management of CDBG-DR funds. Each Participating Government 
will be responsible for managing the project awarded according to all the CDBG-DR 
requirements in 24 CFR Part 570 (i.e. Procurement, Environmental Review, Davis-Bacon and 
Labor Standards, Fair Housing, etc.).  Each Participating Government may establish its own 
procedures for contracting, expenditure and monitoring of funds, provided those procedures are 
consistent with CDBG-DR requirements and that the Participating Government complies with 
the requirements of Section V of this Agreement. 
 
If a Participating Government has not committed (under contract) all of its allocated CDBG-DR 
funds within 12 months of project award, the Lead Agency shall reclaim the funding and award 
the funds to the next highest ranking priority project that can get under contract within 6 months.  
If that is not possible, the Committee shall reallocate the CDBG-DR funds to projects already 
approved for funding by the other Participating Governments, either through a pro-rata share to 
the Participating Governments based on their estimated funding allocation schedule set forth in 
Section III.d.1. or for one or more distinct projects as nominated and approved by the Committee.  
Any of these funding scenarios are with the caveat that the Participating Governments to which 
the funds are allocated can assure that it can commit the CDBG-DR funds within the required 6 
month timeframe.  It is anticipated that any funds in the State Agreement that are not expended 
within 24 months of the date of the State Agreement will be recaptured by the State. 
 
 
f. Administrative Set Aside.  The Lead Agency will be entitled to the entire general 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 10Packet Page 32



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

administrative set aside under the State Agreement to cover the general administrative 
responsibilities of managing this State Agreement and ensuring compliance with the CDBG-DR 
program and the State Agreement.  Each project will be allowed up to 20% of the project award 
for the Participating Government to use to cover its project delivery costs. 
 
g. Program Income.  Program Income as defined at 24 CFR 570.504 generated by a 
Participating Government will be held by each Participating Government that is a CDBG 
entitlement jurisdiction in a separate account specific to the CDBG-DR Program.  Program 
Income generated by a Participating Government that is not a CDBG entitlement jurisdiction will 
be returned to the Lead Agency and will be used and programmed for flood recovery work 
eligible under the CDBG-DR program until this Agreement is terminated.  Program Income 
received after the Agreement ends can be used by the Participating Government that is an 
entitlement community for any CDBG eligible use and the Lead Agency will place  program 
income generated by non-entitlement jurisdictions in the Countywide Down Payment Assistance 
Program account to be used throughout the County for Down Payment Assistance.  Appropriate 
documentation of the receipt and use of program income during the term of this Agreement will 
be provided to the Lead Agency in a format to be determined by the Lead Agency. 

 
 

IV. LEAD AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
a. Legal Liability and Responsibilities.  Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the 
Lead Agency is authorized to act in a representative capacity for all of the Participating 
Governments for the purpose of the State Agreement and the Lead Agency assumes overall 
responsibility for ensuring that the Collaborative’s CDBG-DR Program is carried out in 
compliance with the HCD Act, the Stafford Act and the Disaster Act as defined in Section I. The 
Lead Agency will be the governmental entity required to execute all grant agreements received 
from the State of Colorado pursuant to the Collaborative’s request for CDBG-DR funds.   The 
Lead Agency will have full responsibility for the execution of the CDBG-DR Program. The Lead 
Agency will be responsible for the Collaborative’s information submittals, Project Funding Plan, 
when required, and for meeting the requirements of other applicable laws, overall administration, 
and performance of the CDBG-DR Program, including the CDBG-DR projects and activities to 
be conducted by the Participating Governments.   The Lead Agency assumes overall 
responsibility for ensuring the Collaborative’s CDBG-DR Program is carried out in compliance 
with the requirements of the Program. 
 
b. Eligibility Review and Compliance Monitoring.   The Lead Agency’s supervisory, 
program and administrative obligations to the Participating Governments shall be limited to the 
performance of the administrative and program tasks necessary to make CDBG-DR funds 
available to the Participating Governments, to determine eligibility and to provide monitoring to 
various projects funded with CDBG-DR funds to ensure that they comply with applicable 
Federal laws and regulations.   
 
c. Reporting Requirements.   The Participating Governments will provide the Lead 
Agency with regular monthly or quarterly activity reports of CDBG-DR funded projects, as 
required by the State in the State Agreement.  The Participating Governments shall, on a regular 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 11Packet Page 33



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

reporting cycle, provide the Lead Agency with reports that capture and identify program income 
derived from the CDBG-DR funded activities. 
 
 

V.  PARTICIPATING GOVERNMENTS’ RESPONSIBILITIES  
 

a. Project Submissions.   The Participating Governments shall prepare and submit to the 
Committee their project plan submissions in the format to be provided by the Lead Agency.   
 
b. Reporting Requirements. The Participating Governments shall prepare and submit to 
the Lead Agency for consolidation into one report the following reports, if applicable, for 
submission to HUD according to applicable deadlines:  Impediments to Fair Housing, Citizen 
Participation Plan, Minority Business Enterprise/Women’s Business Enterprise reports, Labor 
Standards and Davis-Bacon reports, federal cash transaction reports, and annual project or 
performance reports such as what is needed for the DRGR reports as well as preparing and 
submitting any other reporting requirements that are required by DOLA. 
 
c. Lead Agency and Participating Government Cooperation.  The Lead Agency shall 
cooperate and work with the Participating Governments in the preparation of detailed projects 
and other activities to be conducted or performed within the Participating Government during the 
period this Agreement is in effect.  The Participating Governments shall cooperate with the Lead 
Agency. 

 
d. Authorization to Submit Required Documents.  By executing this Agreement it is 
acknowledged that the Lead Agency has the authority to submit on behalf of the Collaborative to 
the State all required documentation needed to obtain the sub-allocation of funding (including 
the Boulder County Action Plan), obtain the Agreement with the State to receive and administer 
the Boulder County CDBG-DR funding, and maintain compliance with the State Agreement. 
 
e. Disallowed Expenditures.    The Participating Governments assume full responsibility 
for payment of CDBG-DR expenditures made in their jurisdictions that are disallowed by the 
State of Colorado, except if payments were made at the direction of the Lead Agency, in which 
case the Lead Agency shall share responsibility. 
 
 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

a. Indemnification.  Each party assumes responsibility for the actions and omissions of its 
agents and its employees in the performance or failure to perform work under this Agreement.  It 
is agreed that such liability for actions or omissions of its own agents and employees is not 
intended to increase the amounts set forth in the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, now 
existing, or as may be amended. By agreeing to this provision, the parties do not waive nor 
intend to waive the limitations on liability which are provided to the parties under the Colorado 
Governmental Immunity Act § 24-10-101 et seq., C.R.S., as amended. 
 
b. Monitoring and Accounting.  The Lead Agency shall maintain financial, project, and 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 12Packet Page 34



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

other records and accounts for the Collaborative in accordance with the requirements of the 
HCD, Stafford and /or Disaster Acts and CDBG Regulations. 
 
All Participating Governments agree to make available all records and accounts pertaining to 
CDBG-DR funded projects covered by this Agreement at all reasonable times to their respective 
personnel and duly authorized federal and/or state officials. 
 
c. Other Applicable Laws.   All projects undertaken pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
subject to any relevant State statutes, home rule charter provisions, assessment, planning, zoning, 
sanitary and building laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to each Participating 
Government or jurisdiction in which a project receiving CDBG-DR funds is situated. 

 
d. Amendments.  Should it become necessary to change the language of this Agreement to 
meet State approval without altering the intent of the Agreement, the Lead Agency is authorized 
to amend the Agreement with the written consent of the members, which may be provided 
electronically.  All other amendments to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the 
Lead Agency and Participating Governments. Each Participating Government may authorize 
staff members to sign amendments on its behalf. Longmont’s Director of Community Services 
may sign such amendments on behalf of Longmont if the amendment does not substantially 
increase the scope of Longmont’s obligations hereunder. 
 
e. Severability.    Invalidation of any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall 
in no way affect any of the other provisions thereof, which shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
f. Financial Obligations of the Parties.  Each party’s financial obligations under this 
Agreement are contingent upon appropriation, budgeting, and availability of specific funds to 
discharge those obligations.  Nothing in this Agreement constitutes a debt, a direct or indirect 
multiple fiscal year obligation, a pledge of the credit of either party, or a payment guarantee by 
either party to the other party. 
 
g. Execution.  This Agreement shall be executed by the appropriate officers of each 
Participating Entity pursuant to authority granted them by their respective governing bodies, and 
a copy of the authorizing resolution and executed Agreement shall be filed promptly at the 
offices of the Lead Agency. 

EXECUTED as of the date first set forth above. 
 
 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 13Packet Page 35



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

Boulder County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:______________________________ 
Chair of the Board of County Commissioners 
 

ATTEST:         
 
 
________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board                                                                                                
 
 
 
 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 14Packet Page 36



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

City of Longmont 
 
 

By:_____________________________________ 
Mayor, City of Longmont 

 
     __________________________ 
     Date      
SEAL 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Substance:   Approved as to Form: 
 
____________________________   ______________________ 
Originating Department    Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Proofread: 
 
___________________

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 15Packet Page 37



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

         
 

City of Boulder 
 
 

By:_____________________________________ 
City Manager, Boulder 

 
     __________________________ 
     Date      
 
SEAL 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 16Packet Page 38



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

CITY OF LAFAYETTE, COLORADO 
 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Christine Berg, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Susan Koster, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
_______________________________ 
David S. Williamson, City Attorney 
 

 
 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 17Packet Page 39



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

City of Louisville 
 
 
By:_____________________________________ 

     Mayor, City of Louisville 
 
     __________________________ 
     Date      
SEAL 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Clerk to the City Council 
 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 18Packet Page 40



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

 
 
 
 
 

Town of Lyons 
 

 
By:_____________________________________ 

     Mayor, Town of Lyons  
 
     __________________________ 
     Date      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SEAL 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 19Packet Page 41



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

 
 
  THE TOWN OF NEDERLAND , COLORADO 
ATTEST: 

 

  

   
LauraJane Baur, Town Clerk  Joe Gierlach, Mayor 

 
 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 20Packet Page 42



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

Town of Jamestown 
 

 
By:_____________________________________ 

     Mayor, Town of Jamestown  
 
     __________________________ 
     Date      
SEAL 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 21Packet Page 43



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

  
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 

CDBG-DR City Town County Collaborative 
Guiding Principles and Selection Criteria 

Approved January 9, 2015 
 
The Participating Governments recognize that CDBG-DR funds will be insufficient to address all 
of the unmet needs in Boulder County. Therefore,  the Participating Governments have identified 
the following Guiding Principles and Selection Criteria to prioritize needs countywide. 
Generally, our communities must be thoughtful in consideration of projects, and advance 
projects that clearly meet CDBG-DR criteria and that free up funding to complete projects that 
otherwise are not eligible for CDBG-DR.  
 
Guiding Principles   
1. Multi-jurisdictional benefit: Consider a holistic approach to flood recovery; implement 

projects that serve or benefit multiple jurisdictions. 
2. Alignment with Unmet Needs Assessment: Use the Unmet Needs Assessment to guide 

allocation of funding; strive to achieve a reasonable balance of funding across communities 
and between infrastructure and housing projects.  

3. Resiliency: Consider projects that result in a more resilient community; projects may go 
beyond flood repair, reducing risk and mitigating hazards in the community.  

4. Safe, accessible housing: Support diverse and resilient communities by providing access and 
repairs to existing housing, new housing opportunities and replacement of housing destroyed 
by the flood, especially in communities where housing was destroyed. 

 
Minimum Eligibility Criteria 
1. Projects must meet HUD’s CDBG-DR objectives and requirements (Urgent Need, 

Low/Moderate Income or Slum and Blight; procurement standards, use of Davis-Bacon 
wages, environmental review, eligible activity, etc.). 

2. Projects must address impacts from the flood. 
3. Projects must meet an Unmet Need as identified in the Unmet Needs Assessment. 
4. Projects must be able to meet the timely expenditure of funds requirement, with funds 

expended within two years of the state and/or HUD funding agreements.  
 
Infrastructure Selection Criteria  
1. Top priority for each jurisdiction. 
2. Considers a project’s benefits across jurisdictions. 
3. Maximizes and leverages resources. 

a. Maximize resources by considering a project’s eligibility for other funding sources, e.g. 
projects that could be funded from competitive CDBG-DR funding categories. 

b. Considers leveraged resources.  
4. Timeliness of projects assured. 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 22Packet Page 44



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

a. Construction projects have a realistic, attainable scope and schedule (e.g., ready to bid, 
ability to be completed within required time frame). 

b. Local match, buyout and other projects similarly must be able to be completed within 
expenditure deadlines.  

5. Consideration of proportionate need in, and fiscal stability of, each community. 
6. Reduces risk and mitigates and/or avoids hazards in a community. 
7. For stream and creek projects, prioritize those that address the higher level of flood intensity 

and flood flow intervals and the corresponding damages resulting from the flood. 
 
Housing Development Selection Criteria 
1. Replaces housing in the community where it was lost when possible, but elsewhere in the 

county as close to that community as possible when it cannot be replaced in the community. 
2. Top priority for each jurisdiction, with each jurisdiction (Longmont, City of Boulder, 

Boulder County) funded once before consideration given to a second project. 
3. Project recommended by the Boulder County Housing Pipeline. 
4. Considers the readiness/timing of projects.  
5. Considers whether other resources are available, and leverages those resources where 

possible.  
6. Support projects with a strong nexus between flood victims’ housing needs and the project’s 

housing (by income, population and type of housing). 
7. All other factors in a project being equal, prioritize projects that will provide the deepest 

affordability for the longest period of time. 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 23Packet Page 45



S:\2013 Flood\Grants\CDBG-DR\Round2\Infras Collaborative\Final - CDBG-DR IGA - 03-30-15.doc  

Exhibit B 

 

 

List of Special Districts: 

Allenspark Fire District 
Boulder County Health Department 
Boulder Mountain Fire District 
Boulder Valley School District 
Fairways Metropolitan District 
Four Mile Canyon Fire District 
Gold Hill Fire District 
Left Hand Water District 
Left Hand Fire District 
Lyons Fire District 
Lyons Ditch Company 
Niwot Sanitation District 
Pine Brook Water District 
St. Vrain and Left Hand Water Conservancy District 
St. Vrain Valley School District 
Sunshine Fire District 

 

Attachment A - Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery Collaborative IGA

Agenda Item 3D     Page 24Packet Page 46



 

1 
 

   

                   

 

 

 

    

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 25Packet Page 47



 

2 
 

Section 1:  Introduction 

Boulder County, Colorado, experienced a catastrophic flood event from September 11th, 2013 

through September 15th, 2013. Beginning September 9th, more than 17 inches of rain fell along 

the Colorado Front Range. This was an historic event, and the rainfall triggered flash floods 

across Boulder County and the surrounding region. The volume of water in the St. Vrain Creek 

in Longmont was ten times its normal amount by the evening of September 11th, 2013. In 

different parts of the county, the event ranged from a 100‐year flood to a 1000‐year flood. For 

example, the town of Lyons experiences normal creek flows during spring run‐off of 

approximately 1,200 cubic feet per second (cfs); however, during the 2013 flood, Lyons 

experienced 26,000 cfs. This far exceeded the typical 100‐year flood event of approximately 

4,800 cfs. 

As indicated in the State of Colorado’s Action Plan, Boulder County was the hardest hit county 

in the state.  Boulder County received approximately 50% of the housing damage reported for 

the State, and local businesses received 51% of the Small Business Administration (SBA) disaster 

business loans provided to businesses in the State.  Boulder County had approximately 47% of 

infrastructure damage, over two times the amount of the next closest county, with incredible 

damage to all five major watershed drainages in the county, about 150 miles of county roads, 

vast networks of agricultural irrigation ditches, and utilities and wastewater facilities. 

This disaster was different than past disasters in Boulder County.  Rivers and creeks cut new 

paths, washing away homes, leaving massive amounts of debris and destroying access to 

homes.  Many homes that were not in the floodplain were damaged or destroyed because of 

dramatic river and creek breaches, landslides, and water moving with velocity and carrying 

large debris that crashed into homes. Debris rushing down creeks and rivers caused destruction 

to private bridges, culverts and roads, in addition to housing structures. Damage to public roads 

due to debris, floodwaters and mudslides isolated many residents during the disaster 

necessitating more than 800 ground evacuations, and helicopter air evacuations  of more than 

1,100 people and 550 pets during a mission led by the National Guard that was the second 

largest domestic air rescue since Hurricane Katrina.  

Several jurisdictions in Boulder County conducted a debris removal program in the months 

following the disaster to remove household debris, woody debris, hazardous materials, and 

other debris, so that river and creek channels could safely convey spring run‐off. Boulder 

County government alone collected 28,124 tons of debris from rights of way, 2,448 tons at 

collection sites, and 32,821 tons from high hazard creek locations. Still, debris continues to clog 

many of the waterways, and damage from debris flows remains. The impacts from the 2013 

flood have left Boulder County much more vulnerable to future flood events as drainages and 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 26Packet Page 48



 

3 
 

watersheds that have historically absorbed and slowed down runoff during the spring thaws 

and heavy rains are not yet restored and offer little retention capability.  

Since the flooding in September 2013, the County and the units of local government impacted 

by the flood have worked with local, state, and federal partners to access needed assistance for 

its residents. Resources and support made possible by these partners will be discussed 

throughout this Action Plan. These partners have played and will continue to play an integral 

part in the recovery of Boulder County. These partners include governmental, private, and non‐

profit agencies.  

Boulder County and the units of local government within the county have formed a 

collaborative partnership (Collaborative) among its impacted communities with a focus on 

strategic coordination for long‐term recovery.   The Boulder County Collaborative is comprised 

of the following eight (8) Participating Governmental Entities (hereafter “Participating 

Entities”): 

1. Boulder  County 

2. City of Boulder 

3. Town of Jamestown 

4. City of Lafayette 

5. City of Longmont 

6. City of Louisville 

7. Town of Lyons 

8. Town of Nederland 

 

The following Special Districts and Water Conservancy District1 that also received significant 

damages will be able to be considered for funding under this Partial Action Plan by submitting 

projects through an application process to the Collaborative:  

 Allenspark Fire District 

 Boulder County Health Department 

 Boulder Mountain Fire District 

 Boulder Valley School District 

 Fairways Metropolitan District 

 Four Mile Canyon  Fire District 

 Gold Hill Fire District 

 Left Hand Water District 

                                                            
1  Please  note  that  Special  Districts  and Water  Conservancy  Districts  are  different  distinct  legal  entities  under 
Colorado state  law. However, for the purposes of  identifying the unmet needs of governmental entities that are 
not part of the city, town, or county governments that are participating in the Boulder County Collaborative, these 
entities will be referred to collectively as Special Districts. 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 27Packet Page 49



 

4 
 

 Left Hand Fire District 

 Lyons Fire District 

 Lyons Ditch Company 

 Niwot Sanitation District 

 Pine Brook Water District 

 St. Vrain and Left Hand Water Conservancy District 

 St. Vrain Valley School District 

 Sunshine Fire District 
 

The City of Longmont, as lead agency, will administer the application process and receive 

funding requests on behalf of the Collaborative. The amount of funding to be awarded to 

eligible projects will be determined by the Collaborative based on needs identified in the 

Boulder County Unmet Needs Assessment and the Collaborative’s Guiding Principles (see 

Appendix C).   

The Collaborative is submitting this Action Plan to the State to outline Boulder County’s unmet 

needs, as well as to describe how the Collaborative proposes to allocate a sub‐allocation of 

CDBG‐DR (Community Development Block Grant‐Disaster Recovery) funds received from the 

Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA), through the US Department of Housing and 

Urban Development (HUD) for infrastructure and housing programs.   

The City of Longmont will be the Lead Agency in administering these programs throughout the 

county.  Longmont is an entitlement city and has been administering HUD CDBG dollars since 

1984.  The City has a long history of administering the various HUD programs such as the HOME 

Investment Partnerships Program and CDBG and is familiar with the federal regulations 

governing the CDBG program.  

 Section 2:  Needs Assessment 

Boulder County has conducted a needs assessment to assess both direct and indirect impacts 

from the disaster to determine the remaining “unmet needs” for the three major categories of 

Housing, Infrastructure, and Economic Revitalization.  This Unmet Needs Assessment details the 

methodology, sources of data, analysis of impacts, and sources of assistance that were factored 

into determining the estimated amount of monies needed for the remaining disaster‐related 

unmet needs in Boulder County.  A summary of the findings are found in Table 1 below, and the 

complete Unmet Needs Assessment is included and is incorporated as part of this Action Plan 

as Appendix A.  The Unmet Needs Assessment covered the entire county, including both 

unincorporated and incorporated areas. 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 28Packet Page 50



 

5 
 

Table 1: Summary of Countywide Estimated Flood Recovery Unmet Need and Percentages 

 

Activity 
Unmet Needs 
County‐Wide   Percent  

Housing Unmet Need (including Buyout/Acquisition) 
$194,552,388  20.95% 

Lost Revenue 
$4,064,718  0.44% 

Business Unmet Need 
$12,794,124  1.38% 

Special Districts 
$895,701  0.10% 

Creeks/Watersheds 
$191,627,250  20.63% 

Total Infrastructure (PA/HMGP/FHWA and Resiliency) 
$507,143,792  54.60% 

Additional Community Needs  
$9,190,005  0.99% 

Planning and Capacity Needs 
$8,501,689  0.92% 

Total
$928,769,667  100.00% 

 

While units of local government in the county have made great progress in repairing public 

facilities and roads and bridges, restoring utilities, and removing more than 60,000 tons of 

debris, there remains much to do for a full recovery.  The county’s Needs Assessment 

determined that there is an estimated $928,769,667 in disaster‐related remaining unmet needs 

in the county.   

As seen from Table 1 above, infrastructure, housing and creeks/watersheds respectively are the 

greatest unmet needs in the county.  Based on FEMA Verified Loss (FVL) data for the county, 

11,860 housing units were impacted by the flood. Of the 11,860 damaged housing units, 445 

were determined to have Major‐to‐Severe damage.  

Public and private properties were washed away or destroyed, impacted by land and mudslides, 

flooded, and covered in tons of debris. Several mobile home parks were substantially damaged 

or destroyed, particularly in the municipalities of Longmont, Lyons and Boulder. To further 

exacerbate the housing situation, Boulder County’s Department of Transportation reported 

that approximately 300 housing structures had damages to bridges, culverts, and private roads, 

limiting or completely cutting off access to homes. Aerial photography showed approximately 

115 bridges and culverts with visible damage and another 60‐plus culverts and access points 

where the damage could not be assessed (many access points serve multiple homes).  Many of 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 29Packet Page 51



 

6 
 

these residents remain displaced even in situations where the house was undamaged but 

cannot be accessed, and others reach their homes through unsafe temporary foot bridges or by 

driving through creeks or other risky access and are not reachable for emergency responders.   

In addition to the tremendous need for housing repair, as mentioned above many homes no 

longer are safe for habitation, some of which are eligible for the FEMA HMGP (Hazard 

Mitigation Grant Program) buyout program and some of which are ineligible because the 

properties are not in the floodplain. These residents also remain displaced, many paying both 

mortgage and rent, with banks threatening foreclosure and several foreclosures underway 

already. Rental assistance is a need for these and other residents that have been displaced due 

to impact from the 2013 flood. It is estimated from FEMA data and other sources that the 

remaining housing unmet needs countywide is over $194,552,388, 20.95% of the total unmet 

needs for Boulder County. 

Countywide the greatest unmet need is infrastructure.  Infrastructure in the county and in its 

communities sustained extensive damage from the floods, and much of that damage was to 

watershed, utility and other activities that are not eligible for FEMA assistance.  FEMA through 

its Public Assistance program assists units of local governments by providing 75% of the costs to 

repair and replace disaster‐damaged infrastructure.   The State has agreed to provide one‐half 

of the non‐FEMA cost share for all communities, and more than that amount for some smaller, 

heavily impacted communities.  The local governments and special districts must fund the 

remaining balance.  Based on the completed FEMA Project Worksheets, Federal Highway 

Assistance (FHWA) projects, and projects not covered by FEMA or other funding sources, the 

remaining unmet needs for infrastructure is estimated to be $507,143,792 , which is 54.60% of 

the total dollars for unmet needs. The remaining unmet need based on completed FEMA 

Project Worksheets for Special Districts totals $895,701. Additionally, infrastructure repairs and 

resiliency projects related to creeks and watersheds have an estimated unmet need of 

$191,627,250 which is 20.63% of total unmet needs. All of these fall within the HUD category of 

infrastructure projects and combined, the unmet need is a total of $699,666,743 or 75.33% of 

the total need. 

Section 3:  Method of Distribution 

CDBG‐DR Regulatory Authorities, Requirements and Waivers 

The State of Colorado was allocated $199,300,000 of CDBG‐DR funds from the Department of 

Housing and Urban Development in the second round of allocations from the Disaster Relief 

Appropriations Act (P.L. 113‐02).  The second round of funds for Colorado was announced in 

the Federal Register Notice on June 3, 2014 (79 FR 31964). The State received its first round of 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 30Packet Page 52



 

7 
 

CDBG‐DR funds in December 2013, and these funds were distributed on a competitive basis 

through the State’s application process.  

The Disaster Relief Appropriations Act requires funds to be used for specific disaster‐related 

purposes.  All CDBG disaster recovery activities must clearly address an impact of the disaster 

for which funding was appropriated.  In addition, the regulations require that each activity must 

be CDBG eligible (or receive a waiver from HUD), meet a CDBG national objective, and address 

a direct or indirect impact from the disaster in a presidentially declared county.   

The funds available for this Partial Action Plan are funds allocated from the June 3rd Federal 

Register. Unless explicitly precluded, all waivers, alternatives, and requirements of the previous 

federal register notices dating back to March 5, 2013 (78 FR 14329) apply to this round of 

CDBG‐DR Funds. 

Key March 5, 2015 Provisions: 

Reimbursement of Disaster Recovery Expenses. Eligible disaster‐related expenses 

incurred prior to the funding award may be reimbursed with this CDBG‐DR allocation. 

The Federal Register states, “The provisions of 24 CFR 570.489(b) are applied to permit a 

State to reimburse itself for otherwise allowable costs incurred by itself or its recipients, 

subgrantees or subrecipients (including public housing authorities) on or after the 

incident date of the covered disaster.” (78 FR 14342)  Eligible reimbursement costs also 

include costs associated with completing an unmet needs assessment. As stated in the 

Federal Register, “CDBG‐DR funds may be used to reimburse the costs of conducting the 

needs assessment.” (78 FR 14333)  

Use of CDBG‐DR as Match. CDBG‐DR is eligible for  match requirements for all federal 

funding sources. The Federal Register states, “Additionally, as provided by the HCD Act, 

funds may be used as a matching requirement, share, or contribution for any other 

Federal program when used to carry out an eligible CDBG‐DR activity. This includes 

programs or activities administered by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA) or the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).”(78 FR 14346) 

 Adoption of Another Agency’s Environmental Review. Under the Appropriation’s Act, 

environmental reviews from other federal agencies may be used. The March Federal 

Register states, “ In accordance with the Appropriations Act, recipients of Federal funds 

that use such funds to supplement Federal assistance provided under sections 402, 403, 

404, 406, 407, or 502 of the Stafford Act may adopt, without review or public comment, 

any environmental review, approval, or permit that is required by the HCD Act. The 

grantees must notify HUD in writing of its decision to adopt another agency’s 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 31Packet Page 53



 

8 
 

environmental review. The grantee must retain a copy of the review in the grantee’s 

environmental records.” (78 FR 14343) 

Housing Incentives to Resettle in Disaster‐Affected Communities. Incentive payments, 

when determined to be necessary and reasonable to assist in the reduction of risks to 

life and property associated with rebuilding on parcels in known hazard areas, are 

eligible. The Federal Register states, “Incentive payments are generally offered in 

addition to other programs or funding (such as insurance), to encourage households to 

relocate in a suitable housing development or an area promoted by the community’s 

comprehensive recovery plan.” (78 FR 14345) 

Buildings for the General Conduct of Government. Assistance to buildings for the 

purpose of conducting government is normally excluded from assistance. However, for 

disaster recovery, this prohibition is waived as follows, (42 U.S.C. 5305(a)) is waived to 

the extent necessary to allow grantees to fund the rehabilitation or reconstruction of 

public buildings that are otherwise ineligible. HUD believes this waiver is consistent with 

the HCD Act, and is necessary for many grantees to adequately address critical 

infrastructure needs created by the disaster.” (78 FR 14346) 

Boulder County Sub‐Allocation 

Per Colorado’s Substantial Amendment #1 (approved by HUD on November 5, 2014), the State 

has allocated $63,276,230 of CDBG‐Disaster Recovery funding to the county for 

recovery.Although the State has directed certain funds to new housing and construction and 

will administer those funds directly through the State Division of Housing, the sub‐allocation 

provides an amount to the Boulder County Collaborative that can most appropriately address 

the overwhelming unmet needs, particularly in the area of infrastructure.  To this end, this 

Action Plan accounts for a contracted sub‐allocation amount equal to $63,276,230. 

In order to allow for an effective recovery in Boulder County and participating jurisdictions 

within the county, the Participating Entities in the Boulder County Flood Recovery Collaborative 

signed a Disaster Recovery Collaborative Intergovernmental Agreement (Appendix B).  The 

Collaborative, comprised of representatives from each Participating Entity, has been meeting 

regularly since January 2014 and brings the flood‐impacted communities together so that 

CDBG‐DR funds can be distributed in a manner that is strategic, coordinated and collaborative 

to more effectively address the unmet needs of all the communities in Boulder County. The 

Collaborative will ensure that all projects funded with these funds will be disaster related and 

meet all CDBG‐DR regulations. 

The Intergovernmental Agreement outlines the principles for the management and distribution 

of CDBG‐DR funds. The funding amounts between housing and infrastructure have been 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 32Packet Page 54



 

9 
 

determined by the Collaborative after careful consideration of the needs of the Participating 

Entities.  The Collaborative has reviewed the countywide Unmet Needs Assessment and set the 

percentage of total dollars to be set‐aside for Infrastructure and for Household Assistance 

projects based on that Unmet Needs Assessment.  Chart 1 below shows the unmet needs as 

found in the countywide Unmet Needs Assessment. 

Chart 1 

 
Infrastructure (including special districts, 

creeks/watersheds, and federal match for 

infrastructure) was cited as the greatest unmet 

need in the countywide Needs Assessment at 

75%, Housing second at 21%, and Lost Revenue, 

Business, Planning and Community Needs at less 

than 4% of the total unmet needs.  Since the 

State’s second tranche CDBG‐DR funding 

contributing to the sub‐allocation is directed 

from the Infrastructure and Housing categories 

and not from Lost Revenue, Business, Planning 

and Community Needs, the latter amounts are 

not included in the determination of housing‐infrastructure proportionality, and the accurate 

percentages to Housing and Infrastructure in this Partial Action Plan, are 78% of funding for 

infrastructure and 22% for housing.  See table below: 

Table 2: Sub‐allocation Proportioned between Housing and Infrastructure 
Activity  Boulder County UNA % Sub-Allocation 

Housing  $194,552,388 22% $13,920,771 

Infrastructure/Creeks/Special Districts  
$699,666,743 

78% $49,355,459 

Total  
$894,219,131 

100% $63,276,230 

 

The Housing portion of the sub‐allocation totals $13,920,771 (22%) of the total $63,276,230 

that the State has targeted for Boulder County’s sub‐allocation. Of that, $5.7 million is for the 

following new housing construction projects within Boulder County: 

 $4 million for Town of Lyons Replacement Housing, and 

 $1.7 million for Boulder Spark West Apartments. 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 33Packet Page 55



 

10 
 

The remaining amount of housing funds ($8,220,771) is allocated between the Housing 

Assistance programs listed under Eligible Activities in the next section of this document. The 

State of Colorado is directly managing new housing construction projects in Boulder County and 

has obligated $18,621,824 in CDBG‐DR funds for this activity. The Boulder County Collaborative 

and the State are coordinating options for the remaining $12,921,824 ($18,621,824 less 

$5,700,000) of funding included in this document so the sub‐allocation totals $63,276,230.   

Due to significant demand for the Home Access program and the high cost of private bridge 

projects, as of April 2015, Boulder County had already obligated their full $1 million first round 

CDBG‐DR Home Access award to households needing bridge replacement. To help ensure that 

Boulder County can continue to serve households in the Home Access program, Larimer County 

agreed to transfer their $1 million first round CDBG‐DR Access funds to Boulder County, 

resulting in a total first round funding award to Boulder County of $2 million. Boulder County 

will replace that $1 million of funding to Larimer County from the Collaborative’s second round 

Home Access funds with the State pulling this amount from the Boulder County sub‐allocation 

before it comes to the Collaborative. Therefore, Boulder County’s Home Access allocation in 

this Partial Action Plan, will now total $2 million and the total sub‐allocation will be reduced by 

$1 million (bringing the new total to $62,276,230), but the sub‐allocation original amount is 

made whole by the transfer to Boulder County of $1 million of first round funds.  

Since eligible entities can apply to the State for CDBG‐DR Planning and Watershed projects and 

funding to assist businesses and agriculture, the Participating Entities and Lead Agency in the 

Collaborative will apply competitively for those funds as appropriate.   

The Collaborative seeks to ensure that highest priority infrastructure projects for each 

Participating Entity can be funded. Those projects not funded through the State’s competitive 

programs will be considered under the Collaborative’s Infrastructure category.  

All Housing and Infrastructure projects selected will be reviewed for CDBG‐DR eligibility and 

national objective compliance.  Each project considered and approved by the Collaborative will 

be disaster related as required in Public Law 113‐2 and meet all CDBG‐DR requirements.  

The Collaborative will review all projects submitted by Participating Entities and prioritize 

projects for funding according to the method described below and in accordance with the 

Guiding Principles and Selection Criteria included as Appendix C.  As necessary, other criteria 

may be added to the list by the Collaborative to further refine the prioritization process.  

Eligible Activities 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC FACILITIES 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 34Packet Page 56



 

11 
 

After reviewing the unmet needs of the county, the Collaborative agreed to set aside up to 

$49,355,459 (78%) of the $63,276,230 allocated to Boulder County by the State for the purpose 

of Infrastructure projects. The activities below include those activities that are eligible for 

Infrastructure funding.  

Priority Minimum Threshold Projects 

 Each Participating Entity and the Special Districts as one 

group, will receive $250,000 to use as a match for FEMA 

and other federally funded Public Assistance projects or 

for other high priority Infrastructure projects that are 
determined to be CDBG‐DR eligible.  The total amount 

allocated to this activity is $2,250,000. 

Eligible Applicants – Participating Entities, and the 

Special Districts as a whole 

Priorities – None 

Maximum Grant Amount – $250,000 

National Objective – LMI and Urgent Need 

Activity Amount – $2,250,000 

 

Priority Infrastructure Projects 

The remaining funds ($47,105,459) will be allocated to CDBG‐DR‐eligible infrastructure 

projects submitted by Participating Entities and Special Districts to the Collaborative.  

Each Participating Entity and interested Special District will be asked to submit to the 

Committee an application for their highest‐priority infrastructure projects.   The 

Collaborative will review priority applications for CDBG‐DR eligibility and other CDBG‐DR 

requirements.  If there is 

sufficient funding and the 

overall low‐to‐moderate 

income requirement can be 

met, first priority projects will 

be approved.  If the low‐to‐

moderate income 

requirement cannot be met 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 35Packet Page 57



 

12 
 

and/or monies are available, the Collaborative will consider funding the second priority 

projects, and then third priority, and so on.  Those projects that benefit low‐to‐

moderate income residents will be given priority.   

Housing that is located within a floodway or a floodplain may be purchased as a 

“buyout” activity under this Infrastructure category intended to reduce risk of future 

flood impacts to homeowners. Once housing is purchased through the buyout program, 

the property must be cleared of all structures and placed into open space for 

perpetuity.  In Boulder County, high risk housing is also located in areas that are not in a 

mapped floodplain but are at high risk of flood, landslide or mudslide or pose other 

health/safety issues. The properties may be purchased through an acquisition activity 

under this funding category.  The Collaborative may consider the use of financial 

incentives to enable households whose property is in a location inappropriate for safe 

rebuilding of an occupied structure to relocate, and to encourage the property owner 

whose property is unsafe for habitation to resettle in Boulder County.   

Upon approval by the Collaborative, the Lead Agency will send to the State a description 

of each project including citation for eligibility, justification of connection to the 

disaster, national objective, and so on.  All projects will meet the requirements of the 

March 5, 2013 Federal Register Notice, Section VI (A)(2), 78 FR 14329.   

Eligible Applicants – Participating Entities, Special Districts  

Priorities – Local priority Infrastructure projects, with priority given to low‐to‐moderate 

income benefit 

Maximum Grant Amount – None 

National Objective – LMI, LMA and Urgent Need 

Activity Amount – Up to $47,105,459 

 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 36Packet Page 58



 

13 
 

HOUSING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

The Collaborative has and continues to have as its highest priority project for new housing 

construction a replacement housing project in Lyons.  This development is estimated to replace 

about 70 housing units lost by the flood in Lyons.  The Collaborative also supports the funding 

of a housing project in Boulder called Spark West which was approved for second round  DR 

funding as a result of a first round project submission.   

While the Collaborative understands the Boulder County area’s need for additional affordable 

rental housing in order to address its shortage in this area, CDBG‐DR funds are first needed to 

provide the funding to repair housing so that it is safe, to get families and individuals displaced 

by the flood back into their homes through the Home Rehab and Home Access programs, and 

also to resettle residents by buying homes damaged or impacted by the flood under the buyout 

and acquisition program so the families can move on and into new permanent housing 

situations. 

Eligible Projects –Lyons and Spark West developments 

Maximum Award Amount – $4 million for Lyons, $1.7 million for Spark West 

National Objective – LMI 

Activity Amount – Funding will be administered by the Colorado Division of Housing using $5.7 

million from Boulder County’s sub‐allocation. 

* If a Lyons housing project cannot move forward within the time constraints imposed by 

Round 2 funding, the Collaborative reserves the right to reallocate these funds within this 

Action Plan and will work to secure funding in the Round 3 allocation. 

 

HOUSEHOLD ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS  

Temporary Rental Assistance  

The Collaborative will allocate $250,000 in funds for a Temporary Rental Assistance 

program for renters and homeowner households that experienced a direct impact from 

the flood.   The determination of assistance will be based on documentation of rent 

reasonableness and will be for a maximum of two years or $25,000 in assistance, 

whichever is less, not to exceed the term of the CDBG‐DR funding.  Permanent 

relocation assistance will be undertaken in conformance with the Uniform Relocation 

Act which requires 42 months of rental assistance and other compliance requirements, 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 37Packet Page 59



 

14 
 

when applicable.  The national objective to be met with this program is low‐to‐

moderate income (LMI). 

Eligible Applicants – Boulder County Housing and Human Services will administer this 

program countywide. 

Eligibility Criteria – Renters and owners who were directly impacted and are considered 

low‐to‐moderate income in accordance with HUD’s most recent income limits. Evidence 

of flood‐related displacement must be documented by the applicant. 

Priorities – Eligible households that are at or below 30% AMI, and  persons with 

disabilities, seniors and those who resided in modular homes or manufactured housing 

units (MHUs). 

Maximum Award Amount – $25,000, or 24 months of assistance 

National Objective – LMI 

Activity Amount – $250,000; unexpended amounts in this activity could be allocated to 

other Household Assistance programs in Boulder County. 

 

Down Payment Assistance 

Many residents lost their homes (single family or manufactured/modular homes) due to 

the flood.  In order to assist these residents, $1,000,000 is allocated to fund a Down 

Payment Assistance (DPA) program to assist these residents to purchase a primary 

residence that meets the minimum 

Housing Quality Standards and which 

must not be located in a FEMA 

designated high‐risk area, such as a 

floodplain.  Properties purchased with 

assistance must be located in Boulder 

County.  The national objective to be 

met through this program is benefit to 

low‐and‐ moderate income persons 

(LMI). 

Eligible Applicants – The City of Longmont Housing and Community Investment Division 

will administer this program countywide. 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 38Packet Page 60



 

15 
 

Eligibility Criteria – Residents who were directly impacted by the flood and whose total 

household incomes are less than 80% AMI 

Priorities – Priority will be given to residents previously residing in damaged or 

destroyed manufactured housing. 

Additional Eligibility Criteria – First‐time homebuyers must successfully complete a 

CHFA‐approved homeownership education/counseling program and provide a copy of 

the completion certification to the DPA program to be eligible for Down Payment 

Assistance.  All households regardless of homeowner status must complete a pre‐

purchase housing counseling appointment in order to be eligible to receive Down 

Payment Assistance. 

Maximum Award Amount – $50,000   

National Objective – LMI 

Activity Amount – $1,000,000; unexpended amounts in this activity may be allocated to 

other Household Assistance programs in Boulder County. 

 

Housing Rehabilitation, Single Family Owner Occupied and Rental 

Housing was significantly impacted by the 2013 floods.  In order to assist homeowners 

and landlords to bring back their units or relocate homes from a vulnerable location in a 

floodplain to a permanent location 

outside of the floodplain, 

$3,750,000 will be made available 

for this activity.  Single Family 

Units and rental properties with 1‐

4 units that suffered direct flood 

damage are eligible under this 

program. 

Rehabilitation includes 

renovations necessary for the 

home to meet the HUD CPD Green 

Building Retrofit Checklist, and the 

City of Longmont’s and Boulder County’s Single Family Rehabilitation Standards to be 

used and met respectively in their communities. Assistance to refinance existing 

indebtedness secured by a property being rehabilitated with CDBG‐DR funds and in 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 39Packet Page 61



 

16 
 

accordance with 24 CFR 570.202(b)(3) and OMB Circular A‐87 C.1.a may also be eligible.  

Rehabilitation will only be allowed inside the floodplain if the unit after rehabilitation 

will become eligible for the NFIP and can attain building permits. A property will not be 

suitable for rehabilitation when the cost to repair the damage exceeds 50% of the pre‐

flood county appraised value, on a per‐house basis.  Rehabilitation of non‐substantially 

damaged residential buildings must follow the guidelines specified in the HUD CDP 

Green Building Retrofit Checklist.  Structures that exceed 50% of the flood county 

appraised value, on a per unit basis, will be reconstructed. 

Relocation of single family and modular homes from a vulnerable area to a permanent 

location outside the floodplains is also an eligible activity under this program.  The home 

to be moved must be in a stable condition in order to participate in this program.  These 

programs will meet the national objectives of low‐to‐moderate income and urgent 

need. 

Both LMI households and non‐LMI households are eligible for Housing Rehabilitation 

loans or grants. However, 75% of funds are reserved for eligible LMI applicants, and 25% 

will be available for eligible applicants above the LMI limits.  Any household above 80% 

AMI must qualify under urgent need. 

Administering Entities – Boulder County will use $2,000,000 to administer this program 

for all jurisdictions outside of Longmont; Longmont’s Housing and Community 

Investment Division will use $1,750,000 to administer this program for Longmont 

residents. 

Eligible Applicants – Homeowners and landlords who were directly or indirectly 

impacted by the floods.  The homeowner must be the owner of record.  Only rental 

properties with 1‐4 units that suffered direct flood damage are eligible for 

rehabilitation. 

Priorities – Efforts will be made to give priority to serving those with disabilities, seniors, 

those who resided in manufactured housing units that were damaged or destroyed, or 

low‐to‐moderate income households that have complete applications.  

Maximum Award Amount – $100,000 

National Objective – Urgent Need and LMI 

Activity Amount – $3,750,000; unexpended amounts in this activity may be allocated to 

other Household Assistance programs in Boulder County. 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 40Packet Page 62



 

17 
 

Clearance and Demolition  

The floods left some areas with damage to residential structures that have been 

abandoned, cannot be restored, or may be in high‐risk flood hazard areas. These 

unsound structures pose health and safety risks to the surrounding community and 

must be removed in order to promote comprehensive recovery. Applications may be 

made on behalf of communities that had significant, localized damage and destruction 

that will require them to acquire several deteriorated buildings located in a slum/blight 

area for demolition and clearance. 

Eligible Applicants – Boulder County will administer $220,771 of funding for this 

program countywide.  

Eligibility Criteria – Structures that were damaged or destroyed by the flood and pose a 

health or safety risk. 

Priority – None 

Maximum Award Amount – $50,000 

National Objectives – Removal of Slum & Blight, Urgent Need, LMA 

Activity Amount – $220,771; unexpended amounts in this activity may be allocated to 

other Household Assistance programs in Boulder County. 

 

Home Access Program  

The floods caused damage to many privately owned roads, bridges and culverts, which 

have not been repaired due to lack of resources or have substandard or temporary 

access.  $2,000,000 will be set aside to assist homeowners who still do not have access 

to their homes or evacuation 

routes, that have only 

temporary access, or that are 

eligible for reimbursement for 

repair of their home access. 

Bridges, roads and culverts that 

provide access to single homes 

or more than one home are 

eligible under this activity. 

Both LMI households and non‐

LMI households are eligible for 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 41Packet Page 63



 

18 
 

Home Access grants. However, 51% of funds are reserved for eligible LMI applicants, 

and up to 49% will be available for eligible applicants above the LMI limits who qualify 

under urgent need. 

Administering Entities – Boulder County will administer this program countywide. 

Eligibility Criteria – Applicant households must demonstrate that their private road, 

bridge or culvert access was directly damaged by the floods and provides sole access to 

the target homes. 

Priorities – Residents displaced or living in hazardous situations due to lack of access to 

their homes 

Maximum Grant Amount – $500,000 per target area 

Activity Amount – $3,000,000; unexpended amounts in this activity may be allocated to 

other Household Assistance programs in Boulder County. 

National Objective – LMI or Urgent Need 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

Up to 3% in addition to the total sub‐allocation or up to $1,898,286, will be set‐aside and used 

for general program administration to cover costs for oversight of the sub‐allocation 

distribution process, financial oversight of sub‐grants to participating jurisdictions, monitoring, 

and other administrative expenses. 

Up to 20% of each project will be set‐aside for the individual jurisdictions to use from that 

project’s funding for direct project administration and delivery. 

 

Table3: Method of Distribution for Program Activities 

Program 
Activity 

Round 2 
CDBG‐DR 
Funds 

Funds Obligated 
with this  
Version 

Priority  National 
Objective  

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 

Priority 
Minimum 
Threshold 
Projects 

$2,250,000  $2,250,000  Local priority projects 
including match to 
already approved 
projects 

Urgent Need 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 42Packet Page 64



 

19 
 

Program 
Activity 

Round 2 
CDBG‐DR 
Funds 

Funds Obligated 
with this  
Version 

Priority  National 
Objective  

Priority 
Infrastructure 
Projects 

$47,105,459  $20,000,000  Local priority projects, 
projects that benefit 
low‐and‐moderate 
income households or 
meet an urgent need 

Urgent Need or 
LMI or LMA 

HOUSING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

Lyons and Spark 
West Projects 

$5,700,000  $0  Replacement housing. 
These funds will be 
administered by CDOH 
for these projects. 

LMI 

HOUSEHOLD ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

Temporary 
Rental 
Assistance  

$250,000    Households at or 
below 30% AMI, and 
persons with 
disabilities, seniors 
and those who resided 
in modular homes or 
manufactured housing 
units.  

LMI 

Down Payment 
Assistance 

$1,000,000  $250,000  Households who 
resided in damaged or 
destroyed modular 
homes or 
manufactured housing 
units. 

LMI 

Housing 
Rehabilitation, 
Single Family 
Owner 
Occupied and 
Rental 

$3,750,000  $1,500,000  Persons with 
disabilities, seniors, 
those who resided in 
manufactured housing 
units that were 
damaged or 
destroyed, or low‐to‐
moderate income 
households that have 
complete applications. 

LMI or Urgent 
Need 

Clearance and 
Demolition 

$220,771    None  Urgent Need, 
Removal of Slum 
& Blight, LMA‐ 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 43Packet Page 65



 

20 
 

Program 
Activity 

Round 2 
CDBG‐DR 
Funds 

Funds Obligated 
with this  
Version 

Priority  National 
Objective  

Home Access  $2,000,000  $2,000,000  Residents displaced or 
living in hazardous 
situations due to lack 
of access to their 
homes. 

LMI or Urgent 
Need 

TOTALS  $62,276,230  $26,000,000     

ADMINISTRATION 

General 
Administration 
(non‐project 
delivery) 

$1,898,286  $1,000,000    N/A 

 

 

Section 4:  Federal, State, Local, and Non‐Profit Partners, and Sources of Funding to be 
Leveraged 

 

HUD requires that the State identify other federal, state, local, non‐profit and individual sources 

of funding that may be available to assist with the disaster recovery effort. The Participating 

Entities have been diligent in seeking any and all resources for assistance in rebuilding, 

repairing, and increasing resiliency for infrastructure and public facilities, housing, and 

economic revitalization. 

 After the floods, the Boulder County Long Term Flood Recovery Group (LTFRG) was created to 

assist residents that were impacted by the floods.  The mission of the LTFRG as stated in their 

Flood Resource Guide is to “fulfill the unmet needs of residents who faced losses in the 

destructive 2013 Flood and help them reach a safe, secure and sanitary situation.”  The LTFRG 

provides case management for flood survivors in order to help identify and leverage funding for 

individual flood victims.  They interface with governmental agencies, non‐profits and for‐profits 

to obtain additional resources to assist residents. 

Several Boulder County jurisdictions have a website documenting the September 2013 flooding 

disaster and subsequent recovery (see www.bouldercounty.org/flood, www.lyonsrecovery.com 

and www.longmontcolorado.gov/departments/departments‐n‐z/public‐information/flood‐

information). Local governments are reporting on impacts from the flood, the assistance 

received from Federal, State, local, non‐profit and individual sources, recovery progress that 

has been made thus far, and resources available to individuals and others in the community for 

flood recovery.  

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 44Packet Page 66



 

21 
 

Many of the agencies and groups that have collaborated in flood recovery in Boulder County 

are listed below. 

Federal Partners: 

 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 

 Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 

 Small Business Administration (SBA) 

 U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE) 

 U.S Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) 

 U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) 

 U.S. Congressional Delegation 

 Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 

 Natural Resource Conservation Services (NRCS) 

State Partners: 

 Colorado Recovery Office 

 Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA) 

 Colorado Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (DHSEM) 

 Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) 

 Colorado Division of Reclamation Mining & Safety 

 State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) 

 Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) 

 Colorado Water Commission Board (CWCB) 

 Colorado Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 

 Colorado Division of Housing (CDOH) 

 State Legislative Delegation  

Local Partners: 

 Boulder County Government 

 Boulder County Special Districts 

 City of Boulder Government 

 Town of Jamestown Government 

 City of Louisville Government 

 City of Lafayette Government 

 City of Longmont Government 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 45Packet Page 67



 

22 
 

 Town of Lyons Government 

 Town of Nederland Government 

 Boulder County Housing Authority 

 Longmont Housing Authority 

 Boulder Housing Partners 

 Boulder County Flood Recovery Permitting and Information Center (FRPIC) 

 

Non‐profit Partners:  

 Boulder County Long‐Term Flood Recovery Group (LTFRG) 

 Metro Denver Homeless Initiative 

 Salvation Army 

 OUR Center 

 Emergency Family Assistance Association 

 Housing Helpers 

 Foothills United Way 

 Boulder County Small Business Development Center (SBDC) 

 Longmont Community Foundation 

 Boulder County Parks and Open Space Foundation 

 Habitat for Humanity of St. Vrain Valley 

 Flatirons Habitat for Humanity 

 Safe Shelter of St. Vrain Valley 

 Agape Family Services 

 Inn Between 

The Participating Entities worked with HUD, FEMA, SBA and other federal agencies to identify 

available sources of federal assistance for disaster recovery for the residents and public entities 

of Boulder County.  Funding to leverage with CDBG‐Disaster Recovery will be pursued by the 

Participating Entities because of the importance of leveraging limited CDBG‐DR funds with 

other funding sources from all levels, for CDBG‐DR funds will not be sufficient to meet the 

unmet need for flood recovery.  Efforts to seek funding include federal as well as state 

resources. Further, local jurisdictions have spent budget reserves and have passed voter‐

approved sales tax and user fees to assist with flood recovery.  

As shown in the Unmet Needs Assessment (Appendix A) the following programs have provided 

and/or will continue providing disaster relief funding:  

 FEMA Individual Assistance grants  

 FEMA Public Assistance grants 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 46Packet Page 68



 

23 
 

 FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program  

 SBA Disaster Home and Business Loans  

 National Flood Insurance Program payments  

 Private insurance  

 Federal Highway Administration Emergency Relief Program  

 Long‐Term Flood Recovery Group programs  

 State program to assist with local share for FEMA PA  

 Colorado Water Conservation Board 

 Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 

 

The Participating Entities will continue to seek and leverage additional funding in order to 

maximize federal disaster relief monies as far as possible. The Collaborative and Lead Agency 

will ensure that CDBG‐DR funds are not duplicative and are only used to address funding needs 

not satisfied by other funding sources, many of which are already providing disaster relief as 

listed earlier in this section and some of which have already been exhausted or no longer are 

available. 

 

Section 5:  Vulnerable Populations 

Public Housing Authorities, HUD Assisted Housing, Emergency Shelters, Transitional and 
Permanent Housing for the Homeless and Private Market Units Receiving Project Based 
Assistance Impacted by the Floods 

Public Housing – Boulder County has three publicly‐owned housing developments that received 

damage, including Section 8 housing and a senior‐assisted living development. Only one, 

Bloomfield Place, an eight‐unit senior assisted living development in Lyons received direct 

damage from the flooding and all residents were evacuated. The residents were displaced for a 

temporary period due to a lack of utilities, but all were returned quickly to their units.  The two 

other housing authority owned developments totaling 46 units, both in Boulder, sustained 

minor damage with no displacement. 

Of the 26 impacted voucher holders identified in Boulder County, 3 remained housed while 

their units were repaired, 11 moved to other permanent housing units (7 units were repaired 

and are back in service 4 were mobile homes that were destroyed), 10 were temporarily 

displaced and returned to their repaired units, and unfortunately 2 passed away before moving 

back to their units, although both units were repaired and are back in service.   

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 47Packet Page 69



 

24 
 

Transitional and Permanent Housing for the Homeless/Emergency Shelters – Boulder County is 

fortunate that there are many agencies that provide transitional housing and other services for 

persons in need such as the Emergency Family Assistance Association (EFAA) in Boulder, the 

OUR Center in Longmont, and Sister Carmen Community Center in Lafayette.  These agencies 

also assisted with flood recovery. For example, EFAA provided financial assistance to 211 

flooded households, consisting of 319 adults and 204 children.  Other agencies which provide 

services to prevent homelessness and assist the homeless in Boulder County, include but are 

not limited to the Boulder Shelter for the Homeless, Homeless Outreach Providing 

Encouragement (HOPE), the Inn Between, the OUR Center, and the Safe Shelter of St. Vrain 

Valley.  Participating Entities are working closely with these agencies and others to ensure 

those persons affected by the flood find safe housing, particularly vulnerable populations.  

 

Boulder County has several homeless shelters which are still intact after the floods.  The 2014 

point‐in‐time homelessness survey showed that there were approximately 850 homeless 

people in the county.  Between shelters and other non‐profit agencies, the homeless generally 

were able to be served with shelter, food, support services, and other programs. Issues during 

the flooding led to some people being turned away from the emergency shelters, and the City 

of Longmont paid for Agape Family Services to open their warming center temporarily to 

address this issue and provide additional shelter to the homeless during the flood. To mitigate 

this problem in the future, local government officials and service providers are currently 

working on an emergency response plan for the homeless and others in need. 

 

Section 6:  Other Criteria 
 
Steps the Participating Entities will take to Protect People and Property from Harm and 
Encourage Construction Methods that Emphasize High Quality, Durability, Energy Efficiency, a 
Healthy Indoor Environment, Sustainability, and Water or Mold Resistance  
 

The Collaborative is committed to rebuilding safer, stronger and smarter.  All CDBG‐DR housing 

activities will incorporate all requirements listed in the 2012 International Building Code (IBC). 

The American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) 24 is a referenced standard in the IBC. Any 

building or structure that falls within the scope of the IBC that is proposed in a flood hazard 

area is to be designed in accordance with ASCE 24.  Local building codes that are more stringent 

than the 2012 IBC will be used in the construction specifications for housing activities. In 

addition, as required by State policies, new construction and substantially rehabbed properties 

will be built at a minimum base flood elevation (BFE) plus one foot unless the mountainous 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 48Packet Page 70



 

25 
 

terrain necessitates additional measures to flood‐proof the properties as determined by local 

code. Lead Agency program staff will inspect CDBG‐DR‐assisted housing to ensure construction 

and rehabilitation is in compliance with these standards. 

Housing policies will also require that substantial repair and new construction of housing meet 

Low‐Water Landscaping (e.g. Denver Water Board Standards), and one of the following (listed 

in order of preference): 

• Enterprise Community Partners, Green Communities Criteria 

• U.S. Green Building Council, LEED for Homes, Silver or above 

• The most recently released International Energy Efficiency Codes (IECC) 

• U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Energy Star 2011 for New Homes 

• U.S. Green Building Council, LEED for Homes, Certified 

• U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Energy Star for New Homes 

 

Steps the Collaborative Will Take to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Mismanagement 

The Collaborative will assess all program policies and procedures from an anti‐fraud, waste, and 

abuse perspective and embed anti‐fraud procedures into policies and procedures through the 

following processes: 

1. Analyze paper application files for anomalies, through data analytics supplemented by 

judgmental sampling. 

2. Liaison with Federal, State and local law enforcement authorities. 

3. Assess and test selected internal controls, including IT controls. 

4. Develop and deliver anti‐fraud awareness training to program personnel. 

5. Develop content for anti‐fraud brochures and posters, including hotline information. 

6. Develop and implement policies and procedures for a compliance program including 

investigative protocols, whistleblower and hotline procedures, and a process to refer 

matters to local, state and federal authorities. 

Program Administration and Capacity 

The City of Longmont, as the Lead Agency, will be the program administrator. As the program 

administrator, the City will be responsible for the expenditure of the funds in compliance with 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 49Packet Page 71



 

26 
 

HUD regulations and waivers, and any other State or Federal requirements. The City of 

Longmont has been a HUD CDBG Entitlement City since 1984 and has the staff and experience 

to administer the CDBG‐Disaster Recovery programs in a compliant manner.  Because the City 

receives an annual allocation of CDBG funds, the city has permanent staff that is very 

knowledgeable of CDBG laws and regulations and will monitor the programs for compliance 

with HUD, State, and local laws and regulations.  The City will also procure the services of a 

consulting firm experienced in CDBG‐Disaster Recovery programs to augment staff as needed to 

implement the programs discussed herein. 

To date, the City has never had to return funds to HUD for using federal dollars for ineligible 
activities. The City has successfully administered the following HUD programs as an entitlement 
community, with some programs extending throughout the county as evidenced by the 
following activities: 
 

 Homeowner Rehabilitation Programs 

 Housing Counseling, Education, and Outreach 

 Home Purchase Programs 

 Rental Housing Programs, new construction (with local funding) and rehabilitation  

 Homeless Assistance Programs 

 Community Investment Programs 

 Poverty Reduction Initiatives 

 Land and Property Acquisition 

 Economic Development Programs including direct small business assistance 

 Neighborhood Revitalization 
 

For additional information on the City’s capacity, see Appendix G which provides a summary of 
program accomplishments. 

 
CDBG‐DR programs will be staffed with trained case management staff to assist homeowners 

with rehabilitation, reconstruction, down payment assistance, rental assistance, and other 

programs.  The office will also house project management and construction management staff 

for oversight and implementation of construction projects.  Participating Entities will be 

provided training and technical assistance on regulations, reporting requirements, payment 

procedures, and other compliance requirements for funds awarded for Disaster Recovery.  All 

proposed projects will be reviewed for CDBG‐DR eligibility and national objective prior to 

funding.  Environmental reviews will be performed for each activity in accordance with HUD 

regulations prior to any choice‐limiting actions taking place.   

Other areas to be closely monitored are the flood plain restrictions and duplication of benefits. 

Funds may not be used for persons who have received previous federal assistance (including 

loans) where the purchase and maintenance of flood insurance was a requirement, and have 

since allowed that flood insurance to lapse. In addition, Participating Entities must inform 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 50Packet Page 72



 

27 
 

participating property owners of future requirements related to the purchase and maintenance 

of flood insurance. 

As provided by the Stafford Act, duplication of benefits is prohibited. CDBG‐DR funds cannot 

duplicate other funding received for the same purpose, so all sources of funding will be 

subtracted from project cost to determine available CDBG‐DR assistance. Participating Entities 

and/or the Lead Agency will complete duplication of benefits reviews for every project. The 

Lead Agency will continuously monitor activities for compliance. FEMA, NFIP, private insurers, 

SBA and other agencies will be contacted for third‐party verifications to ensure that there is no 

duplication of benefits occurring within the various programs. 

The City will undertake the administrative and monitoring activities to ensure compliance with 

all applicable laws and regulations. 

Monitoring Standards 
 
The City of Longmont will oversee all activities and expenditures of the CDBG‐DR funds. 

Additional personnel and contractors will be procured to assist in the implementation of the 

Disaster Recovery programs. Not only will these personnel remain involved in ensuring that 

there are layers of financial control, they will also provide technical assistance to the 

Participating Entities, and undertake administrative and monitoring activities to ensure 

compliance with applicable requirements, including but not limited to fair housing, 

nondiscrimination, labor standards, environmental regulations, procurement regulations at Part 

85, etc. 

To maintain a high level of transparency and accountability, the Disaster Recovery program will 

apply a strategy for monitoring projects through desk reviews, site visits, and checklists 

modeled after HUD’s Disaster Recovery Monitoring Checklists. The primary purpose of the 

City’s monitoring strategy is to ensure that all projects comply with applicable federal 

regulations and effectively meet their stated goals. The monitoring process will focus on 

program and financial compliance and will include desk reviews and onsite monitoring by the 

City, consultant staff and independent auditors. The results of monitoring activities will be 

documented by the Lead Agency, who will in turn be monitored by the State.   

Anti‐Displacement 

Participating Entities of the Collaborative already have adopted an Anti‐Displacement and 

Relocation Plan.  The Participating Entities plan to minimize displacement of persons or entities 

and assist any person or entity displaced as a result of implementing a project with CDBG‐DR 

funds.  However, this is not intended to limit the ability of the Participating Entities to conduct 

buyouts or acquisitions for destroyed and extensively damaged or at risk units.  The 

Collaborative plans to exercise the waivers set forth in the March 5, 2013 Federal Register (78 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 51Packet Page 73



 

28 
 

FR 14329) pertaining to the Uniform Relocation Act and the Housing and Community 

Development Act given the priority to engage in voluntary acquisition and optional relocation 

activities to avert repeated flood damage and to improve flood plain management.  The 

program policies and procedures will ensure that the assistance and protections afforded to 

any persons or entities under the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions 

Policies Act (URA), as amended and Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community 

Development Act of 1974, as amended are provided under the CDBG‐DR programs. 

Citizen Participation  

Citizen participation is an essential component of the countywide planning effort. The 

Collaborative strongly encourages public participation in identifying the Participating Entities’ 

unmet needs and solutions to meet those needs.  Citizens and other interested parties will be 

provided an opportunity for reasonable and timely access to information relating to the 

Boulder County Collaborative’s Partial Action Plan and the use of the CDBG‐DR funds under the 

Disaster Recovery Program. 

The Boulder County Collaborative Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery 

Citizen Participation Plan is attached as Appendix D.  In addition, the following Minority 

Outreach will be undertaken: 

 Announce all public hearings to organizations that represent minorities and persons 

with disabilities at least 10 days prior to the public hearing date(s). 

 Include a statement in notices of public hearings indicating that participants in the 

hearings may request language interpretation to assist in their participation. 

 Include a statement in notices of public hearings that locations of the meetings are 

accessible to persons with physical disabilities. 

 Include a statement in notices of public hearings that participants can request 

reasonable accommodations from the City to participate in the public meetings. 

 Notify organizations that represent minorities that every reasonable effort will be made 

to translate documents including having documents on the city’s website translatable 

using “Google Translate”. 

The Partial Action Plan was posted on Participating Entities’ websites in both English and 

Spanish on or before March 20, 2015, and the Collaborative invited all interested persons to 

attend any of the public hearings to be held on March 12 in Boulder (Boulder County 

Courthouse, 4:30 – 5:30 pm), on March 17 in Longmont (Longmont Civic Center, 5:30 – 6:30 

pm), or on March 31 in Jamestown (Jamestown Town Hall, 5:30‐6:30), or April 1 in Lyons (Lyons 

Town Hall, 6:30‐7:30). See Attachment E for additional ways provided for comment on the 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 52Packet Page 74



 

29 
 

Partial Action Plan.  If unable to attend, interested parties may  email or mail comments by April 

20, 2015.  The email address and mailing address follows: 

Email: sally.raney@longmontcolorado.gov  

Mailing Address: Housing and Community Investment Division, Longmont Civic Center Complex, 

350 Kimbark Street, Longmont, CO  80501 

Email: lirwin@bouldercounty.org  

Mailing Address:  Boulder County Commissioners, Old Boulder County Courthouse, 1325 Pearl 

Street, Boulder, CO  80302 

Non‐English speaking individuals and individuals with disabilities that require accommodations 

to participate in public meetings or that need to request auxiliary aids and services necessary 

for participation in the planning of the county’s recovery from the floods should contact the 

following: 

Para información en español, puede llamar a Virginia al (303) 651‐8444. 

TDD/TTY Communication is available via the Colorado Relay system at 1‐800‐659‐3656.  

 

Comment Period 

Public hearings to receive public comment on the Partial Action Plan were held on March 12, 

March 17, March 31, and April 1, 2015.  Minutes of the hearings are attached as Appendix F. In 

addition, a formal thirty (30)‐day public comment period was opened on March 20, 2015 for 

citizen review and comment on the Partial Action Plan.  A news release announcing the 

comment period and public hearing was sent to the media countywide.   Notices were also sent 

to all the Participating Entities for posting or publicizing.   Notice was placed in the Longmont 

Daily Times‐Call and the Boulder Daily Camera.  Notices were also posted on Longmont, 

Louisville and Boulder County’s websites. 

Comments were submitted via email and regular mail. Comments were accepted until April 20, 

2015.   

 

 

Summary of Public Comments and Responses  

[This section will be completed following the public comment period.] 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 53Packet Page 75



 

30 
 

 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A:  Boulder County Unmet Needs Assessment 

Appendix B:  Boulder County Collaborative Intergovernmental Agreement 

Appendix C:  Guiding Principles and Selection Criteria 

Appendix D: Citizen Participation Plan 

Appendix E:  Public Notices 

Appendix F: Public Comment Summary 

Appendix G:  Summary of Longmont’s CDBG Program Accomplishments 

 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 54Packet Page 76



 

31 
 

APPENDIX A 

BOULDER	COUNTY	UNMET	NEEDS	ASSESSMENT	

Executive	Summary	
Boulder County, Colorado, experienced a catastrophic flood event from September 11th, 2013 through 

September 15th, 2013. Beginning September 9th, more than 17 inches of rain fell along the Colorado 

Front Range. This was an historic event and the rainfall triggered flash floods across Boulder County and 

the surrounding region. The volume of water in the St. Vrain Creek was ten times its normal amount by 

the evening of September 11th, 2013. [Add other creek flood amounts] 

This disaster was unlike past disasters in Boulder County according to the Boulder County Flood 

Recovery Resource Guide, Spring 2013. Rivers and creeks selected new paths as water rushed down the 

mountains. The Guide states that properties were washed away or covered in tons of debris, access for 

many homes was destroyed, and debris continues to clog many of the waterways. The impacts from the 

flood have left Boulder County much more vulnerable to future flood events as drainages and 

watersheds that have historically absorbed and slowed down runoff during the spring thaws and heavy 

rains are now depleted and unable to serve this function.  

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has issued three allocations of Community 

Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery (CDBG‐DR) funding for the State of Colorado. The CDBG‐

DR funds are provided for the “purpose of assisting recovery in the most distressed areas in Colorado”. 

The first allocation of $62,800,000 was published in the December 16, 2013 Federal Register (78 FR 

76154) and the second allocation of $199,300,000 was published in the June 3, 2014 Federal Register 

(79 FR 31964). The third allocation $58,246,000 was published in the January 8, 2015 Federal Register 

(80 FR 1039). HUD’s total CDBG‐DR allocations to Colorado come to $320,346,000. Per the Federal 

Register Notices, the State of Colorado must expend at least 80 percent of these funds ($256,276,800) in 

the most impacted counties of Boulder, Weld, and Larimer with the remaining funds to be spent in other 

counties having a declared major disaster in 2011, 2012, or 2013. 

HUD requires recipients of CDBG‐DR funds to assess both direct and indirect impacts from disasters and 

conduct an “unmet needs” assessment for the three major categories of Housing, Infrastructure, and 

Economic Revitalization. Boulder County has hired an independent disaster recovery consulting firm to 

conduct a comprehensive unmet needs assessment approximately one year after the 2013 flood to 

assess remaining unmet needs. This document details the methodology, sources of data, analysis of 

impacts, and sources of assistance that were factored into determining that an estimated $927,972,398 

of unmet disaster related need continues to exist in Boulder County. 

HOUSING	NEEDS	
The flooding in September 2013 caused tremendous damage to homes and property in Boulder County. 

Many residents forced from their homes during the initial flood still find themselves displaced. After the 

flood waters receded, homes were evaluated and residents were faced with the need to repair and 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 55Packet Page 77



 

32 
 

rehabilitate their dwellings, find ways to access their properties, and in some cases make the difficult 

decision that homes could not be repaired or rebuilt.  

More than 11,800 properties sustained flood damages throughout the County and another 200 

properties had damage to their private roads, bridges, or culverts. Based on the FEMA data, 3712 

impacted families are LMI households. 

Finding short‐term or long‐term housing solutions is a challenge for Boulder County and its 

communities. Affordable housing for low and very low income families is a huge need for these 

communities.  Communities throughout Boulder County reported needs estimated at approximately 

$194 million in unmet housing needs. 

INFRASTRUCTURE	NEEDS	
Boulder County experienced massive infrastructure damage in September 2013 as a result of record 

rainfall in the foothills of the Rocky Mountains. For the purpose of this assessment, the term 

infrastructure is intended to include traditional infrastructure, watershed, and agricultural projects. As 

the water worked its way down the mountains, the volume and velocity of water rushing through the St. 

Vrain Creek, Boulder Creek, South Boulder Creek, Little Thompson River, Four Mile Creek, Four Mile 

Canyon Creek, Gold Run, and Left Hand Creek channels increased immensely. The extreme volume and 

speed caused substantial damage to the river and creek channels, as floodwaters rechanneled and 

breached the bank in multiple locations. Timber, vegetation, material from damaged structures, and 

debris were deposited in and alongside the river, creating additional immediate hazards to life and 

safety during the flood and causing an increase in future flood risk by reducing the channel capacity. 

The flood also impacted electrical services throughout Boulder County. Customer’s experienced 

sustained outages that began during the early moments of the flood and lasted approximately four days 

until the electrical companies could gain access and make repairs.  Floodwaters did reach various 

wastewater treatment plants in cities in Boulder County causing service interruptions for two or more 

days and requiring resiliency and recovery projects to protect the sites from future damages.  

Funding from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Public Assistance (PA) program  and 

the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) program help communities recover from disasters by 

providing  federal reimbursement for eligible, disaster‐related costs for debris removal, emergency 

measures, and permanent work to repair and replace disaster‐damaged roads and public facilities. The 

cities within Boulder County have worked with FEMA and FHWA to develop scopes of work to repair 

damages caused by the September 2013 flood. The Presidential decision for this disaster was a federal 

75% cost share. The State of Colorado has agreed to provide one‐half or more of the non‐FEMA cost 

share for FEMA funded projects. This leaves the local communities responsible for the remaining total of 

FEMA project cost. FHWA will also cover 75% of costs and the local community is responsible for the 

remaining 25% local share. After factoring in almost $250 million in other resources, the County’s unmet 

need remains at over $507 million dollars. 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 56Packet Page 78



 

33 
 

SPECIAL	DISTRICTS	AND	WATER	CONSERVANCY	DISTRICT	
An Unmet Needs Survey was conducted among the Special Districts and the Water Conservancy District 

within Boulder County in October, 2014. Subsequent to the survey responses received in October and 

November, 2014, the Boulder County Collaborative has received updated information concerning the 

FEMA match required on behalf of the districts and has been included in the updates to this document. 

Special Districts and Water Conservancy Districts in Colorado are legal  government entities, i.e., political 
subdivisions of the state, which make up a third level of government in the United States. (The federal 
and  state  governments  are  the  other  two  levels.)  Local  government  entities  include  counties, 
municipalities  (cities  and  towns),  school  districts,  and  other  types  of  government  entities  such  as 
"authorities" and "special districts." Colorado  law  limits the types of services that county governments 
can provide  to  residents. Districts  are  created  to  fill  the  gaps  that may exist  in  the  services  counties 
provide and  the  services  the  residents may desire. The majority of districts draw  their boundaries  in 
unincorporated county  land, but residents of a municipality may be  included  in one or more districts. 
Please note  that  Special Districts  and Water Conservancy Districts  are different distinct  legal  entities 
under  Colorado  state  law.  However,  for  the  purposes  of  identifying  unmet  needs  of  governmental 
entities  that  are  not  part  of  a  city,  town,  or  county  government  that  is  participating  in  the  Boulder 
County Collaborative, these entities will be referred to collectively as Special Districts. 
 

The current unmet need is almost $900,000 and comprises the funds needed to cover the local share of 

the FEMA Public Assistance work obligated to these entities. The St. Vrain and Left Hand Creek Water 

Conservancy District has entered into an inter‐local agreement with Boulder County to jointly share local 

match requirements for recovery work for Lake 4. This represents an additional need for the Water 

Conservancy District of over $600,000. 

CREEKS/WATERSHEDS	
Boulder County created a Comprehensive Creek Plan Initiative (CCP) to address watershed recovery.  
The CCP was initiated to ensure county‐wide view of creek recovery and restoration. The CCP began 
with community meetings to identify needs resulting from the flood. First steps started with high‐hazard 
debris removal and mitigation projects. The CCP then prepared for and transitioned to watershed‐level 
master planning process. Collaboration was formed among the Coalition Partners2, community 
members, landowners, and stakeholder interests. 
 
Unmet need has been based on an overview of the watershed master plans: St. Vrain Creek, Boulder 
Creek, South Boulder Creek, Left Hand Creek, Four Mile Creek, and Little Thompson River.  The Planning 
Areas of each Master Plan are divided into a number of reaches along the length of the watersheds to 
facilitate planning and discussion.  These plans contain numerous repair and resiliency measures and 
alternatives.  River restoration projects which might be considered in terms of providing improved repair 
and resiliency include the relocation of structures from the floodplain, single span bridge replacements 

                                                            
2 Partners include: Boulder County, City of Longmont, City of Boulder, Town of Lyons, Town of Jamestown, St. Vrain 
and Left Hand Water Conservancy District, Longmont and Boulder Valley Conservation Districts, Left Hand Water 
District,  Arapaho  and  Roosevelt  National  Forests  and  Pawnee  National  Grassland,  Keep  It  Clean  Partnership, 
Natural  Resources  Conservation  Service,  Colorado  Water  Conservation  Board,  Colorado  Department  of 
Transportation,  Colorado  Division  of  Homeland  Security  and  Emergency  Management,  Colorado  Division  of 
Reclamation Mining & Safety, FEMA, and the Environmental Protection Agency  

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 57Packet Page 79



 

34 
 

of existing culverts, expanding the riparian corridor with native vegetation, revised floodplain 
regulations, and increased set‐backs, among a variety of other actions.  
 
Due to the extensive nature of the damages to the Boulder County creeks and watersheds including the 

costs associated with staffing these activities, an unmet need of more than $191 million still remains. 

The State of Colorado has allocated $25 million of its Round 2 CDBG‐DR funds for the Watershed 

Resilience Pilot Program. However, these funds are inadequate to meet the need and are available 

state‐wide on a competitive basis with no guarantee that unmet needs listed in this document will 

receive funds from this program. 

BUSINESS	AND	ECONOMIC	NEEDS	
The September 2013 flood caused wide‐spread disruption to the operations of local businesses 

throughout Boulder County with physical damage to buildings, inventory and equipment loss, and 

revenue loss both during and after the flood. The effect of the flood was not contained solely to 

businesses within the flood zone, as road closures, power outages, and flood‐related duties prevented 

employees and customers alike from reaching businesses. 

The three most impacted business communities were in the city of Boulder, the city of Longmont and 

the town of Lyons. Of the 349 business that applied for federal small business loans, 315 (90%) were 

from these three communities. Out of the 83 small agriculture applicants, 76 (92%) were from these 

three communities, with over half (42) from Lyons alone. The city of Boulder’s non‐profits made up 75% 

(38) of applicants in the non‐profit category. Unmet Need was estimated based on the number of 

businesses, small agriculture, and non‐profits who applied for loans but were not funded.  There were a 

total of 265 unfunded applications with an estimated over $12 million in unmet need. 

PLANNING	AND	CAPACITY	NEEDS	
Due to the extensive damages to the county’s housing, infrastructure, and businesses, comprehensive 

needs assessments and planning studies are needed to ensure that the CDBG‐DR funds are distributed in 

accordance with need and that best designs are implemented to provide for long‐term recovery and 

increased resiliency to future disasters.  The county has identified approximately $8.5 million in unmet 

need for planning and capacity needs. 

LOST	REVENUE	
All properties within the State of Colorado require standards of construction. In the Boulder County, 

Boulder, and Longmont area, construction standards are higher than some other parts of the State due 

to wind and snow load requirements to keep a building structurally safe. The State relies on local 

government to enforce these regulations. 

Waived fees, lost rent, and relocation costs meant reduced general fund revenue resulting in an unmet 

need of approximately $ 4 million. 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 58Packet Page 80



 

35 
 

OTHER	COMMUNITY	NEEDS	
The final category of unmet needs relates to the projects that several Boulder County communities need 

to recover beyond just damage repairs and resiliency but also be made strong community once again.  

These additional needs total more than $9 million. 

CLIMATE	CHANGE	AND	RESILIENCY	
Each grantee must describe the science‐based risk analysis it has or will employ to select, prioritize, 

implement, and maintain infrastructure projects or activities. At a minimum, the grantee’s analysis must 

consider a broad range of information and best available data, including forward‐looking analyses of 

risks to infrastructure sectors from climate change and other hazards. 

The State of Colorado has been very proactive in undertaking comprehensive risk analysis with an 

emphasis on regional and statewide approaches. The recent report, Climate Change In Colorado, is a 

synthesis of climate science relevant for management and planning for Colorado’s water resources. The 

data was gathered through focuses on observed climate trends, climate modeling, and projections of 

temperature, precipitation, snowpack, and streamflow. 

Grantees are required to identify and implement resilience performance standards. To meet these HUD 

requirements, costs for projects may increase substantially. According to HUD, the “resiliency” amount 

is “calculated at 30 percent of the total basic cost to rebuild back the most distressed homes, 

businesses, and infrastructure to pre‐disaster conditions.”3 

 

Table 2: Summary of County‐Wide Estimated Flood Recovery Unmet Need and Percentages 

Activity 
Unmet Needs 
County‐Wide   Percent  

Housing Unmet Need (including Buyout/Acquisition) 
$194,552,388  20.95% 

Lost Revenue 
$4,064,718  0.44% 

Business Unmet Need 
$12,794,124  1.38% 

Special Districts 
$895,701  0.10% 

Creeks/Watersheds 
$191,627,250  20.63% 

Total Infrastructure (PA/HMGP/FHWA and Resiliency) 
$507,143,792  54.60% 

Additional Community Needs  
$9,190,005  0.99% 

                                                            
3 Second Allocation, Waivers, and Alternative Requirements for Grantees Receiving Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Disaster Recovery Funds in Response to Disasters Occurring in 2013, June 3, 2014, Federal Register, 
Vol. 79, No. 106 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 59Packet Page 81



 

36 
 

Planning and Capacity Needs 
$8,501,689  0.92% 

Total
$928,769,667  100.00% 

 

Note: The complete Draft Boulder County Unmet Needs Assessment can be accessed through 

the following link: http://longmontcolorado.gov/home/showdocument?id=7332  

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 60Packet Page 82



 

37 
 

APPENDIX B 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL	AGREEMENT	
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT – DISASTER RECOVERY COLLABORATIVE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ______ day of ______________, 

2015,  by  and  between  Boulder  County,  the  cities  of  Boulder,  Lafayette  and  Louisville,  the  towns  of 

Lyons,  Jamestown  and  Nederland  and  the  City  of  Longmont  (“Longmont”  or  the  “Lead  Agency”) 

(collectively the “Participating Governments”), 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS,  the  Department  of  Housing  and  Urban  Development  (“HUD”)  Community 

Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (“CDBG‐DR”) Program has appropriated funds for disaster 

assistance and is distributing appropriated funds to the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Colorado has determined  it  is  in  its best  interest to sub‐allocate CDBG‐

DR Program funding to the City of Longmont, the Lead Agency for the Participating Governments named 

above,  to administer  such  federal  funds,  subject  to  certain conditions,  for  the purpose of  completing 

public works,  infrastructure and housing projects  to aid  in  the  recovery of our communities  from  the 

September 2013 flood for the second phase, or Round 2, of CDBG‐DR funding; and 

WHEREAS,  the  State of Colorado  entered  into  separate CDBG‐DR Housing Grant Agreements 

with Boulder County for $2,500,000 in September, 2014, and with the City of Longmont for $2,750,000 

for  the  first phase, or Round 1, of CDBG‐DR  funding, and  those  funds are  separately administered by 

Boulder County and the City of Longmont, respectively, and are not subject to this Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, the Participating Governments and the Lead Agency recognize the need to address 

the flood impacts and recovery of our communities in a coordinated and collaborative way ensuring that 

the  unmet  needs of our  residents  and our  communities  resulting  from  the  flood  are  addressed  in  a 

logical,  productive  and  locally  determined  fashion,  and  have  determined  that  it  will  be  mutually 

beneficial  and  in  the public  interest  to  enter  into  this Agreement  to  accept  this  funding  and  lay out 

principles around the management and distribution of the CDBG‐DR Program funding; and 

WHEREAS,  the  Participating  Governments  and  Lead  Agency  are  authorized  to  enter  into 

cooperative agreements pursuant to the Colorado Constitution, Article XIV § 18, and § 29‐l‐203, C.R.S. 

NOW  THEREFORE,  in  consideration  of  the mutual  covenants  and  promises  contained  in  this 

Agreement, the parties mutually agree to the following terms and conditions. 

 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 61Packet Page 83



 

38 
 

I. DEFINITIONS 
 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings provided in this section: 

“Disaster Act” means the Disaster Relief Appropriations Act, 2013 (Pub. L. 113‐2) appropriating funds for 

the purpose of assisting recovery  in the most  impacted and distressed areas declared a major disaster 

event in calendar years 2011, 2012 and 2013. 

 “HCD Act” means Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended,  

Stafford Act” means the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1974. 

“CDBG‐DR” means  the Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery  funding provided  to 

the Collaborative through an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Longmont acting as the 

Lead Agency and the State of Colorado. 

“Committee” means  the Collaborative Committee made up of representatives  from each Participating 

Government  that  will  review  project  proposals  and  recommend  funding  options/scenarios  to  the 

Collaborative. 

"Collaborative" means the Participating Governments and Lead Agency acting as a collective, pursuant 

to this Agreement as the Boulder County Flood Recovery Collaborative. 

"Lead  Agency"  means  the  one  member  unit  of  general  local  government  designated  to  act  in  a 

representative capacity for  itself and the Participating Governments for the purposes of  implementing 

the CDBG‐DR Program and Regulations. The Lead Agency shall assume overall responsibility for ensuring 

that the CDBG‐DR Program is carried out in compliance with the requirements of 24 CFR Part 570 and all 

Federal Register Notices pertaining  to CDBG‐DR  funds appropriated by  the Disaster Act, 2013  (Pub. L. 

113‐2), including requirements concerning eligibility, meeting a national objective and others outlined in 

the agreement with  the State of Colorado.   The  lead agency  for  the Collaborative shall be  the City of 

Longmont.   

“Participating Governments” means  Boulder  County,  the  cities  of  Boulder,  Lafayette,  Longmont  and 

Louisville, and the towns of Lyons, Jamestown and Nederland. 

"Regulations" means the rules and regulations promulgated pursuant to the HCD Act, the Stafford Act 

and  the Disaster Act,  including all Federal Register Notices  relevant  to  the Disaster Act and  the CDBG 

regulations, including but not limited to 24 CFR Part 570. 

“State Agreement” means the CDBG‐DR Grant Agreement between the State of Colorado, Department 

of  Local Affairs  (“DOLA”),  and  the  City  of  Longmont,  as  Lead  Agency,  for  disbursement  of  CDBG‐DR 

Round 2 funds.    

 
   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 62Packet Page 84



 

39 
 

II.  TERM 

 
a.   Term. The term of this Agreement begins on the date of the  last signature affixed hereon and 

shall continue for a period of three years until May 1, 2018 (“Initial Term”); provided however that this 

Agreement shall  further remain  in effect during the period necessary to complete all eligible activities 

funded during the term of the State Agreement, and any extensions of the State Agreement.  Except as 

provided  in  paragraph  II.b.,  Collaborative  members  are  prohibited  from  withdrawing  from  the 

Agreement during this Initial Term. 

This Agreement  shall automatically be  renewed  for one year periods  if necessary  to  comply with  the 

State Agreement and to ensure the Collaborative’s participation in successive funding periods (Round 3 

and/or succeeding or additional funding Rounds with funding made available and agreed on to pursue 

or  accept  by  the  Collaborative)  from  the  State.    The  Lead  Agency  shall  notify  each  Participating 

Government  in writing of its right to decide not to participate in the Collaborative for the next funding 

period.  If a Participating Government decides not to participate in the Collaborative for the next funding 

period, the Participating Government shall notify the Lead Agency within 30 days after the date of the 

Lead  Agency’s  notification.    If  a  Participating  Government  fails  to  notify  the  Lead  Agency  that  it  is 

withdrawing from the Collaborative, the Participating Government shall be deemed to have consented 

to the renewal of this Agreement.  The automatic renewal of the Agreement will not be binding upon a 

Collaborative member  if the Lead Agency fails to notify a Collaborative member as required under this 

automatic renewal provision.  

The  Lead  Agency  shall  provide  a  minimum  of  thirty  (30)  days  advance  written  notice  to  each 

Participating Government of any new funding periods.   Notice shall be sent by the Lead Agency to the 

following: 

Commissioners’ Deputy 
Boulder County Commissioners 
PO Box 471 
Boulder, CO  80306 

Town Administrator 
Town of Lyons 
PO Box 49 
432 5th Ave 
Lyons, CO 80540 

City Manager 
City of Boulder 
PO Box 791 
Boulder, CO  80306 

Mayor 
Town of Jamestown 
PO Box 298 
Jamestown, CO  80455 

Planning and Building Director 
City of Lafayette 
1290 S. Public Rd. 
Lafayette, CO 80026 

Town Administrator  
Town of Nederland  
45 W. 1st St., PO Box 396  
Nederland, CO 80466 

Deputy City Manager 
City of Louisville 
749 Main Street 
Louisville, CO 80027 

Housing and Community Investment Manager 
City of Longmont 
350 Kimbark St. 
Longmont, CO  80501 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 63Packet Page 85



 

40 
 

b.  Termination.   Participating Governments may withdraw  from  this Agreement  in  the  following 

circumstances: 

1.  If  a  Participating  Government  has  received  its  anticipated  funding  and  completed  its 
obligations under this Agreement, the Participating Government may voluntarily withdraw 
upon  30  days written  notice  to  the  Lead  Agency.  The  Participating  Government will  be 
required  to  complete  its  responsibilities under Section V. of  this Agreement before being 
released from this Agreement. 

2. If  a  Participating  Government  objects  to  the  manner  in  which  the  Collaborative  is 
administering  this  Agreement,  the  Participating  Government  shall  first  notify  the 
Collaborative of  its objection and seek  to resolve  its differences with  the Collaborative.    If 
the Participating Government is unable to resolve its differences with the Collaborative, the 
Participating Government may withdraw from this Agreement upon 30 days written notice 
to  the Lead Agency.   After withdrawal,  the Participating Government  shall continue  to be 
bound by the provisions of Section V. concerning reporting obligations to the Lead Agency 
and  Disallowed  Expenditures.    This  Agreement  shall  continue  as  to  all  remaining 
Collaborative members if a Participating Government withdraws. 

3. This Agreement will  terminate  if  a majority of  the members of  the Collaborative  vote  to 
terminate.      In  such event  the Agreement  shall  remain  in effect until  the CDBG‐DR  funds 
from each of the contracted Funding Rounds are expended on eligible activities. 

   
c.  Termination Notices.   Notices of termination or non‐renewal,  if any, shall be sent to the Lead 

Agency. Notices to the Participating Governments shall be sent to the addresses above  in Section  II.a.  

Notices  to  the  Lead  Agency  shall  be  sent  to: Housing  and  Community  Investment Manager, City  of 
Longmont, 350 Kimbark Street, Longmont CO 80501.   

III.  FUNDING 

a. Allocating CDBG‐DR Program  Funding.   The Committee will develop a Partial Action Plan  for 
submission  to  the State,  including obtaining public comment.   Except as provided  in Section  IV of  this 
Agreement,  after  review  and  approval  of  the  Partial  Action  Plan  by  the  State,  the  Committee  will 
determine the specific allocation of funds for specific Housing Assistance and Infrastructure projects of 
the Participating Governments and rank such projects from first priority to  last priority.    In developing 
the  Partial  Action  Plan  and  determining  the  specific  allocations  to  the  Collaborative members,  the 
Committee  shall  focus  on  the  following  items:    Percentage  of  Damage,  Unmet  Need  and  Guiding 
Principles as described in more detail below.  Special rules for allocation of Housing Development funds 
are provided in paragraph c, below.   
 
b. Housing Assistance  Programs.    Boulder  County will  administer Housing  Assistance  Programs 
providing  individual  assistance  to  households  impacted  by  the  flood  for  all  the  Boulder  County 
communities,  except  Longmont.    Longmont  will  administer  Housing  Assistance  Programs  for  its 
residents,  except  it will  continue  to  administer  the  Down  Payment  Assistance  Program  countywide.  
Funding  priorities  for  the  Housing  Assistance  Programs  will  be  presented  by  Boulder  County  and 
Longmont to the Committee for review and approval and will stay within the Housing and Infrastructure 
percentages outlined and approved in the Unmet Needs Assessment.  Program delivery costs up to 20% 
of each program amount will be allowed to come from the program funding. 
 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 64Packet Page 86



 

41 
 

c. Housing Development Projects.   New  construction housing development projects will not be 
included  in  the  Partial  Action  Plan  submitted  to  the  State  for  CDBG‐DR  Phase  2  funding.  The  State 
intends to directly administer funds for new housing construction within Boulder County.  
 
d. Infrastructure  Projects.    Infrastructure  amounts  for  each  Participating  Government  will  be 
determined by identifying proportionality of damage, and then adjusting amounts to reflect the Unmet 
Needs Assessment and to ensure that each Participating Government can complete their highest priority 
projects that are in alignment with the Collaborative’s Guiding Principles.   

1. Percentage  of  Damages.    A  percentage  of  damages  will  be  calculated  for  each 
Participating  Government  and  every  attempt  shall  be  made  to  ensure  that  each 
Participating  Government  receives  funding  for  projects  in  approximately  their 
percentage  of  the  damages  impacting  their  community.  However,  Participating 
Governments  recognize  that allocated amounts will not exactly match proportionality, 
as  Participating  Governments  might  require  more  or  less  than  their  proportional 
amount due  to extent of damage  in  their  jurisdiction, urgency of projects, and cost of 
highest priority projects. Funded Infrastructure Projects must comply with the following 
overriding  requirements  of  the  CDBG‐DR  program:  project  eligibility,  meeting 
low/moderate  income benefit percentages, being able to start and complete a project 
within the required time frame allowed, etc. The percentages and approximate funding 
levels  set  out  below  represent  the  damage  estimates  for  each  Participating 
Government.  
 

Participating 
Government 

Total Infrastructur
PA Damages 

Percentage of 
Infrastructure 
PA Damages 

Total Housing  
IA & NFIP Damage

Percent of 
Housing 
Damages 

Boulder County  127,878,792 51.2% $31,043,975 35.58% 

Boulder  16,636,348 6.7% $35,363,922 40.54% 

Jamestown  10,109,702 4.0% $1,425,930 1.63% 

Lafayette  908,305 0.4% $186,356 0.21% 

Louisville  4,177,830 1.7% $211,896 0.24% 

Longmont  53,308,102 21.4% $9,367,906 10.74% 

Lyons  35,700,615 14.3% $9,564,157 10.96% 

Nederland  656,589 0.3% $75,517 0.09% 

Total  245,053,928 100.00% $87,239,659 100.00% 

 

2. Unmet  Need.    The  Committee  will  also  review  and  consider  the  Unmet  Need,  as 
determined by the Collaborative’s consultant, for each Participating Government.  Every 
attempt shall be made  to ensure that each Participating Government receives  funding 
for projects to address their Unmet Need. 
 

3. Guiding Principles.  The Committee will also review and consider the Guiding Principles 
developed  by  the  Collaborative,  and  will  make  every  attempt  to  ensure  that  each 
Participating Government receives funding for projects  in accordance with the Guiding 
Principles, which  are  attached  to  this  Agreement  as  Exhibit A,  and  by  this  reference 
made a part of this Agreement. 
 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 65Packet Page 87



 

42 
 

The actual amount of funding will be determined based on the prioritization of projects 
by the Committee.   The Committee will review projects submitted by the Participating 
Governments and will discuss and prioritize projects and determine funding for projects 
based  on  the  above  criteria.    The  Committee  shall  also  consider  strategic  priorities, 
programmatic  requirements  (i.e.  CDBG‐DR  eligibility  and  national  objective 
achievement), project readiness, and administrative burden.  
 

4. Award  to  Special Districts.    The  Committee may  also  allocate  funds  to  projects  that 
wholly or partially benefit the special districts shown in Exhibit B (the “Special Districts”).   
The  Participating  Governments  recognize  that  projects  of  the  Special  Districts  may 
provide  community  benefits  and  be  consistent  with  the  principles  behind  this 
Agreement.      Any Participating Government may submit a project for consideration to 
the  Committee  that  includes  one  of  the  Special  Districts  as  a  participant  or  wholly 
benefits one of the Special Districts. 
 

5. Matching and Leveraging Funds. Each Participating Government and  the Lead Agency 

shall  be  responsible  for  identifying  additional  funding  resources  and  submitting  the 

applications  required  to  those  funding  resources  in order  to provide matching and/or 

additional funds when a project cannot be fully funded with CDBG‐DR funding.  

e.  Distribution  and  Management  of  CDBG‐DR  funds.  Each  Participating  Government  will  be 

responsible for managing the project awarded according to all the CDBG‐DR requirements in 24 CFR Part 

570  (i.e.  Procurement,  Environmental  Review,  Davis‐Bacon  and  Labor  Standards,  Fair  Housing,  etc.).  

Each  Participating  Government  may  establish  its  own  procedures  for  contracting,  expenditure  and 

monitoring of funds, provided those procedures are consistent with CDBG‐DR requirements and that the 

Participating Government complies with the requirements of Section V of this Agreement. 

If  a Participating Government has not  committed  (under  contract)  all of  its  allocated CDBG‐DR  funds 

within 12 months of project award, the Lead Agency shall reclaim the funding and award the funds to 

the next highest  ranking priority project  that  can  get under  contract within 6 months.    If  that  is not 

possible, the Committee shall reallocate the CDBG‐DR funds to projects already approved for funding by 

the other Participating Governments, either through a pro‐rata share to the Participating Governments 

based  on  their  estimated  funding  allocation  schedule  set  forth  in  Section  III.d.1.  or  for  one  or more 

distinct projects as nominated and approved by the Committee.  Any of these funding scenarios are with 

the caveat  that  the Participating Governments  to which  the  funds are allocated can assure  that  it can 

commit the CDBG‐DR funds within the required 6 month timeframe.   It  is anticipated that any funds  in 

the State Agreement that are not expended within 24 months of the date of the State Agreement will be 

recaptured by the State. 

f.  Administrative Set Aside.  The Lead Agency will be entitled to the entire general administrative 

set aside under  the State Agreement  to  cover  the general administrative  responsibilities of managing 

this State Agreement and ensuring  compliance with  the CDBG‐DR program and  the State Agreement.  

Each project will be allowed up to 20% of the project award for the Participating Government to use to 

cover its project delivery costs. 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 66Packet Page 88



 

43 
 

 

g.  Program  Income.   Program  Income as defined at 24 CFR 570.504 generated by a Participating 

Government will be held by each Participating Government that  is a CDBG entitlement  jurisdiction  in a 

separate  account  specific  to  the  CDBG‐DR  Program.    Program  Income  generated  by  a  Participating 

Government that is not a CDBG entitlement jurisdiction will be returned to the Lead Agency and will be 

used  and  programmed  for  flood  recovery  work  eligible  under  the  CDBG‐DR  program  until  this 

Agreement  is  terminated.    Program  Income  received  after  the  Agreement  ends  can  be  used  by  the 

Participating Government  that  is  an  entitlement  community  for  any  CDBG  eligible  use  and  the  Lead 

Agency will place  program income generated by non‐entitlement jurisdictions in the Countywide Down 

Payment Assistance Program account to be used throughout the County for Down Payment Assistance.  

Appropriate  documentation  of  the  receipt  and  use  of  program  income  during  the  term  of  this 

Agreement will be provided to the Lead Agency in a format to be determined by the Lead Agency. 

 
IV. LEAD AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

a.  Legal  Liability  and  Responsibilities.    Subject  to  the  provisions  of  this  Agreement,  the  Lead 

Agency is authorized to act in a representative capacity for all of the Participating Governments for the 

purpose of  the State Agreement and  the Lead Agency assumes overall responsibility  for ensuring  that 

the Collaborative’s CDBG‐DR Program  is carried out  in compliance with  the HCD Act,  the Stafford Act 

and the Disaster Act as defined in Section I. The Lead Agency will be the governmental entity required to 

execute  all  grant  agreements  received  from  the  State  of  Colorado  pursuant  to  the  Collaborative’s 

request for CDBG‐DR funds.   The Lead Agency will have full responsibility for the execution of the CDBG‐

DR Program. The Lead Agency will be responsible for the Collaborative’s information submittals, Project 

Funding  Plan,  when  required,  and  for  meeting  the  requirements  of  other  applicable  laws,  overall 

administration,  and  performance  of  the  CDBG‐DR  Program,  including  the  CDBG‐DR  projects  and 

activities  to  be  conducted  by  the  Participating  Governments.      The  Lead  Agency  assumes  overall 

responsibility  for ensuring  the Collaborative’s CDBG‐DR Program  is carried out  in compliance with  the 

requirements of the Program. 

b.  Eligibility Review and Compliance Monitoring.     The Lead Agency’s supervisory, program and 

administrative obligations to the Participating Governments shall be  limited to the performance of the 

administrative  and  program  tasks  necessary  to make  CDBG‐DR  funds  available  to  the  Participating 

Governments, to determine eligibility and to provide monitoring to various projects funded with CDBG‐

DR funds to ensure that they comply with applicable Federal laws and regulations.   

c.  Reporting Requirements.     The Participating Governments will provide  the  Lead Agency with 

regular monthly or quarterly activity reports of CDBG‐DR funded projects, as required by the State in the 

State Agreement.   The Participating Governments shall, on a regular reporting cycle, provide the Lead 

Agency  with  reports  that  capture  and  identify  program  income  derived  from  the  CDBG‐DR  funded 

activities. 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 67Packet Page 89



 

44 
 

 

V.  PARTICIPATING GOVERNMENTS’ RESPONSIBILITIES  

a. Project  Submissions.      The  Participating  Governments  shall  prepare  and  submit  to  the 
Committee their project plan submissions in the format to be provided by the Lead Agency.   
 
b. Reporting Requirements. The Participating Governments shall prepare and submit to the Lead 
Agency  for  consolidation  into  one  report  the  following  reports,  if  applicable,  for  submission  to HUD 
according  to  applicable  deadlines:    Impediments  to  Fair Housing,  Citizen  Participation  Plan, Minority 
Business  Enterprise/Women’s  Business  Enterprise  reports,  Labor  Standards  and Davis‐Bacon  reports, 
federal cash transaction reports, and annual project or performance reports such as what is needed for 
the  DRGR  reports  as  well  as  preparing  and  submitting  any  other  reporting  requirements  that  are 
required by DOLA. 
 
c. Lead Agency and Participating Government Cooperation.  The Lead Agency shall cooperate and 
work with the Participating Governments in the preparation of detailed projects and other activities to 
be conducted or performed within the Participating Government during the period this Agreement is in 
effect.  The Participating Governments shall cooperate with the Lead Agency. 

 

d. Authorization to Submit Required Documents.  By executing this Agreement it is acknowledged 
that the Lead Agency has the authority to submit on behalf of the Collaborative to the State all required 
documentation  needed  to  obtain  the  sub‐allocation  of  funding  (including  the Boulder  County Action 
Plan),  obtain  the Agreement with  the  State  to  receive  and  administer  the  Boulder  County  CDBG‐DR 
funding, and maintain compliance with the State Agreement. 
 

e.  Disallowed  Expenditures.        The  Participating  Governments  assume  full  responsibility  for 

payment  of  CDBG‐DR  expenditures made  in  their  jurisdictions  that  are  disallowed  by  the  State  of 

Colorado, except  if payments were made at  the direction of  the Lead Agency,  in which case  the Lead 

Agency shall share responsibility. 

 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

a.  Indemnification.   Each party assumes responsibility for the actions and omissions of  its agents 

and its employees in the performance or failure to perform work under this Agreement.  It is agreed that 

such  liability for actions or omissions of  its own agents and employees  is not  intended to  increase the 

amounts set forth in the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, now existing, or as may be amended. By 

agreeing to this provision, the parties do not waive nor intend to waive the limitations on liability which 

are provided to the parties under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act § 24‐10‐101 et seq., C.R.S., 

as amended. 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 68Packet Page 90



 

45 
 

b.  Monitoring  and  Accounting.    The  Lead  Agency  shall  maintain  financial,  project,  and  other 

records and accounts  for  the Collaborative  in accordance with  the  requirements of  the HCD, Stafford 

and /or Disaster Acts and CDBG Regulations. 

All Participating Governments agree to make available all records and accounts pertaining to CDBG‐DR 

funded projects  covered by  this Agreement at all  reasonable  times  to  their  respective personnel and 

duly authorized federal and/or state officials. 

c. Other Applicable Laws.   All projects undertaken pursuant to this Agreement shall be subject to 
any  relevant  State  statutes, home  rule  charter provisions, assessment, planning,  zoning,  sanitary and 
building laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to each Participating Government or jurisdiction in 
which a project receiving CDBG‐DR funds is situated. 
 

d.  Amendments.   Should  it become necessary to change the  language of this Agreement to meet 

State approval without altering  the  intent of  the Agreement,  the Lead Agency  is authorized  to amend 

the Agreement with  the written  consent of  the members, which may be provided electronically.   All 

other  amendments  to  this  Agreement  must  be  in  writing  and  signed  by  the  Lead  Agency  and 

Participating  Governments.  Each  Participating  Government  may  authorize  staff  members  to  sign 

amendments on  its behalf. Longmont’s Director of Community Services may sign such amendments on 

behalf  of  Longmont  if  the  amendment  does  not  substantially  increase  the  scope  of  Longmont’s 

obligations hereunder. 

e.  Severability.        Invalidation of any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall  in no 

way affect any of the other provisions thereof, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

f.  Financial Obligations of the Parties.  Each party’s financial obligations under this Agreement are 

contingent  upon  appropriation,  budgeting,  and  availability  of  specific  funds  to  discharge  those 

obligations.    Nothing  in  this  Agreement  constitutes  a  debt,  a  direct  or  indirect multiple  fiscal  year 

obligation, a pledge of the credit of either party, or a payment guarantee by either party to the other 

party. 

g.  Execution.  This Agreement shall be executed by the appropriate officers of each Participating 

Entity pursuant to authority granted them by their respective governing bodies, and a copy of the 

authorizing resolution and executed Agreement shall be filed promptly at the offices of the Lead Agency. 

EXECUTED as of the date first set forth above. 

 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 69Packet Page 91



 

46 
 

Boulder County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

By:______________________________ 

Chair of the Board of County Commissioners 

 

ATTEST:         

 

 

________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board                                                                                                

 

 

 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 70Packet Page 92



 

47 
 

City of Longmont 

 

By:_____________________________________ 

Mayor, City of Longmont 

 

          __________________________ 

          Date           

SEAL 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to Form and Substance:      Approved as to Form: 

 

____________________________      ______________________ 

Originating Department       Assistant City Attorney 

 

 

Proofread: 

 

___________________

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 71Packet Page 93



 

48 
 

                 

 

City of Boulder 

 

 

By:_____________________________________ 

City Manager, Boulder 

 

          __________________________ 

          Date           

 

SEAL 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

City Clerk 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 72Packet Page 94



 

49 
 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE, COLORADO 

 

 

          ___________________________ 

          Christine Berg, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Susan Koster, CMC 

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David S. Williamson, City Attorney 

 

 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 73Packet Page 95



 

50 
 

City of Louisville 

 

 

By:_____________________________________ 

          Mayor, City of Louisville 

 

          __________________________ 

          Date           

SEAL 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Clerk to the City Council 

 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 74Packet Page 96



 

51 
 

 

 

 

 

Town of Lyons 

 

 

By:_____________________________________ 

          Mayor, Town of Lyons  

 

          __________________________ 

          Date           

 

 

 

SEAL 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 75Packet Page 97



 

52 
 

 

    THE TOWN OF NEDERLAND , COLORADO 

ATTEST: 

 

   

     

LauraJane Baur, Town Clerk    Joe Gierlach, Mayor 

 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 76Packet Page 98



 

53 
 

Town of Jamestown 

 

 

By:_____________________________________ 

          Mayor, Town of Jamestown  

 

          __________________________ 

          Date           

SEAL 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 77Packet Page 99



 

54 
 

Exhibit A 

CDBG‐DR City Town County Collaborative 
Guiding Principles and Selection Criteria 

Approved January 9, 2015 
 
The Participating Governments recognize that CDBG‐DR funds will be insufficient to address all 
of the unmet needs in Boulder County. Therefore, the Participating Governments have 
identified the following Guiding Principles and Selection Criteria to prioritize needs countywide. 
Generally, our communities must be thoughtful in consideration of projects, and advance 
projects that clearly meet CDBG‐DR criteria and that free up funding to complete projects that 
otherwise are not eligible for CDBG‐DR.  
 
Guiding Principles   
1. Multi‐jurisdictional benefit: Consider a holistic approach to flood recovery; implement 

projects that serve or benefit multiple jurisdictions. 
2. Alignment with Unmet Needs Assessment: Use the Unmet Needs Assessment to guide 

allocation of funding; strive to achieve a reasonable balance of funding across communities 
and between infrastructure and housing projects.  

3. Resiliency: Consider projects that result in a more resilient community; projects may go 
beyond flood repair, reducing risk and mitigating hazards in the community.  

4. Safe, accessible housing: Support diverse and resilient communities by providing access and 
repairs to existing housing, new housing opportunities and replacement of housing 
destroyed by the flood, especially in communities where housing was destroyed. 

 
Minimum Eligibility Criteria 
1. Projects must meet HUD’s CDBG‐DR objectives and requirements (Urgent Need, 

Low/Moderate Income or Slum and Blight; procurement standards, use of Davis‐Bacon 
wages, environmental review, eligible activity, etc.). 

2. Projects must address impacts from the flood. 
3. Projects must meet an Unmet Need as identified in the Unmet Needs Assessment. 
4. Projects must be able to meet the timely expenditure of funds requirement, with funds 

expended within two years of the state and/or HUD funding agreements.  
 
Infrastructure Selection Criteria  
1. Top priority for each jurisdiction. 
2. Considers a project’s benefits across jurisdictions. 
3. Maximizes and leverages resources. 

a. Maximize resources by considering a project’s eligibility for other funding sources, e.g. 
projects that could be funded from competitive CDBG‐DR funding categories. 

b. Considers leveraged resources.  
4. Timeliness of projects assured. 

a. Construction projects have a realistic, attainable scope and schedule (e.g., ready to bid, 
ability to be completed within required time frame). 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 78Packet Page 100



 

55 
 

b. Local match, buyout and other projects similarly must be able to be completed within 
expenditure deadlines.  

5. Consideration of proportionate need in, and fiscal stability of, each community. 
6. Reduces risk and mitigates and/or avoids hazards in a community. 
7. For stream and creek projects, prioritize those that address the higher level of flood 

intensity and flood flow intervals and the corresponding damages resulting from the flood. 
 
Housing Development Selection Criteria 
1. Replaces housing in the community where it was lost when possible, but elsewhere in the 

county as close to that community as possible when it cannot be replaced in the 
community. 

2. Top priority for each jurisdiction, with each jurisdiction (Longmont, City of Boulder, Boulder 
County) funded once before consideration given to a second project. 

3. Project recommended by the Boulder County Housing Pipeline. 
4. Considers the readiness/timing of projects.  
5. Considers whether other resources are available, and leverages those resources where 

possible.  
6. Support projects with a strong nexus between flood victims’ housing needs and the 

project’s housing (by income, population and type of housing). 
7. All other factors in a project being equal, prioritize projects that will provide the deepest 

affordability for the longest period of time. 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 79Packet Page 101



 

56 
 

Exhibit B 

 

List of Special Districts: 

Allenspark Fire District 

Boulder County Health Department 

Boulder Mountain Fire District 

Boulder Valley School District 

Fairways Metropolitan District 

Four Mile Canyon Fire District 

Gold Hill Fire District 

Left Hand Water District 

Left Hand Fire District 

Lyons Fire District 

Lyons Ditch Company 

Niwot Sanitation District 

Pine Brook Water District 

St. Vrain and Left Hand Water Conservancy District 

St. Vrain Valley School District 

Sunshine Fire District 

 

 

 

 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 80Packet Page 102



 

57 
 

APPENDIX C 

GUIDING	PRINCIPLES	AND	SELECTION	CRITERIA	
 

CDBG‐DR City Town County Collaborative 
Guiding Principles and Selection Criteria 

Approved January 9, 2015 
 
The Participating Governments recognize that CDBG‐DR funds will be insufficient to address all of the 
unmet needs in Boulder County. Therefore, the Participating Governments have identified the following 
Guiding Principles and Selection Criteria to prioritize needs countywide. Generally, our communities 
must be thoughtful in consideration of projects, and advance projects that clearly meet CDBG‐DR 
criteria and that free up funding to complete projects that otherwise are not eligible for CDBG‐DR.  
 
Guiding Principles   

1. Multi‐jurisdictional benefit: Consider a holistic approach to flood recovery; implement projects 
that serve or benefit multiple jurisdictions. 
2. Alignment with Unmet Needs Assessment: Use the Unmet Needs Assessment to guide allocation 
of funding; strive to achieve a reasonable balance of funding across communities and between 
infrastructure and housing projects.  
3. Resiliency: Consider projects that result in a more resilient community; projects may go beyond 
flood repair, reducing risk and mitigating hazards in the community.  
4. Safe, accessible housing: Support diverse and resilient communities by providing access and 
repairs to existing housing, new housing opportunities and replacement of housing destroyed by the 
flood, especially in communities where housing was destroyed. 

 
Minimum Eligibility Criteria 

1. Projects must meet HUD’s CDBG‐DR objectives and requirements (Urgent Need, Low/Moderate 
Income or Slum and Blight; procurement standards, use of Davis‐Bacon wages, environmental 
review, eligible activity, etc.). 
2. Projects must address impacts from the flood. 
3. Projects must meet an Unmet Need as identified in the Unmet Needs Assessment. 
4. Projects must be able to meet the timely expenditure of funds requirement, with funds 
expended within two years of the state and/or HUD funding agreements.  

 
Infrastructure Selection Criteria  

1. Top priority for each jurisdiction. 
2. Considers a project’s benefits across jurisdictions. 
3. Maximizes and leverages resources. 

a. Maximize resources by considering a project’s eligibility for other funding sources, e.g. 
projects that could be funded from competitive CDBG‐DR funding categories. 

b. Considers leveraged resources.  
4. Timeliness of projects assured. 

a. Construction projects have a realistic, attainable scope and schedule (e.g., ready to bid, 
ability to be completed within required time frame). 

b. Local match, buyout and other projects similarly must be able to be completed within 
expenditure deadlines.  

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 81Packet Page 103



 

58 
 

5. Consideration of proportionate need in, and fiscal stability of, each community. 
6. Reduces risk and mitigates and/or avoids hazards in a community. 
7. For stream and creek projects, prioritize those that address the higher level of flood intensity 
and flood flow intervals and the corresponding damages resulting from the flood. 

 
Housing Development Selection Criteria 

1. Replaces housing in the community where it was lost when possible, but elsewhere in the 
county as close to that community as possible when it cannot be replaced in the community. 

2. Top priority for each jurisdiction, with each jurisdiction (Longmont, City of Boulder, Boulder 
County) funded once before consideration given to a second project. 

3. Project recommended by the Boulder County Housing Pipeline. 
4. Considers the readiness/timing of projects.  
5. Considers whether other resources are available, and leverages those resources where possible.  
6. Support projects with a strong nexus between flood victims’ housing needs and the project’s 

housing (by income, population and type of housing). 
7. All other factors in a project being equal, prioritize projects that will provide the deepest 

affordability for the longest period of time. 
   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 82Packet Page 104



 

59 
 

APPENDIX D 

CITIZEN	PARTICIPATION	PLAN	
for	the	use	of	

Community	Development	Block	Grant	
Disaster	Recovery	(CDBG‐DR)	Funding	

In	accordance	with	FR	Vol.	79,	No.	106	

	

Boulder	County	CDBG‐DR	Collaborative	
 

 
The Boulder County Collaborative (“Collaborative”) has developed this Citizen Participation 
Plan to meet the requirements of the CDBG Disaster Recovery funding following the floods 
of September 2013. The plan reflects the alternative requirements as specified by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in the Federal Register (FR Vol 79, 
No. 106) and any amendments added as applicable. The Collaborative, through the City of 
Longmont, will ensure  the  citizen participation plan meets  the CDBG‐DR  regulations and 
takes into consideration the waivers and alternatives made available by HUD.  
 
This Citizen Participation Plan  is developed  to ensure  that citizens of  the Boulder County 
communities, particularly persons of low and moderate income residing in areas where it is 
proposed that such funds are to be used, are provided the opportunity and encouraged to 
participate  in  the  planning  and  implementation  of  funded  activities.  The  Collaborative 
expects  to  fund  activities  that  address  the  needs  of  those  persons  in  the  two  general 
categories of housing and infrastructure.  

Boulder	County	Collaborative	Outreach	Plan		
The City of Longmont, as Lead Agency for the Boulder County Collaborative, will ensure all 
HUD  requirements  for  citizen  engagement  are met.  The  Collaborative will  also  conduct 
additional  outreach  efforts  to  all  impacted  stakeholders.  The  Collaborative  will  initiate 
outreach  through  the  following mechanisms: host  in‐person meetings  for data validation 
and  to  gain  feedback  and  comments on proposed  activities,  facilitate monthly meetings 
with  the  local  officials  and  staff  that  are  part  of  the  Collaborative  to  discuss  program 
guidelines, planning and  to receive and  incorporate  feedback  from  the  local  jurisdictions. 
Relevant information to the Action Plan and any amendments will be posted to the City of 
Longmont  and  the  Boulder  County  websites  and  comments  may  be  submitted 
electronically.  

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 83Packet Page 105



 

60 
 

In addition, the following additional Minority Outreach will be undertaken: 

 Announce public hearings to organizations that represent minorities and persons with 

disabilities at least 10 days prior to the public hearing date(s). 

 Include a statement in notices of public hearings indicating that participants in the 

hearings may request language interpretation to assist in their participation. 

 Include a statement in notices of public hearings that locations of the meetings are 

accessible to persons with physical disabilities. 

 Include a statement in notices of public hearings that participants can request 

reasonable accommodations from the City to participate in the public meetings. 

 Notify organizations that represent minorities that every reasonable effort will be made 

to translate documents including having documents on the city’s website translatable 

using “Google Translate”. 

Public	Notice	and	Comment	Period		
The Collaborative will provide public notice and seek feedback for the development of the 
Disaster Recovery Partial Action Plan  through emails, website postings, newspapers, and 
public meetings.  
 
Prior  to  finalizing  the Disaster  Recovery  Partial  Action  Plan,  the  Collaborative will make 
available to stakeholders, citizens, public agencies and other interested parties information 
that  includes the amount of assistance the Collaborative expects to receive and the range 
of activities that may qualify for funding under this grant, including the estimated amount 
that will benefit persons of low and moderate income.  
 
The  draft  Partial  Action  Plan  will  be made  available  online  in  both  English  and  Spanish  at 
http://longmontcolorado.gov/departments/departments‐n‐z/public‐information/flood‐
information.   Copies of the draft Partial Action Plan will also be available to review during the 
business hours of  8:00am  to 5:00pm, Monday‐Friday  at  the  following  locations with written 
comments sent to the same location: 
 

Boulder County Courthouse 
Third Floor Reception 
1325 Pearl Street 
Boulder, CO  80302 
 
Boulder County Flood Recovery Permitting and Information Center 
1301 Spruce Street 
Boulder, CO  80302 
 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 84Packet Page 106



 

61 
 

City of Longmont 
Housing and Community Investment Division 
350 Kimbark Street 
Longmont, CO  80501 

 
Lyons Town Hall 
432 5th Avenue 
Lyons, CO 80540 

 
Jamestown Town Hall 
118 Main St. 
Jamestown, CO  80455 

 
The Collaborative will also hold at  least  two  (2) public hearings  in different communities 
within Boulder County  to  provide  for  and  encourage  citizen  participation  in  conjunction 
with the public comment period of the Draft Partial Action Plan, and will ensure adequate 
public notice before the hearings, with sufficient  information published about the subject 
of the hearing to permit informed comment.  
 
The Collaborative will hold all stakeholder meetings and public hearings in a time and location 
convenient to potential beneficiaries, and accommodations will be made for people with 
disabilities. Persons with a disability or who are non‐English speaking individuals and require 
accommodations to participate in public meetings should contact the Longmont Housing and 
Community Investment Office at (303) 651‐8444.  A minimum of three working days prior to 
the public hearing would be appreciated so that reasonable accommodations can be made. 
Children are welcome to attend with their parents. 
 
Para información en español, puede llamar a Virginia al (303) 651‐8444. TDD/TTY 
Communication is available via the Colorado Relay system at 1‐800‐659‐3656.  
 
Stakeholders and citizens will be notified of any public hearing at least one (1) week before it is 
held.  

Development	of	Disaster	Recovery	Partial	Action	Plan		
The Collaborative is developing a Disaster Recovery Partial Action Plan that will include:  

1. The amount of assistance expected to be received, based on projected amounts 
provided by the State of Colorado;  
2. The range of activities that can be undertaken including the estimated amount that 
will benefit persons of low and moderate income;  
3. Plans to minimize displacement of persons and assist any persons displaced;  
4. An anticipated time schedule for submission of the Partial Action Plan to the State 
of Colorado; and  
5. Incorporation of and response to public comments received during the public 
comment period.  

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 85Packet Page 107



 

62 
 

Amendments	to	Partial	Action	Plan		
The Collaborative will provide public notification  and  comment procedures  if  any of  the 
following Substantial Amendments are proposed:  

• A change in program benefit, eligibility criteria, or planned beneficiaries;  
• The allocation or re‐allocation of more than $1 million per activity;   
• Adding any project not previously described in the approved Partial Action Plan; or 

• Deleting any previously approved project described in the Partial Action Plan. 

 
The Collaborative will publish  in both  the Boulder Camera and  the Longmont Times‐Call, 
newspapers of general circulation, the availability of the draft amendment and the dates of 
the 30‐day public comment period. A copy of the amendment will be available at each of 
the following locations: 
 

Boulder County Courthouse 
Third Floor Reception 
1325 Pearl Street 
Boulder, CO  80302 
 
Boulder County Flood Recovery Permitting and Information Center 
1301 Spruce Street 
Boulder, CO  80302 
 
City of Longmont 
Housing and Community Investment Division 
350 Kimbark Street 
Longmont, CO  80501 

 
Lyons Town Hall 
432 5th Avenue 
Lyons, CO 80540 

 
Jamestown Town Hall 
118 Main St. 
Jamestown, CO  80455 

 
For other non‐substantial amendments, the Collaborative shall notify the State of Colorado, 
but  public  comment  is  not  required.  Every  amendment,  substantial  or  not,  shall  be 
numbered  sequentially  and  posted  on  the  City  of  Longmont’s  website  at 
http://longmontcolorado.gov/departments/departments‐n‐z/public‐information/flood‐
information. 
 
The  Collaborative must  submit  quarterly  performance  data  to  the  State  for  input  into 
HUD’s  Disaster  Recovery  Grant  Reporting  (DRGR)  system. Within  three  (3)  days  of  the 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 86Packet Page 108



 

63 
 

State’s submission to HUD, each Quarterly Performance Report  (QPR) must be posted on 
the Colorado Department of  Local Affairs  (DOLA) website http://dola.colorado.gov/cdbg‐
dr/ for public review and comment. The State’s first QPR is due after the first full calendar 
quarter after the grant award. QPRs will be posted on a quarterly basis until all funds have 
been expended and all expenditures have been reported.  
 
During  the  term  of  the  grant,  the  Collaborative  will  provide  citizens,  affected  local 
governments,  and  other  interested  parties  with  reasonable  and  timely  access  to 
information and records relating to the approved program.   

Complaint	Process	and	Procedures		
Complaints or concerns regarding the Disaster Recovery Partial Action Plan may be written, 

emailed, or phoned in to City of Longmont, Housing and Community Investment Manager, 

Kathy Fedler.  A written response or acknowledgment of written complaints or concerns will be 

provided within fifteen (15) working days. 

The  Collaborative  will  respond  to  comments,  complaints  and  grievances  in  a  timely 
manner.  Responses  will  be  made  in  writing  and  may  be  responded  to  via  email  if 
applicable. Please address your comments, complaints, or grievances to:  
 
    Kathy Fedler 

City of Longmont 
Housing and Community Investment Division 
350 Kimbark Street 
Longmont, CO  80501 

 
Persons wishing  to object  to  approval of  a CDBG‐DR program may make  such objection 
known to the State in writing to DOLA. The State will consider objections made only on the 
following grounds:  

 The applicant's description of needs and objectives  is plainly  inconsistent with 
available facts and data; 

 

 The activities to be undertaken are plainly  inappropriate to meeting the needs 
and objectives identified by the applicant; and 

 

 The program does not comply with  the  requirements set  forth  in  the Disaster 
Recovery Action Plan or other applicable laws.  

 
Such objections should  include  identification of the requirements not met and supporting 
data.  Please address your objection to: 
 

Dave Bowman, CDBG‐DR Director 
Department of Local Affairs 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 87Packet Page 109



 

64 
 

1313 Sherman Street, Room 518 
Denver, CO  80203 

 

Close	Out	Process		
The Collaborative will make all performance reports available to the public on  its website 
throughout the grant period.  
 
Prior  to  close‐out  of  the  Community  Development  Block  Grant  ‐  Disaster  Recovery 
program, the Collaborative will host a public hearing to obtain citizen views and to respond 
to questions  relative  to  the Collaborative’s performance. This hearing  shall be held after 
adequate  notice,  at  times  and  locations  convenient  to  actual  beneficiaries  and  with 
accommodations  for  the  disabled  and  non‐English  speaking  persons  provided  as  noted 
above.  

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 88Packet Page 110



 

65 
 

APPENDIX E 

PUBLIC	NOTICES	
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
 
March 20, 2015 
 
Contact: Kathy Fedler, Housing and Community Investment Manager, 
Kathy.fedler@longmontcolorado.gov, 303‐651‐8736 or Leslie Irwin, Policy Analyst, Boulder County, 
lirwin@bouldercounty.org, 303‐441‐3546 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC COMMENT AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
BOULDER COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CDBG‐DR ACTION PLAN 

 
Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery Program 

 
Pursuant  to  the  HUD  approved,  Boulder  County/Broomfield  County  Regional  Consortium  Citizen 
Participation  Plan,  citizens  are  encouraged  to  participate  in  the  development  of  the  Boulder  County 
Collaborative Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery  (CDBG‐DR) Action Plan.   The 
Boulder County Collaborative  includes 8  local governments  (Boulder, Jamestown, Lafayette Longmont, 
Louisville,  Lyons, Nederland  and Ward)  and Boulder  County  government  covering  all  unincorporated 
areas of Boulder County and some special districts  in the county. The purpose of the Action Plan  is to 
identify and assess local unmet flood recovery and resiliency planning needs, to develop strategies and 
identify resources where possible aimed at addressing those needs. The Action Plan also  identifies the 
manner in which federal CDBG‐DR Funds sub‐allocated to the Collaborative from the State Department 
of Local Affairs are proposed to be expended through the Action Plan. 
 
This is the second notice inviting all members of the public to review and comment on the draft Action 
Plan.  This  is  the  same plan  that was  initially  announced  for public  comment on March  5,  2015.  The 
Boulder County Collaborative will be extending the comment period until April 20, 2015 to ensure that a 
full 30‐day comment period  is available to the public.   All members of the public are  invited to review 
the draft Action Plan during the 30‐day public comment period from March 20, 2015 and provide public 
comment using any one of the methods listed below. 
 
The  draft  Action  Plan  can  be  reviewed  online  in  both  English  and  Spanish  at 
http://longmontcolorado.gov/departments/departments‐n‐z/public‐information/flood‐information.  
Copies of the draft Consolidated Plan are also available to review during the business hours of 8:00am to 
5:00pm, Monday‐Friday at the following locations with written comments sent to the same location: 
 

Boulder County Courthouse 
Third Floor Reception 
1325 Pearl Street 
Boulder, CO  80302 
 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 89Packet Page 111



 

66 
 

Boulder County Flood Recovery Permitting and Information Center 
1301 Spruce Street 
Boulder, CO  80302 
 
City of Longmont 
Housing and Community Investment Division 
350 Kimbark Street 
Longmont, CO  80501 

 
Lyons Town Hall 
432 5th Avenue 
Lyons, CO 80540 

 
Jamestown Town Hall 
118 Main St. 
Jamestown, CO  80455 

 
As a continuation of the public hearing process, an additional public hearing on the draft Action Plan will 
be held on:  
 
Tuesday, March 31, 5:30 pm to 6:30 pm, Jamestown Town Hall, 118 Main Street, Jamestown 

and 
Wednesday, April 1, 6:30 pm to 7:30 pm, Lyons Town Hall, 432 5th Avenue, Lyons 
 
 
If you have a disability or are a non‐English speaking individual and require accommodations (including a 
language translator) to participate in this public meeting, please contact the Longmont Housing and 
Community Investment Office as early as possible at (303) 651‐8444.  A minimum of three working days 
prior to the public hearing would be appreciated so that reasonable accommodations can be made. 
Children are welcome to attend with their parents.  This meeting location is accessible to persons with 
physical disabilities. 
 
Para información en español, puede llamar a Virginia al (303) 651‐8444. TDD/TTY Communication is 
available via the Colorado Relay system at 1‐800‐659‐3656.  
 
All comments received will be considered by the Boulder County Collaborative. 
 

### 
 

 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 90Packet Page 112



 

67 
 

Earlier Public Notice: 
March 5, 2015 
 
Contact: Kathy Fedler, Housing and Community Investment Manager, 
Kathy.fedler@longmontcolorado.gov, 303‐651‐8736 or Leslie Irwin, Policy Analyst, Boulder County, 
lirwin@bouldercounty.org, 303‐441‐3546 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC COMMENT AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
BOULDER COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CDBG‐DR ACTION PLAN 

 
Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery Program 

 
Pursuant  to  the  HUD  approved,  Boulder  County/Broomfield  County  Regional  Consortium  Citizen 
Participation  Plan,  citizens  are  encouraged  to  participate  in  the  development  of  the  Boulder  County 
Collaborative Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery  (CDBG‐DR) Action Plan.   The 
Boulder County Collaborative  includes 8  local governments  (Boulder, Jamestown, Lafayette Longmont, 
Louisville,  Lyons, Nederland  and Ward)  and Boulder  County  government  covering  all  unincorporated 
areas of Boulder County and some special districts  in the county. The purpose of the Action Plan  is to 
identify and assess local unmet flood recovery and resiliency planning needs, to develop strategies and 
identify resources where possible aimed at addressing those needs. The Action Plan also  identifies the 
manner in which federal CDBG‐DR Funds sub‐allocated to the Collaborative from the State Department 
of Local Affairs are proposed to be expended through the Action Plan. 
All members of the public are  invited to review the draft Action Plan during a 10‐day public comment 
period from March 9 ‐ 19, 2015 and provide public comment using any one of the methods listed below. 
 
The plan can be reviewed online at http://longmontcolorado.gov/departments/departments‐n‐z/public‐
information/flood‐information.  Copies of the draft Consolidated Plan are also available to review during 
the  business  hours  of  8:00am  to  5:00pm,  Monday‐Friday  at  the  following  locations  with  written 
comments sent to the same location: 
 

Boulder County Courthouse 
Third Floor Reception 
1325 Pearl Street 
Boulder, CO  80302 
 
Boulder County Flood Recovery Permitting and Information Center 
1301 Spruce Street 
Boulder, CO  80302 
 
City of Longmont 
Housing and Community Investment Division 
350 Kimbark Street 
Longmont, CO  80501 

 
Lyons Town Hall 
432 5th Avenue 
Lyons, CO 80540 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 91Packet Page 113



 

68 
 

 
Jamestown Town Hall 
118 Main St. 
Jamestown, CO  80455 

 
Two public hearings on the draft Action Plan will be held on: 
 
March 12, 2015  March 17, 2015 
4:30 p.m. – 5:30 p.m.  5:30 p.m. – 6:30 p.m. 
Boulder County Courthouse  Longmont Civic Center 
3rd Floor Hearing Room  City Manager’s Conference Room 
1325 Pearl Street  350 Kimbark Street 
Boulder, CO 80302  Longmont, CO  80501 
 
 
If you have a disability or are non‐English speaking and require accommodations to participate in either 
of these public meetings, please contact the Longmont Housing and Community Investment Office as 
early as possible at (303) 651‐8444.  A minimum of three working days prior to the public hearing would 
be appreciated so that reasonable accommodations can be made. Children are welcome to attend with 
their parents. 
 
Para información en español, puede llamar a Virginia al (303) 651‐8444. TDD/TTY Communication is 
available via the Colorado Relay system at 1‐800‐659‐3656.  
 
All comments received will be considered by the Boulder County Collaborative. 
 

### 
 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 92Packet Page 114



 

69 
 

APPENDIX F 

PUBLIC COMMENT SUMMARY 

   

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 93Packet Page 115



 

70 
 

 

APPENDIX G 

LONGMONT’S CDBG PROGRAM ACCOMPLISHMENTS ‐ 2014 

 

  Activity/Project Name  Accomplishments  Budget  Expenditures  Matching

Funds 

Total

Households 

Extremely

Low 

Low Moderate  White 

Persons 

White\ 

Hispanic 

Other 

Persons 

Elderly  Disabled  Female Head 

of Household 

Community  Investment Programs 

  Digital Divide  Funds were used to provide booster devices and in 

some cases computers along with a free internet 

account to low‐income families with school age 

children

13,422.70 8,804.30 14,840.00 31  23  8    14  17         

  Longmont Housing Authority 

Accessibility Improvements 

Funds were used to install a handicapped accessible 

door and ramp to an office building leased to non profit 

agency who's clients are physically disabled 

15,737.00 15,737.00   300  300      300           

  Longmont Housing Authority 

The Suites Support Services 

The Suites Supportive services provided case 

management, groups, social activities and classes to 

help 96 residents maintain their housing and improve 

their quality of life.  Client services are assessed on an 

individual basis to determine needs and adapt services 

as necessary. Of the 96 residents 47 have a diagnosed 

mental illness, 37 were homeless or chronically 

homeless, 16 have limiting physical disabilities, 16 are 

over 62, and 15 have an intellectual disability. 

76,000.00 24,130.50 12,550.00 71  65  6    71      17  51   

Community Investment Programs Total  105,159.70 48,671.80 27,390.00 402  388  14  385  17  0  17  51  0 

Economic Development Programs 

  Business Revolving Loan Fund\Small Business 

Loans 

These funds should be expended in 2015. No new 

loans were made in 2015 by our contractor, Colorado 

Enterprise Fund, however, 7 loans are in process and 

should close in 2nd quarter in 2015 with 3 to 5 

additional loans being considered. 

127,216.45 0.00    
 

NO Data for 2014 

Economic Development Programs Total  127,216.45 0.00

Housing Programs 

  Architectural Barrier Removal  Seventeen homes were rehabilitated in 2014 under this 

program at an average cost of $4,439.52 per home 

113,829.36 75,471.90   17  10  5  2  15  2    10  12  11 

  Boulder County ‐ Housing Counseling  A total of 481 Longmont residents received services 

provided through the Boulder County Housing 

Counseling programs.  Services include: home 

ownership training, housing counseling, foreclosure 

intervention, home pre‐purchase counseling, and 
reversemortgage counseling.

43,500.00 40,000.00 775,531.00 481  117  216 84  237  144  100       

  Emergency Grant  Twenty‐four homes were assisted in 2014 under this 

program at an average cost of $1,197.43 per home 

67,722.99 28,738.41   24  8  4  12  18  6    12  8  13 

2014 CDBG FUNDING AND EXPENDITURES

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 94Packet Page 116



 

71 
 

  Activity/Project Name  Accomplishments  Budget  Expenditures  Matching

Funds 

Total

Households 

Extremely

Low 

Low Moderate  White 

Persons 

White\ 

Hispanic 

Other 

Persons 

Elderly  Disabled  Female Head 

of Household 

                               

  General Housing Rehab  Four homes were rehabilitated with CDBG funds at an 

average cost of $10,491 per home

138,684.00 41,967.25   4  3    1  4      1  5  1 

  Mobile Home Repair  22 Mobile Homes were rehabilitated in 2014 under this 

program at an average cost of $4,353.93 

98,234.15 95,786.48   22  16  5  1  20  2    16  8  9 

  Mobile Home Assessment Services  Funds were used to assess property damage caused to 

owner occupied mobile homes from the September 

2013 flood event.  A total of 2 mobile homes were 

inspected.

130.00 130.00   2  2      1  1         

  Rent Deposits ‐ Elderly moving to 

Hearthstone 

Funds were used to provide security rent deposit for an 

extremely‐low elderly household moving into The 

HearthstoneApartments

412.00 412.00   1  1      1           

  Our Center 

Rent Deposits for Homeless 

This project funded deposits and rents to assist 14 

homeless households who held jobs, which helped 

them maintain their jobs by assisting with housing 

issues

15,999.30 15,999.30 14,000.00 14  12  2    11  2  1    1  6 

Housing Programs Total 478,511.80 298,505.34 789,531.00 565 169 232 100 307 157  101  39  34  40 

Neighborhood Revitalization Projects 

  Midtown‐Lanyon Park  Funds were used at Lanyon Park for the installation of 

park benches and pads (6 total), and electrical 

receptacles.

16,265.12 16,265.12   Same Data Applies to Midtown Revitaliation Program Data is Recorded Below 

  Midtown‐Crime Free Multihousing  Funds were used to assist a landlord to install peep 

holes, locks and additional lighting to certify under the 

Crime FreeMulti‐Housing program

3,905.30 3,905.30   4      4  4           

  Midtown ‐ Neighboorhood Revitalization  These funds were used for mailings and neighborhood 

meetings in the Midtown Revitalization area. 

1,203.01 1,203.01   9814  2431  1936 2258             

  Neighborhood Revitalization ‐ Spangler Park  This project is for the development of a master park 

improvement plan and the installation of park 

equipment in Spangler park which is part of the 

Midtown Revitalization area.  The master park plan was 

started in 2014 and will continue through 2015. 

Installation of park equipment is estimated for late 

summer 2015.  See also HUD activities 386 and 389. 

112,522.50 9,767.31    
 
 
 

Same Data Applies to Midtown Revitaliation Program Data is Recorded Above 

  Neighborhood Revitalization Projects Total    133,895.93 31,140.74   9818  2431  1936 2262  4  0  0  0  0  0 

Program Administration 

Administration  GeneralAdministration 126,930.88 126,930.88

Program AdministrationTotal 126,930.88 126,930.88

 

Grand Total  971,714.76  505,248.76  816,921.00  10785  2988  2182  2362  696  174  101  56  85  40 

CDBG Funds Not Allocated  (Includes Program Income Used and Cancelled Projects)  253,651.24                       
Total with Non Allocated Funds  1,225,366.00  505,248.76  816,921.00  10785  2988  2182  2362  696  174  101  56  85  40 

 

 
ExpenditureRatio 

 
52.0%

Leverage Ratio $1.62 To Every $1.00

Admin Ratio 20.0%

Low\Mod Income Ratio 69.8%

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 95Packet Page 117



 

72 
 

 

 

CDBG Grant  Program Income    Previous Years  Committed Funds  Unprogrammed Funds  Expenditures     Unspent at 

2014 Unexpended Funds          Year End 

  CDBG Funds Available\Committed\Expended 2014 CHART 1

 

$800,000 

$600,000   

$400,000 

$200,000 

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 96Packet Page 118



 

73 
 

 

 

 

CDBG Funds Budgeted as a % of Total Budget ‐ 2014

Program Administration, 10%

Neighborhood

Revitalization  Projects,
11% 

CDBG Funds Not Allocated ,

21% 

Community  Investment

Programs, 9% 

Housing Programs, 39% Economic 

Development
Programs, 10% 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 97Packet Page 119



 

74 
 

Sum of Expenditures 

Program  Total 

Community Investment Programs  48801.8 

Economic Development Programs  0 

Housing Programs  298375.34 

Neighborhood Revitalization Projects  31140.74 

Program Administration  126930.88 

Grand Total  505248.76 

 

 
  CDBG Expenditures ‐ 2014 CHART 3

   
   

$300,000  $298,375
   
   
 

$250,000 
 
 

$200,000 
 
 

$150,000 
 

$100,000 
$126,931 

$48,802 

$50,000 
 

$0  $31,141 
$0 

Community 
Investment  Economic 

Programs  Development  Housing Programs 

Programs  Neighborhood 
Revitalization  Program 

Projects  Administration 

   

 

Attachment B - Draft Boulder County Collaborative CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

Agenda Item 3D     Page 98Packet Page 120



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE April 21, 2015 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE: Third reading and consideration of a motion to adopt and order 
published by title only Ordinance No. 8038 allowing for production and sale of certain 
foods in residential zone districts, amending Section 9-6-3(e) “Specific Use Standards – 
Residential Uses”; amending Section 9-9-21 “Signs” and adding a new Chapter 6-17 
“Cottage Foods and Fresh Produce” 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
David Driskell, Executive Director, Community Planning and Sustainability 
Thomas A. Carr, City Attorney 
Carl Castillo, Policy Advisor 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is for City Council to consider a proposed ordinance 
(Attachment A) that would allow for the production and sale of certain food products in 
residential zone districts.  Council passed the ordinance on first reading on March 17, 
2015.  Council considered and amended the ordinance at second reading on April 7, 
2015.  Council amended new section 6-17-2 to allow for the sale of all cottage foods 
allowed under state law, as long as those foods were produced on the premises.  In 
addition, council amended section 9-6-3(e)(2) to remove the size limitation on gardens. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 
Motion to adopt on third reading and order published by title only ordinance number 
8038, allowing for production and sale of certain foods in residential zone districts, 
amending Section 9-6-3(e) “Specific Use Standards – Residential Uses”; amending 
Section 9-9-21 “Signs” and adding a new Chapter 6-17 “Cottage Foods and Fresh 
Produce” 

Agenda Item 3E    Page 1Packet Page 121



 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 

 Economic: Sale of locally sourced cottage foods and produce could have a 
beneficial impact on our community.  Relatively small scale sales could provide 
additional income to some residents and promote some additional economic 
activity. 

 Environmental:  Food production generally has positive or at least few negative 
environmental impacts. 

 Social:  The ability to purchase and enjoy food produced closer to home has 
beneficial social impacts.  There are also positive social impacts associated with 
gardening and animal husbandry. 

 
OTHER IMPACTS  
 

 Fiscal-Budgetary:  None anticipated.  
 Staff work necessary to implement this provision should be minimal and can be 

accomplished within normal work programs. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance 
 

Agenda Item 3E    Page 2Packet Page 122



 

K:\CCAD\o-8038-3rd-2349.docx   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

ORDINANCE NO. 8038 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 9-6-3, “SPECIFIC USE 
STANDARDS – RESIDENTIAL USES,” B.R.C. 1981, EXEMPTING 
COTTAGE FOODS AND FRESH PRODUCE FROM CERTAIN USE 
LIMITATIONS; ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 6-17 “COTTAGE FOODS AND 
FRESH PRODUCE SALES” SETTING FORTH REQUIREMENTS FOR 
SALES OF COTTAGE FOODS AND FRESH PRODUCE; AMENDING 
SECTION 9-9-21, “SIGNS,” B.R.C. 1981 TO ALLOW FOR COTTAGE 
FOODS AND FRESH PRODUCE SIGNS AND SETTING FORTH RELATED 
DETAILS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO: 

Section 1.  A new Chapter 6-17 is added as follows: 

Chapter 6-17 Cottage Foods and Fresh Produce Sales 

6-17-1. - Legislative Intent and Purpose. 

(a)   The purpose of this chapter is to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the 
residents by promoting local foods to create a healthier, more livable community. 
 

(b)   Findings.  The city council finds as follows: 

(1)  Locally grown food can provide a healthy alternative to commercially produced food; 

(2)  Encouraging a diverse local agricultural economy can provide financial benefit to 
those engaged in activities such as gardening, beekeeping, preparing preserves and 
maintaining chickens; and 
 

(3)  It is important to protect the city’s neighborhoods from adverse impacts associated 
with the foregoing activities. 

6-17-2. – Requirements. 

Requirements.  To engage in the home occupation of cottage food and fresh produce production 
and sales, a person must meet the following requirements: 

(a) Comply with all provisions of the Colorado Cottage Food Act as codified at C.R.S. § 25-
4-1614;  

 
(b) Cottage foods products offered for sale shall be limited to those foods identified in the 

Colorado Cottage Foods Act, C.R.S. § 25-4-1614, which are processed on the premises; 
 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3E    Page 3Packet Page 123



 

K:\CCAD\o-8038-3rd-2349.docx   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(c) Fresh produce offered for sale shall be limited to raw, whole produce items grown on the 
premises.  The fresh produce shall not be processed or altered beyond the minimum 
required for a harvest cut and for rinsing off of soil and debris. Prohibited alterations 
include any additional cutting, slicing or juicing; 
 

(d) Obtain a City of Boulder Sales and Use Tax License as required by Section 3-2-11, 
“Sales and Use Tax License,” B.R.C. 1981;  

 
(e) Marijuana shall not be considered a cottage food product or fresh produce under this 

chapter.  The cultivation and sale of marijuana is governed by Chapter 6-14, “Medical 
Marijuana,” B.R.C. 1981 and Chapter 6-16, “Recreational Marijuana,” B.R.C. 1981.  
Nothing in this chapter is intended to supersede those provisions; and  

 
(f) Offer products for sale only between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and dusk. 

6-17-3. – Rulemaking. 

Rulemaking Authority. The city manager may promulgate such rules as the manager considers 
necessary to implement and enforce this chapter. All such rules shall be adopted in accordance 
with the procedures set forth in Chapter 1-4, “Rulemaking,” B.R.C. 1981. 

Section 2.  Section 9-6-3(e) B.R.C. 1981 is amended to read: 

9-6-3. - Specific Use Standards – Residential Uses. 

(e) Home Occupations: 

(1)  Standards:  A home occupation is a permitted accessory use if the following 
conditions are met: 

(A)  Such use is conducted entirely within a principal or accessory building and is not 
carried on by any person other than the inhabitants living there. 

 
(B)  Such use is clearly incidental and secondary to the residential use of the dwelling 

and does not change the residential character thereof. 
 

(C)  The total area used for such purposes does not exceed one-half the first floor area 
of the user's dwelling unit. 

 
(D)  There is no change in the outside appearance of the dwelling unit or lot 

indicating the conduct of such home occupation, including, without limitation, 
advertising signs or displays. 

 
(E)  There is no on-site sale of materials or supplies except incidental retail sales. 

 
(F)  There is no exterior storage of material or equipment used as a part of the home 

occupation. 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3E    Page 4Packet Page 124



 

K:\CCAD\o-8038-3rd-2349.docx   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 
(G)  No equipment or process is used in such home occupation that creates any glare, 

fumes, odors or other objectionable condition detectable to the normal senses at 
the boundary of the lot if the occupation is conducted in a detached dwelling 
unit, or outside the dwelling unit if conducted in an attached dwelling unit. 
 

(H)  No traffic is generated by such home occupation in a volume that would create a 
need for parking greater than that which can be accommodated on the site or 
which is inconsistent with the normal parking usage of the district. 
 

(2)  Cottage Food and Fresh Produce Exception.  A home occupation use meeting the 
requirements of Chapter 6-17 “Cottage Foods and Fresh Produce,” B.R.C. 1981, is 
exempt from the requirements of subparagraphs (1)(A), (D), (E), (F) and (G) above.  
Gardens are exempt from subparagraph (C) above. Such use shall be permitted as an 
allowed use in all zone districts in which a home occupation is permitted as a 
conditional use. 

(32) Prohibitions: No person shall engage in a home occupation except in conformance 
with all of the requirements of paragraph (e)(1) of this section, except as provided in 
Paragraph (e)(2) of this section. 

Section 3.  Section 9-9-21(c), B.R.C. 1981 is amended to read: 

9-9-21. – Signs. 

(c) Signs Exempt From Permits: 

(1)  Specific Signs Exempted: The following signs are permitted in all zoning districts 
and are exempt from the permit requirements of this section, but shall in all other 
respects comply with the requirements of this code except as expressly excepted 
below: 

(A)  Construction Warning: A sign not exceeding sixteen square feet erected by a 
licensed construction contractor on property on which it is working to warn of 
danger or hazardous conditions. Such sign is also exempt from the setback, 
limitation on number of freestanding signs, and total sign area regulations of this 
section. 

(B)  Flags: Up to three different flags per property, subject to the following 
restrictions: 

(i) The total area of all flags shall not exceed seventy square feet; 

(ii) The area of each such flag shall be exempt from the sign area limitations of 
paragraph (d)(2) of this section, but shall not exceed forty square feet, with no 
one dimension of any flag greater than eight feet; 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3E    Page 5Packet Page 125



 

K:\CCAD\o-8038-3rd-2349.docx   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(iii) The flag pole or other structure on which such a flag is displayed shall be 
treated as part of any building to which it is attached for all height 
computations and not as an appurtenance or a part of the sign; 

(iv) No freestanding flagpole shall exceed twenty feet in height outside of the 
principal building setbacks or thirty-five feet in height within the principal 
building setbacks; and 

(v) No flag bearing an explicit commercial message shall constitute an exempt 
flag. 

(C)  Garage Sale: One garage sale sign per property in an agricultural or residential 
district placed on private property owned or leased by the person holding the 
garage sale, for a period not to exceed ten consecutive days and not more than 
twice in a calendar year. The sign must be within the total signage permitted for 
the parcel. 

(D)  Lost Animal: One lost animal sign per property placed on private property with 
the permission of the owner for a period not to exceed ten consecutive days, in 
an agricultural or residential district and within the total signage permitted for 
such parcel. 

(E)  Noncommercial: A work of art that in no way identifies or advertises a product, 
service, or business or impedes traffic safety, a political sign, or any other 
noncommercial sign. [15] 

(F)  Private Traffic: A private traffic directional sign guiding or directing vehicular or 
pedestrian traffic onto or off of a property or within a property that does not 
exceed three square feet per face in area and six feet in height, does not contain 
any advertising or trade name identification, and is not illuminated, internally 
illuminated, or indirectly illuminated. But a private traffic control sign that 
conforms to the standards of the state traffic control manual defined in 
subsection 7-1-1(a), B.R.C. 1981, may exceed three square feet per face in area 
but shall not exceed seven square feet per face or eight feet in height. Such sign 
also is exempt from the setback, limitation on number of freestanding signs, and 
total sign area regulations of this section. [16] 

(G)  Real Estate: One temporary, non-illuminated real estate sign per property or per 
dwelling unit street frontage, set back at least eighteen inches from the nearest 
public sidewalk, that does not exceed six square feet per face in area and a total 
of twelve square feet in area and four feet in height in the RR, RE, RL, RM, 
RMX, RH, and MH zones or sixteen square feet per face and a total of thirty-two 
square feet in area and seven feet in height in any other zone, but only if the sign 
remains in place no more than seven days after sale or rental of the subject 
property. The area of such a sign shall not be deducted from the allowable sign 
area or number of freestanding signs for the building or business unit. If the 
property owner or tenant is not using this real estate sign allowance, such person 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3E    Page 6Packet Page 126



 

K:\CCAD\o-8038-3rd-2349.docx   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

in possession of the property may place a noncommercial sign conforming with 
these limitations in lieu of such a real estate sign. 

(H)  Sign Required by Law: A sign required or specifically authorized for a public 
purpose by any federal, state, or city law of any type, including, without 
limitation, the number, area, height above grade, location or illumination 
authorized by the law under which such sign is required or authorized. But no 
such sign may be placed in the public right-of-way unless specifically authorized 
or required by law. Except for a warning sign or barricade of a temporary nature, 
any such sign shall be securely affixed to the ground, a building, or another 
structure. So much of such a sign as is required by law also is exempt from all 
other provisions of this section. 

(I)  Residential Wind Sign: A wind sign in a residential or an agricultural zone, within 
the limitations set forth in subsection (d) of this section, notwithstanding the 
prohibition of subparagraph (b)(3)(Q) of this section. 

(J)  Utility Warning: A sign not exceeding sixteen square feet erected by a public 
utility within a utility easement on property on which it is working to warn of 
danger or hazardous conditions or to indicate the presence of underground 
cables, gas lines, and similar devices. Such a sign also is exempt from the 
setback, limitation on number of freestanding signs, and total sign area 
regulations of this section. 

(K)  Vehicular: A sign displayed on a motor vehicle if not prohibited by this section. 

(L)  Window: A non-illuminated window sign of no more than four square feet in 
area and placed no more than twenty-five feet above finished grade, if the total 
area of such signs fills less than twenty-five percent of the area of the 
architecturally distinct window, and such signs do not exceed twenty-five percent 
of the total allowable sign area for the building or business unit. The area of a 
window sign not exempt from permit requirements under this subparagraph is 
calculated as a part of and limited by the total allowable sign area for the 
premises. 

(M) Cottage Foods and Fresh Produce Signs. On any premises meeting the 
requirements of Chapter 6-17, a sign meeting the size restrictions applicable to 
residential detached dwellings in table 9-13 of this section.   

Section 4.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3E    Page 7Packet Page 127



 

K:\CCAD\o-8038-3rd-2349.docx   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Section 5.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 17th day of March, 2015. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 
  
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

READ ON SECOND READING, AMENDED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 7th day of April, 2015. 

 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3E    Page 8Packet Page 128



 

K:\CCAD\o-8038-3rd-2349.docx   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

READ ON THIRD READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this 21st day of April, 2015. 

 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3E    Page 9Packet Page 129



 

  
 
 

C I T Y   O F   B O U L D E R 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 21, 2015 
 

 
AGENDA TITLE:  Introduction, first reading and consideration of a motion to order 
published by title only Ordinance No. 8044 approving supplemental appropriations to the 
2015 Budget. 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS: 
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Cheryl Pattelli, Director of Finance  
Peggy Bunzli, Budget Officer 
Elena Lazarevska, Senior Financial Analyst 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This proposed supplemental appropriation ordinance (Attachment A) allocates funding 
for expenditures from new taxes approved by the voters in November 2013 for non-
medical marijuana (NMJ), and in November 2014 for the 2A ballot measure for 
Community, Culture and Safety projects.  
 
In November 2013, voters approved specific taxes for the sale of NMJ. This was a new 
revenue source for the city. Due to continuing uncertainties surrounding this new tax, 
mainly how the federal government will treat this source of revenue in the future, the 
revenue is considered as “one-time” in nature. Not all NMJ businesses were open for the 
full year of 2014. Therefore, collections did not provide a complete year of data. 
 
In addition, as with all sales and use tax collections, the December collections are 
received by the end of February of the following year and reported on in March. If the 
supplemental appropriations from this revenue source had been made during the regular 
2015 budget process there would have only been two months of incomplete data and it 
would have been of little help in making projections. In future years, staff proposes to 

Agenda Item 3F    Page 1Packet Page 130



continue to treat NMJ as one-time revenue until more is known about the federal 
treatment of NMJ sales, but include the expenditures and revenue projections in the 
regular budget process after this 2015 supplemental appropriation. By using this method 
of budgeting, it segregates expenditures due to NMJ and, if the revenue source were to be 
eliminated by federal action the expenditures would also be eliminated and would not 
jeopardize current ongoing city programs. A listing of specific proposed appropriation 
requests for 2015 is provided in Attachment B.  
 
While this agenda memo was being prepared several questions were asked by the 
downtown business association regarding the impact on police enforcement due to non-
medical marijuana in the downtown area. Staff responses are provided in Attachment C. 
 
In November 2014 voters approved a .3 percent, 3-year sales and use tax increase that 
will be used to fund Community, Culture, and Safety capital investments. The focus of 
this tax is on high priority and new projects as opposed to ongoing maintenance backlogs. 
Projects funded through this tax will provide a significant impact to the community in a 
short amount of time by offering opportunities for everyone to enjoy the uniqueness and 
quality of life in Boulder.  When a new tax is on the ballot in November it has been the 
city’s practice to use a supplemental appropriation in the following year to appropriate 
the new source of revenue and the associated expenditures. A listing of specific projects 
is provided at the end of the memo.  
 
Council will be updated on implementation of the Community, Culture and Safety 
projects through Information Packet items or Heads Up, as appropriate, based on specific 
milestones. In addition, future Capital Improvement Program (CIP) documents will 
include a special section on the Community, Culture and Safety projects until they are 
completed.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
 
Suggested Motion Language: 
  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 
 
Motion to introduce and order published by title only an ordinance approving 
supplemental appropriations to the 2015 Budget.  
 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
This supplemental ordinance appropriates funding for a variety of citywide projects and 
services that positively affect economic, environmental or social sustainability in the 
community. These impacts were explained in detail when the taxes were originally 
proposed.  The documents from the August 5th, 2014 meeting can be found at this 
website:  
https://bouldercolorado.gov/central-records/document-archive 

Agenda Item 3F    Page 2Packet Page 131

https://bouldercolorado.gov/central-records/document-archive


OTHER IMPACTS  
 Fiscal: In the General Fund, this ordinance will appropriate $1,500,000 from 

additional revenue for NMJ. In the Capital Improvement Fund for Community, 
Culture, and Safety, this ordinance will appropriate the first year amount of 
projected revenue ($8,899,147) from additional revenue generated by the new.3 
percent sales and use tax. 

 
 Staff time:  While some of the costs will be absorbed in the normal staff 

workload, the proposed supplemental appropriation ordinance will appropriate 
funding for the increased staff and other resources needed to administer the 
construction contracts, and implement the new programs and services related to 
NMJ.  

 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 
 
Non-Medical Marijuana  
 
Non-Medical Marijuana Revenues  
Non-medical marijuana revenue collection started in 2014. In 2014, there were four 
components of the non-medical marijuana revenues.  

1. The base sales and use tax rate of 3.56 percent  
2. An additional tax of 3.5 percent on top of the 3.56 percent for retail sales (total of 

7.06 percent). 
3. A 5.0 percent excise tax on all cultivation facilities. 
4. A state share back of a portion of the statewide sales based on City of Boulder 

amount of marijuana sales to total marijuana sales in the state. 
 
At the beginning of 2014, $2.0 million in new marijuana taxes was projected for 
collection in 2014.  This included the base amount, because the collection of the tax had 
not been approved by the voters when the 2014 budget was passed. The table below 
provides the actual revenues that were collected for each tax component.  
 

Non-Medical Marijuana 
Revenue Components 

2014 
Rate 

2014 Revenue 
(Unaudited)  

Base Sales/Use Tax  3.56% $691,292 
*Subtotal Base Sales Tax  $691,292 

    
Additional Retail Sales Tax 3.50% $618,602 
Excise Tax on Cultivation 
Facilities 

5% $430,243 

Statewide Sales Share back 
(10% tax , with 15% Boulder 
share) 

10% $294,944 

**Subtotal Incremental Tax  $1,343,789 
TOTAL  $2,035,081 

Agenda Item 3F    Page 3Packet Page 132



*The base sales and use tax rate is required by previously approved ballot items to be 
allocated to the designated fund (such as, open space, parks and recreations, 
transportation and the general fund).   
 
**The incremental taxes are considered one-time in nature and are used to cover 
additional costs incurred by the city for this new business segment. The entire 
incremental amount is deposited in the general fund and all NMJ related expenditures, no 
matter which fund the expense occurs in, are paid for from the general fund. When the 
NMJ supplemental appropriation was made, Council appropriated for expenditure an 
amount of $1,163,470 which included an amount of $400,000 in a city manager’s 
contingency to cover costs that were unknown at the time of the first ever appropriation 
of NMJ. 
 
Due to the staggered starts for licensing, the collection of taxes for the sale of NMJ in 
2014 did not occur for the full year. There are currently discussions being held at the state 
level which could eliminate the share back.  If this were to occur nearly $300,000 of the 
incremental amount collected in 2014 would be eliminated in the future. Due to these 
new uncertainties, staff proposes that the revenue projection for the incremental taxes 
only be set at $1.5 million in 2015.  The base projections for the now 3.86 percent that go 
to individual funds has already been accounted for in the 2015 projections and was 
approved by council when the 2015 budget was adopted.      
 
As in 2014, it is proposed that the “Additional Incremental Tax” revenues over the base 
tax rate continue to be deposited in the General Fund and be used for NMJ related 
expenses for all funds.  Any “Additional Tax” revenue received that is over the NMJ 
known expenses will continue to be treated as “one-time revenue”.  Key indicators of 
when these types of revenues will become ongoing revenues include: when a significant 
number of additional states (or several large states) legalize the use of marijuana for other 
than medical purposes, or the laws are changed at the federal level to legalize the sale of 
NMJ.  
 
Non-Medical Marijuana Expenditures from New Taxes 
 
In 2014, City Council appropriated $1,163,470, of new costs for NMJ related 
expenditures. These appropriations included: $250,000 for educational programs; 
$513,470 for operating costs; and $400,000 for a city manager’s contingency to cover 
unexpected or unknown costs that may arise during 2014. If any amounts above the total 
amount of expenditures was collected and was needed for additional expenditures related 
to NMJ it would be available for use from the contingency . 
 
Actual expenditures for 2014 were lower than projected. This was due mainly to the 
staggered start of NMJ businesses. Therefore, many of the expenses did not fully occur in 
2014. City staff is in the process of developing the educational programs and services, 
and these are expected to commence in 2015. The sales tax audit for recreational 
marijuana establishments is currently under development and will commence in 2015. 
However, much was accomplished in 2014: staffing has been put in place and the 

Agenda Item 3F    Page 4Packet Page 133



licensing operations are fully functional. Inspections and enforcements in the Fire and 
Police Departments are on-going. The funds not expended will either be rolled over in the 
normal adjustments to base that occur in May and December of each year or will be 
proposed to be re-allocated during the 2016 budget process. 
 
As expected, it was very evident that this is a unique business segment.  It was a new 
sector with no empirical evidence regarding revenues and expenditures that the city 
would incur. Since 2014 was not a full year of operations for these new businesses, 
flexibility in budgeting remains a key factor to deal with any new costs that will arise in 
2015. Since only the incremental taxes will be budgeted separately in the general fund in 
2015 staff proposes the revenue projection to be $1.5 million.  
 
A listing of the full budget requests for 2015 NMJ costs are presented in Attachment C. 
These requests include: $250,000 for educational programs, $291,918 for operating costs, 
and $958,082 for a City Manager’s contingency.  
 
 
2A Ballot – Temporary Tax Increase for Community, Culture, and Safety 
Revenues from new taxes 
In November 2014, voters approved a temporary three-year 0.3 percent sales and use tax 
increase. The revenue from this tax increase is to be used for capital improvements for 
specific Community, Culture and Safety projects.  The ballot language projected that the 
new tax will yield $27,600,000 for these projects.  As was explained in the executive 
summary, there are timing issues that need to be dealt with to ensure the maximum 
benefit from this new tax. The table below provides the revenue estimates from this new 
temporary tax: 
 

2015 Amount 
Projected for 
Community 

Culture and Safety 

2016 Amount 
Projected for 

Community Culture 
and Safety 

2017 Amount 
Projected for 

Community Culture 
and Safety 

Total 

$8,899,147 $9,179,078 $9,521,775 $27,600,000 

 
 
Expenditures from new taxes 
The new tax revenue will be collected from January of 2015 through December of 2017.  
There will be multiple projects going on during the three year period and beyond.  A 
listing of the projects and estimated costs can be found at the end of the memo.  Inflation 
cost increases are always a major concern when using this pay-as-you-go (PAYG) 
financing methodology.  The longer projects extend into the future the higher the risk of 
inflation costs eroding the scope and results of the projects. Therefore, it is beneficial to 
lock in contract prices as soon as the appropriate amount of work is completed to prepare 
final accurate bid documents. 
 

Agenda Item 3F    Page 5Packet Page 134



To mitigate this impact, it is best to begin all projects as soon as possible so contract costs 
can be locked in and buying power is not eroded.  The City of Boulder Charter provides a 
unique challenge for PAYG financing.  It requires that before a contract can be entered 
into all funds for the full contract have to be appropriated.  Since the actual tax amounts 
will be collected over a three year period, all funds for all phases of all projects will not 
be available in 2015. Based on cashflow information for the projects it is proposed that 
the large city projects for the Civic Area, University Hill lighting and Chautauqua be 
phased.  That is, for these projects all work up to the letting of the actual construction 
contract can be entered into in 2015.  The actual construction contracts will be ready to 
go and signed early in 2016.  Based on discussions with the project managers this should 
not significantly delay any of these projects. Based on cashflow modeling all other 
projects can proceed along their projected timelines.    
 
When the 2016 budget is brought forward for council consideration, the  
Charter issue will be addressed for 2016 and 2017. The method being considered at this 
time is to pledge fund balance from the general fund of the city for the part of the 
construction contract that would occur in 2016.  Based on current cashflow projections it 
is not expected that any of the general fund reserves would actually be spent in 2016 or 
2017.  The actual payments on the construction contracts would be paid in full with the 
new tax money as the taxes are collected in 2016 and 2017. However, since the Charter 
requires that all funds be appropriated in the year the contract is entered into there has to 
be a funding source if the amounts were actually needed (thought there appears to be a 
very minimal chance that would ever happen in this situation).  
 
While the same pledging could theoretically be done in this 2015 supplemental 
appropriation, staff feels the pledging of two year of future revenues versus one in the 
2016 budget is too much risk for the city to absorb.  Roughly, the pledge would be for 
$9.5 million if included in the 2016 budget, and $18.7 million if included in this 2015 
supplemental budget. This will be more fully explained as the 2016 budget is considered 
by council.  
 
Approved 2A Community, Culture, and Safety Projects 
 

Hill Investments 
 Hill Residential Pedestrian Lighting  $2,000,000  

Hill Commercial District Event Street  $750,000  
Hill Commercial District Irrigation and Street Trees   $520,000  

Hill Investments Subtotal   $3,270,000  

  Civic Area  $8,700,000  

  Boulder Creek (BC) 
 BC Path Lighting  $1,040,000  

BC Path Improvements  $885,000  
BC Arapahoe 13th Underpass  $2,500,000  
BC Eben Fine Park Stream Bank Restoration  $700,000  

Boulder Creek Subtotal  $5,125,000  

Agenda Item 3F    Page 6Packet Page 135



  Public Art  $600,000  

  Chautauqua Pedestrian Safety, Access, and Lighting  $1,500,000  

  Dairy Center  $3,850,000  

  Museum of Boulder  $4,000,000  

  Contingency  $555,000  

  
Grand Total  

 
$27,600,000  

 
Communication 
Community, Culture and Safety tax project information will be hosted on a centralized 
website with links to project-specific pages that display descriptions, engagement 
opportunities, budget and, related details and documents.  To continue the enthusiasm 
and energy created by the ‘Yes for 2A’ campaign, the city reached out to ‘Yes for 2A’ 
organizers for potential use of campaign branding.  The organizers graciously agreed to 
let the city utilize campaign branding for implementation activities.  Much like the 
‘construction hard hat’ used for the Capital Bond project, the 2A branding will be a 
recognizable identity that will signify Community, Culture and Safety tax dollars at work.  
 
On Tuesday, May 19, from 4 to 6 p.m., the city is planning a Community, Culture and 
Safety tax celebration to thank voters and mark the various improvements that will be 
made throughout the community in the next three to five years.  More event details will 
follow and will be available in the coming weeks.    
 
Council will be updated on implementation of the Community, Culture and Safety 
projects through Information Packet items or Heads Up, as appropriate, based on specific 
milestones. In addition, future Capital Improvement Program (CIP) documents will 
include a special section on the Community, Culture and Safety projects until they are 
completed.    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  

A. Proposed Ordinance for Supplemental Appropriations to the 2015 Budget  
B. Listing of Non-medical Marijuana Appropriations 
C. Answers to questions regarding the impact on police enforcement of non-medical 

marijuana in the downtown area 
 
 

Agenda Item 3F    Page 7Packet Page 136



 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.  8044 

 
AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL 
AFFAIRS OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, 
MAKING SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2015 
SETTING FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION TO THE 
FOREGOING. 

 
 
WHEREAS, Section 102 of the Charter of the City of Boulder provides that: "At 

any time after the passage of the annual appropriation ordinance and after at least one week's 

public notice, the council may transfer unused balances appropriated for one purpose to another 

purpose, and may by ordinance appropriate available revenues not included in the annual 

budget;" and 

WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to make certain supplemental 

appropriations for purposes not provided for in the 2015 annual budget; and, 

WHEREAS, required public notice has been given; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, that the following amounts are appropriated from 

additional projected revenues to the listed funds: 

Section 1.  General Fund 
 

Appropriation from Additional Revenue $1,500,000  
 
Section 2.  Capital Improvement Fund for Community, Culture, and Safety 

 
Appropriation from Additional Revenue $8,899,147 

 
 
 
  
 

Attachment A: Ordinance

Agenda Item 3F    Page 8Packet Page 137



 
 

Section 3.  The City Council finds that this ordinance is necessary to protect the 

public health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 4.  If any part or parts hereof are for any reason held to be invalid, such 

shall not affect the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

Section 5.  The Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by 

title only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the Office of the City 

Clerk for public inspection and acquisition. 

 

INTRODUCED, READ, ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this 21th day of April, 2015.  

 
 __________________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk  
 
 
 
READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 5th  day of  May, 2015. 

 

 __________________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
Attest: 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk  

Attachment A: Ordinance

Agenda Item 3F    Page 9Packet Page 138



Dept Name Request   Request Description
Finance Audit of RMJ sales tax 

revenues

100,000$    Funds will be used to provide sales tax audit services for this 
segment. 

Finance Two ongoing licensing 

positions

134,018$    Staffing related to marijuana licensing and reviews.

Police Training and 

Equipment

7,900$        These funds will be used for training and needed equipment 
for enforcement.

Police Overtime 50,000$      Overtime of police officers related to inspections on grow 
facilities, enforcement of illegal grow operations and illegal 
sale of marijuana products in retail establishments.

Human Services Educational program 

development and 

implementation

250,000$    Develop and implement community-wide educational 
programs for children, youth and families, related to the  
impacts of recreational marijuana use on young people in 
concert with community partners, including Boulder County 
Public Health, BVSD, Mental Health Partners and non-profits. 
Scope, develop and implement messaging and support 
existing best practice community education and support 
programs. Could include additional fixed term  .5 FTE and 
NPE funding.

City Manager Office Contingency 958,082$    

Total 1,500,000$ 

Attachment B: 2015 RMJ Requests

Agenda Item 3F    Page 10Packet Page 139



BID Area Police Statistics 
 

Civic campus had a combined arrests and citations of 600 from the fall 2013 to early 2015.  For the same 
time period, the BID had 724 arrests and 3602 citations.   
 
BID Arrests: 

Month Number 
October 2013 43 
November 2013 31 
December 2013 35 
January 2014 37 
February 2014 32 
March 2014 57 
April 2014 37 
May 2014 41 
June 2014 42 
July 2014 59 
August 2014 41 
September 2014 57 
October 2014 44 
November 2014 38 
December 2014 49 
January 2015 60 
February 2015 21 
  

 
BID Citations: 

Month Number 
October 2013 181 
November 2013 144 
December 2013 136 
January 2014 190 
February 2014 165 
March 2014 166 
April 2014 170 
May 2014 252 
June 2014 213 
July 2014 214 
August 2014 198 
September 2014 174 
October 2014 153 
November 2014 114 
December 2014 121 
January 2015 173 
February 2015 114 

 
There are currently four core officers assigned to the Mall and two open spots due to current staffing 
levels.   
 

Attachment C: BID Area Police Statistics

Agenda Item 3F    Page 11Packet Page 140



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE April 21, 2015 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE: Introduction and consideration of a motion to pass on first reading 
and order published by title only Ordinance No. 8043 amending chapter 10-12 “mobile 
homes” adding a new section 10-12-25 “limitation on park owner’s right to prohibit 
sales,” amending section 10-12-2 to add definitions, amending section 10-12-3 to make 
section 10-12-25 applicable to all mobile home parks amending section 10-12-4 to 
provide for administrative remedies and setting forth related details. 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Thomas A. Carr, City Attorney 
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
David Driskell, Executive Director, Community Planning and Sustainability 
Jeff Yegian, Acting Housing Division Manager 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to introduce an ordinance limiting the restrictions on 
the sale of mobile homes.  At the April 7, 2015 council meeting, council considered 
several options to address concerns raised by mobile home owners.  Council directed the 
city attorney to draft an ordinance based upon a Connecticut statute that would limit the 
ability of a park owner to prohibit the sale of a safe and sanitary home.  The proposed 
ordinance is attached as Attachment A. 
 
  

Agenda Item 3G     Page 1Packet Page 141



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
Staff recommends the following motion:  Motion to introduce, pass on first reading and 
order published by title only Ordinance No. 8043 amending chapter 10-12 “mobile 
homes” adding a new section 10-12-25 “limitation on park owner’s right to prohibit 
sales,” amending section 10-12-2 to add definitions, amending section 10-12-3 to make 
section 10-12-25 applicable to all mobile home parks amending section 10-12-4 to 
provide for administrative remedies and setting forth related details.” 
 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 

 Economic:  Mobile homes provide a relatively low cost option for affordable 
housing in Boulder.  

 Environmental:  Mobile homes provide lower income workers with local housing 
options, which may reduce the environmental impact associated with commuting.  

 Social:  The ability for lower income individuals to reside in Boulder provides 
important economic diversity.   
 

OTHER IMPACTS  
 

 Fiscal-Budgetary:  There will be no budget impact from the adoption of the 
proposed ordinance.  If the ordinance results in an increase in administrative 
hearings, there will be additional budget impacts. 

 Staff work necessary will fall mostly on the city attorney’s office.   
 

PUBLIC INPUT 
 
At the March 3, 2015, March 17, 2015 and April 7, 2015 council meetings, several 
residents spoke about issues related to mobile homes.  In addition, Council has received 
numerous emails from mobile home residents in Boulder.   
 
BOARD AND COMMISSION INPUT  
 
None.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
There are five mobile home parks in the City of Boulder.  These parks provide an 
affordable housing option for individuals and families of moderate means.   
 
Several homeowners have alleged that a park owner has refused to allow owners to sell 
their mobile homes, because of the age of the homes.  Effective June 15, 1976, the United 
States Department of Housing and Urban Development adopted standards for 
manufacturing mobile homes.  There has long been an issue over the sale of pre June 15, 
1976 homes.  This issue appears to be driven in part by the strong economy.  There is a 

Agenda Item 3G     Page 2Packet Page 142



significant demand for mobile home park spaces.  A park owner can easily fill a spot with 
a brand new home.  Substituting a new home for one over 40 years old improves the 
appearance of and ultimately the value of a mobile home park.   
 
The proposed ordinance is based on Connecticut General Statute § 21-79, which prohibits 
a park owner from restricting a home owner’s right to sell.   Chapter 10-12 of the Boulder 
Revised Code addresses mobile home issues.  The proposed ordinance would add a new 
section, 10-12-25 that would limit the restrictions on sales of mobile homes.  The new 
section would include the following provisions: 
 

 Subsection A would prohibit a park owner from requiring a home owner to 
move a home at time of sale if the home is safe and sanitary as long as the 
seller agrees to be bound by the lease and park rules. 

 Subsection B establishes that a home is safe and sanitary if it met a nationally 
recognized building or construction code or standard in effect at the time of 
construction. 

 Subsection C provides that a home that passed the equivalent of a rental 
housing inspection within six months would be considered safe and sanitary. 

 Subsection D limits the ability of a park owner to refuse a purchaser. 
 Subsection E allows a home owner to get a written statement of whether the 

park owner intends to allow the owner to sell a home. 
 
The proposed ordinance also would amend section 10-12-4 to provide for an 
administrative remedy.  The proposed administrative process would include a maximum 
fine of $2000 and provide the city manager with the authority to issue an order.  There is 
a provision for the city attorney to bring an action to enforce an order or for the home 
owner to do so.   
 
Many current mobile home owners purchased their homes with the expectation that they, 
like any other homeowner, would build equity during their ownership and recoup their 
investment at the time of sale.   There is a question whether the ordinance should include 
a provision allowing a park owner to refuse the right to sell if the proposed seller was 
warned at the time of the purchase that the home could not be sold.  Council did not 
direct that such a provision be included.  This option is included as Attachment B.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A – Proposed Ordinance 
Attachment B – Option Adding Section 10-12-25 
  

Agenda Item 3G     Page 3Packet Page 143



 

K:\CMAD\o-8043-1st-854.docx 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

ORDINANCE NO.  8043 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10-12 “MOBILE HOMES” 
ADDING A NEW SECTION 10-12-25 “LIMITATION ON THE 
PROHIBITION OF SALES,” AMENDING SECTION 10-12-2 TO ADD 
DEFINITIONS, AMENDING SECTION 10-12-3 TO MAKE SECTION 10-12-
25 APPLICABLE TO ALL MOBILE HOME PARKS AMENDING SECTION 
10-12-4 TO PROVIDE FOR ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES AND SETTING 
FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO: 

Section 1.  A new section 10-12-25 is added as follows: 

10-12-25. – Limitation on the Prohibition Sales of Mobile Homes 

(a) No person, including without limitation a park owner shall require a resident, to remove a 
safe and sanitary mobile home from a mobile home park at the time such mobile home is 
sold or a loan on such a home is foreclosed provided that the purchaser or lender shall 
assume and be bound by the rental agreement of the seller or borrower and shall be bound 
by the rules and regulations of the park.  

 
(b) A mobile home shall be presumed to be safe and sanitary if the mobile home was 

constructed in accordance with any industry or nationally recognized building or 
construction code or standard in effect at the time of construction.  Failure to meet any such 
standard or the provisions of any such code shall not automatically raise a presumption that 
the mobile manufactured home is unsafe or unsanitary. Such failure shall not be used as a 
reason for withholding approval of an on-site sale unless such failure renders the mobile 
home unsafe or unsanitary. 
 

(c) A mobile home shall be presumed to be safe and sanitary if within six months prior to the 
proposed sale the home passed an inspection conducted by an appropriately licensed 
inspector using the City of Boulder Baseline Inspection Checklist or substantially similar 
inspection protocol.  The inspection need not address sections A.III Light or C.II Boilers of 
the City of Boulder Baseline Inspection Checklist.   
 

(d) Any purchaser of a mobile home sold by a resident may become a resident of the mobile 
home park provided the purchaser meets the entry requirements for the mobile home park 
that  are applied equally to all purchasers and prospective residents.  The park owner must 
also approve the entry of the new resident.  Such approval may not be withheld except for 
good cause. For the purposes of this section good cause means a reasonable basis for the 
park owner to believe (1) that the purchaser intends to use the purchased mobile home for 
an illegal or immoral purpose or for any purpose that would disturb the quiet enjoyment of 
the other residents of the mobile park or (2) that the purchaser is or will be financially 
unable to pay the rent for the lot upon which the purchased mobile home is located. If the 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3G     Page 4Packet Page 144



 

K:\CMAD\o-8043-1st-854.docx 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

park owner denies approval to a purchaser, the park owner shall, in writing, state any 
reason for such disapproval. Such statement shall be delivered to the resident and the 
purchaser within ten days after the park owner receives the completed application of the 
purchaser or prospective resident. Failure to deliver such notification within fifteen days 
shall be deemed to be approval.  
 

(e) Any resident wishing to sell a mobile home shall request a written statement of the park 
owner’s intentions regarding the condition of the home. Within twenty days after receipt of 
such a request, the park owner shall approve the home’s condition for resale or deliver a 
written statement to the resident specifying the reasons why the home is not safe or 
sanitary. Failure of the park owner to respond within twenty days shall be deemed to be an 
approval of the mobile home’s sale. If the resident disputes the park owner’s response, the 
resident may attempt to correct defects identified by the owner and may again request the 
owner’s approval of the home’s condition for resale. The resident may also arrange for an 
inspection by an appropriately licensed inspector using the City of Boulder Baseline 
Inspection Checklist or substantially similar inspection protocol.  Any mobile home that 
passes such an inspection shall be presumed to be safe and sanitary. 

 Section 2.  Section 10-12-2  B.R.C. 1981 is amended to read: 

10-12-2. - Definitions.  

The following words used in this chapter have the following meanings unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise:  

Accessory structure means any structural addition to a mobile home or a mobile home space, 
including without limitation, awnings, carports, porches, storage cabinets and similar appurtenant 
structures.  

Camper means a unit containing cooking or sleeping facilities that is designed to be loaded onto 
or affixed to the bed or chassis of a truck to provide temporary living quarters for recreational 
camping or travel use.  

Mobile home means a transportable, single-family dwelling unit, suitable for year-round 
occupancy that contains the same water supply, waste disposal and electrical conveniences as 
immobile housing, that has no foundation other than wheels or removable jacks for conveyance 
on highways, and that may be transported to a site as one or more modules, but the term does not 
include "travel trailers," "campers," "camper buses," or "motor homes," or modular homes 
designed to be placed on a foundation.  

Mobile home park means any lot or tract of land designed, used, or intended to provide a 
location or accommodation for one or more mobile homes and upon which any mobile home or 
homes are parked or located, whether or not the lot or tract or any part thereof is held or operated 
for profit, but the term excludes automobile or mobile homes sales lots on which mobile homes 
are parked only for inspection and sale.  

Mobile home space means a plot of ground within a mobile home park designed for the 
accommodation of one mobile home and its accessory structures.  

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3G     Page 5Packet Page 145



 

K:\CMAD\o-8043-1st-854.docx 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Motor home means a motor vehicle containing cooking or sleeping facilities and designed as 
temporary living quarters for recreational camping or travel use and includes, without limitation, 
vehicles designated as "camper buses" and those that may have been originally designed for use 
as vans or buses but that have been converted to use as living quarters. 

Park owner means the owner of a mobile home park, or any agent, representative or employee of 
an owner of a mobile home park. 

Resident means the owner of a mobile home in a mobile home park. 

Section 3.  Section 10-12-3 B.R.C. 1981 is amended to read: 

10-12-3. - Application of Chapter to Existing Mobile Homes and Mobile Home Parks. 

(a) Any mobile home park in existence in the city on July 5, 1973, or annexed to the city after 
such date that complies with all applicable legal requirements then in effect is deemed to be 
legally nonconforming and is not subject to the provisions of this chapter except those 
concerning blocking and tying down of mobile homes (Section 10-12-8, "Blocking and 
Tie-Down Required," B.R.C. 1981), use of gas fuel, and fire protection (paragraphs 10-12-
21(a)(7), (a)(8) and (a)(10), B.R.C. 1981) and limitation on park owner’s right to prohibit 
sales (Section 10-12-25). But any person who alters or extends such a legally 
nonconforming mobile home park shall conform to all applicable provisions of this chapter 
for such alterations and extensions.  

 
(b) An individual mobile home may be replaced or relocated within a legally nonconforming 

mobile home park if such mobile home is blocked and tied down in compliance with the 
requirements of Section 10-12-8, "Blocking and Tie-Down Required," B.R.C. 1981, and if 
gas connections are made in compliance with the requirements of paragraphs 10-12-
21(a)(7) and (a)(8), B.R.C. 1981.  
 

(c) Any mobile home in existence in the city on July 5, 1973 or annexed to the city after such 
date that complied with all applicable legal requirements then in effect is considered to be 
legally nonconforming and is not subject to the provisions of this chapter except the 
requirements relating to blocking and tying down of mobile homes (Section 10-12-8, 
"Blocking and Tie-Down Required," B.R.C. 1981).  
 

(d) If any such legally nonconforming mobile home is removed from its location, whether 
within a mobile home park or elsewhere, the mobile home may not be replaced or relocated 
except in conformity with all applicable requirements of this chapter. If the use of such a 
legally nonconforming mobile home is discontinued for a period of twelve consecutive 
months or more, no person shall occupy the mobile home until it conforms with all 
requirements of this chapter.  

 
(e) No person may replace an existing mobile home located on a mobile home space that is not 

large enough to provide the minimum requirements of Section 9-7-13, "Mobile Home Park 
Form and Bulk Standards," B.R.C. 1981, by a larger mobile home, but such person may 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3G     Page 6Packet Page 146



 

K:\CMAD\o-8043-1st-854.docx 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

replace such existing mobile home with a mobile home of the same or smaller length and 
width dimensions.  

 
(f) No person shall replace an existing mobile home located on a lot outside a mobile home 

park with a larger mobile home, but such person may replace such mobile home with a 
mobile home of the same or smaller length and width, if the replacement is made within 
thirty days after the removal of the existing mobile home. 

Section 4.  Section 10-12-4 B.R.C. 1981 is amended to read: 

10-12-4. - Enforcement.  

(a) The city manager may enter any mobile home park in the city to inspect and investigate 
conditions relating to the enforcement of this chapter at all reasonable times. 
 

(b) For alleged violations of the provisions of this chapter, other than section 10-12-25,  
“Limitation on Prohibition of Sales,” B.R.C. 1981, Wwhenever, after inspection of any 
mobile home or mobile home park, the city manager finds any violation of this chapter, the 
manager shall give to the owner of the mobile home or the mobile home park a notice that 
specifies: 

(1)   The provisions of this chapter that are alleged to be violated; 
 

(2)   A reasonable period of time in which to correct the alleged violation; and 
 

(3)   The right to appeal the violation notice within thirty days from the date of its 
issuance to the board of zoning adjustment or board of building appeals under 
the procedures prescribed by Section 10-12-24, "Appeals and Variances," and 
Chapter 1-3, "Quasi-Judicial Hearings," B.R.C. 1981. 
 

(c) The city manager shall reinspect the mobile home or the mobile home park for which a 
notice of violation was issued upon expiration of the period of time stated in the violation 
notice for correction of the alleged violation. 
 

(d) For alleged violations of section 10-12-25 B.R.C. 1981(“Limitation on Park Owner’s Right 
to Prohibit Sales”): 

(1)   If the city manager finds that a violation of any provision section 10-12-25, the 
manager, shall issue a notice of violation and provide an opportunity for hearing 
under the procedures prescribed by Chapter 1-3, "Quasi-Judicial Hearings," 
B.R.C. 1981,  
 

(2)   At any such hearing the mobile home owner shall bear the burden of proving 
the violation, provided however that the park owner shall bear the burden of 
proving that mobile home is unsafe or unsanitary.   
 

(3)   If after hearing all of the evidence, the city manager finds a violation, the city 
manager may take any one or more of the following action to remedy the 
violation: 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3G     Page 7Packet Page 147



 

K:\CMAD\o-8043-1st-854.docx 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(A) Impose a civil penalty of not more than $2000 per violation; or 

 (B) Issue an order reasonably calculated to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of section 10-12-25. 

(4)   No person shall fail to comply with any action taken by the manager under this 
section.  

(5)   The city attorney is authorized to bring a civil action to enforce any order issued 
by the city manager under this section.  If the city is the prevailing party in such 
civil action, the defendant shall be responsible for the city’s costs and attorneys’ 
fees.   

(6)   Criminal Penalties. Violations section 10-12-25 also are punishable as provided 
in Section 5-2-4, "General Penalties," B.R.C. 1981.  

(7)   Any person injured by a violation of any provision of section 10-12-25 may 
maintain an action for damages, declaratory relief, specific performance, 
injunction or any other appropriate relief in the District Court in and for the 
County of Boulder against the person causing the violation. If plaintiff prevails, 
plaintiff shall be entitled to an award of attorney's fees. Upon filing such an 
action, plaintiff shall send notice thereof to the city, but nothing in this title 
authorizes the city or its employees or agents to be named as a defendant in such 
litigation. 

Section 5.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 6.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3G     Page 8Packet Page 148



 

K:\CMAD\o-8043-1st-854.docx 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 21st day of April, 2015. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 
  
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 5th day of May, 2015. 

 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance

Agenda Item 3G     Page 9Packet Page 149



Attachment B 
 

Amend Section 1 by adding the following to section 10-12-25: 
 
(f)  A park owner shall be permitted to require a resident to remove a mobile home at the 
time of sale if at the time that the resident purchased the mobile home, the resident was 
informed, in a separate document, signed by the resident that the park owner would have 
an absolute right to do so. 
 

Attachment B - Option Adding Section 10-12-25

Agenda Item 3G     Page 10Packet Page 150



 

 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: April 21, 2015 

  

AGENDA TITLE: 
Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8036 designating the 
building and property at 977 7th St., to be known as the Krueger-Cunningham Property, as an 
individual landmark under the city’s Historic Preservation Ordinance.   
   
Owner/Applicant: Janelle C. Krueger & Cosima Krueger-Cunningham 

 

PRESENTERS: 
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
David Driskell, Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
Lesli Ellis, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
James Hewat, Senior Historic Preservation Planner  
Marcy Cameron, Historic Preservation Planner 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this item is to allow the City Council to determine whether the proposed 
individual landmark designation of the building at 977 7th St. meets the purposes and 
standards of the Historic Preservation Ordinance (Sections 9-11-1 and 9-11-2, B.R.C. 1981).  
The property owner is in support of the designation.   
  
If approved, this ordinance (see Attachment A) would designate the building and property as 
an individual landmark.  The findings are included in the ordinance.  A landmark designation 
application was submitted by the property owners in November of 2014. At its February 4, 
2015 meeting, the Landmarks Board voted 5-0 to recommend the landmark designation to 
the City Council. The second reading for this designation will be quasi-judicial in nature.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 1Packet Page 151



 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motion: 
 
A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8036 designating the building and property at 977 7th 
St., to be known as the Krueger-Cunningham Property, as an individual landmark under 
the City of Boulder’s Historic Preservation Ordinance.   

 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 

 Economic:  Owners of locally designated landmarked properties are eligible for state 
and local tax credits for approved rehabilitations and repairs, and studies have found 
that historic preservation adds to economic vitality and tourism.  Exterior changes to 
individually landmarked buildings require a Landmark Alteration Certificate, issued 
by the Community Planning and Sustainability Department at no charge.  The 
additional review process for landmarked buildings may, however, add time and 
design expense to a project.  
 

 Environmental: The preservation of historic buildings is inherently sustainable. 
Owners of individually landmarked buildings are encouraged to reuse and repair as 
much of the original building as possible when making exterior alterations, thereby 
reducing the amount of building material waste deposited in landfills.  City staff can 
assist architects, contractors and homeowners with design and material selections and 
sources that are environmentally friendly.  Also, the Historic Preservation website 
provides information on improving the energy efficiency of older buildings. 

 
 Social:  The Historic Preservation Ordinance was adopted to “…enhance property 

values, stabilize neighborhoods, promote tourist trade and interest, and foster 
knowledge of the city’s living heritage.”  Section 9-11-1 (a), B.R.C., 1981.  The 
primary beneficiaries of historic designation are the property owners of a historic 
landmark and adjacent neighbors, who are ensured that the character of the immediate 
area will be protected through the design review process.  The greater community 
also benefits from the preservation of the community’s character and history.  

 
OTHER IMPACTS 

 Fiscal:  The designation of individual historic landmarks is an anticipated and 
ongoing function of the Historic Preservation Program.   

 
 Staff Time: This designation application is within the staff work plan. 

 
LANDMARKS BOARD ACTION 
On February 4, 2015 the Landmarks Board voted 5-0 to recommend to City Council that the 
building and property at 977 7th St. be designated as a local historic landmark, finding that it 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 2Packet Page 152



 

 

meets the standards for individual landmark designations in sections 9-11-1 and 9-11-2, 
B.R.C. 1981, and is consistent with the criteria specified in section 9-11-5(c), B.R.C. 1981. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On Dec. 3, 2014, the city received an application from the property owners requesting 
designation of the house and property at 977 7th St. The owners have requested additional 
restrictions be placed on the property as part of the landmark designation. See Attachment D: 

Statement from the Applicant.  

The following is a response to the applicant’s requests:  
1. The city would not be involved in a deed restriction and is something a property 

owner might do independently.  
a. Once the property is landmarked, any alterations to the house and 

proposals for new construction would require review and approval through 
a Landmark Alteration Certificate (LAC). That would be the case for the 
current owners and any future owners. 

b. Deed restrictions are not binding on the city with regard to subdivision. 
c. Nor are they binding on the city with regard to zoning. 
d. Nor are they binding on the city with regard to zoning variances, although 

a deed restriction could prohibit a future owner from requesting any of 
these last three. 

2. Once the property is landmarked, replacing storm windows and other exterior 
changes will require an LAC.  

3. Unless particular features of the landscaping are called out in the ordinance, the 
owners should be able to maintain their property in its current state.  The owners may 
continue with the approved fence construction without review by the historic 
preservation program. However, future changes to the fencing would require an 
LAC.  With regard to the existing wood garden sheds, arbors, pavilions, and wood 
garden gates, plans to replace these features would also require an LAC.  Trees and 
vegetation may be planted without an LAC. 

4. Staff and the Landmarks Board recommend that the house be named the Krueger-
Cunningham Property.  

5. The applicant’s letter has been included as an attachment to this memorandum and 
will become part of the permanent landmark designation record.  

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
The house at 977 7th Street was constructed in 1928 and is located at the end of 7th St., one 
block north of Aurora Ave. The house is located on a 20,031 sq. ft. lot that slopes steeply 
downward towards the west, northwest, north and northeast. The bluff provides a visual 
connection between the native-stone house, Flagstaff Mountain, and Settler’s Rock at the 
base of the Foothills. The house was designed in the by one of Boulder’s most prominent 
architects, Glen Huntington. The property is located within the identified potential University 
Hill Historic District.  
  

 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 3Packet Page 153



 

 

 
Figure 1. Location Map, 977 7th St.  

 

 

 
Figure 2. Northeast corner, 977 7th S, 2015. 

 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 4Packet Page 154



 

 

 
Figure 3. View from the south, 977 7th St, 2015. 

 

 

The two-story house is constructed of dressed local field stone and has a steeply-pitched 
“Ecoshake” (class A fire rated) roof with five dormers on the south side and three dormers on 
the north side. A central stone chimney is located near the center of the house.  Based 
originally on an L-shaped plan, the main entrance is on the south elevation and an alternate 
entrance is located on the north elevation with steps leading up to the door. A second-story 
balcony on the east elevation is attached to the alternate entrance. Two French doors 
overlook the front balcony and multi-light casement windows are located on all elevations.  
A stained wood lattice fence steps down along the grade of the south and east boundaries and 
on the southeast corner of the property.  
  

Low stone walls also define the property boundary along 7th St. and along the southern 
boundary of the property.  The rest of the property is enclosed by a deer fence and eight 
gates.    
 
The 1991 Historic Building Inventory Record states that the house was designed by Glen 
Huntington and constructed by stone mason Caldwell G. House. Glen Huntington’s January 
10th, 1929 architectural drawings for the house have been located at the Boulder Carnegie 
Library, but no information has been found to verify if stonemason Caldwell House 
constructed the house.  The Inventory Record states that Huntington and House also worked 
on the house at 963 7th Street, which is visually similar to 977 7th Street.   
 
In 2004, the Krueger-Cunninghams built additions onto the west and south sides of the house 
which nearly doubled the size of the house.  Most of the 2004 additions are not visible from 
the street. The addition project included major repairs and energy-efficiency upgrades to 
much of the house as well as the addition of decks on two levels on the northwest side of the 
house which are connected to each other by an outdoor stairway.  This 2004 project also 
added two entrances on the west side of the house on the upper and lower stories.  Cosima 
Krueger-Cunningham designed these additions in consultation with Boulder architect 
Thomas Doerr with informal input from Landmarks Board members.   

Agenda Item 5A     Page 5Packet Page 155



 

 

 
Figure 4. Tax Assessor Card Photo, c. 1949. 

 
 

Eugene C. Barker purchased the lot in 1925 and commissioned Glen Huntington to design a 
residence on the property. A Daily Camera article from Jan 5th, 
1929 states that Huntington designed a “$6,000 flag type-one 
story stone residence on the knoll at Euclid avenue and Eighth 
streets….Prof. Barker plans to occupy it in the summer months 
and rent it during the winter.”1 Barker taught at the University 
of Texas in Austin and was on the summer faculty at the 
University of Colorado.  
  

 Dr. Eugene Barker was born in 1874 in Walker, Texas.  In 
1895 he attended the University of Texas. Eugene married 
Matilda Weeden in 1903 and a few years later attended the 
University of Pennsylvania for a doctorate degree in 
philosophy, which he received in 1908. He returned to Austin, 
Texas and by 1913 he was head of the American History 
department at the University of Texas. He remained a faculty 

member of the University of Texas until he died in 1956.  During his career he served as 
managing editor of the Southwestern History Quarterly, as president of the Mississippi 
Valley Historical association, and as president of the Texas State Historical Association. He 
authored books on Texas history including A School History of Texas, Life of Stephen F. 

Austin, and The Austin Papers. He also co-authored classroom textbooks on U.S. history and 
contributed numerous articles to the Southwestern Historical Quarterly that were generally 
about Texas, Mexico, and the American West. A 1929 Daily Camera article referred to him 
as a “Noted Texas Historian.”2 
 

                                                 
1 “Texas Professor To Build $6,000 Residence Here” Daily Camera, Jan. 5, 1929. 
2 “Dr. Barker, Noted Texas historian On Summer Faculty,” Daily Camera, Feb. 27th, 1929. 

Eugene C. Barker, c. 1927. 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 6Packet Page 156



 

 

The exact year that Dr. Barker joined the summer faculty at the University of Colorado is 
unclear, but it was most likely around 1925 when he purchased the property in the Rose Hill 
neighborhood. A Daily Camera article dated Feb. 27th, 1929 says that Barker “and his family 
are so in love with  Boulder that they are to build here, plans having already been drafted for 
a home.”3 At the end of the summer Baker and his family would return to Austin, renting 977 
7th Street out to other teachers and professors during the school year. The Barkers summered 
in Boulder until 1944, when they sold 977 7th Street and permanently returned to Austin. 
Barker was named a Professor Emeritus at the University of Texas, and the school dedicated 
the Barker Texas History Center for him, the first time the university dedicated a building to 
a living professor. Matilda died in 1954, and Eugene in 1956.  
 
In 1945, Charles Wilson and his wife, Oma, purchased the house. Charles and Oma were 
married in 1909 and first moved to Nederland, Colorado in 1935 and then to Boulder in 
1940. Charles worked as a farmer in Boulder and by 1950 the family moved to Kansas.  
 

 

 
 

 

 
In August of 1950, Ray E. and Janelle C. Krueger purchased the property. Ray was an 
electrical engineer for many years.  His early interest in ham radio—and indeed all things 
radio--led him to pursue degrees in electrical engineering at Purdue University and later 
astrophysics at the University of Colorado.  He became a member of the Institute of Radio 
Engineers in 1946.  During the 1940s he worked with radio astronomy pioneer Karl Jansky at 
the Bell Labs in Holmdel and Morristown, New Jersey and also with radio astronomy 
pioneer Grote Reber.  During the late 1940s and early 1950s he worked at the Bureau of 
Standards (now NIST)--first in Washington, DC and then at the Boulder labs. In the City of 
Boulder 1955 directory, Ray is listed as an associate research physicist at the University of 
Colorado. In the same year, a Daily Camera article references Ray as a physicist at the 

                                                 
3 Ibid. 

Janelle C. Krueger, c. 1960. 

 

Ray E. Krueger, c. 1933. 

 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 7Packet Page 157



 

 

Veteran Administration hospital in Denver.  As an avid historian of physics and mathematics, 
Ray specialized in the history of scientific instrumentation and timekeeping.  His fascination 
with historic timepieces evolved into a hobby clock repair business.  Directories list him as 
owning the business “Ray Clock Laboratory” in 1960 and the “Scientific Clock Laboratory” 
in 1964. As a disabled veteran of World War II, Ray was forced to take early retirement from 
the career he loved due to severe and progressively disabling neurological damage suffered 
during his military service in the U.S. Army.  Ray was a keen observer of and participant in 
civic affairs in the City of Boulder for many years.  He especially appreciated the opportunity 
to propose--and subsequently to author--the City of Boulder’s first-of-its-kind noise 
ordinance.  He deeply appreciated the city’s commitment to its enforcement.   
 
His wife, Janelle, completed her nurse’s training at Cleveland General and St. Luke’s 
Nursing School in Cleveland, Ohio in 1948.  She worked as a public health nurse in 
Washington, DC before moving to Boulder. Janelle received her Bachelor’s degree in 1957 
and her Master’s degree in 1958, both from the University of Colorado. In 1958 Janelle was 
appointed Director of Nursing at the Boulder City-County Health Department. A few years 
later Janelle was appointed by Governor John Love to the Colorado Commission on the 
Aging, an organization that served to study the problems and needs of older people and to 
recommend programs, policies, and legislation to improve services. In 1966, Janelle resigned 
from her position as Director of Nursing at the Boulder County Health Department to accept 
a fellowship in sociology at the University of Colorado.  Janelle received her Ph.D. in 
Sociology from the University of Colorado at Boulder in 1969.  She accepted a teaching 
position in the College of Nursing at the University of Arizona in Tucson, Arizona that same 
year and was promoted to tenured full professor at the U of A a couple of years later.  In 
1976 Janelle accepted a research position at the Western Interstate Commission on Higher 
Education (WICHE) in Boulder.  Shortly afterwards she was appointed as Director of the 
Nurse Scientist Program at WICHE and traveled all over the Western states to supervise and 
support the principal investigators of WICHE’s nursing research projects.  Her professional 
work also took her to Canada, Mexico, the United Kingdom, and Denmark.  In 1983 Janelle 
was appointed Dean of the College of Nursing at Arizona State University in Phoenix, 
Arizona.  Her work at ASU was focused on the development of faculty research programs 
and on the establishment of health care centers and services for—and student recruitment 
from—medically underserved groups throughout Arizona, particularly the Navajo and other 
First Nations.  Janelle was a member of the Phi Beta Kappa Society and was a Fellow of the 
American Academy of Nursing.  The “Janelle C. Krueger Endowment” is a perpetually-
funded scholarship program for qualifying nursing students at ASU.  Janelle is the author of 
numerous papers and articles and the author/co-author of several books on health care 
delivery policy and planning, nursing research design, and the ethics of research with human 
subjects.  She served as a peer-reviewer for a number of scholarly nursing journals.  During 
her long and distinguished career, Janelle received numerous awards for her outstanding 
community service, mentoring, and contributions to the advancement of the nursing 
profession.  She retired from ASU in 1993.               
 
Ray E. Krueger passed away in 1995. His wife, Janelle C. Krueger, owns the property today.  
Their daughter, Cosima Krueger-Cunningham, is the sole heir to the property.  Janelle, 
Cosima and Cosima’s husband, Kirkwood M. Cunningham, reside together at 977 7th St.  
 
 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 8Packet Page 158



 

 

ANALYSIS 
Criteria for Review 
Section 9-11-6(b), B.R.C. 1981, specifies that during the review for an application for local 
landmark designation, the council must consider “whether the designation meets the purposes 
and standards in subsection 9-11-1(a) and section 9-11-2, “City Council May Designate or 

Amend Landmarks and Historic Districts,” B.R.C. 1981, in balance with the goals and 
policies of the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan” and provides that the City Council 
“shall approve by ordinance, modify and approve by ordinance, or disapprove the proposed 
designation.” 
 
Historic, Architectural, and Environmental Significance 
Staff finds that the proposed application to landmark 977 7th St. will protect, enhance, and 
perpetuate a property reminiscent of a past era important in local history and preserve an 
important example of Boulder’s historic architecture. Staff considers the application to meet 
the historic criteria for individual landmark designation as outlined below: 
 
HISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE 
Summary:  The property at 977 7th St. meets historic significance criteria 1, 2 and 4.  
 

1. Date of Construction:  1928. 
Elaboration: The house was built in 1928.  
 

2. Association with Persons or Events: Ray E. Krueger and Janelle C. Krueger. 
Elaboration: Eugene C. Barker commissioned Boulder architect Glen Huntington to 
design the residence at 977 7th St. Eugene Barker was a distinguished Texas historian 
and professor emeritus of the University of Texas, and author of many books and 
articles. Barker and his family sold the house in 1945. In 1950, Ray E. Krueger and 
Janelle C. Krueger purchased the property. Ray was an electrical engineer, physicist, 
and science historian, and Janelle a widely-known Boulder public health nurse, 
author, researcher and distinguished dean and professor of nursing who served as 
director of nursing services for the Boulder City-County Health Department from 
1958 until 1966. The Krueger-Cunningham family have owned the property for 65 
years.      
 

3. Development of the Community: None observed. 
 

4. Recognition by Authorities: Historic Building Inventory Record 
Elaboration: The 1991 Historic Building Inventory Record indicates that this 
building is notable for its display of stone masonry and “may represent the work of 
noted Boulder stone mason Caldwell G. House.” The form also indicates that the 
building may be eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE 
Summary:  The house at 977 7th St. meets historic significance criteria 2, 3 and 5.  
 

1. Recognized Period or Style: Jacobean/Elizabethan   
Elaboration:  The house has elements of the Jacobean/Elizabethan style popular in 
the 1920s and 1930s.  

Agenda Item 5A     Page 9Packet Page 159



 

 

2. Architect or Builder of Prominence: Glen H. Huntington (architect), and possibly 
Caldwell G. House (stone mason) 
Elaboration: Prominent local architect Glen Huntington designed many notable 
buildings in Boulder, including fraternities and sororities, the Boulder County 
Courthouse, Boulder High School, the Glen Huntington Arms, the Glen Huntington 
Bandshell and many grand, revival style residences on University Hill. Caldwell 
House was a well-known stone mason who built the neighboring house, also designed 
by Huntington. The 1991 Survey notes that House may have constructed 977 7th St.  
 

3. Artistic Merit: Skillful integration of design   
Elaboration: The house, clad in dressed native stone, is skillfully integrated into the 
steeply sloped site.   
 

4. Example of the Uncommon: None observed  
 

5. Indigenous Qualities: The house is constructed of dressed local field stone.  
  

 
ENVIRONMENTAL SIGNIFICANCE 
Summary:  The house at 977 7th St. has environmental significance under criteria 1, 2, 4 and 5. 
  

1. Site Characteristics: Natural landscape 
Elaboration: The lot slopes steeply to the west and north and features a rich diversity 
of plants and trees. The Krueger-Cunninghams have planted an orchard and several 
pollinator gardens on the property and have managed the entire property as a refuge 
for native pollinators and other wildlife for many years.  The property is listed as a 
pesticide-free native pollinator habitat on several registers.   
 

2. Compatibility with Site: Residential historic character  
Elaboration: The building is representative of the typical building patterns in 
University Hill and contribute to the residential character of the neighborhood. The 
property retains its historic relationship to its lot and surrounding neighborhood.   
 

3. Geographic Importance: None observed. 
 

4. Environmental Appropriateness:  
Elaboration:  The house and surroundings are complementary and careful integrated. 
  

5. Area Integrity: Potential University Hill Historic District 
Elaboration:  The 900 block of 7th St. is located in the identified potential University 
Hill Historic District and retains a high degree of historic integrity to the original 
development of that neighborhood.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 10Packet Page 160



 

 

OPTIONS 
 
The City Council may approve, modify or not approve the second reading of this ordinance.   
 
Approved By: 
 
_____________________ 
Jane S. Brautigam, 
City Manager   
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A: Ordinance No. 8036 
B: Sections 9-11-1 and 9-11-2, “Purposes and Intent,” B.R.C., 1981 
C: Significance Criteria for individual landmarks  
D: Statement from the Applicant 
 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 11Packet Page 161



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 
ORDINANCE  NO. 8036 

 
AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE BUILDING AND 
PROPERTY AT 977 7TH ST., CITY OF BOULDER, 
COLORADO, ALSO KNOWN AS THE KRUEGER-
CUNNINGHAM PROPERTY, A LANDMARK UNDER 
CHAPTER 9-11, “HISTORIC PRESERVATION” B.R.C. 1981, 
AND SETTING FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO: 

 Section l. The council enacts this ordinance pursuant to its authority under Chapter 9-11, 

“Historic Preservation,” B.R.C. 1981, to designate as a landmark a property having a special 

character or special historic, architectural, or aesthetic interest or value. 

Section 2. The council finds that: 1) on or about November 21st, 2014, the owners of 977 

7th Street submitted an application to Individually Landmark that property 2) the Landmarks 

Board held a public hearing on the proposed designation on February 4th, 2015; and 

recommended that the council approve the proposed designation. 

 Section 3. The council also finds that upon public notice required by law, the council held 

a public hearing on the proposed designation on April 21st, 2015 and upon the basis of the 

presentations at that hearing finds that the building and the property at 977 7th St. does possess a 

special character and special historic, architectural, or aesthetic interest or value warranting its 

designation as a landmark. 

Section 4. The characteristics of the subject property that justify its designation as a landmark 

are: 1) its historic significance with association with the Krueger and Cunningham families, 

construction of the house in 1928 after designs by noted Boulder architect, Glen Huntington and; 

2) its architectural significance influenced Jacobean/Elizabethan Revival architecture popular in 

Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8036

Agenda Item 5A     Page 12Packet Page 162



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

the 1920s and 1930s and; 3) environmental significance for its location on the 900 block of 7th 

St. in the identified potential University Hill Historic District that retains a high degree of 

historic integrity to the original development of that neighborhood and in that the house and 

surroundings are complementary and carefully integrated.  

 Section 5. The council further finds that the foregoing landmark designation is necessary 

to promote the public health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the city. 

 Section 6. There is hereby created as a landmark the building and property located at 977 

7th Street, also known as the Krueger-Cunningham Property, whose legal landmark boundary 

encompasses a portion of the legal lots upon which it sits:  

LOTS 1-2 & NLY 5FT LOT 3 BLK 3 WEST ROSE HILL & VACATED ST 
 
as depicted in the proposed landmark boundary map, attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

 
Section 7. The council directs that the department of Community Planning and 

Sustainability give prompt notice of this designation to the property owner and cause a copy of 

this ordinance to be recorded as described in Subsection 9-11-6(d), B.R.C. 1981. 

Section 8. The council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title only 

and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for public 

inspection and acquisition. 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE 
ONLY THIS 17TH DAY OF MARCH, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

       Mayor 

Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8036

Agenda Item 5A     Page 13Packet Page 163



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk  
 

 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY THIS 21st DAY OF APRIL, 2015. 

 
     
    
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk  
 
 

Exhibit A – Landmark Boundary Map for 977 7th St. 
 

 
 

LOTS 1-2 & NLY 5FT LOT 3 BLK 3 WEST ROSE HILL & VACATED ST 

Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8036

Agenda Item 5A     Page 14Packet Page 164



9-11-1 & 9-11-2 Purposes and Intent 
Boulder Revised Code, 1981 

 
9-11-1: Purpose and Legislative Intent states: 

(a) The purpose of this chapter is to promote the public health, safety, and welfare by protecting, 
enhancing, and perpetuating buildings, sites, and areas of the city reminiscent of past eras, 
events, and persons important in local, state, or national history or providing significant 
examples of architectural styles of the past. It is also the purpose of this chapter to develop 
and maintain appropriate settings and environments for such buildings, sites, and areas to 
enhance property values, stabilize neighborhoods, promote tourist trade and interest, and 
foster knowledge of the city’s living heritage. 

(b) The City Council does not intend by this chapter to preserve every old building in the city but 
instead to draw a reasonable balance between private property rights and the public interest in 
preserving the city’s cultural, historic, and architectural heritage by ensuring that demolition 
of buildings and structures important to that heritage will be carefully weighed with other 
alternatives and that alterations to such buildings and structures and new construction will 
respect the character of each such setting, not by imitating surrounding structures, but by 
being compatible with them. 

(c) The City Council intends that in reviewing applications for alterations to and new 
construction on landmarks or structures in a historic district, the Landmarks Board shall 
follow relevant city policies, including, without limitation, energy-efficient design, access for 
the disabled and creative approaches to renovation.  

 

9-11-2:  City Council may Designate or Amend Landmarks and Historic Districts states: 

(a) Pursuant to the procedures in this chapter the City Council may by ordinance: 
(1) Designate as a landmark an individual building or other feature or an 

integrated group of structures or features on a single lot or site having a 
special character and historical, architectural, or aesthetic interest or value 
and designate a landmark site for each landmark; 

(2) Designate as a historic district a contiguous area containing a number of 
sites, buildings, structures or features having a special character and 
historical, architectural, or aesthetic interest or value and constituting a 
distinct section of the city;  

(3) Designate as a discontiguous historic district a collection of sites, buildings, 
structures, or features which are contained in two or more geographically 
separate areas,  having a special character and historical, architectural, or 
aesthetic interest or value that are united together by historical, architectural, 
or aesthetic characteristics; and 

(4) Amend designations to add features or property to or from the site or district. 

(b) Upon designation, the property included in any such designation is subject to all the 
requirements of this code and other ordinances of the city. 

  
 

 

Attachment B - Landmarks Purposes and Intent

Agenda Item 5A     Page 15Packet Page 165



SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA 
Individual Landmark 

September 1975 
 

On September 6, 1975, the City Council adopted Ordinance #4000 providing procedures 
for the designation of Landmarks and Historic Districts in the City of Boulder.   The purpose of 
the ordinance is the preservation of the City’s permitted cultural, historic, and architectural 
heritage.  The Landmarks Board is permitted by the ordinance to adopt rules and regulations as it 
deems necessary for its own organization and procedures.  The following Significance Criteria 
have been adopted by the board to help evaluate each potential designation in a consistent and 
equitable manner.   
 
Historic Significance 
 

The place (building, site, area) should show character, interest or value as part of the 
development, heritage, or cultural characteristics of the community, state or nation; be the 
site of a historic, or prehistoric event that had an effect upon society; or exemplify the 
cultural, political, economic, or social heritage of the community. 
 
Date of Construction: This area of consideration places particular importance on the age 
of the structure. 

Association with Historical Persons or Events: This association could be national, state, 
or local. 

Distinction in the Development of the Community of Boulder: This is most applicable to 
an institution (religious, educational, civic, etc) or business structure, though in some 
cases residences might qualify.  It stresses the importance of preserving those places 
which demonstrate the growth during different time spans in the history of Boulder, in 
order to maintain an awareness of our cultural, economic, social or political heritage. 

Recognition by Authorities: If it is recognized by Historic Boulder, Inc. the Boulder 
Historical Society, local historians (Barker, Crossen, Frink, Gladden, Paddock, 
Schooland, etc), State Historical Society, The Improvement of Boulder, Colorado by F.L. 
Olmsted, or others in published form as having historic interest and value.  

Other, if applicable.  

Architectural Significance 
 

The place should embody those distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type 
specimen, a good example of the common; be the work of an architect or master builder, 
known nationally, state-wide, or locally, and perhaps whose work has influenced later 
development; contain elements of architectural design, detail, materials or craftsmanship 
which represent a significant innovation; or be a fine example of the uncommon. 

 
 

Attachment C - Significance Criteria for Individual Landmarks

Agenda Item 5A     Page 16Packet Page 166



Recognized Period/Style: It should exemplify specific elements of an architectural 
period/style, i.e.: Victorian, Revival styles, such as described by Historic American 
Building Survey Criteria, Gingerbread Age (Maass), 76 Boulder Homes (Barkar), The 
History of Architectural Style (Marcus/Wiffin), Architecture in San Francisco (Gebhard 
et al), History of Architecture (Fletcher), Architecture/Colorado, and any other published 
source of universal or local analysis of a style. 

Architect or Builder of Prominence: A good example of the work of an architect or 
builder who is recognized for expertise in his field nationally, state-wide, or locally. 

Artistic Merit: A skillful integration of design, material, and color which is of excellent 
visual quality and/or demonstrates superior craftsmanship. 

Example of the Uncommon: Elements of architectural design, details, or craftsmanship 
that are representative of a significant innovation. 

Indigenous Qualities: A style or material that is particularly associated with the Boulder 
area. 

Other, if applicable. 

Environmental Significance 
 

The place should enhance the variety, interest, and sense of identity of the community by 
the protection of the unique natural and man-made environment. 
 
Site Characteristics: It should be of high quality in terms of planned or natural vegetation. 

Compatibility with Site: Consideration will be given to scale, massing placement, or 
other qualities of design with respect to its site. 

Geographic Importance: Due to its unique location or singular physical characteristics, it 
represents an established and familiar visual feature of the community. 

Environmental Appropriateness: The surroundings are complementary and/or it is 
situated in a manner particularly suited to its function. 

Area Integrity: Places which provide historical, architectural, or environmental 
importance and continuity of an existing condition, although taken singularly or out of 
context might not qualify under other criteria. 

 
 

Attachment C - Significance Criteria for Individual Landmarks

Agenda Item 5A     Page 17Packet Page 167



To:  City of Boulder Landmarks Board, Staff and City Council Members 
From:  Cosima Krueger-Cunningham 
Date:  February 4, 2015 
Subject:  Historic Landmark application for our property at 977 7th Street, Boulder 
 
Thank you for reviewing our application to landmark our property at 977 7th Street in 
Boulder.  Our application for landmark status for our house at this time is contingent 
upon the City’s accommodation of the following requests with respect to our property: 
 
1.  We request a permanent deed restriction or equivalent on our property that would 
prohibit the following changes in perpetuity:   
 
a) any significant alterations to our house itself by anyone other than the Krueger-
Cunningham family,  
b) any subsequent building on our property by anyone other than the Krueger-Cunningham 
family, 
c) any future subdivision of our entire property,  
d) any possible future up-zoning of our entire property, and  
e) any possible zoning variances on our entire property except those applied for by the 
Krueger-Cunningham family that may be necessary to take advantage of appropriate renewable 
energy options for the house as they may arise in the future.  
 
2.  Explanations of 1. a) (above) regarding future maintenance on the house itself:   
 
First, we wish to complete all necessary ongoing and planned future maintenance 
projects on our house.  Specifically, we plan to replace the exterior storm windows on 
our house in the near future.  This will involve finding a contractor who can provide 
custom, energy-efficient, permanent storm window replacements that will be an exact 
visual match for the current exterior storm windows.  We’re currently following several 
promising leads.  This Spring we are planning to have the exterior wood trim and 
siding on our house repaired, repainted and re-stained as needed.  We plan to use the 
same or very closely-matched trim colors to the existing colors visible in the photos of 
our house that are included in the landmark application.  We are also planning to have 
our wood lattice fence re-stained in a color identical to or very closely-matching its 
current color as seen in the landmark application photos.  This level of maintenance on 
our house and fence seems to be needed about every ten years and we plan to follow 
through with a similar exterior house maintenance program in the future as the need 
arises. 
 

Attachment D - Statement from the Applicant

Agenda Item 5A     Page 18Packet Page 168



Second, we are currently researching on-site solar PV, solar thermal and small-scale 
wind turbine options for our house.  Our house currently has insufficient solar access to 
accommodate conventional roof-top solar panels due to its numerous gables, original 
roof engineering, and the towering row of neighboring Ponderosa Pine trees along the 
Southern property boundary.  For this reason, we currently own 27 PV panels in the 
Cowdery Meadows Solar Garden which provide 100% and then some of our house’s 
electricity needs.  Our house’s new and upgraded heating and hot water heating 
systems remain powered by natural gas.  Our goal is to find an appropriate on-site solar 
thermal system to replace our house’s reliance on natural gas.  We are closely following 
the evolution of solar and small-scale wind turbine technology in conjunction with the 
evolution of aesthetically-acceptable design innovations for these technologies that 
might allow us to adopt one or more of them without sacrificing in any way our house’s 
historic visual character and appeal.   

We are 100% committed to preserving the existing historic appearance of our house.  In 
order for us to be able to adopt any of these evolving renewable energy technologies, 
they would have to be either 100% invisible from the 7th Street turnaround or be so well 
integrated into the design of our house itself and/or our surrounding landscape that 
they would be either visually undetectable or visually insignificant to viewers of our 
house from the 7th Street turnaround.  We wish to be free to take advantage of 
appropriate and visually harmonious renewable energy options for our house as they 
may become available in the future.             

3. Explanation of request 1. b) (above) regarding future landscaping of our property:

First, we have planted an orchard and several pollinator gardens on our property.  We 
have managed our entire property as a refuge for native pollinators and other wildlife 
for many years.  Our property is listed as a pesticide-free native pollinator habitat on 
several registers.  We wish for the “wild” parts of our property to remain essentially 
undisturbed so that they stand a fighting chance of retaining this pesticide-free, native 
pollinator habitat designation in perpetuity. 

Second, we are not quite finished with an already-permitted perimeter fence and front 
drive gate project, a couple small sections of which are taking longer to complete than 
expected.  We hope to complete this wood lattice fence and front drive gate project 
sometime in the near future.  We wish to retain the right to replace the existing 
perimeter deer fence with a fencing material and design of our choosing, if necessary, at 
some point in the future.   

Attachment D - Statement from the Applicant

Agenda Item 5A     Page 19Packet Page 169



Third, we plan to maintain and, perhaps ultimately, to replace a couple of small existing 
wood garden sheds, arbors, pavilions, and wood garden gates at various locations on 
our property as the need may arise.  Most of these small existing structures are not 
currently visible from the 7th Street turnaround.  

Fourth, we plan to plant more a) orchard trees, b) deciduous hedgerows, and c) low-
fire-hazard windbreak trees at various locations on our property.  Most, but not all, of 
this future landscaping will likely be to replace existing mature trees as needed.   

3. We wish for the official name of our house to be “The Krueger-Cunningham House.”
Our house is occasionally referred to as the “Rose Hill Cottage.”  We are happy to have 
this latter informal appellation included in the landmark application record. 

4. We request that this explanatory memorandum be permanently incorporated into
our landmark application records for future reference. 

Any questions or comments regarding this landmark application can be addressed to: 

Cosima Krueger-Cunningham  
977 7th Street 
Boulder, CO 80302 
303-442-2335, 303-448-0832 or 303-939-8519 
cardamomseed@aol.com 

Attachment D - Statement from the Applicant

Agenda Item 5A     Page 20Packet Page 170

mailto:cardamomseed@aol.com


 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE, April 21, 2015 

  

AGENDA TITLE: 
Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8037 designating the 
building and property at 1029 Broadway Street, to be known as the Evans Scholars House, as 
an individual landmark under the city’s Historic Preservation Ordinance.   
   
Owner/Applicant: Evans Scholar Program 

 

PRESENTERS: 
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
David Driskell, Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
Lesli Ellis, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
James Hewat, Senior Historic Preservation Planner  
Marcy Cameron, Historic Preservation Planner 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this item is to allow the City Council to determine whether the proposed 
individual landmark designation of the building at 1029 Broadway meets the purposes and 
standards of the Historic Preservation Ordinance (Sections 9-11-1 and 9-11-2, B.R.C. 1981).  
The property owner is in support of the designation.   
  
If approved, this ordinance (see Attachment A) would designate the building and property as 
an individual landmark.  The findings are included in the ordinance.  The landmark 
designation application was submitted by the property owner on March 20, 2014. At its 
August 6, 2014 meeting, the Landmarks Board voted 4-0 to recommend the designation to 
City Council. The applicants requested that the City Council hearing be postponed until Site 
Review application was completed. The project was approved by the Planning Board on Jan. 
8, 2015. The second reading for this designation will be quasi-judicial in nature.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 1Packet Page 171



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motion: 
 
A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8037 designating the building and property at 1029 
Broadway Street, to be known as the Evan Scholar House, as an individual landmark 
under the City of Boulder’s Historic Preservation Ordinance.   
 

 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 

• Economic:  Owners of locally designated landmarked properties are eligible for state 
and local tax credits for approved rehabilitations and repairs, and studies have found 
that historic preservation adds to economic vitality and tourism.  Exterior changes to 
individually landmarked buildings require a Landmark Alteration Certificate, issued 
by the Community Planning and Sustainability Department at no charge.  The 
additional review process for landmarked buildings may, however, add time and 
design expense to a project.  
 

• Environmental: The preservation of historic buildings is inherently sustainable. 
Owners of individually landmarked buildings are encouraged to reuse and repair as 
much of the original building as possible when making exterior alterations, thereby 
reducing the amount of building material waste deposited in landfills.  City staff can 
assist architects, contractors and homeowners with design and material selections and 
sources that are environmentally friendly.  Also, the Historic Preservation website 
provides information on improving the energy efficiency of older buildings. 

 
• Social:  The Historic Preservation Ordinance was adopted to “…enhance property 

values, stabilize neighborhoods, promote tourist trade and interest, and foster 
knowledge of the city’s living heritage.”  Section 9-11-1(a), B.R.C., 1981.  The 
primary beneficiaries of historic designation are the property owners of a historic 
landmark and adjacent neighbors, who are ensured that the character of the immediate 
area will be protected through the design review process.  The greater community 
also benefits from the preservation of the community’s character and history.  

 
OTHER IMPACTS 

• Fiscal:  The designation of individual historic landmarks is an anticipated and 
ongoing function of the Historic Preservation Program.   

 
• Staff Time: This designation application is within the staff work plan. 

 
LANDMARKS BOARD ACTION 
On August 6, 2014 the Landmarks Board voted 4-0 to recommend to City Council that the 
building at 1029 Broadway Street be designated as a local historic landmark, finding that it 

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 2Packet Page 172



meets the standards for individual landmark designations in sections 9-11-1 and 9-11-2, 
B.R.C. 1981, and is consistent with the criteria specified in section 9-11-5(c), B.R.C. 1981. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 20, 2014 the city received an application from the Evans Scholars foundation for 
an individual landmark designation of the property at 1029 Broadway Street. A Site Review 
application for the project was approved on Jan. 8, 2015. Plans for rehabilitation of the 
building and construction of an addition were reviewed and approved by the Landmarks 
Design Review Committee in January 2015.  
  

 
Figure 1. Location Map, 1029 Broadway. 

 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
The property at 1029 Broadway Street is located on a 12,596 square foot polygon-shaped lot 
at southeast corner of 15th St. and Broadway. An alley runs along the east edge of the 
property. It is located in the potential University Hill Historic District. 

 

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 3Packet Page 173



 
Figure 2. Northeast corner of 1029 Broadway Street, 2014.  

The two and a half story building was constructed in 1918 and is an example of Dutch 
Colonial Revival architecture, reflected in its gambrel roof, pedimented dormers, and evenly 
spaced windows. The building has an off-center entrance with a stone stoop and wrought iron 
balustrade. Two sets of three double-hung windows flank each side of the entrance. Double 
hung windows with stone sills are evenly placed on the rest of the facade. Seven pedimented 
dormers are located on the north face of the roof and feature one-over-one light windows 
along the façade. One-story additions are located on the east and west elevations. The west 
addition was constructed prior to 1931 and appears to have been a porch that was later 
enclosed. It is constructed of similar stone as the original building and features similar stone 
lintels and banding. The east extension was constructed in 1953 and incorporated a stone 
rubble wall that extends from the building’s foundation. The east addition is clad in 
sandstone and features three aluminum clad windows. The building has a stone foundation 
and stone chimneys.  
 
The 1991 Historic Building Inventory Form indicates that the building has gone through 
moderate changes. The entrance originally had a pedimented hood supported by columns, 
and the stoop has been altered. The form also indicated that a balustrade is missing on the 
second story balcony on the northern extension. The original divided-light windows have 
been replaced with double-hung windows. The Historic Building Inventory Form indicates 
that the building may be eligible for local landmark designation.  
  

 

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 4Packet Page 174



 
Figure 3: 1029 Broadway Street, North Face, Tax Assessor Card photograph c.1949. 

 
This property was originally addressed as 1500 South Broadway and first appears on 
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps in 1931. The street address changed to 1029 Broadway in 
1943. The tax assessor card indicates that the east extension was added in 1953.   
  

 
 

 
Figure 4. 1931 Sanborn map of 1500 (later 1029) S. Broadway Street. 

  
Robert Urquhart bought the property in 1894 from the Denver & Boulder Land Investment 
Co. In 1911, the property was purchased by Hattie M. Swaisgood. Hattie worked at Turnure-
Swaisgood Shoe Co., and was married to William, a Boulder Post Office employee. They 
lived at 946 Portland Place. See Attachment C: Deed and Directory Research.  
 
In 1916, Hattie sold the property to the Beta Kappa Association. At this time, the address of 
the property was 1500 South Broadway. It is first listed in 1918, which coincides with the 
date of construction of the building listed on the Tax Assessor Card. The building was 
constructed for the Beta Kappa chapter of the Phi Gamma Delta fraternity. 

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 5Packet Page 175



 
The Beta Kappa society was organized at the University of Colorado in 1912, and they 
moved into the house in 1918. The fraternity published a periodical called, The Mile High 
Fiji, and in the November 12th, 1930 issue is an article titled, “Medieval English Designing 
Throughout Lower Floors Lends Distinctive Tone.” The article includes a detailed 
description of the interior and exterior of the building and references the architect of the 
building as “Mr. Fisher.” Documentation located at the Denver Public Library reveals that 
the Fisher & Fisher firm in Denver carried out the pre-1931 alterations of the building 
 

 
Figure 5. Photograph of interior of 1029 Broadway Street, 1930. 

 
The Beta Kappa Association owned the house until 1968, for a total of 50 years. Many 
members were noted for being varsity football players, and during the mid 60s, the building 
quartered the Women’s Reserve of the United States Naval Reserves. The fraternity’s history 
in the house also included a death. Norman Bessee, a freshman at the University, died when a 
fire broke out in the house in 1944.   

 

 
Figure  6. View of 1029 Broadway Street, “Women’s Reserve USNR Quarters,” c. 1965. 

  

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 6Packet Page 176



In 1968, the Evans Scholars Foundation purchased the property. Created in 1929 by 
legendary golfer Chick Evans, Jr., the foundation provides college scholarships to golf 
caddies. In 1940, the Evans Scholar foundation established its first chapter house at 
Northwestern University. Today, there are a total of 14 chapter houses at universities across 
the United States. When received, the scholarship provides full tuition and housing. The 
recipients are selected based on their caddie record, academic achievement, and financial 
need. At the Evans Scholarship Houses, the students live and work together, elect their own 
officers, and participate often in community service and in university programs.  
 
The Evans Scholars Foundation continues to own the building today. They have been careful 
stewards of the building for over 40 years. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Criteria for Review 
Section 9-11-6(b), B.R.C. 1981, specifies that during the review for an application for local 
landmark designation, the council must consider “whether the designation meets the purposes 
and standards in subsection 9-11-1(a) and section 9-11-2, “City Council May Designate or 
Amend Landmarks and Historic Districts,” B.R.C. 1981, in balance with the goals and 
policies of the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan” and provides that the City Council 
“shall approve by ordinance, modify and approve by ordinance, or disapprove the proposed 
designation.” 
 
Historic, Architectural, and Environmental Significance 
Staff finds that the proposed application to landmark 1029 Broadway will protect, enhance, 
and perpetuate a property reminiscent of a past era important in local history and preserve an 
important example of Boulder’s historic architecture. Staff considers the application to meet 
the historic criteria for individual landmark designation as outlined below: 
 
HISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE 
Summary:  The house at 1029 Broadway Street is considered to have historic significance under 
criteria 1, 3, and 4.  
 

1. Date of Construction: 1918  
Elaboration: The house first appears in the city directories in 1918, two years after the 
property was purchased by the Beta Kappa Association. The Tax Assessor card also gives 
1918 as the date of construction. 

 
2. Association with Persons or Events: None observed.  
 
3. Development of the Community: The Beta Kappa chapter of Phi Gamma Delta, 

Evan Scholars Foundation.  
Elaboration: This building is associated with the development of University Hill 
through the establishment of fraternity and sorority houses there and the long-term 
stewardship by the Evans Scholars Foundation.  

 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 7Packet Page 177



4. Recognition by Authorities: The 1991 Historic Building Inventory Form identifies 
the building as associated with the development of University Hill and representative 
of the Dutch Colonial Revival style. The 2005 Cultural Resource Re-evaluation Form 
identifies the building as being potentially eligible for local landmark designation.  

 
ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE 
Summary:  The house at 1029 Broadway Street is considered to have architectural 
significance under criteria 1. 
 

1. Recognized Period or Style: Dutch Colonial Revival  
Elaboration:  The house is an example of the Dutch Colonial Revival Style, as 
reflected in its gambrel roof, pedimented dormers, and evenly spaced windows. The 
stone rubble walls of the building make it a visual landmark in the neighborhood. 

2. Architect or Builder of Prominence: Unknown.  
 

3. Artistic Merit: None observed. 
 
      4.  Example of the Uncommon: None observed 

 
5. Indigenous Qualities: Native stone  

Elaboration:  The building is constructed of uncoursed, stone walls.   
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL SIGNIFICANCE 
Summary:  The house at 1029 Broadway Street is considered to have environmental 
significance under criteria 2, 3 and 5.   
 

1. Site Characteristics: None observed. 
 

2. Compatibility with Site: Historic character  
Elaboration: The house retains its historic relationship to its lot and the adjacent 
University Hill neighborhood and the University of Colorado campus.  
 

3. Geographic Importance: Familiar visual feature  
Elaboration:  This house is prominently located on the southwest corner of 
Broadway and 15th Streets. The house serves as a strong visual landmark within the 
University Hill neighborhood. 

 
4. Environmental Appropriateness: None observed. 
 
5. Area Integrity: University Hill  

Elaboration: The property is located within the boundaries of the potential 
University Hill Residential Historic District and a potential National Historic District.  
 

 
 

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 8Packet Page 178



OPTIONS 
 
The City Council may approve, modify or not approve the proposed ordinance.   
 
Approved By: 
 
_____________________ 
Jane S. Brautigam, 
City Manager   
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A: Ordinance No. 8037 
B: Sections 9-11-1 and 9-11-2, “Purposes and Intent,” B.R.C., 1981 
C: Significance Criteria for individual landmarks  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 5B    Page 9Packet Page 179



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

 
ORDINANCE  NO. 8037 

 
AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE BUILDING AND THE 
PROPERTY AT 1029 BROADWAY., CITY OF BOULDER, 
COLORADO, ALSO KNOWN AS THE EVANS SCHOLARS 
HOUSE, A LANDMARK UNDER CHAPTER 9-11, “HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION” B.R.C. 1981, AND SETTING FORTH 
DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO: 

 Section l. The council enacts this ordinance pursuant to its authority under Chapter 9-11, 

“Historic Preservation,” B.R.C. 1981, to designate as a landmark a property having a special 

character or special historic, architectural, or aesthetic interest or value. 

Section 2. The council finds that: 1) on or about March 20, 2014, property owner Evans 

Scholars Foundation applied to the City of Boulder to designate the building and a portion of the 

property at said property as a landmark; 2) the Landmarks Board held a public hearing on the 

proposed designation on August 6, 2013; and 3) on August 6, 2013, the board recommended that 

the council approve the proposed designation. 

 Section 3. The council also finds that upon public notice required by law, the council held 

a public hearing on the proposed designation on September 19, 2014 and upon the basis of the 

presentations at that hearing finds that the building and the property at 1029 Broadway does 

possess a special character and special historic, architectural, or aesthetic interest or value 

warranting its designation as a landmark. 

Section 4. The characteristics of the subject property that justify its designation as a landmark 

are: 1) its historic significance is relevant to its construction in 1918, its association with the 

Evans Scholars Foundation and the Beta Kappa chapter of Phi Gamma Delta, who each owned 

 

Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8037

Agenda Item 5B    Page 10Packet Page 180



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

the property for nearly 50 years; and 2) its architectural significance indicative of the Dutch 

Colonial Revival Style, evidenced in its gambrel roof, pedimented dormers, and evenly spaced 

windows, and; 3) its environmental significance for its location within the potential University 

Hill Residential Historic District.  

 Section 5. The council further finds that the foregoing landmark designation is necessary 

to promote the public health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the city. 

 Section 6. There is hereby created as a landmark the building and property located at 

1029 Broadway, also known as the Evans Scholars House, whose legal landmark boundary is 

identical to the boundary of the legal lots upon which it sits: 

LOTS 1-6 BLK 1 UNIVERSITY PLACE, BOULDER, BOULDER COUNTY 
 
as depicted in the proposed landmark boundary map, attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

 
Section 7. The council directs that the department of Community Planning and 

Sustainability give prompt notice of this designation to the property owner and cause a copy of 

this ordinance to be recorded as described in Subsection 9-11-6(d), B.R.C. 1981. 

Section 8. The council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title only 

and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for public 

inspection and acquisition. 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE 
ONLY THIS 17TH DAY OF MARCH, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

       Mayor 

 

Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8037

Agenda Item 5B    Page 11Packet Page 181



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk  
 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY THIS 21ST DAY OF APRIL, 2015. 

 
     
    
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk  
 
 

 
 

Exhibit A – Landmark Boundary Map for 1029 Broadway.  
 

LOTS 1-6 BLK 1 UNIVERSITY PLACE, BOULDER, BOULDER COUNTY 
 

 

Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8037

Agenda Item 5B    Page 12Packet Page 182



9-11-1 & 9-11-2 Purposes and Intent 
Boulder Revised Code, 1981 

 
9-11-1: Purpose and Legislative Intent states: 

(a) The purpose of this chapter is to promote the public health, safety, and welfare by protecting, 
enhancing, and perpetuating buildings, sites, and areas of the city reminiscent of past eras, 
events, and persons important in local, state, or national history or providing significant 
examples of architectural styles of the past. It is also the purpose of this chapter to develop 
and maintain appropriate settings and environments for such buildings, sites, and areas to 
enhance property values, stabilize neighborhoods, promote tourist trade and interest, and 
foster knowledge of the city’s living heritage. 

(b) The City Council does not intend by this chapter to preserve every old building in the city but 
instead to draw a reasonable balance between private property rights and the public interest in 
preserving the city’s cultural, historic, and architectural heritage by ensuring that demolition 
of buildings and structures important to that heritage will be carefully weighed with other 
alternatives and that alterations to such buildings and structures and new construction will 
respect the character of each such setting, not by imitating surrounding structures, but by 
being compatible with them. 

(c) The City Council intends that in reviewing applications for alterations to and new 
construction on landmarks or structures in a historic district, the Landmarks Board shall 
follow relevant city policies, including, without limitation, energy-efficient design, access for 
the disabled and creative approaches to renovation.  

 

9-11-2:  City Council may Designate or Amend Landmarks and Historic Districts states: 

(a) Pursuant to the procedures in this chapter the City Council may by ordinance: 
(1) Designate as a landmark an individual building or other feature or an 

integrated group of structures or features on a single lot or site having a 
special character and historical, architectural, or aesthetic interest or value 
and designate a landmark site for each landmark; 

(2) Designate as a historic district a contiguous area containing a number of 
sites, buildings, structures or features having a special character and 
historical, architectural, or aesthetic interest or value and constituting a 
distinct section of the city;  

(3) Designate as a discontiguous historic district a collection of sites, buildings, 
structures, or features which are contained in two or more geographically 
separate areas,  having a special character and historical, architectural, or 
aesthetic interest or value that are united together by historical, architectural, 
or aesthetic characteristics; and 

(4) Amend designations to add features or property to or from the site or district. 

(b) Upon designation, the property included in any such designation is subject to all the 
requirements of this code and other ordinances of the city. 

  
 

 

Attachment B - Landmarks Purposes and Intent

Agenda Item 5B    Page 13Packet Page 183



 
SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA 

Individual Landmark 
September 1975 

 
On September 6, 1975, the City Council adopted Ordinance #4000 providing procedures 

for the designation of Landmarks and Historic Districts in the City of Boulder.   The purpose of 
the ordinance is the preservation of the City’s permitted cultural, historic, and architectural 
heritage.  The Landmarks Board is permitted by the ordinance to adopt rules and regulations as it 
deems necessary for its own organization and procedures.  The following Significance Criteria 
have been adopted by the board to help evaluate each potential designation in a consistent and 
equitable manner.   
 
Historic Significance 
 

The place (building, site, area) should show character, interest or value as part of the 
development, heritage, or cultural characteristics of the community, state or nation; be the 
site of a historic, or prehistoric event that had an effect upon society; or exemplify the 
cultural, political, economic, or social heritage of the community. 
 
Date of Construction: This area of consideration places particular importance on the age 
of the structure. 

Association with Historical Persons or Events: This association could be national, state, 
or local. 

Distinction in the Development of the Community of Boulder: This is most applicable to 
an institution (religious, educational, civic, etc) or business structure, though in some 
cases residences might qualify.  It stresses the importance of preserving those places 
which demonstrate the growth during different time spans in the history of Boulder, in 
order to maintain an awareness of our cultural, economic, social or political heritage. 

Recognition by Authorities: If it is recognized by Historic Boulder, Inc. the Boulder 
Historical Society, local historians (Barker, Crossen, Frink, Gladden, Paddock, 
Schooland, etc), State Historical Society, The Improvement of Boulder, Colorado by F.L. 
Olmsted, or others in published form as having historic interest and value.  

Other, if applicable.  

Architectural Significance 
 

The place should embody those distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type 
specimen, a good example of the common; be the work of an architect or master builder, 
known nationally, state-wide, or locally, and perhaps whose work has influenced later 
development; contain elements of architectural design, detail, materials or craftsmanship 
which represent a significant innovation; or be a fine example of the uncommon. 

 

Attachment C - Significance Criteria for Individual Landmarks

Agenda Item 5B    Page 14Packet Page 184



Recognized Period/Style: It should exemplify specific elements of an architectural 
period/style, i.e.: Victorian, Revival styles, such as described by Historic American 
Building Survey Criteria, Gingerbread Age (Maass), 76 Boulder Homes (Barkar), The 
History of Architectural Style (Marcus/Wiffin), Architecture in San Francisco (Gebhard 
et al), History of Architecture (Fletcher), Architecture/Colorado, and any other published 
source of universal or local analysis of a style. 

Architect or Builder of Prominence: A good example of the work of an architect or 
builder who is recognized for expertise in his field nationally, state-wide, or locally. 

Artistic Merit: A skillful integration of design, material, and color which is of excellent 
visual quality and/or demonstrates superior craftsmanship. 

Example of the Uncommon: Elements of architectural design, details, or craftsmanship 
that are representative of a significant innovation. 

Indigenous Qualities: A style or material that is particularly associated with the Boulder 
area. 

Other, if applicable. 

Environmental Significance 
 

The place should enhance the variety, interest, and sense of identity of the community by 
the protection of the unique natural and man-made environment. 
 
Site Characteristics: It should be of high quality in terms of planned or natural vegetation. 

Compatibility with Site: Consideration will be given to scale, massing placement, or 
other qualities of design with respect to its site. 

Geographic Importance: Due to its unique location or singular physical characteristics, it 
represents an established and familiar visual feature of the community. 

Environmental Appropriateness: The surroundings are complementary and/or it is 
situated in a manner particularly suited to its function. 

Area Integrity: Places which provide historical, architectural, or environmental 
importance and continuity of an existing condition, although taken singularly or out of 
context might not qualify under other criteria. 

 
 

Attachment C - Significance Criteria for Individual Landmarks

Agenda Item 5B    Page 15Packet Page 185



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: April 21, 2015 

 
AGENDA TITLE 
Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8039 related to the 
annexation of the following properties and right-of-way in the Old Tale Road neighborhood 
with the initial zoning of Residential-Rural 2 (RR-2): 
 
Applicants/Owners: 
1165 Old Tale Rd., Macinko Exempt Trust 
1193 Old Tale Rd., Cynthia and Charles Anderson 
1228 Old Tale Rd., Steven Erickson 
1245 Old Tale Rd., Harold and Sherlynne Bruff 
1270 Old Tale Rd., Jeffrey and Wendy Mortner 
1275 Old Tale Rd., Thomas and Barbara Corson 
1305 Old Tale Rd., Monty Moran 
1315 Old Tale Rd., Joanne M Simenson 
1325 Old Tale Rd., Sarah Kingdom 
1402 Old Tale Rd., Kellie Masterson-Praeger 
1409 Old Tale Rd., William Dick III 
1412 Old Tale Rd., John and Penelope Bennett 
1435 Old Tale Rd., Joyce Peterson Thurmer 
1436 Old Tale Rd., Thomas Perry 
1457 Old Tale Rd., Cameron Bradley Peterson 
1483 Old Tale Rd., Jason and Jennifer Kiefer 
1507 Old Tale Rd., Richard and Jeanie Leddon 
1510 Old Tale Rd., Mark and Mary Beth Vellequette 
1533 Old Tale Rd., Laurie Duncan-McWethy 
1566 Old Tale Rd., Stewart and Robin Elliott 
 
PRESENTER/S  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Maureen Rait, Executive Director for Public Works, Flood Recovery Manager 
David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
Chris Meschuk, Flood Recovery Coordinator – Community Services 
Bev Johnson, Annexation Project Manager 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 1Packet Page 186



 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
On Mar. 17, 2015, City Council considered on first reading an ordinance (Attachment A) 
relating to the annexation and initial zoning of 20 properties and right-of-way in the Old Tale 
Road neighborhood.  (See vicinity map in Figure 1 below.) Old Tale Road and a portion of 
McSorley Lane are also included in the proposed annexation.  The purpose of this item is for 
City Council to hold a public hearing and consider the second reading and adoption of Ordinance 
No. 8039.   
 
The purpose of the annexation is to allow for the construction of a grant funded city water main 
in the street and connection of 20 properties to city water services as a part of the community’s 
flood recovery efforts.  The total annexation area is 22.40 acres (see Annexation Map in 
Attachment B). The subject properties range from approximately 0.66 to 1.20 acres in size and 
are each developed with a single family detached home.  The list of properties, landowners and 
property sizes is in Attachment E and the annexation agreements are in Attachment C.  Upon 
annexation, none of the properties within the neighborhood will have subdivision potential 
based on the proposed zoning designation of RR-2. 
   
Staff analysis found that the proposed annexations are consistent with state law and the 
requested zoning of Residential Rural – 2 (RR-2) for the subject properties are consistent with 
city policies and with the zoning of neighboring city lots surrounding the properties. 
 

Figure 1:  General Location of Subject Properties (circled in red) 

 
 
Responses to first reading questions can be found in the Analysis Section. 
 
 
 
 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 2Packet Page 187



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 8039 to annex Old Tale Road, a portion of McSorley Lane and 
the following properties with initial zoning designation of Residential-Rural 2 (RR-2) pursuant 
to land use code subsection 9-5-2(c)(1)(A), B.R.C. 1981:  

 
1165 Old Tale Rd., 1193 Old Tale Rd., 1228 Old Tale Rd., 1245 Old Tale Rd., 1270 Old Tale 
Rd., 1275 Old Tale Rd., 1305 Old Tale Rd., 1315 Old Tale Rd., 1325 Old Tale Rd., 1402 Old 
Tale Rd., 1409 Old Tale Rd., 1412 Old Tale Rd., 1435 Old Tale Rd., 1436 Old Tale Rd., 1457 
Old Tale Rd., 1483 Old Tale Rd., 1507 Old Tale Rd., 1510 Old Tale Rd., 1533 Old Tale Rd., and 
1566 Old Tale Rd. 

 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 
• Economic:  It is in the interest of the city to annex properties along the edge of the city to 

improve efficiency in city service provision.   
• Environmental:  There are environmental benefits of having properties connected to city 

water and sewer, specifically, the avoidance of the potential environmental and public health 
impacts of contaminated wells, as was experienced in the 2013 flood.  

• Social:  The provision of safe and reliable treated water is a benefit to every community 
member and the general public.  The 2013 flood caused significant impacts to some property 
owners with wells and septic systems, and through this grant funded annexation safe and 
reliable drinking water will become available to the neighborhood.   

 
OTHER IMPACTS 
 
• Fiscal: City sewer services are existing and available to properties along Old Tale Road. The 

annexation is enabling the city to construct water services in the road with grant money 
obtained from the State of Colorado.  City property taxes will be paid once the properties are 
annexed.  Landowners of 11 properties will finance payment of city utility connection fees 
through a 10-year payment plan offered by the city.   

• Staff time:  The annexation application has been processed through a special offer to 
landowners where the administrative fees were waived ($91,580 in total). General fund 
revenues have been allocated to provide the staff time to process the applications.   

 
 
BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
 
Annexations are subject to a city Planning Board recommendation prior to City Council action. 
The Planning Board hearing was held on Feb. 19, 2015.  Ten residents along Old Tale Rd. spoke 
at the public hearing. The landowners expressed concerns primarily about the following issues: 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 3Packet Page 188



 
1. The limited ability and time to negotiate the provisions of the annexation agreement;  
2. The city’s request for a 60 foot. flood maintenance easement and what it may be used for; 
3. The requirement that landowners pay the Stormwater and Flood Management Utility 

Plant Investment Fee (PIF);  
4. The potential draw-down of the water table from the construction of a water main;   
5. The triggers for future connection to city water under Option C; and 
6. The lack of clarity in the annexation agreement over what the grant is paying for. 

 
On a motion by A. Brockett, seconded by L. Payton, the Planning Board voted 5-0 (J. Putnam 
absent, J. Gerstle recused) to recommend to City Council approval of the proposed annexation 
of 22 properties (Note:  two properties have dropped out of the annexation since the board 
hearing) and right-of-way in the Old Tale Road neighborhood subject to the annexation 
conditions in the respective annexation agreements attached to the staff memorandum and 
approval of an initial zoning for the properties of RR-2 with the following additions: 

• Change the trigger for connecting the city water if people take Option C, to not be 
triggered by sale or inheritance of the property, 

• Change the trigger for wet plumbing fixtures to be equivalent to six or more residential 
fixture units per the plumbing fixture unit calculation worksheet that the city already 
uses. 

• Modify the language to clarify what expenses are being paid by the grant and clarify 
exact expenses being paid by the homeowners, and 

• Clarify that the flood easement does not allow a bike trail. 
 
In addition, the Planning Board requested that staff share analysis of the water main engineering 
with the neighbors and provide materials about the recourse for any property damage to the flood 
control easement. 
 
Staff revised the agreements to address some of the recommendations, which can be found in the 
analysis section of this memorandum.  A key issue for City Council is whether the staff 
recommended triggers for connection to city water under Option C are appropriate. 
 
The staff memorandum to the board and the audio of the proceedings related to the board’s 
review are available on the city website at the following link:   
https://bouldercolorado.gov/boards-commissions/planning-board 
 
PUBLIC FEEDBACK 
 
All notice requirements of section 9-4-3, “Public Notice Requirements,” B.R.C. 1981 have been 
met. Compliance with these requirements included public notice in the form of written 
notification mailed to all property owners within 600 feet of the subject property, and a sign 
posted in the neighborhood for at least 10 days prior to the public hearing as required.  
 
 
 
 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 4Packet Page 189

https://bouldercolorado.gov/boards-commissions/planning-board


BACKGROUND 
 
A.  Timeline 
After the September 2013 flood, the city was contacted by a number of Area II property owners 
outside the city limits with concerns about their wells and on-site wastewater systems (OWS) 
and interest in connecting to the city water and wastewater systems.  As part of the Dec. 3, 2013 
City Council briefing on the flood, staff presented options for helping impacted residents by 
facilitating annexation and connection to city utilities.  City Council expressed support for 
helping flood-impacted property owners by creating incentives for annexation but expressed the 
need for landowners to pay their share and did not want annexation expenses to result in 
deferment of other needed city projects.  The detailed package of incentives was presented to 
council through an information packet in March 2014, and included: 

1. Waive the application fees 
2. Waive all Development Excise Taxes and any Housing Excise Taxes 
3. Offer 10 year financing through the city for all costs 
4. Require a 60-foot easement along either side of the creek for flood control and 

conveyance 
5. Applicants pay all applicable permit fees, tap fees, inspection fees, and plant investment 

fees (PIF’s).   
 
In Spring 2014, staff moved forward with the project by making an offer to approximately 160 
property owners in Area II enclaves and neighborhoods adjacent to the city, including the Old 
Tale Rd neighborhood.  Seven properties were annexed as part of the first two phases of the 
project.  The first phase included annexation of two single family residential properties by 
emergency ordinance on Aug. 5, 2014.  The second phase included annexation of five residential 
properties on Jan. 20, 2015. 
 
In August 2014, the city received a grant from the Colorado Department of Public Health and 
Environment (CDPHE) for $1,000,000 to construct water and sewer infrastructure in a 
residential neighborhood currently lacking complete utility infrastructure.  The grant funds were 
authorized by the state legislature (House Bill 1002) to assist communities in recovering from the 
September 2013 flood.  Under the conditions of the grant, the city must obligate this money by 
June 2015, and expend all funds by June 2016.   
 
Property owners with infrastructure needs in three neighborhoods (Githens Acres, Old Tale Road 
and Cherryvale/Baseline Road) were sent letters informing them of the city’s grant award and the 
potential cost savings for annexation.  The letter to homeowners included a survey to determine 
how many property owners would be interested in annexing if the cost was reduced due to the 
new grant funding.  Based on the survey results, the Old Tale Road neighborhood was selected 
for the annexation project.  Staff presented these results and the intention of working with the 
Old Tale Rd. neighborhood at the Oct. 28 Flood Recovery Update to City Council.  
 
B.  Neighborhood Context 
The Old Tale Road neighborhood is located along the eastern edge of the city limits to the east of 
the Flatirons Golf Course and immediately south of Arapahoe Road (see Figure 2 below).  The 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 5Packet Page 190

https://documents.bouldercolorado.gov/WebLink8/0/doc/125015/Electronic.aspx


neighborhood is part of the Canterbury Acres & McSorley’s Subdivisions and most of the homes 
were originally built in the 1960s and early 1970s. 
 

 
Figure 2:  Old Tale Road Neighborhood Context (City limits in yellow) 

 
All of the properties along Old Tale Road are in the South Boulder Creek floodplain.  During the 
September 2013 flood, water spilled from South Boulder Creek into the neighborhood, impacting 
both homes and property.  Water inundation from the flood impacted every property in the 
neighborhood (see Figure 3 below).  A small portion of Old Tale Road was damaged by flood 
waters.  In October 2013 the city began receiving phone calls from Old Tale Road residents 
inquiring about annexation and connection to city water due to contamination of their drinking 
wells.  Of the 28 parcels along Old Tale Road, 23 filed for FEMA Individual Assistance or a 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) claim.   
 

 

Figure 3:  Extent of Flooding in the Old Tale Road Neighborhood 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 6Packet Page 191



A neighborhood meeting was held with several of the Old Tale Road landowners in November 
2014.  At that meeting, staff presented sample annexation agreements and reviewed the 
conditions of annexation with the attendees.  The process and schedule for annexation was also 
presented and discussed, as was a breakdown of costs by property.  Staff explained that in order 
to meet the conditions of the grant to obligate the funds by June 2015, the process would have to 
move quickly and there would be little time for extensive negotiation over the terms of 
annexation.  The terms of annexation that were discussed with the neighborhood included the 
following: 
 

1. The cost of the water main construction and road improvements would be funded by the 
grant money. 

2. The city will waive the annexation administration fee (approximately $6,580 per 
property) and finance all of the costs related to water and wastewater utility connection 
(10-year financing plan).   

3. Landowners choosing to annex have three options for connection to utilities:   
a. Connect to city utilities shortly after annexation and pay the city back in full; 
b. Connect to city utilities shortly after annexation and finance all connection costs 

through the city; or  
c. Annex now and defer connection and payment to some future time.   

4. The city will lock in all the fees at 2014 rates for landowners choosing Options A or B if 
the process remains on schedule. 

5. The city will waive all Development Excise Taxes (cost varies depending on age of the 
original new home) and Housing Excise Taxes ($0.23 per house square foot).  

6. Landowners will pay all costs associated with water and sewer (where applicable) 
connection as well as stormwater and flood plant investment fees. 

7. Landowners will petition for inclusion in the NCWCD. 
8. Property owners along creeks will be required to dedicate a flood maintenance easement 

of 60 feet along either side of the centerline of a major drainageway.  
9. Property owners with ditches or ditch laterals on their property will be required to 

dedicate easements along either side of the centerline of the lateral for the purpose of 
maintaining ditch water conveyance. 

 
C. Existing Conditions 
The annexation includes 20 properties, all of Old Tale Road and a portion of McSorley Lane, 
(see Figure 2 above).  Nine properties along Old Tale Road are not part of the annexation. One 
property adjacent to Arapahoe Road is already in the city limits. Six properties are remaining in 
the county and will become enclaves as a result of the neighborhood annexation.  In addition, a 
property located on Cherryvale Road at Arapahoe Road will also become an enclave as a result 
of the annexation.  
 
The subject properties are all designated as Very Low Density Residential on the Boulder Valley 
Comprehensive Plan land use map.  Very Low Density Residential land use allows for up to two 
residential units per acre.  The proposed zoning of RR-2 (which allows one dwelling unit per 
30,000 sq. ft. of property) is consistent with this land use designation. 
 
Several parcels in the annexation area have an Open Space–Other land use designation over a 
portion of the parcel in or near the South Boulder Creek drainageway (see Figure 4 below). This 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 7Packet Page 192



designation was applied to areas where the city and county would like to preserve one or more 
open space functions of the property through various preservation methods, including but not 
limited to intergovernmental agreements, dedications or acquisitions.  In the case of the subject 
properties, the OS-O designation is intended to help preserve the natural qualities of the 
drainageway and to prevent further encroachment on the wetlands and floodplain.  The city’s 
land use goals with this designation will be met through the dedication of flood maintenance 
easements on these properties.  Once in the city, these properties will also be subject to the city’s 
floodplain and wetland protection ordinances. 
 

 
Figure 4:  Old Tale Road – Land Use Designations 

 
Current Utilities 
A city sewer main currently exists in Old Tale Road and 18 of the 20 subject properties are 
currently connected to the city’s wastewater system.  The landowner of 1228 Old Tale Rd. will 
connect to city sewer as well as city water, however, the landowner of 1435 Old Tale Rd. is 
deferring connection to both utilities until a later time.  The proposed annexation agreement 
requires property owners selecting Option C to connect when they either sell or redevelop the 
property. 
   
Floodplain Conditions & Proposed Easement 
All of the properties and most of the homes are within the 100-year floodplain of South Boulder 
Creek (see Figure 5 below).  1270 Old Tale Rd. is within the conveyance flood zone and 1228 
Old Tale Rd. is located in the high hazard flood zone of the creek.  Once in the city, the property 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 8Packet Page 193



owner of 1228 Old Tale Rd. will be unable to expand, enlarge, or make substantial modifications 
to his home (Boulder Revised Code, Subsection 9-3-5d). 
 
Seven properties are affected by the city’s flood control and maintenance easement requirement 
because of their proximity to South Boulder Creek. The owners of these properties have all 
agreed to dedicate a flood maintenance easement over the portion of their property within 60 feet 
of either side of the centerline of the creek.  Under the conditions of the easement agreement, 
existing structures currently located within the easement area will be allowed to remain on the 
property, however, the landowner may not add new structures within the easement area. 
 
 

 
Figure 5:  Old Tale Road Neighborhood – Flood Zone Designations 

 
Future Development Potential 
All of the parcels are developed as a single family residential home.  None of the subject 
properties have the potential to subdivide or add additional units under the proposed zoning of 
RR-2. 
 
Ditches and Ditch Rights 
None of the subject properties have associated ditch rights.  However, the Howard Ditch lateral, 
which feeds some of the irrigation ponds on the Flatirons Golf Course runs through two of the 
properties (see Figure 6 below).  The landowners have agreed to dedicate a 12 foot wide 
easement along the lateral on their properties. 
 

High Hazard 
flood zone 

100-year  
flood zone 

Conveyance  
Flood zone 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 9Packet Page 194



 
Figure 6:  Howard Ditch Lateral Location 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
A. First Reading Questions from Council: 

1. Question:  What latitude does the city have at annexation to allow exceptions to code 
such as numbers of OAUs within an area, allowance of non-standard lots, etc.? 
 
Answer: Owner Accessory Units (OAU), Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU), and Limited 
Accessory Units (LAU) are a conditionally allowed use in RR-2.  While each of these 
accessory units have different requirements, they are all outlined and regulated through 
Title 9 (Land Use Code) of the Boulder Revised Code.  Exempting or modifying portions 
of the Land Use Code is possible through annexation.  If council is interested in 
considering changing the separation requirements of OAU’s or modifying lot sizes, staff 
recommends that it should be addressed through a standard code change process 
applicable citywide, rather than through an annexation ordinance that is very specific to a 
geographic area.   

 
B. Issues Raised at Planning Board 

At the Feb.19, 2015 Planning Board hearing, a number of concerns were raised by some of 
the Old Tale Road landowners.  The following is a summary of these concerns and the 
board’s recommendations: 

 
1. Flood Control and Maintenance Easement:  The annexation package includes a 

requirement that landowners along creeks dedicate an easement over the portion of their 
property within 60 feet of the centerline of the creek for the purpose of flood maintenance 
and mitigation.  This easement only allows the city to access the area to perform 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 10Packet Page 195



maintenance work for drainage conveyance and control of flood waters, and the 
installation and maintenance of improvements.  The property owner still owns the land 
within the easement area, and can still utilize the area for certain uses and maintain 
existing accessory structures.   
 
Some property owners in the Old Tale Road neighborhood expressed concern at the 
Planning Board meeting that the easement is either unnecessary or too wide. Concerns 
also were raised by a few landowners that the flood easement could be used for the 
construction of a public multi-use trail.  
 
In typical annexations, the city requires an easement dedication for the portion of the site 
within the flood conveyance zone, which requires detailed mapping and surveying.  For 
large group annexations, the city has streamlined the process to obtain an easement for 
the minimum distance that staff believes is necessary, which is 60 feet from the creek.  
This is what was included in the flood related annexation package in March 2014.  For 
the properties in Old Tale Road, the distance of the conveyance zone from the centerline 
of the creek is 90-120 feet, and is almost touching or does include the primary structures.   
 
Dedication of a flood maintenance easement is a standard policy of annexations and is 
referenced in the city’s annexation guidelines for residential properties (Attachment F).  
Sixty feet is the standard distance from the creek centerline and has been applied to 
special annexation packages including the Gapter Road subdivision annexation (2009) 
and the previous seven flood related annexations.   
 
Planning Board did not recommend a change to the 60 foot width requirement, however, 
it did recommend that the flood maintenance easement include a provision that expressly 
states that it does not convey a right for the construction of a public multi-use trail.  This 
change has been incorporated into the agreements included in Attachment C. 
 

2. Stormwater and Flood Management Utility PIF:  The Stormwater and Flood 
Management Utility PIF is a property owner’s contribution to an enterprise fund that pays 
for larger stormwater and flood capital improvements that benefit the entire community.  
The utility was created in 1973 to protect the community from damage from stormwater 
runoff and floods by requiring that landowners pay for a share of the cost of the facilities 
necessary to lessen the impact of runoff and floods throughout the city.  Property owners 
annexing to the city are required by code (Section 11-5-11(a), B.R.C. 1981) to contribute 
to that capital fund as is required of all new development in the city.  While the Old Tale 
neighborhood is already developed, it is considered new development when annexing 
into the city The PIF charged is to recoup the cost of the capacity needed to serve the 
development.  The Planning Board did not make any recommendation regarding this 
issue.   
 
The structure of the Stormwater and Flood fund is based on a “buy-in” approach, similar 
to the water and wastewater utility funds, where all residents of the city contribute to the 
fund regardless of the specific design of the neighborhood streets or location of their 
properties in the flood plain.  PIFs are a form of an impact fee, and the foundation for the 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 11Packet Page 196



fee is consistent with the Colorado Revised Statutes for charging impact fees.   
 
The “buy-in” approach uses methodology based on existing infrastructure asset 
valuations.  The assumption behind that approach is that everyone in the community 
benefits from and, therefore, should contribute to the utility.  The fee is based on a city-
wide system.  It is not based on individual drainage basins.  In other words, a property 
owner situated outside of the floodplain along a street without curb or gutter is still 
benefiting from the flood management system in that: 1) They can get around town 
during most flood events, 2) they can enjoy access to large stretches of the creeks and 
drainageways improved as greenways, 3) the risk of damage to their property from flood 
events is reduced through flood maintenance activities in their particular watershed, and 
4) they have invested in a fund that may be used in the future to reduce high hazard flood 
risks on their individual properties or neighborhood, and 5) this allows for emergency 
providers to be able to generally continue to deliver services during a flooding event.   
 
The city has not waived Stormwater and Flood Management Utility PIFs in any 
annexation over the past two decades.  A waiver of the fees would impact the stormwater 
and flood utility and set a precedent for future annexations of already developed 
subdivisions with no development potential, and would pass the costs of the investment 
that these properties should make into the system onto the ratepayers of the system, and 
future properties at the time of annexation.    
 
In 2008, the city retained a consultant to update the PIFs, as significant investments had 
been made in the system since 2001, when the then existing fees were set.  The analysis 
used the same methodology as the previous studies, with the goals and objectives to 
ensure it was equitable, in alignment with the water budget rate structure, legally 
defensible, and easily administered and understood by the customer. 
 
On Feb. 17, 2009 City Council adopted Ord. 7643 setting new rates for Stormwater and 
Flood Management Utility PIFs.  The result was a significant increase in the impervious 
square foot fee, At that time, council expressed concern about the significant increase in 
the impervious square foot fee, and phased in the fee increase over a five year period. The 
phase in from the existing $1.17/sq. ft fee in 2009 has now increased to $2.06/sq. ft. in 
2014.     
 

3. Potential draw-down of the water table:  All of the residents along Old Tale Road will 
be able to retain the use of their wells for outdoor irrigation purposes.  Two landowners 
are choosing Option C and will not be hooking up to city water in the short term.  These 
two landowners will retain the use of their wells for domestic water use.  Concerns were 
raised by a few landowners that the construction of the new water main could lower the 
water table in the neighborhood and, consequently, impact their wells.  Residents 
requested that more assurance be given that the city will use a sufficient number of clay 
plugs along the water line to prevent impacts to their wells.  Planning Board did not 
make a recommendation on this matter but advised staff to share design information 
with the property owners throughout the design and construction process in order to 
allow open discussion of their concerns.  The design (including the number of clay 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 12Packet Page 197



plugs) will be based on the City of Boulder Design and Construction Standards, and 
recommendations of the design engineer.  The design documents were shared with the 
neighborhood via email.   
 

4. Triggers for connecting to city water (under Option C):  Under the terms of the proposed 
annexation agreement, landowners are able to choose from the following three options 
for connection to water and sewer: 

1. Option A:  Connect upon completion of the utility mains and pay costs in full 
2. Option B:  Connect upon completion of the utility mains and begin financing 

through the city 
3. Option C:  Defer connection and payment until sometime in the future. 

 
The annexation agreement presented to the Planning Board on Feb.19, 2015 specified 
that, under Option C, a landowner would be required to connect to the city water and/or 
sanitary sewer main when: 1) the on-site wastewater system on the property fails; 2) 
when the property is sold; or 3) at the time of redevelopment (meaning an increase in 
square footage to the existing structure or increase in the number of plumbing fixtures).  
Two of the 20 property owners are selecting Option C.  Concerns were raised by 
landowners at Planning Board about the stringent requirements for connection under this 
option.  Concerns were also raised about the meaning of the sale of property and if it 
includes inheritance by a member of the family. 
 
Planning Board recommended that the sale or inheritance of a property not be a trigger 
for connecting to city water.  The board also recommended that the trigger be changed to 
six or more new residential plumbing fixtures per the plumbing unit calculation 
worksheet that the city already uses.   
 
The city is offering an option to annex without connecting to water to accommodate 
landowners that can not afford the costs of connection at this time.  This is typically not 
an option available to properties annexing, but staff believes it draws a reasonable 
balance between allowing properties to annex and the financial needs of some residents, 
including those that are still completing or paying for flood repairs to their home.  
However, staff believes it is critical and reasonable to maintain the proposed triggers of 
property sale, addition of plumbing fixtures, and adding square footage.  The city and 
state are directly investing in providing the infrastructure and water to address a public 
health issue and assist people, and it is important to get people connected to infrastructure 
over time.  
 
Staff supports changes to Option C which clarify that inheritance of property does not 
trigger the connection requirement.  Changes were made to the annexation agreements 
(Attachment C) to clarify that, under Option C, “sale” of a property is defined as only 
when a transaction occurs for money or for other consideration and that an inheritance 
situation, name change on a deed, gift or transfer of a property to an LLC will not trigger 
the connection requirement.   
 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 13Packet Page 198



Staff also made a change in the annexation agreements to the definition of redevelopment 
to mean the addition of three or more plumbing fixtures.  This change would allow some 
minor improvements to a home, such as bar sinks, dishwashers, and even small 
bathrooms without triggering the connection requirements. 

  
5. Clarification on what expenses are being covered by the grant.  Planning Board made a 

recommendation to clarify in the annexation agreements, all the costs that the grant will 
cover (e.g. water main construction, road resurfacing, NCWCD fees).  This change is 
reflected in the agreements in Attachment C. 

 
C. Compliance with State Annexation Statutes and the Boulder Valley Comprehensive 

Plan 
Annexations must comply with the Municipal Annexation Act of 1965, section 31-12-101, 
et. seq., Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.).  At the city level, annexations are guided by the 
BVCP (Sections 1.18 and 1.24), which provides the land use framework and general 
annexation principles.   
 
In 2002, City Council endorsed a set of guidelines for negotiating annexation agreements 
with landowners of mostly developed residential properties in Area II (Attachment F).  The 
purpose of the guidelines was to clarify the city’s expectations and provide consistency in 
single family residential annexations.  The guidelines have been the primary reference for the 
city in these types of annexations over the past 14 years.   
 
Pertinent to the Old Tale Road neighborhood annexation, the guidelines state that the city has 
a strong desire to annex residential areas in Area II where there are potential environmental 
and health issues associated with well and septic systems.  Furthermore, the guidelines refine 
BVCP Policy 1.25 by specifically outlining which properties or neighborhoods will be asked 
to provide community benefit upon annexation and what form of community benefit may be 
requested by the city.  The guidelines and the BVCP specify that community benefit should 
only be applied to properties with additional development potential.  None of the properties 
along Old Tale Road have additional development potential, therefore, the property owners 
have not been asked to provide community benefit in the form of a contribution to the 
Housing Trust Fund. 

 

 
Staff has reviewed the annexation petitions for compliance with sections 31-12-104, 31-12-
105, 31-12-106, and 31-12-107 C.R.S., as applicable, and finds the applications are each 
consistent with the statutory requirements.  
 
All of the subject properties are developed with a single residential dwelling unit.  The 
annexation as proposed (see annexation map in Attachment B) meets the eligibility 
requirement of having at least 1/6 contiguity with the city limits. A community interest exists 
between the properties proposed for annexation and the City of Boulder. 
 

1. Is the proposed annexation consistent with state statutes pertaining to the 
annexation of a property into the City of Boulder? 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 14Packet Page 199



Consistent with state law, the landowners of more than 50 percent of the area to be annexed 
and more than 50 percent of the landowners of that area, excluding public streets, have 
petitioned to annex.  Each such petition was filed with the City Clerk.  None of the properties 
proposed to be annexed are included in another annexation proceeding involving a 
municipality other than the City of Boulder.   
 
Wastewater services are available to serve all of the properties (18 of the 20 properties are 
currently connected to city sewer).  Water services are currently not available.  Annexation of 
Old Tale Road, however, will enable the city to construct water infrastructure in the road and 
make those services available to all properties.     
 
None of the subject properties are in the municipal subdistrict of the NCWCD. Petitions for 
inclusion in the district and subdistrict have been filed with the NCWCD office. 

 
The subject properties would continue to be served by the Boulder Valley School District.  
 
Finally, these annexations do not have the effect of extending the municipal boundary more 
than three miles in any direction from any point of the City of Boulder’s boundary in any one 
year. 

 
 

 
Land Use Designation. The proposed zoning of RR-2 for the properties is consistent with 
the BVCP land use designation of Very Low Density Residential. 

 
BVCP Policies 
Annexation of land must be consistent with the following policies shown in bold italic, with 
consistency of the proposed annexation following: 

 
1.18 Growth Requirements. The overall effect of urban growth must add significant 
value to the community, improving quality of life. The city will require development 
and redevelopment as a whole to provide significant community benefits and to 
maintain or improve environmental quality as a precondition for further housing and 
community growth.  
 
The area to be annexed is substantially developed and the proposed zoning would not 
allow for subdivision or addition of dwelling units to the existing lots.  The community, 
environmental, and public health quality will be enhanced with the annexation of these 
properties, with the connection to city water services, and city sewer services for the two 
properties with on-site wastewater systems.   
 
1.24 Annexation.  The applicable policies (a, b, c and e) in regard to annexation to be 
pursued by the city are: 
 

2. Is the proposed annexation consistent with the Boulder Valley Comprehensive 
Plan? 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 15Packet Page 200



a) Annexation will be required before adequate facilities and services are furnished. 
 
Wastewater services are currently available to all the properties.  The proposed 
annexation will enable the city to construct water mains, and each property must be 
annexed before city water services will be furnished to each respective property. 
 
b) The city will actively pursue annexation of county enclaves, Area II properties along 
the western boundary, and other fully developed Area II properties. County enclave 
means an unincorporated area of land entirely contained within the outer boundary of 
the city. Terms of annexation will be based on the amount of development potential as 
described in (c), (d), and (e) of this policy. 
 
All properties are Area II properties that are fully developed. 
 
c) Annexation of existing substantially developed areas will be offered in a manner and 
on terms and conditions that respect existing lifestyles and densities. The city will 
expect these areas to be brought to city standards only where necessary to protect the 
health and safety of the residents of the subject area or of the city. The city, in 
developing annexation plans of reasonable cost, may phase new facilities and services. 
The county, which now has jurisdiction over these areas, will be a supportive partner 
with the city in annexation efforts to the extent the county supports the terms and 
conditions being proposed. 
 
The proposed zoning (RR-2) of the properties will reflect the existing development 
pattern most respective of the existing lifestyle and density of this neighborhood. Upon 
annexation, 18 of the 20 properties will connect to city water as per city standards and 
discontinue use of well for domestic water purposes.  The annexation agreement will 
allow continued use of well water for outdoor irrigation.  
 
Boulder County has supported the city in the annexation of this and other Area II 
neighborhoods.   
 
 e) Annexation of substantially developed properties that allows for some additional 
residential units or commercial square footage will be required to demonstrate 
community benefit commensurate with their impacts. Further, annexations that resolve 
an issue of public health without creating additional development impacts should be 
encouraged. 
 
All of the subject properties are fully developed and none will have additional 
development potential once annexed to the city. 

 
NEXT STEPS 
The construction bid for the infrastructure in Old Tale Rd. was opened on April 9, with bids 
ranging from $718,500 to $1,002,500.  Staff is currently contracting with the successful bidder, 
and a construction schedule will be established following the contract process, but is anticipated 
to be in the 3rd or 4th quarter of 2015.   

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 16Packet Page 201



 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Ordinance No. 8039 
B. Annexation Map 
C. Annexation Agreements 
D. Applicants’ Annexation Petition 
E. Property Information 
F. Guidelines for Annexation Agreements 

 
 

 

    
Agenda Item 5C    Page 17Packet Page 202



 

K:\pllr\o-8039-2300.doc   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 8039 
 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF BOULDER 
APPROXIMATELY 22.40 ACRES OF LAND GENERALLY 
LOCATED AT 1165, 1193, 1228, 1245, 1270, 1275, 1305, 1315, 1325, 
1402, 1409, 1412, 1435, 1436, 1457, 1483, 1507, 1510, 1533, AND 1566 
OLD TALE ROAD, ALONG WITH OLD TALE ROAD RIGHT-OF-
WAY AND MCSORLEY LANE RIGHT-OF-WAY, WITH AN INITIAL 
ZONING DESIGNATION OF RURAL RESIDENTIAL-2 (RR-2) AS 
DESCRIBED IN CHAPTER 9-5, “MODULAR ZONE SYSTEM,” 
B.R.C. 1981; AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP FORMING 
A PART OF SAID CHAPTER TO INCLUDE SAID PROPERTIES IN 
THE ABOVE-MENTIONED ZONING DISTRICT AND SETTING 
FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 

 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO FINDS THAT: 

 A. Macinko Exempt Trust dated October 4, 1989, Cynthia B. Anderson and Charles 

W. Anderson, Steven Erickson, Harold H. Bruff and Sherlynne Guest Bruff, Jeffrey P. Mortner 

and Wendy E. Mortner, Thomas E. Corson and Barbara A. Corson, Montgomery F. Moran, 

Joanne M. Simenson, Sarah R. Kingdom, Kellie Masterson-Praeger, William J. Dick III, John K. 

Bennett and Penelope A. Bennett, Joyce Peterson Thurmer, Thomas J. Perry, Cameron Bradley 

Peterson, Jason Kiefer and Jennifer Kiefer, Richard L. Leddon III and Jeanie C. Leddon, Mark 

C. Vellequette and Mary Beth Vellequette, Laurie Duncan-McWethy, and Stewart Gregory 

Elliott and Robin M. Elliott are the owners of the parcels and the County of Boulder is the owner 

of the Old Tale Road right-of-way and McSorley Lane right-of-way to be annexed herein, all of 

which comprise the real property more particularly described on Exhibit A (the “Property”) 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

 B. The owners of 100% of the area proposed for annexation, excluding streets and 

alleys, have petitioned for annexation of the Property with an initial zoning designation of Rural 

Residential – 2 (RR-2); the Property is not embraced within any city, city and county, or 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 18Packet Page 203



 

K:\pllr\o-8039-2300.doc   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

incorporated town; and the Property abuts and is contiguous to the City of Boulder by at least 

one-sixth of its perimeter.  

 C. A community of interest exists between the Property proposed for annexation and 

the City of Boulder, the Property is urban or will be urbanized in the near future, and the 

Property is integrated or capable of being integrated with the City of Boulder.  

 D. The Property does not include any area included in another annexation proceeding 

involving a city other than the City of Boulder.  

 E. This annexation will not result in the detachment of the area from one school 

district and the attachment of same to another school district.  

 F. This annexation will not have the effect of extending the City of Boulder’s 

boundaries any further than three miles from any point of the existing city boundaries.  

 G. The Property does not include any area which is the same or substantially the 

same area in which an election for annexation to the city was held within twelve months 

preceding the filing of the above Petitions. 

 H. The Planning Board duly proposed that the Property be annexed to the City of 

Boulder and that the zoning district map adopted by the City Council be amended to zone and 

include the Property in the Rural Residential - 2 (RR-2) zoning district, as provide in Chapter 9-

5, “Modular Zone System,” B.R.C. 1981.  

 I. A public hearing on the proposed annexation and initial zoning of the Property 

annexed and zoned hereby was duly held before the City Council on April 21, 2015. 

 J. The initial zoning designation of Rural Residential – 2 (RR-2) for the Property is 

consistent with the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan and bears a substantial relation to and 

will enhance the general welfare of the Property and of the residents of the City of Boulder. 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 19Packet Page 204



 

K:\pllr\o-8039-2300.doc   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 K. The City Council has jurisdiction and legal authority to annex and zone the 

Property. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO, THAT: 

 Section 1.  The territory more particularly described in Exhibit A is hereby annexed to 

and included within the corporate boundaries of the City of Boulder. 

 Section 2.  Chapter 9-5, “Modular Zone System,” Boulder Revised Code, 1981, and the 

zoning district map forming a part thereof, be, and the same hereby are, amended to include the 

Property within the Rural Residential - 2 (RR-2) zoning district. 

 Section 3.  The City Council adopts the recitals in this ordinance and incorporates them 

herein by this reference. 

 Section 4.  The City Council approves any variations or modifications to the Boulder 

Revised Code or other City ordinances that are in the agreements associated with this 

annexation. 

Section 5.  The City Council authorizes the city manager to implement the terms of the 

agreements associated with this annexation. 

 Section 6.  The annexation and zoning of the Property is necessary for the protection of 

the public health, safety, and welfare. 

 Section 7.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and directs the city clerk to make available in its office copies of the text of the within 

ordinance for public inspection and acquisition. 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 20Packet Page 205



 

K:\pllr\o-8039-2300.doc   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

  INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this 17th day of March 2015. 

       _________________________________  
       Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________  
City Clerk 
 
 
 READ ON SECOND READING, ADOPTED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 21st day of April 2015. 

 
        
       __________________________________ 
       Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________  
City Clerk 
 
 
 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 21Packet Page 206



 

K:\pllr\o-8039-2300.doc   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

EXHIBIT A (Page 1 of 6) – LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 
 
Legal Description for 1165 Old Tale Road (Macinko Exempt Trust dated October 4, 1989) 
Lot 8, McSorley’s Subdivision,  
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1193 Old Tale Road (Cynthia B. Anderson and Charles W. Anderson) 
Lot 7 and the South 15 feet of Lot 6, McSorley’s Subdivision,  
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1228 Old Tale Road (Steven Erickson) 
Lot 12, McSorley’s Subdivision, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1245 Old Tale Road (Harold H. Bruff and Sherlynne Guest Bruff) 
Lot 5, McSorley’s Subdivision, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1270 Old Tale Road (Jeffrey P. Mortner and Wendy E. Mortner) 
Lot 11, McSorley’s Subdivision, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1275 Old Tale Road (Thomas E. Corson and Barbara A. Corson) 
Lot 4, McSorley’s Subdivision, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1305 Old Tale Road (Montgomery F. Moran) 
Lot 3, McSorley’s Subdivision, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1315 Old Tale Road (Joanne M. Simenson) 
Lot 2, McSorley’s Subdivision, together with that portion of the vacated Old Tale Road lying 
West of the line between the Northeast corner of Lot 1 and the Southeast corner of Lot 2 and 
South of the North line of Lot 2 extended, County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 22Packet Page 207



 

K:\pllr\o-8039-2300.doc   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

EXHIBIT A (Page 2 of 6) – LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 
 

Legal Description for 1325 Old Tale Road (Sarah R. Kingdom) 
Lot 1, McSorley’s Subdivision, together with that portion of the vacated Old Tale Road 
adjoining the Southeast portion of said Lot 1, as vested by Vacation Ordinance recorded March 
16, 1966 on Film 562 as Reception No. 809925, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1402 Old Tale Road (Kellie Masterson-Praeger) 
Lot 9, Canterbury Acres, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description 1409 Old Tale Road (William J. Dick III) 
Lot 1, Canterbury Acres, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1412 Old Tale Road (John K. Bennett and Penelope A. Bennett) 
Lot 10A, Canterbury Acres, Replat “A”, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1435 Old Tale Road (Joyce Peterson Thurmer) 
Lot 2, Canterbury Acres, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1436 Old Tale Road (Thomas J. Perry) 
Lot 11B, Canterbury Acres, Replat “B”, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1457 Old Tale Road (Cameron Bradley Peterson) 
Lot 3, Canterbury Acres, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1483 Old Tale Road (Jason Kiefer and Jennifer Kiefer) 
Lot 4, Canterbury Acres, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 23Packet Page 208



 

K:\pllr\o-8039-2300.doc   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

EXHIBIT A (Page 3 of 6) – LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 
 
Legal Description for 1507 Old Tale Road (Richard L. Leddon III and Jeanie C. Leddon) 
Lot 5, Canterbury Acres, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1510 Old Tale Road (Mark C. Vellequette and Mary Beth Vellequette) 
Lot 14, Canterbury Acres, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1533 Old Tale Road (Laurie Duncan-McWethy) 
Lot 6, Canterbury Acres, 
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 
 
 
Legal Description for 1566 Old Tale Road (Stewart Gregory Elliott and Robin M. Elliott) 
Lot 16, Canterbury Acres,  
County of Boulder, State of Colorado. 

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 24Packet Page 209



EXHIBIT A (Page 4 of 6) - ANNEXATION MAP

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 25Packet Page 210



EXHIBIT A (Page 5 of 6) - ANNEXATION MAP

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 26Packet Page 211



EXHIBIT A (Page 6 of 6) - ANNEXATION MAP

Attachment A - Proposed Ordinance No. 8039

Agenda Item 5C    Page 27Packet Page 212



Attachment B - Annexation Map

Agenda Item 5C    Page 28Packet Page 213



Attachment B - Annexation Map

Agenda Item 5C    Page 29Packet Page 214



Attachment B - Annexation Map

Agenda Item 5C    Page 30Packet Page 215



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 31Packet Page 216



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 32Packet Page 217



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 33Packet Page 218



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 34Packet Page 219



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 35Packet Page 220



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 36Packet Page 221



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 37Packet Page 222



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 38Packet Page 223



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 39Packet Page 224



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 40Packet Page 225



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 41Packet Page 226



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 42Packet Page 227



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 43Packet Page 228



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 44Packet Page 229



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 45Packet Page 230



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 46Packet Page 231



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 47Packet Page 232



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 48Packet Page 233



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 49Packet Page 234



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 50Packet Page 235



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 51Packet Page 236



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 52Packet Page 237



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 53Packet Page 238



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 54Packet Page 239



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 55Packet Page 240



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 56Packet Page 241



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 57Packet Page 242



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 58Packet Page 243



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 59Packet Page 244



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 60Packet Page 245



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 61Packet Page 246



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 62Packet Page 247



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 63Packet Page 248



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 64Packet Page 249



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 65Packet Page 250



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 66Packet Page 251



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 67Packet Page 252



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 68Packet Page 253



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 69Packet Page 254



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 70Packet Page 255



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 71Packet Page 256



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 72Packet Page 257



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 73Packet Page 258



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 74Packet Page 259



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 75Packet Page 260



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 76Packet Page 261



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 77Packet Page 262



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 78Packet Page 263



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 79Packet Page 264



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 80Packet Page 265



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 81Packet Page 266



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 82Packet Page 267



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 83Packet Page 268



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 84Packet Page 269



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 85Packet Page 270



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 86Packet Page 271



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 87Packet Page 272



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 88Packet Page 273



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 89Packet Page 274



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 90Packet Page 275



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 91Packet Page 276



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 92Packet Page 277



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 93Packet Page 278



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 94Packet Page 279



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 95Packet Page 280



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 96Packet Page 281



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 97Packet Page 282



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 98Packet Page 283



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 99Packet Page 284



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 100Packet Page 285



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 101Packet Page 286



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 102Packet Page 287



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 103Packet Page 288



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 104Packet Page 289



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 105Packet Page 290



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 106Packet Page 291



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 107Packet Page 292



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 108Packet Page 293



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 109Packet Page 294



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 110Packet Page 295



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 111Packet Page 296



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 112Packet Page 297



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 113Packet Page 298



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 114Packet Page 299



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 115Packet Page 300



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 116Packet Page 301



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 117Packet Page 302



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 118Packet Page 303



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 119Packet Page 304



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 120Packet Page 305



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 121Packet Page 306



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 122Packet Page 307



For Administrative Purposes Only
Property Address: 1305 Old Tale Road
Grantor: Montgomery F. Moran
Grantee: City of Boulder. Colorado
Case#: LUR2OI5-00004

ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

This Annexation Agreement (“Agreement”), made this

______

day of

________________

2015, by and between the City of Boulder, a Colorado home rule city (the “City”), and
Montgomery F. Moran (the “Applicant”). The City and the Applicant are referred to as the
“Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Parties recite the following facts related to the annexation of the
property described in this Agreement to the City of Boulder:

A. The Applicant is the owner of the property generally known as 1305 Old Tale
Road and more particularly described as Lot 3, McSorley’s Subdivision, County of Boulder,
State of Colorado (the “Property”).

B. The Applicant is interested in obtaining approval from the City of the annexation
of the Property in order to provide adequate urban services to the Property.

C. The Parties anticipate that annexation with an initial zoning designation of
Residential - Rural 2 (RR-2) is consistent with the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan.

D. The Old Tale Road Area Map is the area shown on Exhibit A (Old Tale Road
Area”). The annexation of the Property is a part of a larger annexation of properties within the
Old Tale Road Area. This annexation of the Property is being coordinated with the annexation
of other properties in the Old Tale Road Area.

E. In order to assist the Applicant in annexing into the City, the City is providing an
annexation package that includes a method for financing the water and sewer connection fees (to
the extent applicable) and a waiver of certain fees and taxes which includes the annexation
application fee and the development excise tax and the housing excise tax.

F. The Applicant and the City intend to maintain and preserve the rural character of
the neighborhood. The City agrees to construct a water main within Old Tale Road and
McSorley Road (“Water Main”). After the installation of this Water Main, the City will rebuild
Old Tale Road and McSorley Road where the City installed the Water Main according to “Rural
Residential Street Standards,” set forth in Section 2.09(D)(3) of the City of Boulder Design and
Construction Standards, with the exception of sidewalks, drainage swales and streetlights which
will not be installed as a condition of this annexation. The Applicant will not have any
obligation to construct or finance the construction of the Water Main or reconstruct or finance
the reconstruction of Old Tale Road and MeSorley Road as a condition of this Agreement.

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 123Packet Page 308



G. The City is interested in ensuring that certain terms and conditions of annexation
be met by the Applicant in order to protect the public health, safety, and welfare and prevent the
placement of an unreasonable burden on the physical, social, economic, or environmental
resources of the City.

COVENANTS

NOW. THEREFORE, inconsideration of the recitals, promises, and covenants herein set
forth, and other good and valuable consideration herein receipted for, the Parties agree as
follows:

I. Definitions. The Parties agree that terms used in this Agreement will have the following
meanings:

“Redevelopment” shall be defined as the subdivision of a property to create a new lot,
issuance of a building permit for a new or replacement dwelling unit, issuance of a
building permit for additional square footage to the existing structure, or the addition of
three or more plumbing fixtures.

“Sale” or “Sold” shall be defined as a transfer of title of ownership for money or other
consideration.

2. Requirements Prior to First Readin of the Annexation Ordinance. Prior to the scheduling
of first reading of the annexation ordinance, the Applicant shall do the following, unless
otherwise approved by the City Manager:

A. Annexation Agreement. The Applicant will sign this Agreement.

B. Title Work. The Applicant will provide the City with title work current to within
30 days of signing this Agreement.

C. Written Descriptions. The Applicant shall provide a written description of any
nonconforming uses and/or nonstandard buildings existing on each Property, if
any.

D. Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District (‘NCWCD’). If the Property is
not already included in the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District and
the Boulder Municipal Subdistrict of the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy
District, the Applicant will file the applicable applications for inclusion. The City
agrees to pay out of the Natural Disaster Grant Funding, the processing fee and
facilities fee due for the application of inclusion in the applicable districts.

2

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 124Packet Page 309



3. Connection Requirements. Prior to connection to the Water Main. the Applicant shall:

A. Submit an application to connect to the Water Main that meets the requirements
ofChapters Il-I. B.R.C. 1981.

B. Pay all applicable fees and charges associated with a service line connection to
the Water Main, including but not limited to right-of way permit fees and the fees
listed in Subparagraph 3.D below.

C. Construct the individual service line that will connect the Applicants existing
residence to the Water Main.

D. Pay any fees and assessments, including but not limited to the following:

Water Tap, Meter, Permit and Inspection Fee $409.68
Water HF $16,807.00
Stormwater and Flood PIF $22,713.56
Total $39,930.24

4. Payment Options and Requirements for Fees. Taxes, and Public Improvement Costs. The
Applicant selects Option #A set forth below.

A. Option #A: Payment in Full. The Applicant shall connect to the Water Main
within 180 days after the City’s final acceptance of the Water Main and shall
comply with the terms of, and pay the costs and fees described in. Paragraph 3
above. The City Manager may. in her discretion, approve a different time for
connection to the Water Main provided the Applicant demonstrates reasonable
diligence to comply with the 180-day deadline and good cause for the extension.

B. Option #B: Payment Plan. The Applicant shall connect to the Water Main within
180 days after the City’s final acceptance of the Water Main and shall comply
with the terms of Paragraph 3 above except that the costs, fees and any
assessments described in Paragraph 3 shall be paid in accordance with the terms
of the following payment plan:

i. Prior to connection to the Water Main, the Applicant shall execute a
Promissory Note and a Deed of Trust securing said Note and encumbering the
Applicant’s Property in the principal amount to cover the amounts set forth in
Paragraph 3 above. The Note will have a simple interest rate of 3.25 percent per
annum, payable in 10 annual installments of principal and interest beginning at
the time of connection to the Water System.

3

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 125Packet Page 310



The City Manager may, in her discretion, approve a different time for connection
to the Water Main provided the Applicant demonstrates reasonable diligence to
comply with the 180-day deadline and good cause for the extension. The City
Manager, in her discretion, may approve for good cause a different time for
payment of the first of the 10 annual installments of principal and interest.

C. Option #C: Future Connection. The Applicant shall connect to the Water Main at
a time later than what is specified in Option #A and #B above, but no later than I)
the time the Applicants Property is Sold; or 2) at the time of Redevelopment of
Applicants Property, whichever occurs first. At the respective time and prior to
the Applicants connection to the Water Main, the Applicant will pay the costs
and fees described in Paragraph 3 above based on the then applicable fee
schedule.

5. City of Boulder Desian and Construction Standards. Any other public improvements that
are required to be constructed by the terms of this Agreement shall be constructed in
accordance with the requirements of the City of Boulder Design and Construction
Standards applicable at the time of construction, and shall be subject to the review.
approval and acceptance of the City Manager.

6. Use of Existina Wells. The City agrees not to prohibit the Applicant from using existing
wells for irrigation purposes, even if the Property is served by the City’s water utility.
Under no circumstances may existing wells be used for domestic water purposes once the
Applicant has connected to the City’s water utility. No person is allowed to make any
cross connections between a well and the City’s municipal water utility. The Parties agree
that there shall not he any type of connection between any well and the City water system
serving the Property.

7. Applicant Responsible for Letmi Disconnection of On-site Wastewater System. If the
Applicant decides to continue to use an existing on-site wastewater system, the Applicant
agrees that the Applicant will connect to the adjacent sanitary sewer main, in accordance
with Section 11-2-9. B.R.C. 1981, upon any declaration by Boulder County Public Health
to cease and desist using the on-site wastewater system, or other declaration that the on-
site wastewater system constitutes a threat to the public health. Currently, under Boulder
County Public Health Department policy, all on-site wastewater systems must be
permitted and approved by 2023. At that time, any resident still using an on-site
wastewater system must either have their system permitted and approved, or connect to
the adjacent sanitary sewer main. At the time of any disconnection of the on-site
wastewater system and connection to the City’s sanitary sewer main, the Applicant is
required to abandon the existing on-site wastewater system in accordance with Boulder
County Public Health and State of Colorado regulations.

8. Historic Drainaae. The Applicant agrees to convey drainage from the Property in an
historic manner that does not materially and adversely affect abutting properties.

4

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 126Packet Page 311



9. Ditch Company Approval. If the Property is abutting an existing irrigation ditch or lateral,
the Applicant agrees not to relocate, modify, or alter the ditch or lateral until and unless
written approval is received from the appropriate ditch company.

10. Existing Nonstandard Buildings and/or Nonconforming Uses. Existing, nonstandard
buildings and/or nonconforming uses will be allowed to continue to be occupied and
operated in the City of Boulder. Only those nonstandard buildings and/or nonconforming
uses for which the Applicant has provided a written description that is received by the City
in accordance with Paragraph 2.C above wilL be considered legal. The Applicant and the
City agree that this section shall not be construed to permit the Property to constitute a
nuisance or to cause a hazard under the City’s life safety codes.

II. Removal of Wood Roof Coverings. If any structures on the Property have wood roof
coverings, the Applicant agrees to submit a building permit application within two years of
the effective date of the annexation ordinance to remove or cause to be removed all wood
roof covering materials and to replace the removed roofing with approved roof covering
materials which conform to the City of Boulder Building Code. Said removal and
replacement of the wood roof covering materials must be completed within three years of
the effective date of the annexation ordinance.

12. New Construction. All new construction commenced on the Property after annexation
will comply with all City of Boulder laws, taxes, and fees, except as modified by this
Agreement.

13. Waiver of Vested Rights. The AppLicant hereby waives any statutory vested rights that
may have accrued under County jurisdiction that have not been perfected as common law
vested rights. The Applicant acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement may be
construed as a waiver of the City’s powers to zone and regulate land uses for the benefit of
the citizens and residents of Boulder.

14. Dedications. The Applicant acknowledges that any dedications and public improvements
required herein with this annexation are rationally related and reasonably proportionate to
the projected impact of the development of the Property as set forth in this Agreement.

15. Original Instruments. Prior to the first reading of the annexation ordinance, the Applicant
shall provide an original of this Agreement signed by Applicant, along with any
instruments required in this Agreement. The City agrees to hold such documents until
after final legislative action on the annexation of this Property has occurred. Final
legislative action by the City Council shall constitute acceptance of such documents by the
City. In the event that the City does not annex the Property, the City agrees that it will
return all such original documents to the Applicant. The Applicant agrees that he will not
encumber or in any way take any action that compromises the quality of such documents
while they are being held by the City.

16. No Encumbrances. The Applicant agrees that between the time of signing this Agreement
and the time when final legislative action on the annexation of this Property has occurred,

5

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 127Packet Page 312



the Applicant shall neither convey ownership nor further encumber the Applicant’s
Property. without the express approval from the City. Prior to the recording of this
Agreement with the Boulder County Clerk and Recorder, Applicant agrees not to execute
transactional documents encumbering the Property or otherwise affecting title to the
Property without first notifying the City and submitting revised title work within five (5)
working days of any such transaction.

17. Breach of Agreement. In the event the Applicant breaches or fails to perform any required
action, or fails to pay any fee specified, under this Agreement or under any document that
may also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement, the Applicant
acknowledges that the City may take all reasonable actions to cure the breach, including
but not limited to the filing of an action for specific performance of the obligations herein
described. In the event the Applicant fails to pay any monies due under this Agreement or
under any document that may also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement
or fails to perform any affirmative obligation hereunder or under any document that may
also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement, the Applicant agrees that the
City may collect the monies due in the manner provided for in Section 2-2-12, B.R.C.
1981. as amended, as if the said monies were due and owing pursuant to a duly adopted
ordinance of the City or may perform the obligation on behalf of the Applicant and collect
its costs in the manner herein provided. The Applicant agrees to waive any rights he may
have under Section 3 1-20-105, C.R.S.. based on the City’s lack of an enabling ordinance
authorizing collection of this specific debt, or acknowledges that the adoption of the
annexation ordinance is such enabling ordinance.

18. Failure to Annex. This Agreement and any document executed pursuant hereto shall be
null and void and of no consequence in the event that the Property is not annexed into the
City.

19. Future Interests. This Agreement and the covenants set forth herein shall run with the
land and be binding upon the Applicant, the Applicant’s heirs, successors, and assigns and
all persons who may hereafter acquire an interest in the Property, or any part thereof. If it
shall be determined that this Agreement contains an interest in land, that interest shall
vest, if at all, within the lives of the undersigned plus 20 years and 364 days.

20. RiEht to Withdraw. The Applicant retains the right to withdraw from this Agreement up
until the time that final legislative action has been taken on the ordinance that will cause the
Property to be annexed into the City. The final legislative action will be the vote of the City
Council after the final reading of the annexation ordinance. The Applicant’s right to
withdraw shall terminate upon the City Council’s final legislative action approving the
annexation. In the event that the Applicant withdraws from this Agreement in the manner
described above, this Agreement shall be null and void and shall have no effect regarding
the Applicant. The City agrees, within 30 days of a request by the Applicant after a
withdrawal, to return all previously submitted fees, application, and easement and/or rights
of way dedication documents which the Applicant submitted pursuant to this Agreement to
the City. The Parties agree that costs submitted to the City to cover survey work shall not be
returned to the Applicant.

6

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 128Packet Page 313



21. 2014 Fee Schedule. Ifthe Applicant agrees to connect to the City Water Main within 180
days from the effective date of the ordinance pursuant to Option A or B in Paragraph 4.A.
and 4.B. of this Agreement, the Parties agree that the fees and assessments required in
Paragraph 3.D of this Agreement for said initial connection be assessed at the rates
applicable on December31, 2014.

EXECUTED on the day and year first above written.

Applicant:

By
Mo g ry . Moran

STATE OF COLORADO )

COUNTY OF BOULDER

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, a Notary Public. this

_____

day
of JtL&-t-t_& .2015, by Montgomery F. Moran.

Witness my hand and offlci,aI seI.
My commission expires:ff& (RO1

[SEAL]
Fl Nota6 Public

STATE OF COLORADO
NOTARY ID 19944013708

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 912012018

7

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 129Packet Page 314



ATTEST:

City Clerk

Approved as to form:

City Attorney’s Office

Date:

__________________

EXHIBITS:
A: Old Tale Area Map

8

CITY OF BOULDER:

By:
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 130Packet Page 315



-.

1315 OLD]
TALE AD)

I3O5 OLD’
TALE PD

1245 OLDJ
TALE PDJ

1122 i:0LD
ITALERP

Proposed Old Tale Rd. Annexation

• Proposed Annexation Area

City Limits (Existing)

[1325 OLD
TALE AD

1275 OLD
TALE RDI

1193 OLD]
ONEBD]

‘11650LD]
TALE PD)

Ownership Parcels

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 131Packet Page 316



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 132Packet Page 317



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 133Packet Page 318



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 134Packet Page 319



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 135Packet Page 320



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 136Packet Page 321



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 137Packet Page 322



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 138Packet Page 323



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 139Packet Page 324



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 140Packet Page 325



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 141Packet Page 326



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 142Packet Page 327



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 143Packet Page 328



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 144Packet Page 329



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 145Packet Page 330



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 146Packet Page 331



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 147Packet Page 332



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 148Packet Page 333



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 149Packet Page 334



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 150Packet Page 335



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 151Packet Page 336



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 152Packet Page 337



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 153Packet Page 338



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 154Packet Page 339



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 155Packet Page 340



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 156Packet Page 341



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 157Packet Page 342



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 158Packet Page 343



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 159Packet Page 344



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 160Packet Page 345



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 161Packet Page 346



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 162Packet Page 347



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 163Packet Page 348



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 164Packet Page 349



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 165Packet Page 350



1 
 

For Administrative Purposes Only 
Property Address: 1409 Old Tale Road 
Grantor: William J. Dick III 
Grantee: City of Boulder, Colorado 
Case#:  LUR2015-00004  

 
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

 
This Annexation Agreement (“Agreement”), made this _____ day of ______________, 

2015, by and between the City of Boulder, a Colorado home rule city (the “City”), and William 
J. Dick III (the “Applicant”).  The City and the Applicant are referred to as the “Parties.” 

 
 RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties recite the following facts related to the annexation of the 

property described in this Agreement to the City of Boulder: 
 

A. The Applicant is the owner of the property generally known as 1409 Old Tale 
Road and more particularly described as Lot 1, Canterbury Acres, County of Boulder, State of 
Colorado (the “Property”).  
 

B. The Applicant is interested in obtaining approval from the City of the annexation 
of the Property in order to provide adequate urban services to the Property. 

 
C. The Parties anticipate that annexation with an initial zoning designation of 

Residential - Rural 2 (RR-2) is consistent with the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan. 
 

D. The Old Tale Road Area Map is the area shown on Exhibit A (“Old Tale Road 
Area”).  The annexation of the Property is a part of a larger annexation of properties within the 
Old Tale Road Area.  This annexation of the Property is being coordinated with the annexation 
of other properties in the Old Tale Road Area. 

 
E. In order to assist the Applicant in annexing into the City, the City is providing an 

annexation package that includes a method for financing the water and sewer connection fees (to 
the extent applicable) and a waiver of certain fees and taxes which includes the annexation 
application fee and the development excise tax and the housing excise tax. 

 
F. The Applicant and the City intend to maintain and preserve the rural character of 

the neighborhood.  The City agrees to construct a water main within Old Tale Road and 
McSorley Road (“Water Main”).  After the installation of this Water Main, the City will rebuild 
Old Tale Road and McSorley Road where the City installed the Water Main according to “Rural 
Residential Street Standards,” set forth in Section 2.09(D)(3) of the City of Boulder Design and 

Construction Standards, with the exception of sidewalks, drainage swales and streetlights which 
will not be installed as a condition of this annexation.  The Applicant will not have any 
obligation to construct or finance the construction of the Water Main or reconstruct or finance 
the reconstruction of Old Tale Road and McSorley Road as a condition of this Agreement. 
 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 166Packet Page 351



2 
 

G. The City is interested in ensuring that certain terms and conditions of annexation 
be met by the Applicant in order to protect the public health, safety, and welfare and prevent the 
placement of an unreasonable burden on the physical, social, economic, or environmental 
resources of the City. 
 

COVENANTS 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, promises, and covenants herein set  
forth, and other good and valuable consideration herein receipted for, the Parties agree as 
follows: 
 

1. Definitions.  The Parties agree that terms used in this Agreement will have the following 
meanings: 
 
“Redevelopment” shall be defined as the subdivision of a property to create a new lot, 
issuance of a building permit for a new or replacement dwelling unit, issuance of a 
building permit for additional square footage to the existing structure, or the addition of 
three or more plumbing fixtures. 
 
“Sale” or “Sold” shall be defined as a transfer of title of ownership for money or other 
consideration. 

 
2. Requirements Prior to First Reading of the Annexation Ordinance.  Prior to the scheduling 

of first reading of the annexation ordinance, the Applicant shall do the following, unless 
otherwise approved by the City Manager: 

 
A. Annexation Agreement.  The Applicant will sign this Agreement.  

 
B. Title Work.  The Applicant will provide the City with title work current to within 

30 days of signing this Agreement.  
 

C. Written Descriptions.  The Applicant shall provide a written description of any 
nonconforming uses and/or nonstandard buildings existing on each Property, if 
any.  
 

D. Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District (“NCWCD”).  If the Property is 
not already included in the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District and 
the Boulder Municipal Subdistrict of the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy 
District, the Applicant will file the applicable applications for inclusion.  The City 
agrees to pay out of the Natural Disaster Grant Funding, the processing fee and 
facilities fee due for the application of inclusion in the applicable districts. 
 

E. Notice of Intent to Connect to City’s Water Utility.  If the Applicant chooses 
Option #C as described under Paragraph 4 below, the Applicant shall submit, on a 
form acceptable to the City Manager, a notice of intent to connect to the City’s 
water utility at a later time.  Such notice will be recorded with the Boulder County 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 167Packet Page 352



3 
 

Clerk and Recorder’s Office in order to put subsequent purchasers on notice of 
the requirement to later connect to the City’s utility systems, certifying as follows:  

 
The notice will include that the Property is subject to certain terms and 
conditions of this Annexation Agreement, and that said obligations will 
run with the land.   

 
3. Connection Requirements. Prior to connection to the Water Main, the Applicant shall: 

 
A. Submit an application to connect to the Water Main that meets the requirements 

of Chapters 11-1, B.R.C. 1981. 

B. Pay all applicable fees and charges associated with a service line connection to 
the Water Main, including but not limited to right-of way permit fees and the fees 
listed in Subparagraph 3.D below.  

C. Construct the individual service line that will connect the Applicant's existing 
residence to the Water Main. 

D. Pay any fees and assessments, including but not limited to the following: 

Water Tap, Meter, Permit and Inspection Fee  $409.68 
Water PIF $16,807.00 
Stormwater and Flood PIF $24,211.18 
Total $41,427.86 

 
4. Payment Options and Requirements for Fees, Taxes, and Public Improvement Costs.  The 

Applicant selects Option #C set forth below.  
 

A. Option #A:  Payment in Full.  The Applicant shall connect to the Water Main 
within 180 days after the City’s final acceptance of the Water Main and shall 
comply with the terms of, and pay the costs and fees described in, Paragraph 3 
above. The City Manager may, in her discretion, approve a different time for 
connection to the Water Main provided the Applicant demonstrates reasonable 
diligence to comply with the 180-day deadline and good cause for the extension. 

 
B. Option #B:  Payment Plan.  The Applicant shall connect to the Water Main within 

180 days after the City’s final acceptance of the Water Main and shall comply 
with the terms of Paragraph 3 above except that the costs, fees and any 
assessments described in Paragraph 3 shall be paid in accordance with the terms 
of the following payment plan: 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 168Packet Page 353



4 
 

 
i. Prior to connection to the Water Main, the Applicant shall execute a 
Promissory Note and a Deed of Trust securing said Note and encumbering the 
Applicant's Property in the principal amount to cover the amounts set forth in 
Paragraph 3 above.  The Note will have a simple interest rate of 3.25 percent per 
annum, payable in 10 annual installments of principal and interest beginning at 
the time of connection to the Water System. 

 
The City Manager may, in her discretion, approve a different time for connection 
to the Water Main provided the Applicant demonstrates reasonable diligence to 
comply with the 180-day deadline and good cause for the extension.  The City 
Manager, in her discretion, may approve for good cause a different time for 
payment of the first of the 10 annual installments of principal and interest. 

 
C. Option #C:  Future Connection. The Applicant shall connect to the Water Main at 

a time later than what is specified in Option #A and #B above, but no later than 1) 
the time of Applicant’s Property is Sold; 2) at the time of Redevelopment of 
Applicant's Property, whichever occurs first.  At the respective time and prior to 
the Applicant's connection to the Water Main, the Applicant will pay the costs 
and fees described in Paragraph 3 above based on the then applicable fee 
schedule. 

  
5. City of Boulder Design and Construction Standards.  Any other public improvements that 

are required to be constructed by the terms of this Agreement shall be constructed in 
accordance with the requirements of the City of Boulder Design and Construction 

Standards applicable at the time of construction, and shall be subject to the review, 
approval and acceptance of the City Manager.   

 
6. Use of Existing Wells.  The City agrees not to prohibit the Applicant from using existing 

wells for irrigation purposes, even if the Property is served by the City’s water utility.  
Under no circumstances may existing wells be used for domestic water purposes once the 
Applicant has connected to the City’s water utility.  No person is allowed to make any 
cross connections between a well and the City’s municipal water utility.  The Parties agree 
that there shall not be any type of connection between any well and the City water system 
serving the Property. 

 
7. Applicant Responsible for Legal Disconnection of On-site Wastewater System.  If the 

Applicant decides to continue to use an existing on-site wastewater system, the Applicant 
agrees that the Applicant will connect to the adjacent sanitary sewer main, in accordance 
with Section 11-2-9, B.R.C. 1981, upon any declaration by Boulder County Public Health 
to cease and desist using the on-site wastewater system, or other declaration that the on-
site wastewater system constitutes a threat to the public health.  Currently, under Boulder 
County Public Health Department policy, all on-site wastewater systems must be 
permitted and approved by 2023.  At that time, any resident still using an on-site 
wastewater system must either have their system permitted and approved, or connect to 
the adjacent sanitary sewer main.  At the time of any disconnection of the on-site 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 169Packet Page 354



5 
 

wastewater system and connection to the City’s sanitary sewer main, the Applicant is 
required to abandon the existing on-site wastewater system in accordance with Boulder 
County Public Health and State of Colorado regulations. 

 
8. Historic Drainage.  The Applicant agrees to convey drainage from the Property in an 

historic manner that does not materially and adversely affect abutting properties. 
 

9. Ditch Company Approval.  If the Property is abutting an existing irrigation ditch or lateral, 
the Applicant agrees not to relocate, modify, or alter the ditch or lateral until and unless 
written approval is received from the appropriate ditch company. 
 

10. Existing Nonstandard Buildings and/or Nonconforming Uses.  Existing, nonstandard 
buildings and/or nonconforming uses will be allowed to continue to be occupied and 
operated in the City of Boulder.  Only those nonstandard buildings and/or nonconforming 
uses for which the Applicant has provided a written description that is received by the City 
in accordance with Paragraph 2.C above will be considered legal.  The Applicant and the 
City agree that this section shall not be construed to permit the Property to constitute a 
nuisance or to cause a hazard under the City’s life safety codes.  
 

11. Removal of Wood Roof Coverings.  If any structures on the Property have wood roof 
coverings, the Applicant agrees to submit a building permit application within two years of 
the effective date of the annexation ordinance to remove or cause to be removed all wood 
roof covering materials and to replace the removed roofing with approved roof covering 
materials which conform to the City of Boulder Building Code.  Said removal and 
replacement of the wood roof covering materials must be completed within three years of 
the effective date of the annexation ordinance. 
  

12. New Construction.  All new construction commenced on the Property after annexation 
will comply with all City of Boulder laws, taxes, and fees, except as modified by this 
Agreement. 

 
13. Waiver of Vested Rights.  The Applicant hereby waives any statutory vested rights that 

may have accrued under County jurisdiction that have not been perfected as common law 
vested rights.  The Applicant acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement may be 
construed as a waiver of the City’s powers to zone and regulate land uses for the benefit of 
the citizens and residents of Boulder. 

 
14. Dedications.  The Applicant acknowledges that any dedications and public improvements 

required herein with this annexation are rationally related and reasonably proportionate to 
the projected impact of the development of the Property as set forth in this Agreement. 

 
15. Original Instruments.  Prior to the first reading of the annexation ordinance, the Applicant 

shall provide an original of this Agreement signed by Applicant, along with any 
instruments required in this Agreement.  The City agrees to hold such documents until 
after final legislative action on the annexation of this Property has occurred.  Final 
legislative action by the City Council shall constitute acceptance of such documents by the 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 170Packet Page 355



6 
 

City.  In the event that the City does not annex the Property, the City agrees that it will 
return all such original documents to the Applicant.  The Applicant agrees that he will not 
encumber or in any way take any action that compromises the quality of such documents 
while they are being held by the City. 

 
16. No Encumbrances.  The Applicant agrees that between the time of signing this Agreement 

and the time when final legislative action on the annexation of this Property has occurred, 
the Applicant shall neither convey ownership nor further encumber the Applicant's 
Property, without the express approval from the City.  Prior to the recording of this 
Agreement with the Boulder County Clerk and Recorder, Applicant agrees not to execute 
transactional documents encumbering the Property or otherwise affecting title to the 
Property without first notifying the City and submitting revised title work within five (5) 
working days of any such transaction.  

 
17. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Applicant breaches or fails to perform any required 

action, or fails to pay any fee specified, under this Agreement or under any document that 
may also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement, the Applicant 
acknowledges that the City may take all reasonable actions to cure the breach, including 
but not limited to the filing of an action for specific performance of the obligations herein 
described.  In the event the Applicant fails to pay any monies due under this Agreement or 
under any document that may also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement 
or fails to perform any affirmative obligation hereunder or under any document that may 
also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement, the Applicant agrees that the 
City may collect the monies due in the manner provided for in Section 2-2-12, B.R.C. 
1981, as amended, as if the said monies were due and owing pursuant to a duly adopted 
ordinance of the City or may perform the obligation on behalf of the Applicant and collect 
its costs in the manner herein provided.  The Applicant agrees to waive any rights he may 
have under Section 31-20-105, C.R.S., based on the City’s lack of an enabling ordinance 
authorizing collection of this specific debt, or acknowledges that the adoption of the 
annexation ordinance is such enabling ordinance. 

 
18. Failure to Annex.  This Agreement and any document executed pursuant hereto shall be 

null and void and of no consequence in the event that the Property is not annexed into the 
City. 

 
19. Future Interests.  This Agreement and the covenants set forth herein shall run with the 

land and be binding upon the Applicant, the Applicant’s heirs, successors, and assigns and 
all persons who may hereafter acquire an interest in the Property, or any part thereof.  If it 
shall be determined that this Agreement contains an interest in land, that interest shall 
vest, if at all, within the lives of the undersigned plus 20 years and 364 days. 

 
20. Right to Withdraw.  The Applicant retain the right to withdraw from this Agreement up 

until the time that final legislative action has been taken on the ordinance that will cause the 
Property to be annexed into the City.  The final legislative action will be the vote of the City 
Council after the final reading of the annexation ordinance.  The Applicant's right to 
withdraw shall terminate upon the City Council’s final legislative action approving the 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 171Packet Page 356



7 
 

annexation.  In the event that the Applicant withdraws from this Agreement in the manner 
described above, this Agreement shall be null and void and shall have no effect regarding 
the Applicant.  The City agrees, within 30 days of a request by the Applicant after a 
withdrawal, to return all previously submitted fees, application, and easement and/or rights 
of way dedication documents which the Applicant submitted pursuant to this Agreement to 
the City.  The Parties agree that costs submitted to the City to cover survey work shall not be 
returned to the Applicant. 

 
21. 2014 Fee Schedule.  If the Applicant agrees to connect to the City Water Main within 180 

days from the effective date of the ordinance pursuant to Option A or B in Paragraph 4.A. 
and 4.B. of this Agreement, the Parties agree that the fees and assessments required in 
Paragraph 3.D of this Agreement for said initial connection be assessed at the rates 
applicable on December 31, 2014. 

 
EXECUTED on the day and year first above written. 
 
       Applicant: 
 
 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
        William J. Dick III 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF BOULDER  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, a Notary Public, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2015, by William J. Dick III. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal. 
 My commission expires:____________ 
 
[SEAL]      ___________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
        
 
 
         
         
  

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 172Packet Page 357



8 
 

       CITY OF BOULDER: 
 
 
       By:_____________________________ 

        Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________  
City Clerk  
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_________________________  
City Attorney’s Office 
 
Date:  _________________  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXHIBITS: 
A: Old Tale Area Map 
 

 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 173Packet Page 358



Reserve Dr

C
he

rry
va

le
 R

d

M
al

la
rd

 C
t

Mcsorley Ln

S
ongbird

Cr

O
ld

Ta
le

R
d

Arapahoe Av

Wonderview C
t

G
ap

te
r R

d

1555 OLD
TALE RD

1402 OLD
TALE RD

1270 OLD
TALE RD

1409 OLD
TALE RD

1435 OLD
TALE RD

1412 OLD
TALE RD

1310
OLD

TALE RD

1436 OLD
TALE RD

1510 OLD
TALE RD

1486 OLD
TALE RD

1193 OLD
TALE RD

1566 OLD
TALE RD

1165 OLD
TALE RD

1350 OLD
TALE RD

1533 OLD
TALE RD

1507 OLD
TALE RD

1548 OLD
TALE RD

1457 OLD
TALE RD

1325 OLD
TALE RD

1245 OLD
TALE RD

1315 OLD
TALE RD

1483 OLD
TALE RD

1228 OLD
TALE RD

1275 OLD
TALE RD

1221 OLD
TALE RD

1585 OLD
TALE RD

1305 OLD
TALE RD

Howard Ditch

Wellman Ditch

Sou th Boulder Creek

Proposed Old Tale Rd. Annexation
Proposed Annexation Area

City Limits (Existing)

Ownership Parcels

Creek

Ditch © 2014 City of Boulder, Colorado

EXHIBIT A TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 174Packet Page 359



For Administrative Purposes Only 
Property Address: 1412 Old Tale Road 
Grantors: John K. Bennett and 

Penelope A. Bennett 
Grantee: City of Boulder, Colorado 
Case#: LUR2015"00004 

ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

This Annexation Agreement ("Agreement"), made this /;. f.... day of it"\. "".-.;- L.. ... 
2015, by and between the City of Boulder, a Colorado home rule city (the "City"), and John K. 
Bennett and Penelope A. Bennett (the "Applicants"). The City and the Applicants are referred to 
as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Parties recite the following facts related to the annexation of the 
property described in this Agreement to the City of Boulder: 

A. The Applicants are the owners of the propetty generally known as 1412 Old Tale 
Road, Boulder, CO 80303 and more particularly described as Lot lOA, Canterbury Acres, Replat 
"A", County of Boulder, State of Colorado (the "Property"). 

B. The Applicants are interested in obtaining approval from the City of the 
annexation of the Property in order to provide adequate urban services to the Property. 

C. The Parties anticipate that annexation with an initial zoning designation of 
Residential" Rural 2 (RR"2) is consistent with the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan. 

D. The Old Tale Road Area Map is the area shown on Exhibit A ("Old Tale Road 
Area''). The annexation of the Property is a part of a larger annexation of properties within the 
Old Tale Road Area. This annexation of the Propelty is being coordinated with the annexation 
of other properties in the Old Tale Road Area. 

E. In order to assist the Applicants in annexing into the City, the City is providing an 
annexation package that includes a method fOf financing the water and sewer connection fees (to 
the extent applicable) and a waiver of certain fees and taxes which includes the annexation 
application fee and the development excise tax and the housing excise tax. 

F. The Applicants and the City intend to maintain and preserve the rllfal character of 
the neighborhood. The City agrees to construct a water main within Old Tale Road and 
McSorley Road ("Water Main"). After the installation of this Water Main, the City will rebuild 
Old Tale Road and McSorley Road where the City installed the Water Main according to "Rural 
Residential Street Standards," set forth in Section 2.09(D)(3) of the City of Boulder Design and 
Construction Standards, with the exception of sidewalks, drainage swales and streetlights which 
will not be installed as a condition of this annexation. The Applicants will not have any 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 175Packet Page 360



obligation to construct or finance the construction of the Water Main or reconstruct or finance 
the reconstruction of Old Tale Road and McSorley Road as a condition of this Agreement. 

G. The City is interested in ensuring that certain terms and conditions of annexation 
be met by the Applicants in order to protect the public health, safety, and welfare and prevent the 
placement of an unreasonable burden on the physical, social, economic, or environmental 
resources of the City. 

COVENANTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, promises, and covenants herein set 
forth, and other good and valuable consideration herein receipted for, the Parties agree as 
follows: 

I. Definitions. The Parties agree that terms used in this Agreement will have the following 
meanmgs: 

"Redevelopment" shall be defined as the subdivision of a property to create a new lot, 
issuance of a building pennit for a new or replacement dwelling unit, issuance of a 
building permit for additional square footage to the existing structure, or the addition of 
three or more plumbing fixtures. 

"Sale" or "Sold" shall be defined as a transfer of title of ownership for money or other 
consideration. 

2. Requirements Prior to First Reading or tile Annexation Ordinance. Prior to the scheduling 
of first reading of the annexation ordinance, the Applicants shall do the following, unless 
otherwise approved by the City Manager: 

A. Annexation Agreement. The Applicants will sign this Agreement. 

B. Title Work. The Applicants will provide the City with title work CUlTent to within 
30 days of signing this Agreement. 

C. Written Descriptions. The Applicants shall provide a written description of any 
nonconforming uses and/or nonstandard buildings existing on each Property, if 
any. 

D. Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District ("NCWCD"). If the Property is 
not already included in the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District and 
the Boulder Municipal Subdistrict of the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy 
District, the Applicants will file the applicable applications for inclusion. The 
City agrees to payout of the Natural Disaster Grant Funding, the processing fee 
and facilities fee due for the application of inclusion in the applicable districts. 

2 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 176Packet Page 361



E. Easement Dedications. To the extent the Property is located within 60 feet from 
the centerline of the South Boulder Creek, the Applicants shall dedicate to the 
City, at no cost, the following easements; 

a. A flood control easement from 60 feet on either side of the centerline of South 
Boulder Creek as shown on Exhibit B. The easement shall be in a form 
acceptable to the City Manager. The easement will exclude any principal 
building containing a dwelling unit on the lot within the flood control 
easement area that is existing at the time of annexation. 

3. Connection Requirements. Prior to connection to the Water Main, the Applicants shall: 

A. Submit an application to connect to the Water Main that meets the requirements 
of Chapters II-I, B.R.C. 1981. 

8. Pay all applicable fees and charges associated with a service line connection to 
the Water Main, including but not limited to right-of way permit fees and the fees 
listed in Subparagraph 3.D below. 

C. Construct the individual service line that will connect the Applicants' existing 
residence to the Water Main. 

D. Pay any fees and assessments, including but not limited to the following: 

Water Tap, Meter, Penn it and Inspection Fee 
Water PIF 
Stormwater and Flood PIF 
Total 

$409.68 
$16,807.00 
$21,836.00 
$39,052.68 

E. Execute a Promissory Note and Deed of Trust, if Applicants selected Payment 
Option #8, as described under Paragraph 4.8(i) below. 

4. Payment Options and Requirements for Fees. Taxes, and Public Improvement Costs. The 
Applicants select Option #B set forth below. 

A. Option #A: Payment in Full. The Applicants shall connect to the Water Main 
within 180 days after the City's final acceptance of the Water Main and shall 
comply with the terms of, and pay the costs and fees described in, Paragraph 3 
above. The City Manager may, in her discretion, approve a different time for 
connection to the Water Main provided the Applicants demonstrate reasonable 
diligence to comply with the 180-day deadline and good cause for the extension. 

B. Option #8: Payment Plan. The Applicants shall connect to the Water Main 
within 180 days after the City's final acceptance of the Water Main and shall 
comply with the tenns of Paragraph 3 above except that the costs, fees and any 

3 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 177Packet Page 362



assessments described in Paragraph 3 shall be paid in accordance with the terms 
of the following payment plan: 

i. Prior to connection to the Water Main, the Applicants shall execute a 
Promissory Note and a Deed of Trust securing said Note and encumbering the 
Applicants' Propelty in the principal amount to cover the amounts set forth in 
Paragraph 3 above. The Note will have a simple interest rate of 3.25 percent per 
annum, payable in 10 annual installments of principal and interest beginning at 
the time of connection to the Water System. 

The City Manager may, in her discretion, approve a different time for connection 
to the Water Main provided the Applicants demonstrate reasonable diligence to 
comply with the 180~day deadline and good cause for the extension. The City 
Manager, in her discretion, may approve for good cause a different time for 
payment of the first of the 10 annual installments of principal and interest. 

C. Option #C: Future Connection. The Applicants shall connect to the Water Main 
at a time later than what is specified in Option #A and #8 above, but no later than 
1) at the time Applicants' Properly is Sold; or 2) at the time of Redevetopment of 
Applicants' Property. At the respective time and prior to the Applicants' 
connection to the Water Main, the Applicants will pay the costs and fees 
described in Paragraph 3 above based on the then applicable fee schedule. 

5. City of Boulder Design and Construction Standards. Any other public improvements that 
are required to be constructed by the terms of this Agreement shall be constructed in 
accordance with the requirements of the City of Boulder DeSign and Construction 
Standards applicable at the time of construction, and shall be subject to the reV1CW, 
approval and acceptance of the City Manager. 

6. Use of Existing Wells. The City agrees 110t to prohibit the Applicants from using existing 
wells for irrigation purposes, even if the Property is served by the City's water utility. 
Under no circumstances may existing wells be used for domestic water purposes once the 
Applicants have connected to the City's water utility. No person is allowed to make any 
cross connections between a well and the City's municipal water utility. The Parties agree 
that there shaH not be any type of connection between any well and the City water system 
serving the Property. 

7. Applicants Responsible for Legal Disconnection of On~site Wastewater System. If the 
Applicants decide to continue to use an existing on~site wastewater system, the Applicants 
agree that the Applicants will connect to the adjacent sanitary sewer main, in accordance 
with Section II ~2~9, B.R.C. 1981, upon any declaration by Boulder County Public Health 
to cease and desist using the on~site wastewater system, or other declaration that the on
site wastewater system constitutes a threat to the public health. Currently, under Boulder 
County Public Health Department policy, all on~site wastewater systems must be 
permitted and approved by 2023. At that time, any resident still using an on-site 
wastewater system must either have their system permitted and approved, or connect to 
the adjacent sanitary sewer main. At the time of any disconnection of the on~site 

4 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 178Packet Page 363



wastewater system and connection to the City's sanitary sewer main, the Applicants are 
required to abandon the existing on~site wastewater system in accordance with Boulder 
County Public Health and State of Colorado regulations. 

8. Historic Drainage. The Applicants agree to convey drainage from the Property m an 
historic manner that does not materially and adversely affect abutting properties. 

9. Ditch Company Approval. If the Property is abutting an existing irrigation ditch or lateral, 
the Applicants agree not to relocate, modify, or alter the ditch or lateral until and unless 
written approval is received from the appropriate ditch company. 

10. Existing Nonstandard Buildings and/or Nonconforming Uses. The only nonconforming 
uses and nonstandard buildings and structures on the Property that will be recognized by the 
City and allowed to continue to exist are those that are included as Exhibit C. Section 9~ 1 O~ 
3, "Changes to Nonstandard Buildings, Structures, and Lots and Nonconforming Uses." 
B.R.C. 1981, applies to changes to nonstandard buildings and nonconforming uses except 
that those nonstandard structures located in the flood control easement (Exhibit B) shall not 
be restored in the easement once removed, destroyed, demolished, or relocated. The 
Applicants and the City agree that this section shall not be constmed to permit the Property 
to constitute a nuisance or to cause a hazard under the City's life safety codes. 

11. Removal of Wood Roof Coverings. If any structures on the Propel1y have wood roof 
coverings, the Applicants agree to submit a building pennit application within two years of 
the effective date of the annexation ordinance to remove or cause to be removed all wood 
roof covering materials and to replace the removed roofing with approved roof covering 
materials which conform to the City of Boulder Building Code. Said removal and 
replacement of the wood roof covering materials must be completed within three years of 
the effective date of the annexation ordinance. 

12. New Construction. All new construction commenced on the Property after annexation 
will comply with all City of Boulder laws, taxes, and fees, except as modified by this 
Agreement. 

13. Waiver of Vested Rights. The Applicants hereby waive any statutory vested rights that 
may have accrued under County jurisdiction that have not been perfected as common law 
vested rights. The Applicants acknowledge that nothing in this Agreement may be 
construed as a waiver of the City's powers to zone and regulate land uses for the benefit of 
the citizens and residents of Boulder. 

14. Dedications. The Applicants acknowledge that any dedications and public improvements 
required herein with this annexation are rationally related and reasonably proportionate to 
the projected impact of the development of the Property as set forth in this Agreement. 

15. Original Instruments. Prior to the first reading of the annexation ordinance, the Applicants 
shall provide an original of this Agreement signed by Applicants, along with any 
instruments required in this Agreement. The City agrees to hold such documents until 
after final legislative action on the annexation of this Property has occurred. Final 

5 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 179Packet Page 364



legislative action by the City Council shall constitute acceptance of such documents by the 
City. In the event that the City does not annex the Property, the City agrees that it will 
return all such original documents to the Applicants. The Applicants agree that they will 
not encumber or in any way take any action that compromises the quality of such 
documents while they are being held by the City. 

16. No Encumbrances. The Applicants agree that between the time of signing this Agreement 
and the time when finallegislative action on the annexation of this Property has occurred, 
the Applicants shall neither convey ownership nor further encumber the Applicants' 
Property, without the express approval from the City. Prior to the recording of this 
Agreement with the Boulder County Clerk and Recorder, Applicants agree not to execute 
transactional documents encumbering the Property or otherwise affecting title to the 
Property without first notifying the City and submitting revised title work within five (5) 
working days of any such transaction. 

17. Breach of Agreement. In the event the Applicants breach or fail to perform any required 
action, or fails to pay any fee specified, under this Agreement or under any document that 
may also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement, the Applicants 
acknowledge that the City may take all reasonable actions to cure the breach, including 
but not limited to the filing of an action for specific perfonnance of the obligations herein 
described. In the event the Applicants fail to pay any monies due under this Agreement or 
under any document that may also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement 
or fails to perform any affinnative obligation hereunder or under any document that may 
also be required to be executed pursuant to this Agreement, the Applicants agree that the 
City may collect the monies due in the manner provided for in Section 2~2-12, B.R.C. 
1981, as amended, as if the said monies were due and owing pursuant to a duly adopted 
ordinance of the City or may perform the obligation on behalf of the Applicants and 
collect its costs in the manner herein provided. The Applicants agrees to waive any rights 
they may have under Section 31-20-105, C.R.S., based on the City's lack of an enabling 
ordinance authorizing collection of this specific debt, or acknowledges that the adoption of 
the annexation ordinance is such enabling ordinance. 

18. Failure to Annex. This Agreement and any document executed pursuant hereto shall be 
null and void and of no consequence in the event that the Property is not annexed into the 
City. 

19. Future Interests. This Agreement and the covenants set f0l1h herein shall run with the 
land and be binding upon the Applicant, the Applicant's heirs, successors, and assigns and 
all persons who may hereafter acquire an interest in the Property, or any part thereof. If it 
shall be detennined that this Agreement contains an interest in land, that interest shall 
vest, ifat all, within the lives of the undersigned plus 20 years and 364 days. 

20. Right to Withdraw. The Applicants retain the right to withdraw from this Agreement up 
until the time that final legislative action has been taken on the ordinance that will cause the 
Property to be annexed into the City. The final legislative action will be the vote of the City 
Council after the final reading of the annexation ordinance. The Applicants' right to 
withdraw shall terminate upon the City Council's final legislative action approving the 

6 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 180Packet Page 365



annexation. In the event that the Applicants withdraw from this Agreement in the manner 
described above, this Agreement shall be null and void and shall have no effect regarding 
the Applicants. The City agrees, within 30 days of a request by the Applicants after a 
withdrawal, to return all previously submitted fees, application, and easement and/or rights 
of way dedication documents which the Applicants submitted pursuant to this Agreement to 
the City. The Parties agree that costs submitted to the City to cover survey work shall not be 
returned to the Applicants. 

21. Flood Contro l Easement Conditions. 

A. The City wi ll allow existing accessory structures identified on Exhibit C to 
remain within the flood control easement area until removed, destroyed, demolished, or 
relocated. 

B. The City can require removal of pre-existing accessory buildings or structures if 
removal of such buildings or structures is required to implement a spec ifi c flood 
mitigation project. 

C. The Applicants shall neither construct any new buildings or structures nor rebuild 
or reconstruct any pre-existing accessory buildings or structures within the flood contro l 
easement area. 

22. 2014 Fee Schedule. If the Applicants agree to connect to the City Water Main within 180 
days from the effecti ve date of the ordinance pursuant to Option A or B in Paragraph 4.A. 
and 4.8. of this Agreement, the Parties agree that the fees and assessments required in 
Paragraph 3.0 of this Agreement for sa id initial connection be assessed at the rates 
applicable on December 3 1, 2014. 

EXECUTED on the day and year first above written. 

STA TE OF COLORADO 

COUNTY OF BOULDER ~""'-

) 
) ss. 
) 

Applicant: 

BY~ /,( ~ 
John K. Bennett 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, a Notary Publi c, thi s ~ day 

of M,;trtJl,.... ,20 15, by John K. Bennett. 

[SEA 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
My comm ission expi res: {( /t ql"'7 

SARA B. KERNS 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF COLORADO 
NOTARY)O #201 34064351 
~ I.I M)SSION EXPIRES 11118!2017 

7 

Notary Public 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 181Packet Page 366



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 182Packet Page 367



ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney's Office 

Date: 

EXHIBITS: 
A: Old Tale Area Map 
B: Flood Control Easement 

CITY OF BOULDER: 

By: 
.~~~~--~~---

Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 

c: Written Description of Nonstandard or Nonconforming Structures and accessory 
structures in flood easement area 

9 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 183Packet Page 368



EXHIBIT A TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENT , 
I ", , , 

ArapahOe Av I 
I I 
I 

I I I 
I 1585 OLD , , , TALERD , .. I , 

I ,. , ,. 
\ I , , I , 1555 OLD 1566 OLD , I ,. 

TALE RD TALERD , I I , , I , , 
I \:tJ , 
I 1533 OLD 1548 OLD 

, 
I I, , TALE RD TALERD , "'. 6'Ol/, 

I ·'.':Q'el;-G~ 
I 1510 OLD "'-"''''?-, 1507 OLD 
I TALERD TALERD ,. 
I .. -' , -,. .. ' ,. 1483 OLD 1486 OLD -/ ", 

TALERD TALE RD ,. 
/ , --

1///' 

,. 
1457 OLD 

, 
TALERD 

,. ,. '" , , Wonderview~ I .. 
I 1435 OLD ~ 1436 OLD 0 , 

'" TALE RD , TALERD 
I .!!! , 

1409 OLD ~ , , 1412 OLD , 
I TALERD 'fl' TALE RD I Cf " 
I " 
I 

, , 1402 OLD ~ I 
,. , TALERD, 

" '" I - • I i ;(/ ~ 

~ 
, 

1325 OLD I " 
~ I TALE RO 1350 OL~ 1/ , , ,TALERD ./ • 

I 6 , , 1315 OLD 
I TALE RD 

, 
/ , 

"J ' 1310 

, , , 
1305 OL~ 

, , 

~ 
, 

OLD 
, 

" , 
'-'" TALERD TALERDI , 

, I., I 

'" 1275 OLD '~270 OL~! \, 
Reserve Dr , , 

TALERD " \g " .. ;<:5 
I TALERD ' V--I ,j-' 

I~ I 1245 OW' ", , ',' ~ 
I 

, 
~' 

I TALER6 I Mcsorleyln 
,ro 

I / 
, 

}' I I / -" I I I 1228 OLD , 

);~ 
I 1221 OLD TALERD 

, 
I TALERD , 1 ", -, , .. 

/{/ 1193 OLD -
TALrRD I 

1161'OW" 

I 

~I 
Proposed Old Tale Rd. Annexation 

f-,. ro Proposed AnnexationArea TALERD 1\ '-' I------ I, I ,. I City Limits (Existing) 
-----\-----

ltd/man Dilch c- --- - ------ , , I , c::J Ownership Parcels • , I~ 

E!) , IS , , Ig. , 
I" 

, ... " ... -. Creek , ,~ ,. 
I I? " '- .... /""\...-_. Ditch I 

'" 
, ., '0" C'" of Boulder CoIo,,"o 

I ~ " 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 184Packet Page 369



For Administrative Purposes Only 
Property Address: 1412 Old Tale Road 
Grantors: John K. Ben nett and 

Penelope A. Bennett 
Grantee: City of Boulder, Colorado 
Case#: LUR20 15·00004 

GRANT OF FLOOD CONTROL EASEMENT 

JOHN K. BENNETT and PENELOPE A. BENNETT ("Grantors"), whose address is 
1412 Old Tale Road, Boul der, CO 80303, for $1.00 and other good and va luab le consideration, 
the receipt of wh ich is hereby acknowledged, do hereby grant, bargain, se ll and convey to the 
CITY OF BOULDER, a Colorado home rule city (the "City"), whose add ress is 1777 Broadway, 
Boulder, Colorado 80302, a flood contro l easement for the purpose of drai nage conveyance and 
contro l of flood waters and insta llation and maintenance of improvements necessary to ensure 
conveyance of flood waters as detennined by the Grantee, together with all rights and privi leges 
as are necessary or incidental to the reasonable and proper use of such easement in and to, over, 
under and across the following real property. situated in Boulder County, Colorado, to-wit: 

See Exhibit A attached 

Grantors, for themselves and for their heirs. successors, agents, lessees, and assigns, do 
hereby covenant and agree that no pennanent structu re or improvement shall be placed on said 
easement by themselves or their heirs, successors or assigns, and that sa id use of such easement 
shall not otherwise be obstructed or interfered with. 

This easement does not grant to the City a right to construct a public trail or other public 
transportation improvement in the easement area. 

Grantors warrant their ability to grant and convey thi s easement. 

The terms of thi s easement shall run with the land and shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the Grantors, their heirs, age nts, lessees and assigns, and all other successors to 
them in interest and shalt continue as a serv itude running in perpetu ity with the property 
described above. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantors have caused th is instrument to be du ly executed as 

of thi s ~r" day of M ~r~ ~ , 20 15. 

GRANTOR 

BY~ /1., 
J n K. Bennett 

[NOTARY BLOCK FOLLOWS] 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 185Packet Page 370



EXHIBIT B TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 5) 

STA TE OF COLORADO 

2Lb~ COUNTY OF B ER 

) 
)55. 
) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thi s day of 

_---'!--'('---'-~=r-'c:.>L..."'___~, 2015, by John K. Bennett. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
My commission expires: It /\.~ ,17.¢ \ 2 . 

GRANTOR: 

By: ____ ____ ___ _ 

Penelope A. Bennett 

STA TE OF COLORADO ) 
)55. 

COUNTY OF BOULDER ) 

r SARA B. KERNS 

I NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF COLORADO 

I NOTARY 10#20134064351 

~_M_Y~C~O~M~M=IS:SI:O~N ~EX:P:'R~E:S~11~11~~~~2' ~7 ~ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thi s day of 

________ ~, 2015, by Penelope A. Bennett. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
My commission expires: ______ ~ 

Notary Public 

2 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 186Packet Page 371



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 187Packet Page 372



D 
o 

N 

• 

EXHIBIT B TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (Page 4 of 5) 
EXHIBIT A TO FLOOD CONTROL EASEMENT Pa e 1 of 2 

LOCATED 1N THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, 
RANGE 70 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDlAN, 

COUNTY OF BOULDER, STATE OF COLORADO 
SHEET 1 OF 2 

AN EASEMENT OVER AND ACROSS A PORTION OF LOT lOA, CANTERBURY ACRES, REPLAT A 
AS DESCRIBED IN THE RECORDS OF BOULDER COUNTY ON JULY 29, 1981, AT RECEPTION NO. 
456852, LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 
70 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF BOULDER, STATE OF COLORADO, 
BEING MORE PARTlCULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

CONSIDERING A NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 10A TO BEAR NORTH 89'53'20" EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 120.00 FEET, WITH ALL BEARINGS CONTAINED HEREIN RELATIVE THERETO. 

BEGINNING AT THE MOST NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT lOA, 
THENCE ALONG THE EASTERLY LINES OF SAID LOT lOA THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES: 
SOUTH 00'40'45" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 41.28 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 32'58'25" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 69.92 FEET TO A POINT ON A SOUTHERLY 
LINE OF SAID LOT lOA; 
THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY UNE. SOUTH 89'53'20 WEST, A DISTANCE OF 71.43 FEET TO 
A POINT LYING 60 FEET WESTERLY OF THE CENTERLINE OF SOUTH BOULDER CREEK; 
THENCE ALONG A LINE LYING 60 FEET WESTERLY AND PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTERLINE, THE 
FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES: 
NORTH 32'58'25" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 49.31 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 00'40'45" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 58.59 FEET TO A POINT ON A NORTHERLY 
LINE OF SAID LOT 10A; 
THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE, NORTH 89'53'20" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 60.01 FEET 
TO THE MOST NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT lOA AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

SAID EASEMENT CONTAINING 5,573 SQ. FT. OR 0.15 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

I, JOHN B. GUYTON, A LAND SURVEYOR LICENSED IN THE STA IT OF COLORADO, DO HEREBY 
STATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF FLATIRONS, INC., THAT THIS EASEMENT DESCRIPTION AND 
ATTACHED EXHIBIT, BEING A THEREOF, WERE PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY 
RESPONSIBLE CHARGE AT OF THE CLIENT AND IS NOT INTENDED TO 
REPRESENT A OR SUBDIVIDE LAND IN VIOLATION OF STATE 
STATUTE. 

JOHN B. GUYTON "'b;~;,;~:::.:.:::~.;"~' 
COLORADO P.LS. #16406 ' FSI JOB NO. 14-65,019 
CHAIRMAN/CEO, FLA TlRONS, 

0---- JOB NUMBER: 14-85,019 o DRAWN BY: E. PRESCOTT 
ih DAT£,JANUARY 13, 2015 (£) 

Flatirons, fllC, 
S","veyillg. Eflgi"ee";Jlg & Gc()malic.' 

~ 
655 FOURTH AVE 

w • < w 
TIllS IS NOT A 'LAND SURVEY PLAr OR "IMPROVEMENT SURVEY PlAr AND THIS EXHIBIT IS 
NOT INTENDED fOR PURPOSES OF TRANSFER OF TITLE OR SUBDIVISIONS OF LAND. RECORD 

;;:; INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON IS BASED ON INfORMATION PROVIDED BY CLIENT. 

LONGMONT. CO 80501 
PH: (303) 776-1733 

FAX: (303) 776-4355 
"'Hw.FloJi"''''{nc <om" 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 188Packet Page 373



/ 

o 

" N 

;; 

EXHIBIT B TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (Page 50f5) 
EXHIBIT A TO FLOOD CONTROL EASEMENT Pa e 2 of 2 

LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, 
RANGE 70 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 

COUNTY OF BOULDER, STATE OF COLORADO 

SHEET 2 OF 2 

\-
LOT 118 

CAN1ER8URY ACRES 
REPLAT B 

REC(l1174140 
4/7/1992 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 
N89'53'20"E 120.00' 

r
EASEMENT AREA: 

6.573 SO.fT. 
OR 0.15 ACRES 
MORE OR LESS 

NOO'40'45"£ 
58.59' 

LOT lOA 
CANTERBURY ACRES, REPLAT A 

REC, 455852 
7/29/1981 

\ UNPLATTED 
REGI 3375081 

4/16/2014 

POINT OF 
BEGINNING 

UNPLATTED 
REC# 2985348 

3/11/2009 

I 589'5320 W 
71.43'" /\ 

I 
APPROXIMATE CENTERUNE OF J 

SOUTH BOULDER CREEK 

UNPLATTED 
REe# 1996066 

11/2/1999 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

'~o ~1~~~" _liliiii 
~-

( IN FEET ) 

<-- JOB NUMBER: H-65.DI9(E) 
o ORAWN BY: E. PRESCOTT 

1 inch = 50 ft. 
r----~""la~t""~o~n-s~,·l-n-c----~ 

Surveying. Ellgilleering & Gc()ma(;Cs 

~ DATE: JANUARY 13, 2015 
w 

" " " 
THIS IS NOT /; "LAND SURVEY PLAr 011 "IMPROVEMENT SURVEY PlAr AND THIS EXHIBIT IS 
NOT Ii'lTENDED FOR PURPOSES OF TRANSFER OF TITlE OR SUBDIVISIONS OF LAND. RECORD 

~ INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON IS BASED ON INFORMATION PROVlDED BY CLIENT. ~ 
655 FOURTH AVE 

LONGMONT, CO 80501 
PH: (303) 776-1733 

FAX: (303) 776-4355 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 189Packet Page 374



EXH IBIT C TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 1) 

Black lines above approximates the property boundaries of 1412 Old Tale Rd. Pink Infill indicates approximate extent of 
existing home. 
Red circteslndlcate approximate location of Non-conforming structures: 1) detached garage. 2) detached outbuilding, 3) 
detached play structure 
AND/OR 
StrU!jitures within flood easements: 4) Playhouse & stairs in flood easement, 5) Portion of fence in flood easement 

Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 190Packet Page 375



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 191Packet Page 376



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 192Packet Page 377



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 193Packet Page 378



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 194Packet Page 379



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 195Packet Page 380



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 196Packet Page 381



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 197Packet Page 382



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 198Packet Page 383



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 199Packet Page 384



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 200Packet Page 385



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 201Packet Page 386



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 202Packet Page 387



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 203Packet Page 388



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 204Packet Page 389



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 205Packet Page 390



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 206Packet Page 391



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 207Packet Page 392



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 208Packet Page 393



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 209Packet Page 394



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 210Packet Page 395



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 211Packet Page 396



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 212Packet Page 397



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 213Packet Page 398



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 214Packet Page 399



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 215Packet Page 400



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 216Packet Page 401



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 217Packet Page 402



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 218Packet Page 403



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 219Packet Page 404



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 220Packet Page 405



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 221Packet Page 406



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 222Packet Page 407



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 223Packet Page 408



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 224Packet Page 409



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 225Packet Page 410



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 226Packet Page 411



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 227Packet Page 412



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 228Packet Page 413



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 229Packet Page 414



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 230Packet Page 415



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 231Packet Page 416



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 232Packet Page 417



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 233Packet Page 418



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 234Packet Page 419



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 235Packet Page 420



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 236Packet Page 421



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 237Packet Page 422



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 238Packet Page 423



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 239Packet Page 424



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 240Packet Page 425



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 241Packet Page 426



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 242Packet Page 427



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 243Packet Page 428



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 244Packet Page 429



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 245Packet Page 430



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 246Packet Page 431



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 247Packet Page 432



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 248Packet Page 433



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 249Packet Page 434



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 250Packet Page 435



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 251Packet Page 436



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 252Packet Page 437



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 253Packet Page 438



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 254Packet Page 439



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 255Packet Page 440



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 256Packet Page 441



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 257Packet Page 442



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 258Packet Page 443



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 259Packet Page 444



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 260Packet Page 445



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 261Packet Page 446



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 262Packet Page 447



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 263Packet Page 448



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 264Packet Page 449



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 265Packet Page 450



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 266Packet Page 451



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 267Packet Page 452



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 268Packet Page 453



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 269Packet Page 454



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 270Packet Page 455



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 271Packet Page 456



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 272Packet Page 457



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 273Packet Page 458



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 274Packet Page 459



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 275Packet Page 460



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 276Packet Page 461



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 277Packet Page 462



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 278Packet Page 463



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 279Packet Page 464



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 280Packet Page 465



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 281Packet Page 466



Attachment C - Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 282Packet Page 467



Attachment D - Applicants' Annexation Petition

Agenda Item 5C    Page 283Packet Page 468



Attachment D - Applicants' Annexation Petition

Agenda Item 5C    Page 284Packet Page 469



Attachment D - Applicants' Annexation Petition

Agenda Item 5C    Page 285Packet Page 470



Attachment D - Applicants' Annexation Petition

Agenda Item 5C    Page 286Packet Page 471



Attachment D - Applicants' Annexation Petition

Agenda Item 5C    Page 287Packet Page 472



Old Tale Road Neighborhood Annexation 
Property Information 

Location: 1165 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner:  Macinko Exempt Trust dated October 4, 1989 
Size of Tract: 1.15 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential/Open Space-Other 

Location: 1193 Old Tale Rd.  
Owner: Cynthia and Charles Anderson 
Size of Tract: 0.96 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1228 Old Tale Rd 
Owner: Steven Erickson 
Size of Tract: 0.83 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential/Open Space-Other 

Location: 1245 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Harold and Sherlynne Bruff 
Size of Tract: 0.98 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1270 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Jeffrey and Wendy Mortner 
Size of Tract: 1.20 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential/Open Space-Other 

Location: 1275 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Thomas and Barbara Corson 
Size of Tract: 0.99 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1305 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Monty Moran 
Size of Tract: 1.04 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1315 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Joanne M Simenson 
Size of Tract: 0.99 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Attachment E - Property Information

Agenda Item 5C    Page 288Packet Page 473



Location: 1325 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Sarah Kingdom 
Size of Tract: 1.05 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1402 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Kellie Masterson-Praeger 
Size of Tract: 0.98 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential/Open Space-Other 

Location: 1409 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: William Dick III 
Size of Tract: 0.97 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1412 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: John and Penelope Bennett 
Size of Tract: 1.03 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential/Open Space-Other 

Location: 1435 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Joyce Peterson Thurmer 
Size of Tract: 0.71 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1436 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Thomas Perry 
Size of Tract: 0.94 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential/Open Space-Other 

Location: 1457 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Cameron Bradley Peterson 
Size of Tract: 0.72 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1483 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Jason and Jennifer Kiefer 
Size of Tract: 0.66 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1507 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Richard and Jeanie Leddon 
Size of Tract: 0.77 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Attachment E - Property Information

Agenda Item 5C    Page 289Packet Page 474



Location: 1510 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Mark and Mary Beth Vellequette 
Size of Tract: 0.71 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1533 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Laurie Duncan-McWethy 
Size of Tract: 0.71 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential 

Location: 1566 Old Tale Rd. 
Owner: Stewart and Robin Elliott 
Size of Tract: 0.68 ac 
BVCP land use designation: Very Low Residential/Open Space-Other 

Attachment E - Property Information

Agenda Item 5C    Page 290Packet Page 475



City of Boulder 
Guidelines for Annexation Agreements 

-Individual Annexations of Mostly Developed Residential Properties  
in Area II- 

June 25, 2002 

I. Background: 

The purpose of these guidelines is to provide general direction for negotiating annexation 
agreements with individual landowners of mostly developed residential properties in 
Area II. They are intended to clarify city expectations in individual annexations. These 
guidelines have been endorsed by Planning Board and City Council and are a reference 
for city staff, landowners, Planning Board and City Council in future individual 
annexation negotiations. The Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan provides a framework 
for annexation and urban service provision.  With the 2001 update to the BVCP, 
Annexation Policy 1.25 was amended to provide more clarity about annexations. The 
amendments to the policy included the following: 

 Direction for the city to actively pursue annexation of county enclaves, Area II
properties along the western boundary, and other mostly developed Area II
properties;

 Direction to the county to attach great weight to the city’s input on development
in enclaves and developed Area II lands and to place emphasis on conforming to
the city’s standards in these areas; and

 A policy that developed parcels proposed for annexation that are seeking no
greater density or building size should not be required to provide the same level of
community benefit as vacant parcels until more development of the parcel is
applied for.

In order to reduce the negative impacts of new development in the Boulder Valley, the 
BVCP states that the city shall annex Area II land with significant development or 
redevelopment potential only on a very limited basis.  Such annexations will be supported 
only if the annexation provides a special opportunity to the city or community benefit. 

These guidelines apply primarily to mostly developed residential properties in Area II.  In 
most of these cases, the city would not request a community benefit with the annexation.  
However, a few of the properties that are currently developed in the county may have 
further development potential once annexed into the city.  These guidelines further refine 
the BVCP Policy 1.25 by specifically outlining which properties will be asked to provide 
community benefit upon annexation and what form of community benefit may be 
requested by the city. 

Attachment F - Guidelines for Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 291Packet Page 476



    

II. General Principles of Individual Annexations of Mostly Developed Residential 
Properties: 
  
A. In terms of the city’s interests, the benefits of annexing mostly developed 

residential properties in Area II outweigh the costs. 
B. The city has a strong desire to annex many of the residential properties in Area II 

because of the potential environmental and health issues associated with well and 
septic systems.  

C. The basic fees associated with annexation (plant investment and impact fees) 
should not be reduced for individual property owners seeking annexation 
(although financing and payback may be negotiated).  

D. The city has a legal obligation under state law to annex enclaves at the request of 
the property owner without terms and conditions beyond those required through 
existing ordinances. 

E. The city may apply additional terms and conditions to enclaves only through 
negotiation with the property owner. (Use caution when applying community 
benefit). 

 
III. Principles of Applying City Community Benefit Policy: 
  

A. Community benefit should only be applied to properties with additional 
development potential. 

B. For the purposes of these guidelines, additional development potential includes 
the ability to subdivide the property and/or build at least one additional unit on the 
property. Additional development potential does not include the ability to add on 
to an existing house or to replace an old house with a new one (scrape-offs). 

C. Although emphasis is placed on affordable housing, community benefit is not 
restricted to housing. An affordable housing benefit should be balanced with other 
benefits such as land or property dedications (landmarking, flood and open space 
easements) or other restrictions that help meet BVCP goals. 

D. The city should strive for consistency in applying the affordable housing 
requirement to properties with additional development potential.  In areas where 
new affordable units are appropriate (Crestview East), restrictions should be 
placed on the affordability of the new units.  In areas where new affordable units 
are not appropriate or feasible, (Gould Subdivision, 55th St. enclaves), the 
applicant should be requested to pay two times the cash contribution in-lieu of 
providing on-site affordable housing. 

 
 
IV. Framework for Basic Annexation Conditions for All Properties: 
 

A. Inclusion in the Boulder Municipal Subdistrict and the Northern Colorado Water 
Conservancy District. 

B. Assessment for waterline and sanitary sewer along street frontage (either existing 
or to be constructed). 

C. Development Excise Tax (DET). 
D. Storm Water and Flood Management Utility Plant Investment fees. 

Attachment F - Guidelines for Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 292Packet Page 477



    

E. Water and Wastewater Utility Plant Investment Fee. 
F. Dedication to the city of right-of-way for streets, alleys, water mains, and/or fire 

hydrants. 
G. Agreement to participate in their pro rata share of any future right-of-way 

improvements (paving, roadbase, curb, gutter, landscaping, sidewalks, bicycle and 
pedestrian path connections). 

H. Properties with Silver Lake Ditch rights:  The city would ask the property owner 
to sell all interests in the ditch company to the city. 

I. Properties with other ditch rights:  The city would ask for the Afirst Right of 
Refusal@ for any ditch rights associated with the property. 

 
 
V. Application of Community Benefit  
 

A. Guidelines for properties within the flood conveyance zone or with an open 
space or natural ecosystem land use designations. 

 
1. The city would request dedication of an open space conservation easement for any 

portion of the site with a BVCP Open Space or Natural Ecosystem land use designation. 
2. The city would request dedication to the city of a stormwater and floodplain easement for 

any portion of the site located within the flood conveyance zone.  
  

B. Guidelines for properties with additional development potential. 
 
The guidelines below are based on the definition of development potential as the 
potential for a property to be subdivided or for additional units to be built on the 
property.  Although the terms of the community benefit requirement may be 
negotiated on a case-by-case basis, the following are the general guidelines for 
requesting community benefit: 
1. A community benefit requirement in the form of two times the cash in-lieu 

contribution as set forth in the city’s inclusionary zoning ordinance to the 
Housing Trust Fund would be negotiated with property owners in ER and 
RR zones.  

2. For properties in LR and MR zones, a condition would be negotiated that a 
certain percentage of any new dwelling units be made permanently 
affordable to various income groups (see specific guidelines for each 
property group below). 

3. For enclaves, the affordable housing request should be consistent with 
similar annexations in the area (see specific guidelines for each property 
group below). 

4. For edge properties, the cash-in-lieu requested would be two times that 
required under the inclusionary zoning ordinance. 

   

 

Attachment F - Guidelines for Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 293Packet Page 478



    

C. Guidelines for specific property areas. 

1. Enclave – Crestview East 
 
a. All properties: 

 Request that the applicant demonstrate compliance with the 
North Boulder Subcommunity Plan Design Guidelines upon 
redevelopment or other applicable developed zoning district 
standards. 

 
b. Properties along Fourmile Canyon Creek: 

 Attempt to secure through negotiation, dedication of 
conservation, trail, and floodplain and drainage utility 
easements to the city to meet the objectives of the Greenways 
Master Plan and the Stormwater and Flood Management 
Utility. 

 
c. Properties with subdivision potential – split MR/LR zoning: 

 50% of any newly constructed units should be permanently 
affordable to low and middle income households. 

 
d. Properties with subdivision potential – split LR/ER zones: 

 25% of any newly constructed units should be permanently 
affordable to middle income households; and 

 Market rate units permitted on site should pay twice the 
applicable cash-in-lieu amount required by inclusionary zoning 
provisions. 

 
e. Properties with subdivision potential – ER zones: 

 Payment of two times the cash contribution in-lieu of providing 
on-site affordable housing set forth in the city’s inclusionary 
zoning ordinance for each new dwelling unit (prior to building 
permit). 

 
2. Enclave – Githens Acres and other miscellaneous North Boulder 

enclave properties. 
 

a. All properties: 
 Request that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the 

North Boulder Subcommunity Plan Design Guidelines upon 
redevelopment or other applicable developed zoning district 
standards. 

 
b. Properties along Fourmile Canyon Creek: 

 Attempt to secure through negotiation, dedication of 
conservation, trail, and floodplain and drainage utility 

Attachment F - Guidelines for Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 294Packet Page 479



    

easements to the city to meet the objectives of the Greenways 
Master Plan. 

 
3. Enclave – Pennsylvania Ave. 

 
a. Three properties along the Wellman Canal (5255, 5303, and 5101): 

 Attempt to secure through negotiation, dedication of a trail 
easement to the city to meet the objectives of the city’s 
Transportation Master Plan. 

 
  b. For all properties: 

 Request payment for share of sidewalk improvements along 
Pennsylvania Ave.  

 
4. Enclave – 55th St. 

 
a. Property with an MR land use designation (1415 55th St.): 

If zoned LR-D, 
 Payment of two times the cash contribution in-lieu of providing 

on-site affordable housing set forth in the city’s inclusionary 
zoning ordinance for each new dwelling unit. (at the time of 
building permit) or; 

 Any newly constructed units must be permanently affordable to 
middle income households. 

 
If zoned MR-D, 
 50% of any newly constructed units must be permanently 

affordable to low and middle income households. 
 

b. Properties with an LR land use designation and further 
development potential (994, 836, 830 55th St. and 5495 Baseline 
Rd.): 
 Payment of two times the cash contribution in-lieu of providing 

on-site affordable housing set forth in the city’s inclusionary 
zoning ordinance for each new dwelling unit (at the time of 
building permit). 

 
5. Gould Subdivision 

 
a. Three properties with additional development potential (2840 Jay 

Rd., 2818 Jay Rd., 4040 28th St.): 
 Payment of two times the cash contribution in-lieu of providing 

on-site affordable housing set forth in the city’s inclusionary 
zoning ordinance for each new dwelling unit. 

 
 

Attachment F - Guidelines for Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 295Packet Page 480



    

6. Western Edge 
 

a. Two properties with a VLR land use designation and development 
potential (0 Linden Dr., and 3650 4th St.): 
 Payment of two times the cash contribution in-lieu of providing 

on-site affordable housing set forth in the city’s inclusionary 
zoning ordinance for each new dwelling unit. (at the time of 
subdivision). 

 
b. Properties at 3365 4th St., 3047 3rd St., 2975 3rd St., and 2835 3rd 

St.: 
 An open space conservation easement, for the portion of the 

property that is west of the ABlue Line,” should be dedicated 
to the city. 

 
7. Old Tale Rd./Cherryvale Rd. 

 
a. Properties along South Boulder Creek: 

 Attempt to secure through negotiation, dedication of 
conservation, trail, and floodplain and drainage utility 
easements to the city to meet the objectives of the Greenways 
Master Plan and the Stormwater and Flood Management 
Utility. 

 
 
 

Attachment F - Guidelines for Annexation Agreements

Agenda Item 5C    Page 296Packet Page 481



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: April 21, 2015 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE:  Consideration of a potential Application as a Host City for the 2017 
IRONMAN® 70.3® World Championships.  

 
 
 
 
PRESENTER/S  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Maureen Rait, Executive Director, Public Works 
Michael Eubank, Project Manager, City-wide Special Events  

 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
IRONMAN® is seeking a Host City in North America for the 2017 IRONMAN® 70.3® 
World Championships.  Boulder is one of a small number of pre-selected Host City 
Candidates invited to submit a bid proposal. This invitation speaks to the city’s strong 
brand with athletes, and its high quality of staff and services. While it is an honor to be 
recognized as a potential international destination, (immediately after our inaugural 
Ironman Event last year) it is recommended that the city not pursue an application at this 
time and identify its interest in being considered as a host for this event after 2017.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Given the time needed to prepare a proposal with community partners and the on-going 
implementation of the improvements to the Civic Area funded by the successful 
Community, Culture and Safety tax initiative in November 2014, it is recommended that 
the City of Boulder not pursue an application at this time. Instead, it is recommended that 
the city identify its interest in being considered as a host for this event after 2017  
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
Boulder has won several lifestyle awards including healthiest, most Educated and most 
bicycle-friendly city.  Special events are part of the Boulder brand.  Hosting quality 

Agenda Item 6A    Page 1Packet Page 482



special events are a great fit for the active lifestyle that reflects this community’s  passion 
for healthy recreation as well as its  vibrant outdoor business and organic food companies 
that proudly call Boulder home.   
 

• Economic - In 2014, the Boulder Ironman Triathlon included approximately 2,700 
athletes traveling with an average of 3.3 family members.  The total length of stay 
was five nights with an average spending for each athlete party of $1,785 or $4.8 
million in the Boulder area.  Expectations for the 2017 70.3 World Championships 
would include 15,000 athletes, spectators and media (almost double the Boulder 
Ironman) with an average stay of five nights creating an estimated $10-15 million 
in local spending. 

• Environmental – As with all city events, Boulder incorporates ongoing city-wide 
initiatives within the event plans that meet or exceed local environmental goals.  
All events include Zero Waste protocols in addition to promoting multi-modal 
transportation options including event shuttles, bike parking and B-Cycle options 
for participants and spectators before, during and after the events. 

• Social - As a Host City, Boulder will always incorporate community benefits and 
opportunities to encourage, engage and reach out to individuals, neighborhoods, 
businesses and local groups.  Social, recreational and educational options will 
include free or low cost participation for the community, especially youth and 
families involved in city services and programs. 
 
OTHER IMPACTS  

• Fiscal - The estimated city budget to provide all staff, services and event 
requirements would be a minimum of $600,000 for an international event of this 
scope.  Expected revenues, in-kind support, partnerships and sponsorships would 
reduce the overall exposure to an estimated $300,000 

• Staff time - City departments and staff would track and record staff costs and 
expenses for reimbursements from the City event budget. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Ironman Boulder 
Boulder hosted its first full Ironman event on Aug. 3, 2014.  The event began at the 
Boulder Reservoir with a 2.4 mile swim,   included a 112 mile bike ride on Boulder 
county and city roads, and a 26.2 mile run on the Boulder Creek Path before finishing in 
Downtown Boulder.  With more than 2,700 participants, it was one of the largest 
Ironman events held world-wide.  The local Ironman office and crew worked closely with 
city staff and associated departments to ensure that this one of the most successful first-
time events.  The city collaborated with the Convention and Visitors Bureau, Downtown 
Boulder, Inc. and Boulder Valley School District to fulfill various hosting requirements 
including lodging, meals, registration and expo facilities.   
 
The event attracted a large number of visitors to Boulder including 40 percent of Ironman 
athletes visiting prior to the event to train at altitude.  Of all pre-race visits, approximately 
3,000 room nights were booked generating an estimated $658,000 in direct spending 

Agenda Item 6A    Page 2Packet Page 483



before the August event. During the event week, the average length of stay was five days 
with a per-person, per-day spending of $198 that included lodging, dining, shopping and 
entertainment spending in and around Boulder totaling an estimated $4.8 million.   
Due to the overwhelming success of the 2014 event the city has renewed the agreement 
for 2015 and 2016 with an annual limit of $60,000 of in-kind and financial support.   
 
A proposed ‘one-time’ Ironman Event for Boulder 
The 70.3 World Championship began in 2007 and is fast becoming one of the largest 
international events for triathletes, second only to the Ironman World Championship 
hosted annually in Kona, Hawaii during October.  
 
The specific, future dates for this two-day event are flexible, but it is expected to occur 
prior to the Kona Championships during the months of August or September.  This 
international event will consist of the women’s 70.3® World Championship on the first 
day for approximately 2,500 athletes, followed by the men’s 70.3® World Championship 
for approximately 3,000 athletes on the following day.  The potential economic impacts 
to a host community are significant, but recognizing that there are also substantial costs 
associated with being a host as defined below.  Currently, more than 130,000 athletes 
from 156 countries are racing in 86 IRONMAN 70.3 triathlons worldwide.  By 2017, the 
series is expected to expand to 100 races around the world. 
 
In 2014, Ironman began rotating the host cities to accommodate the global perspective of 
the event, athletes and spectators.  The most recent and planned championship locations 
include: 
• Mont-Tremblant, QC Canada Sunday (September 2014) 
• Zell Am See-Kaprun, Salzburg Austria (August 2015) 
• Sunshine Coast, QLD Australia (September 2016) 
 
The schedule for the 2017 event proposal is as follows: 
            March 27, 2015           Host City initial Statement of Interest Due 
            April 30, 2015             Host City Proposal Due to Ironman 
            May 2015                    Candidate City site visits 
            June 2015                    Award letter to Host City / Agreement drafted 
            July 2015                     Host City Announced 
 
The City Manager notified City Council on March 13, 2015 regarding the submittal of an 
initial Statement of Interest to Ironman that allowed city and its potential partners  
additional time to evaluate aspects of hosting the event in Boulder prior to the April 30, 
2015 bid deadline.     
 
ANALYSIS 
 
City as the Event Producer 
It is important to note the role the City would potentially perform as a Host City for the 
2017 IRONMAN® 70.3® World Championships.  As a Host City, Boulder would take 

Agenda Item 6A    Page 3Packet Page 484



on the responsibility as the Event Producer, which includes, but is not limited to, 
managing and implementing all aspects of event operations and related costs. 
 
The most recent example of the city performing these duties  was during the 2014 
CycloCross Nationals held at Valmont Bike Park.  The City of Boulder submitted a bid to 
host nationals and was awarded the role of Host City and Event Producer.  Partnering 
with USA Cycling, the city produced a five-day Championship Event for approximately 
2,500 athletes with an overall budget of approximately $200,000.  In contrast, the current 
Ironman Boulder Event, scheduled for Aug. 2, 2015, is produced by Ironman and 
Ironman staff, with additional support provided by City of Boulder that is limited to a 
$60,000 budget cap, primarily for venue space and “in-kind” services. 
 
The chart below is a partial list of Event Services provided by an Event Producer during 
event planning and production. (* limited to $60,000 aggregate) 
 

EVENT SERVICES 70.3 Championships Ironman Boulder Event CX Nationals 

Event Venues X X* X 

Course Design / 
Staffing 

X  X 

Event Staff and 
Volunteers 

X  X 

Law Enforcement X X* X 

Medical Services X  X 

Event EXPO (typically 
expenses and income) 

X  X 

Media, PR, 
Partnerships, 
Sponsorships 

X  X 

Community / Athlete 
Events and Banquets 

X  X 

Waste Management / 
PortoLets 

X  X 

 
Estimated Budget 

 
$600,000 

 
$60,000 

 
$200,000 

 
Acknowledging the required city role and related expenses as a Host City for this event 
warrants additional time for planning and budgeting. 
 
 
Pre-Event Planning and Confirming Partners 
 
Hosting an international event and compiling a competitive bid can be an expensive and 
time consuming undertaking.  The limited timeline for this proposal has made it difficult 
for the city to properly research and quantify the full impacts, opportunities and most 

Agenda Item 6A    Page 4Packet Page 485



importantly, related partnerships. A successful event of this size requires substantial 
partners at the local and state-wide level.  Event partnerships will not only provide 
financial and “in-kind” support, but also create a cohesive event team for all aspects of 
the event and beyond.  Broad feasibility, planning and budgeting with potential partners 
requires sufficient time.   
 
As a comparison, the Cyclocross Nationals Bid took approximately six months to 
develop before submitting in an open bid process.  As the Valmont Bike Park neared 
completion, city staff was aware of the opportunity and timeline for hosting nationals. 
Most of the venue sites, course maps, budgets, in-kind partnerships, event logos, 
merchandise and even social media were prepared in advance of the initial site visit and 
prior to the award announcement.  
 
City staff recognizes Boulder’s strong potential to host an International Championship 
Event.   However,  due to time constraints the city recommends that a bid proposal be 
considered in the future when additional preparation, including the  need to identify  
event staff resources, partnership expectations, sponsorship benefits and overall 
community-shared event goals can be undertaken.   
 
Event Venue to include Downtown / Civic Area 
 
Boulder currently hosts an annual 70.3 Ironman Event at the Boulder Reservoir, which 
provides an excellent opportunity to utilize successful practices, procedures and race 
routes.  This annual June event starts and ends at the reservoir with most aspects of the 
swim, bike and run portions of the course and spectator areas within the facility. 
 
Hosting a “Championship” event would require significant modifications and 
improvements to the course to offer a broader variety of Boulder venues that will 
challenge and inspire these world-class athletes.  The ideal venue for ending the run 
course would be in the Civic Area near Downtown Boulder and convenient to lodging, 
shopping and restaurants.  With the passage of the Community, Culture and Safety tax 
initiative in November 2014, the first phase of improvements in the Civic Area is moving 
forward and implementation is expected to occur over several years.  
Acknowledging the required space necessary for a Downtown Boulder finish warrants 
additional time for completing planned improvements of the Civic Area. 
. 
NEXT STEPS 

• Communication to Ironman – Staff will contact Ironman to relay the 
determination of the city and identify future event dates after 2017. 

• Site and Venue Improvements – Staff will continue efforts associated with Civic 
Area implementation as part of the voter approved Community, Culture and 
Safety tax. 

Agenda Item 6A    Page 5Packet Page 486



 

 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE April 21, 2015 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE: Update on Response to Council Direction for the City Manager to 
Provide Funds for Legal Assistance to Mobile Home Owners In Boulder 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Thomas A. Carr, City Attorney 
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
David Driskell, Executive Director, Community Planning and Sustainability 
Jeff Yegian, Acting Housing Division Manager 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to respond to Council’s direction at the April 7, 2015 
council meeting for the city manger to establish a fund to provide legal services to mobile 
home owners.  In 2001, the city established a fund of $15,000 to pay an attorney to 
provide assistance to mobile home owners.  Adjusted for inflation, using the consumer 
price index, $15,000 in 2001 would be equal to $19,880 in 2015.  Staff recommends that 
the city manager establish a fund of $20,000 for legal services.  Funding will be provided 
in the first 2015 adjustment to base, which is scheduled for Council consideration at the 
May 5, 2015 and May 19, 2015 council meetings.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
No Council action is necessary.   
 
 

Agenda Item 6B    Page 1Packet Page 487



 

 

COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 

 Economic:  Mobile homes provide a relatively low cost option for affordable 
housing in Boulder.  

 Environmental:  Mobile homes provide lower income workers with local housing 
options, which may reduce the environmental impact associated with commuting.  

 Social:  The ability for lower income individuals to reside in Boulder provides 
important economic diversity.   
 

OTHER IMPACTS  
 

 Fiscal-Budgetary:  The budget impact will be $20,000. 
 Staff work necessary will fall mostly on the city attorney’s office.   

 
PUBLIC INPUT 
 
At the March 3, 2015, March 17, 2015 and April 7, 2015 council meetings, several 
residents spoke about issues related to mobile homes.  In addition, Council has received 
numerous emails from mobile home residents in Boulder.   
 
BOARD AND COMMISSION INPUT  
 
None.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
There are five mobile home parks in the City of Boulder.  These parks provide an 
affordable housing option for individuals and families of moderate means.   
 
Several homeowners have alleged that park owners have violated provisions of the 
Mobile Home Park Act.  C.R.S. §§ 38-12-200.1 – 221. (Attachment A).  The Mobile 
Home Park Act is a comprehensive state law regulating the relationship between park 
owners and home owners.   It was originally adopted in 1991.  In 2010, city staff worked 
with the city’s legislative delegation to strengthen the act.   

 
The city has no authority to enforce the Mobile Home Park Act.  The city’s authority is 
limited to enforcement of city ordinances, except where there is a specific delegation in 
state law.  The act does include a private right of action providing that “any home owner 
who owns a home in a mobile home park” can sue a park owner who violates any 
provision of the Mobile Home Park Act.  C.R.S. § 38-12-220.  This remedy is, of course, 
of limited utility to those without the wherewithal to retain an attorney.    

 
At the April 7, 2015 council meeting, the council directed staff to develop a plan to 
provide funding for legal services to assist mobile home owners in enforcing their rights 
under the Mobile Home Park Act.  The intent is that the city would retain and pay an 
attorney who would address concerns relating to harassment and other alleged violations 
of the Mobile Home Park Act.  Council Member Morzel stated that the city provided 

Agenda Item 6B    Page 2Packet Page 488



 

 

$15,000 in 2001 for such services.  Adjusted for inflation, a similar funding level would 
be $20,000 in 2015.  Council will be considering an adjustment to base at the May 5, 
2015 and May 19, 2015 council meetings.  As part of the adjustment to base, staff 
recommends that $20,000 be added to the city manager’s budget for legal services to 
mobile home park owners.   
 
Staff also recommends that the city attorney issue a request for proposals to perform 
these services.  Work can begin on the RFP immediately.  The RFP would be for a fixed 
fee contract of $20,000.  In return for this payment, the attorney would be required to 
respond to inquiries and represent mobile home owners with respect to alleged violations 
of the Mobile Home Park Act.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A – Mobile Home Park Act 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6B    Page 3Packet Page 489



§ 38-12-200.1. Short title 
 
This part 2 shall be known and may be cited as the “Mobile Home Park Act”. 
 
§ 38-12-200.2. Legislative declaration 
 
The general assembly hereby declares that the purpose of this part 2 is to establish the relationship between the 
owner of a mobile home park and the owner of a mobile home situated in such park. 
 
§ 38-12-201. Application of part 2 
 
(1) This part 2 shall apply only to manufactured homes as defined in section 42-1-102(106)(b), C.R.S. 
(2) Repealed by Laws 1981, H.B.1524, § 10. 
 
§ 38-12-201.3. Legislative declaration--increased availability of mobile home parks 
 
The general assembly hereby finds and declares that mobile homes, manufactured housing, and factory-built 
housing are important and effective ways to meet Colorado’s affordable housing needs. The general assembly 
further finds and declares that, because of the unique aspects of mobile homes and mobile home park ownership, 
there is a need to protect mobile home owners from eviction with short notice so as to prevent mobile home owners 
from losing their shelter as well as any equity in their mobile homes. The general assembly encourages local 
governments to allow and protect mobile home parks in their jurisdictions and to enact plans to increase the number 
of mobile home parks in their jurisdictions. The general assembly further encourages local governments to provide 
incentives to mobile home park owners to attract additional mobile home parks and to increase the viability of 
current parks. 
 
§ 38-12-201.5. Definitions 
 
As used in this part 2, unless the context otherwise requires: 
  
(1) “Home owner” means any person or family of such person owning a mobile home that is subject to a tenancy in 
a mobile home park under a rental agreement. 
(1.5) “Management” or “landlord” means the owner or person responsible for operating and managing a mobile 
home park or an agent, employee, or representative authorized to act on said management’s behalf in connection 
with matters relating to tenancy in the park. 
(2) “Mobile home” means a single-family dwelling built on a permanent chassis designed for long-term residential 
occupancy and containing complete electrical, plumbing, and sanitary facilities and designed to be installed in a 
permanent or semipermanent manner with or without a permanent foundation, which is capable of being drawn over 
public highways as a unit, or in sections by special permit, or a manufactured home as defined in section 38-29-
102(6) if the manufactured home is situated in a mobile home park. 
(3) “Mobile home park” or “park” means a parcel of land used for the continuous accommodation of five or more 
occupied mobile homes and operated for the pecuniary benefit of the owner of the parcel of land, his agents, lessees, 
or assignees. Mobile home park does not include mobile home subdivisions or property zoned for manufactured 
home subdivisions. 
(4) “Mobile home space”, “space”, “mobile home lot” or “lot” means a parcel of land within a mobile home park 
designated by the management to accommodate one mobile home and its accessory buildings and to which the 
required sewer and utility connections are provided by the mobile home park. 
(5) “Premises” means a mobile home park and existing facilities and appurtenances therein, including furniture and 
utilities where applicable, and grounds, areas, and existing facilities held out for the use of home owners generally or 
the use of which is promised to the home owner. 
(6) “Rent” means any money or other consideration to be paid to the management for the right of use, possession, 
and occupation of the premises. 
(7) “Rental agreement” means an agreement, written or implied by law, between the management and the home 
owner establishing the terms and conditions of a tenancy, including reasonable rules and regulations promulgated by 
the park management. A lease is a rental agreement. 
(8) Repealed by Laws 1987, H.B.1171, § 15. 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 4Packet Page 490

http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000517&cite=COSTS42-1-102&originatingDoc=N5857ADE0DBE011DB8D12B2375E34596F&refType=SP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)#co_pp_23120000b5c96


(9) “Tenancy” means the rights of a home owner to use a space or lot within a park on which to locate, maintain, and 
occupy a mobile home, lot improvements, and accessory structures for human habitation, including the use of 
services and facilities of the park. 
 
§ 38-12-202.5. Action for termination 
 
(1) The action for termination shall be commenced in the manner described in section 13-40-110, C.R.S. The 
property description shall be deemed legally sufficient and within the meaning of section 13-40-110, C.R.S., if it 
states: 
(a) The name of the landlord or the mobile home park; 
(b) The mailing address of the property; 
(c) The location or space number upon which the mobile home is situate; and 
(d) The county in which the mobile home is situate. 
(2) Service of summons shall be as specified in section 13-40-112, C.R.S. Service by posting shall be deemed 
legally sufficient within the meaning of section 13-40-112, C.R.S., if the summons is affixed to the main entrance of 
the mobile home. 
(3) Jurisdiction of courts in cases of forcible entry, forcible detainer, or unlawful detainer shall be as specified in 
section 13-40-109, C.R.S. Trial on the issue of possession shall be timely as specified in section 13-40-114, C.R.S., 
with no delay allowed for the determination of other issues or claims which may be severed at the discretion of the 
trial court. 
(4) After commencement of the action and before judgment, any person not already a party to the action who is 
discovered to have a property interest in the mobile home shall be allowed to enter into a stipulation with the 
landlord and be bound thereby. 
 
§ 38-12-202. Tenancy--notice to quit 
 
(1)(a) No tenancy or other lease or rental occupancy of space in a mobile home park shall commence without a 
written lease or rental agreement, and no tenancy in a mobile home park shall be terminated until a notice to quit has 
been served. Said notice to quit shall be in writing and in the form specified in section 13-40-107(2), C.R.S. The 
property description required in section 13-40-107(2), C.R.S., shall be deemed legally sufficient if it states: 
(I) The name of the landlord or the mobile home park; 
(II) The mailing address of the property; 
(III) The location or space number upon which the mobile home is situate; and 
(IV) The county in which the mobile home is situate. 
(b) Service of the notice to quit shall be as specified in section 13-40-108, C.R.S. Service by posting shall be 
deemed legally sufficient within the meaning of section 13-40-108, C.R.S., if the notice is affixed to the main 
entrance of the mobile home. 
(c)(I) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (II) of this paragraph (c), the home owner shall be given a 
period of not less than sixty days to remove any mobile home from the premises from the date the notice is served or 
posted. In those situations where a mobile home is being leased to, or occupied by, persons other than its owner and 
in a manner contrary to the rules and regulations of the landlord, then in that event, the tenancy may be terminated 
by the landlord upon giving a thirty-day notice rather than said sixty-day notice. 
(II) If the tenancy is terminated on grounds specified in section 38-12-203(1)(f), the home owner shall be given a 
period of not less than ten days to remove any mobile home from the premises from the date the notice is served or 
posted. 
(2) No lease shall contain any provision by which the home owner waives his or her rights under this part 2, and any 
such waiver shall be deemed contrary to public policy and shall be unenforceable and void. In those situations where 
a mobile home is being leased to, or occupied by, persons other than its owner and in a manner contrary to the rules 
and regulations of the landlord, then, in that event, the tenancy may be terminated by the landlord upon giving a 
thirty-day notice rather than said sixty-day notice. 
(3) The landlord or management of a mobile home park shall specify, in the notice required by this section, the 
reason for the termination, as described in section 38-12-203, of any tenancy in such mobile home park. If the 
tenancy is being terminated based on the mobile home or mobile home lot being out of compliance with the rules 
and regulations adopted pursuant to section 38-12-203(1)(c), the notice required by this section shall include a 
statement advising the home owner that the home owner has a right to cure the noncompliance within thirty days of 
the date of service or posting of the notice to quit. The thirty-day period to cure any noncompliance set forth in this 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 5Packet Page 491



subsection (3) shall run concurrently with the sixty-day period to remove a mobile home from the premises as set 
forth in paragraph (c) of subsection (1) and subsection (2) of this section. Acceptance of rent by the landlord or 
management of a mobile home park during the thirty-day right to cure period set forth in section 38-12-203(1)(c) 
shall not constitute a waiver of the landlord’s right to terminate the tenancy for any noncompliance set forth in 
section 38-12-203(1)(c). 
 
§ 38-12-203. Reasons for termination 
 
(1) A tenancy shall be terminated pursuant to this part 2 only for one or more of the following reasons: 
(a) Failure of the home owner to comply with local ordinances and state laws and regulations relating to mobile 
homes and mobile home lots; 
(b) Conduct of the home owner, on the mobile home park premises, which constitutes an annoyance to other home 
owners or interference with park management; 
(c) Failure of the home owner to comply with written rules and regulations of the mobile home park either 
established by the management in the rental agreement at the inception of the tenancy, amended subsequently 
thereto with the consent of the home owner, or amended subsequently thereto without the consent of the home 
owner on sixty days’ written notice if the amended rules and regulations are reasonable; except that the home owner 
shall have thirty days from the date of service or posting of the notice to quit set forth in section 38-12-202(3) to 
cure any noncompliance on the mobile home or mobile home lot before an action for termination may be 
commenced, except if local ordinances, state laws and regulations, park rules and regulations, or emergency, health, 
or safety situations require immediate compliance. If a home owner was in violation or noncompliance pursuant to 
this paragraph (c) and was given notice and a right to cure such noncompliance and within a twelve-month period 
from the date of service of the notice is in noncompliance of the same rule or regulation and is given notice of the 
second noncompliance, there shall be no right to cure the second noncompliance. Regulations applicable to 
recreational facilities may be amended at the reasonable discretion of the management. For purposes of this 
paragraph (c), when the mobile home is owned by a person other than the owner of the mobile home park, the 
mobile home is a separate unit of ownership, and regulations that are adopted subsequent to the unit location in the 
park without the consent of the home owner and that place restrictions or requirements on that separate unit are 
prima facie unreasonable. Nothing in this paragraph (c) shall prohibit a mobile home park owner from requiring 
compliance with current park unit regulations at the time of sale or transfer of the mobile home to a new owner. 
Transfer under this paragraph (c) shall not include transfer to a co-owner pursuant to death or divorce or to a new 
co-owner pursuant to marriage. 
(d)(I) Condemnation or change of use of the mobile home park. When the owner of a mobile home park is formally 
notified by a notice of intent to acquire pursuant to section 38-1-121(1) or other similar provision of law, or a 
complaint in a condemnation action from an appropriate governmental agency that the mobile home park, or any 
portion thereof, is to be acquired by the governmental agency or may be the subject of a condemnation proceeding, 
the landlord shall, within seventeen days, notify the home owners in writing of the terms of the notice of intent to 
acquire or complaint received by the landlord. 
(II) In those cases where the landlord desires to change the use of the mobile home park and where such change of 
use would result in eviction of inhabited mobile homes, the landlord shall first give the owner of each mobile home 
subject to such eviction a written notice of the landlord’s intent to evict not less than six months prior to such change 
of use of the land, notice to be mailed to each home owner. 
(e) The making or causing to be made, with knowledge, of false or misleading statements on an application for 
tenancy; 
(f) Conduct of the home owner or any lessee of the home owner or any guest, agent, invitee, or associate of the 
home owner or lessee of the home owner, that: 
(I) Occurs on the mobile home park premises and unreasonably endangers the life of the landlord, any home owner 
or lessee of the mobile home park, any person living in the park, or any guest, agent, invitee, or associate of the 
home owner or lessee of the home owner; 
(II) Occurs on the mobile home park premises and constitutes willful, wanton, or malicious damage to or destruction 
of property of the landlord, any home owner or lessee of the mobile home park, any person living in the park, or any 
guest, agent, invitee, or associate of the home owner or lessee of the home owner; 
(III) Occurs on the mobile home park premises and constitutes a felony prohibited under article 3, 4, 6, 7, 9, 10, 12, 
or 18 of title 18, C.R.S.; or 
(IV) Is the basis for a pending action to declare the mobile home or any of its contents a class 1 public nuisance 
under section 16-13-303, C.R.S. 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 6Packet Page 492



(2) In an action pursuant to this part 2, the landlord shall have the burden of proving that the landlord complied with 
the relevant notice requirements and that the landlord provided the home owner with a statement of reasons for the 
termination. In addition to any other defenses a home owner may have, it shall be a defense that the landlord’s 
allegations are false or that the reasons for termination are invalid. 
 
§ 38-12-204. Nonpayment of rent--notice required for rent increase 
 
(1) Any tenancy or other estate at will or lease in a mobile home park may be terminated upon the landlord’s written 
notice to the home owner requiring, in the alternative, payment of rent or the removal of the home owner’s unit from 
the premises, within a period of not less than five days after the date notice is served or posted, for failure to pay rent 
when due. 
(2) Rent shall not be increased without sixty days’ written notice to the home owner. In addition to the amount and 
the effective date of the rent increase, such written notice shall include the name, address, and telephone number of 
the mobile home park management, if such management is a principal owner, or owner of the mobile home park 
and, if the owner is other than a natural person, the name, address, and telephone number of the owner’s chief 
executive officer or managing partner; except that such ownership information need not be given if it was disclosed 
in the rental agreement made pursuant to section 38-12-213. 
 
§ 38-12-204.3. Notice required for termination 
 
(1) Where the tenancy of a mobile home owner is being terminated under section 38-12-202 or section 38-12-204, 
the landlord or mobile home park owner shall provide such mobile home owner with written notice as provided for 
in subsection (2) of this section. Service of such notice shall occur at the same time and in the same manner as 
service of: 
(a) The notice to quit as provided in section 38-12-202(1); or 
(b) The notice of nonpayment of rent as provided in section 38-12-204(1). 
(2) The notice required under this section shall be in at least ten-point type and shall read as follows: 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO THE HOME OWNER: 
  
 
This notice and the accompanying notice to quit/notice of nonpayment of rent are the first steps in the eviction 
process. Any dispute you may have regarding the grounds for eviction should be addressed with your landlord or the 
management of the mobile home park or in the courts if an eviction action is filed. Please be advised that the 
“Mobile Home Park Act”, part 2 of article 12 of title 38, Colorado Revised Statutes, may provide you with legal 
protection: 
 
NOTICE TO QUIT: The landlord or management of a mobile home park must serve to a home owner a notice to 
quit in order to terminate a home owner’s tenancy. The notice must be in writing and must contain certain 
information, including: 
 
• The grounds for the termination of the tenancy; 
 
• Whether or not the home owner has a right to cure under the “Mobile Home Park Act”; and 
 
• That the home owner has a right to mediation pursuant to section 38-12-216, Colorado Revised Statutes, of the 
“Mobile Home Park Act”. 
 
NOTICE OF NONPAYMENT OF RENT: The landlord or management of a mobile home park must serve to a 
home owner a notice of nonpayment of rent in order to terminate a home owner’s tenancy. The notice must be in 
writing and must require that the home owner either make payment of rent and any applicable fees due and owing or 
remove the owner’s unit from the premises, within a period of not less than five days after the date the notice is 
served or posted, for failure to pay rent when due. 
  
CURE PERIODS: If the home owner has a right to cure under the “Mobile Home Park Act”, the landlord or 
management of a mobile home park cannot terminate a home owner’s tenancy without first providing the home 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 7Packet Page 493



owner with a time period to cure the noncompliance. “Cure” refers to a home owner remedying, fixing, or otherwise 
correcting the situation or problem that caused the tenancy to be terminated pursuant to sections 38-12-202, 38-12-
203, or 38-12-204, Colorado Revised Statutes. 
  
COMMENCEMENT OF LEGAL ACTION TO TERMINATE THE TENANCY: After the last day of the notice 
period, a legal action may be commenced to take possession of the space leased by the home owner. In order to evict 
a home owner, the landlord or management of the mobile home park must prove: 
  
• The landlord or management complied with the notice requirements of the “Mobile Home Park Act”; 
  
• The landlord or management provided the home owner with a statement of reasons for termination of the tenancy; 
and 
  
• The reasons for termination of the tenancy are true and valid under the “Mobile Home Park Act”. 
 
A home owner must appear in court to defend against an eviction action. If the court rules in favor of the landlord or 
management of the mobile home park, the home owner will have not less than 48 hours from the time of the ruling 
to remove the mobile home and to vacate the premises. If a tenancy is being terminated pursuant to section 38-12-
203(1)(f), Colorado Revised Statutes, the home owner shall have not less than 48 hours from the time of the ruling 
to remove the home and vacate the premises. In all other circumstances, if the home owner wishes to extend such 
period beyond 48 hours but not more than thirty days from the date of the ruling, the home owner shall prepay to the 
landlord an amount equal to any total amount declared by the court to be due to the landlord, as well as a pro rata 
share of rent for each day following the court’s ruling that the mobile home owner will remain on the premises. All 
prepayments shall be paid by certified check, by cashier’s check, or by wire transfer and shall be paid no later than 
48 hours after the court ruling. 
 
§ 38-12-205. Termination prohibited 
 
A tenancy or other estate at will or lease in a mobile home park may not be terminated solely for the purpose of 
making the home owner’s space in the park available for another mobile home or trailer coach. 
 
§ 38-12-206. Home owner meetings--assembly in common areas 
 
Home owners shall have the right to meet and establish a homeowners’ association. Meetings of home owners or the 
homeowners’ association relating to mobile home living and affairs in their park common area, community hall, or 
recreation hall, if such a facility or similar facility exists, shall not be subject to prohibition by the park management 
if the common area or hall is reserved according to the park rules and such meetings are held at reasonable hours and 
when the facility is not otherwise in use; except that no such meetings shall be held in the streets or thoroughfares of 
the mobile home park. 
 
§ 38-12-207. Security deposits--legal process 
 
(1) The owner of a mobile home park or his agents may charge a security deposit not greater than the amount of one 
month’s rent or two month’s rent for multiwide units. 
 
(2) Legal process, other than eviction, shall be used for the collection of utility charges and incidental service 
charges other than those provided by the rental agreement. 
 
§ 38-12-208. Remedies 
 
(1)(a) Upon granting judgment for possession by the landlord in a forcible entry and detainer action, the court shall 
immediately issue a writ of restitution which the landlord shall take to the sheriff. In addition, if a money judgment 
has been requested in the complaint and if service was accomplished by personal service, the court shall determine 
and enter judgment for any amounts due to the landlord and shall calculate a pro rata daily rent amount that must be 
paid for the home to remain in the park. The court may rely upon information provided by the landlord or the 
landlord’s attorney when determining the pro rata daily rent amount to be paid by the home owner. Upon receipt of 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 8Packet Page 494



the writ of restitution, the sheriff shall serve notice in accordance with the requirements of section 13-40-108, 
C.R.S., to the home owner of the court’s decision and entry of judgment. 
 
(b) The notice of judgment shall state that, at a specified time not less than forty-eight hours from the entry of 
judgment if a tenancy is being terminated pursuant to section 38-12-203(1)(f) and, in all other instances, not less 
than forty-eight hours from the entry of judgment, which may be extended to not more than thirty days after the 
entry of judgment if the home owner has prepaid by certified check, by cashier’s check, or by wire transfer no later 
than forty-eight hours after the court ruling to the landlord an amount equal to any total amount declared by the 
court to be due to the landlord, as well as a pro rata share of rent for each day following the court’s ruling that the 
mobile home owner will remain on the premises, the sheriff will return to serve a writ of restitution and superintend 
the peaceful and orderly removal of the mobile home under that order of court. The notice of judgment shall also 
advise the home owner to prepare the mobile home for removal from the premises by removing the skirting, 
disconnecting utilities, attaching tires, and otherwise making the mobile home safe and ready for highway travel. 
 
(c) Should the home owner fail to have the mobile home safe and ready for physical removal from the premises or 
should inclement weather or other unforeseen problems occur at the time specified in the notice of judgment, the 
landlord and the sheriff may, by written agreement, extend the time for the execution of the writ of restitution to 
allow time for the landlord to arrange to have the necessary work done or to permit the sheriff’s execution of the 
writ of restitution at a time when weather or other conditions will make removal less hazardous to the mobile home. 
 
(d) If the mobile home is not removed from the landlord’s land on behalf of the mobile home owner within the time 
permitted by the writ of restitution, then the landlord and the sheriff shall have the right to take possession of the 
mobile home for the purposes of removal and storage. The liability of the landlord and the sheriff in such event shall 
be limited to gross negligence or willful and wanton disregard of the property rights of the home owner. The 
responsibility to prevent freezing and to prevent wind and weather damage to the mobile home lies exclusively with 
those persons who have a property interest in the mobile home; except that the landlord may take appropriate action 
to prevent freezing, to prevent wind and weather damage, and to prevent damage caused by vandals. 
 
(e) Reasonable removal and storage charges and the costs associated with preventing damage caused by wind, 
weather, or vandals can be paid by any party in interest. Those charges will run with the mobile home, and whoever 
ultimately claims the mobile home will owe that sum to the person who paid it. 
 
(2)(a) Prior to the issuance of said writ of restitution, the court shall make a finding of fact based upon evidence or 
statements of counsel that there is or is not a security agreement on the mobile home being subjected to the writ of 
restitution. A written statement on the mobile home owner’s application for tenancy with the landlord that there is 
no security agreement on the mobile home shall be prima facie evidence of the nonexistence of such security 
agreement. 
 
(b) In those cases where the court finds there is a security agreement on the mobile home subject to the writ of 
restitution and where that holder of the security agreement can be identified with reasonable certainty, then, upon 
receipt of the writ of restitution, the plaintiff shall promptly inform the holder of such security agreement as to the 
location of the mobile home, the name of the landlord who obtained the writ of restitution, and the time when the 
mobile home will be subject to removal by the sheriff and the landlord. 
  
(3) The remedies provided in part 1 of this article and article 40 of title 13, C.R.S., except as inconsistent with this 
part 2, shall be applicable to this part 2. 
 
§ 38-12-209. Entry fees prohibited--entry fee defined--security deposit--court costs 
 
(1) The owner of a mobile home park, or the agent of such owner, shall neither pay to nor receive from an owner or 
a seller of a mobile home an entry fee of any type as a condition of tenancy in a mobile home park. 
(2) As used in this section, “entry fee” means any fee paid to or received from an owner of a mobile home park or 
his agent except for: 
(a) Rent; 
(b) A security deposit against actual damages to the premises or to secure rental payments, which deposit shall not 
be greater than the amount allowed under this part 2. Subsequent to July 1, 1979, security deposits will remain the 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 9Packet Page 495



property of the home owner, and they shall be deposited into a separate trust account by the landlord to be 
administered by the landlord as a private trustee. For the purpose of preserving the corpus, the landlord will not 
commingle the trust funds with other money, but he is permitted to keep the interest and profits thereon as his 
compensation for administering the trust account. 
(c) Fees charged by any state, county, town, or city governmental agency; 
(d) Utilities; 
(e) Incidental reasonable charges for services actually performed by the mobile home park owner or his agent and 
agreed to in writing by the home owner. 
(3) The trial judge may award court costs and attorney fees in any court action brought pursuant to any provision of 
this part 2 to the prevailing party upon finding that the prevailing party undertook the court action and legal 
representation for a legally sufficient reason and not for a dilatory or unfounded cause. 
(4) The management or the resident may bring a civil action for violation of the rental agreement or any provision of 
this part 2 in the appropriate court of the county in which the park is located. Either party may recover actual 
damages or, the court may in its discretion award such equitable relief as it deems necessary, including the enjoining 
of either party from further violations. 
 
§ 38-12-210. Closed parks prohibited 
 
(1) The owner of a mobile home park or his agent shall not require as a condition of tenancy in a mobile home park 
that the prospective home owner has purchased a mobile home from any particular seller or from any one of a 
particular group of sellers.  
 
(2) Such owner or agent shall not give any special preference in renting to a prospective home owner who has 
purchased a mobile home from a particular seller. 
  
(3) A seller of mobile homes shall not require as a condition of sale that a purchaser locate in a particular mobile 
home park or in any one of a particular group of mobile home parks. 
  
(4) The owner or operator of a mobile home park shall treat all persons equally in renting or leasing available space. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this subsection (4) shall be construed to preclude owners and operators of 
mobile home parks from providing housing for older persons as defined in section 24-34-502(7)(b), C.R.S. 
 
§ 38-12-211. Selling fees prohibited 
 
The owner of a mobile home park or his agent shall not require payment of any type of selling fee or transfer fee by 
either a home owner in the park wishing to sell his mobile home to another party or by any party wishing to buy a 
mobile home from a home owner in the park as a condition of tenancy in a mobile home park for the prospective 
buyer. This section shall in no way prevent the owner of a mobile home park or his agent from applying the normal 
park standards to prospective buyers before granting or denying tenancy or from charging a reasonable selling fee or 
transfer fee for services actually performed and agreed to in writing by the home owner. Nothing in this section shall 
be construed to affect the rent charged. The owner of a mobile home shall have the right to place a “for sale” sign on 
or in his mobile home. The size, placement, and character of such signs shall be subject to reasonable rules and 
regulations of the mobile home park. 
 
§ 38-12-212. Certain types of landlord-seller agreements prohibited 
 
A seller of mobile homes shall not pay or offer cash or other consideration to the owner of a mobile home park or 
his agent for the purpose of reserving spaces or otherwise inducing acceptance of one or more mobile homes in a 
mobile home park. 
 
§ 38-12-212.3. Responsibilities of landlord--acts prohibited 
 
(1)(a) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a landlord shall be responsible for and pay the cost of the 
maintenance and repair of: 
(I) Any sewer lines, water lines, utility service lines, or related connections owned and provided by the landlord to 
the utility pedestal or pad space for a mobile home sited in the park; and  

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 10Packet Page 496



(II) Any accessory buildings or structures, including, but not limited to, sheds and carports, owned by the landlord 
and provided for the use of the residents; and 
(III) The premises as defined in section 38-12-201.5(5). 
(b) Any landlord who fails to maintain or repair the items delineated in paragraph (a) of this subsection (1) shall be 
responsible for and pay the cost of repairing any damage to a mobile home which results from such failure. The 
landlord shall ensure that all plumbing lines and connections owned and provided by the landlord to the utility 
pedestal or pad space for each mobile home in the mobile home park have plumbing that conformed to applicable 
law in effect at the time the plumbing was installed and that is maintained in good working order and running water 
and reasonable amounts of water at all times furnished to the utility pedestal or pad space and shall ensure that each 
pad space is connected to a sewage disposal system approved under applicable law; except that these conditions 
need not be met if: 
(I) A mobile home is individually metered and the tenant occupying the mobile home fails to pay for water services; 
(II) The local government in which the mobile home park is situated shuts off water service to a mobile home for 
any reason; 
(III) Weather conditions present a likelihood that water pipes will freeze, water pipes to a mobile home are wrapped 
in heated pipe tape, and the utility company has shut off electrical service to a mobile home for any reason or the 
heat tape malfunctions for any reason; or 
(IV) Running water is not available for any other reason outside the landlord’s control. 
(c) The landlord shall give a minimum of two days’ notice to a mobile home owner if the water service will be 
disrupted for planned maintenance. The landlord shall attempt to give a reasonable amount of notice to home owners 
if water service is to be disrupted for any other reasons unless conditions are such that providing the notice would 
result in property damage, health, or safety concerns or when conditions otherwise require emergency repair. 
(2) No landlord shall require a resident to assume the responsibilities outlined in subsection (1) of this section as a 
condition of tenancy in the mobile home park. 
(3) Nothing in this section shall be construed as: 
(a) Limiting the liability of a resident for the cost of repairing any damage caused by such resident to the landlord’s 
property or other property located in the park; or 
(b) Restricting a landlord or his agent or a property manager from requiring a resident to comply with reasonable 
rules and regulations or terms of the rental agreement and any covenants binding upon the landlord or resident, 
including covenants running with the land which pertain to the cleanliness of such resident’s lot and routine lawn 
and yard maintenance, exclusive of major landscaping projects. 
 
§ 38-12-212.7. Landlord utilities account 
 
(1) Whenever a landlord contracts with a utility for service to be provided to a resident, the usage of which is to be 
measured by a master meter or other composite measurement device, such landlord shall remit to the utility all 
moneys collected from each resident as payment for the resident’s share of the charges for such utility service within 
forty-five days of the landlord’s receipt of payment. 
(2) If a landlord fails to timely remit utility moneys collected from residents as required by subsection (1) of this 
section, such utility may, after written demand therefor is served upon the landlord, require the landlord to deposit 
an amount equal to the average daily charge for the usage of such utility service for the preceding twelve months 
multiplied by the sum of ninety. 
(3) Any utility which prevails in an action brought to enforce the provisions of this section shall be entitled to an 
award of its reasonable attorney fees and court costs. 
 
§ 38-12-213. Rental agreement--disclosure of terms in writing 
 
(1) The terms and conditions of a tenancy must be adequately disclosed in writing in a rental agreement by the 
management to any prospective home owner prior to the rental or occupancy of a mobile home space or lot. Said 
disclosures shall include: 
(a) The term of the tenancy and the amount of rent therefor, subject to the requirements of subsection (4) of this 
section; 
(b) The day rental payment is due and payable; 
(c) The day when unpaid rent shall be considered in default; 
(d) The rules and regulations of the park then in effect; 
(e) The name and mailing address where a manager’s decision can be appealed; 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 11Packet Page 497



  
(f) All charges to the home owner other than rent. 
(2) Said rental agreement shall be signed by both the management and the home owner, and each party shall receive 
a copy thereof. 
(3) The management and the home owner may include in a rental agreement terms and conditions not prohibited by 
this part 2. 
(4) The terms of tenancy shall be specified in a written rental agreement subject to the following conditions: 
(a) The standard rental agreement shall be for a month-to-month tenancy. 
(b) Upon written request by the home owner to the landlord, the landlord shall allow a rental agreement for a fixed 
tenancy of not less than one year if the home owner is current on all rent payments and is not in violation of the 
terms of the then-current rental agreement; except that an initial rental agreement for a fixed tenancy may be for less 
than one year in order to ensure conformity with a standard anniversary date. A landlord shall not evict or otherwise 
penalize a home owner for requesting a rental agreement for a fixed period. 
(c) A landlord may, in the landlord’s discretion, allow a lease for a fixed period of longer than one year. In such 
circumstances, the requirements of paragraphs (a) and (b) of this subsection (4) shall not apply. 
 
§ 38-12-214. Rules and regulations 
 
(1) The management shall adopt written rules and regulations concerning all home owners’ use and occupancy of 
the premises. Such rules and regulations are enforceable against a home owner only if: 
(a) Their purpose is to promote the convenience, safety, or welfare of the home owners, protect and preserve the 
premises from abusive use, or make a fair distribution of services and facilities held out for the home owners 
generally; 
(b) They are reasonably related to the purpose for which they are adopted; 
(c) They are not retaliatory or discriminatory in nature; 
(d) They are sufficiently explicit in prohibition, direction, or limitation of the home owner’s conduct to fairly inform 
him of what he must or must not do to comply. 
 
§ 38-12-215. New developments and parks--rental of sites to dealers authorized 
 
(1) The management of a new mobile home park or manufactured housing community development may require as 
a condition of leasing a mobile home site or manufactured home site for the first time such site is offered for lease 
that the prospective lessee has purchased a mobile home or manufactured home from a particular seller or from any 
one of a particular group of sellers. 
(2) A licensed mobile home dealer or a manufactured home dealer may, by contract with the management of a new 
mobile home park or manufactured housing community development, be granted the exclusive right to first-time 
rental of one or more mobile home sites or manufactured home sites. 
 
§ 38-12-216. Mediation, when permitted--court actions 
 
(1) In any controversy between the management and a home owner of a mobile home park arising out of the 
provisions of this part 2, except for the nonpayment of rent or in cases in which the health or safety of other home 
owners is in imminent danger, such controversy may be submitted to mediation by either party prior to the filing of a 
forcible entry and detainer lawsuit upon agreement of the parties. 
(2) The agreement, if one is reached, shall be presented to the court as a stipulation. Either party to the mediation 
may terminate the mediation process at any time without prejudice. 
(3) If either party subsequently violates the stipulation, the other party may apply immediately to the court for relief. 
 
§ 38-12-217. Notice of sale of mobile home park--notice of change in use 
 
(1)(a) The mobile home park owner shall notify the owners of all mobile homes in the park and the municipality in 
which the park is situated or, if none, the county in which the park is situated of his or her intent to change the use of 
the land comprising the park or to sell the park pursuant to paragraph (b) or (c) of this subsection (1), as applicable. 
(b) If the mobile home park owner intends to sell the park, the notification shall be made only once for any 
particular contract to sell or trade and shall be by written notice mailed to each mobile home owner at the address 
shown on the rental agreement with the mobile home park owner at least ten days prior to the first scheduled closing 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 12Packet Page 498



for the sale or trade. 
(c) If the mobile home park owner intends to change the use of the land comprising the mobile home park, the 
mobile home park owner shall give written notice to each mobile home owner at least one hundred eighty days 
before the change in use will occur. The mobile home park owner shall mail the written notice to each mobile home 
owner at the address shown on the rental agreement with the mobile home park owner. 
(2) The provisions of paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of this section shall not apply to the sale of a mobile home park 
when such sale occurs between members of an immediate family, related business entities, members and managers 
of a limited liability company, shareholders, officers, and directors in a corporation, trustees and beneficiaries of a 
trust, or partners and limited liability partners in a partnership or limited liability partnership; except that such 
purchasers shall not change the use of the land comprising the mobile home park without complying with the notice 
provisions of this section. For purposes of this section, “immediate family” means persons related by blood or 
adoption. 
 
§ 38-12-218. Mobile home owners--right to form a cooperative 
 
One or more members of a homeowners’ association may, at any time, form a cooperative for the purposes of 
offering to purchase or finance a mobile home park. A home owner shall be a member of the homeowners’ 
association in order to participate in the cooperative, and participation in the cooperative shall be voluntary. 
 
§ 38-12-219. Home owners’ and landlords’ rights 
 
(1) Every home owner and landlord shall have the right to the following: 
(a) Protection from abuse or disregard of state or local law by the landlord and home owners; 
(b) Peaceful enjoyment of the home owner’s mobile home space, free from unreasonable, arbitrary, or capricious 
rules and enforcement thereof; and 
(c) Tenancy free from harassment or frivolous lawsuits by the landlord and homeowners. 
 
§ 38-12-220. Private civil right of action 
 
Any home owner who owns a home in a mobile home park where the landlord has violated any provision of this 
article shall have a private civil right of action against the landlord. In any such action, the home owner shall be 
entitled to actual economic damages and reasonable attorney fees and costs if the home owner is successful in the 
action. 
 
§ 38-12-221. Access by counties and municipalities 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, upon a finding that the utilities in a park create a significant health or 
safety danger to park residents, the landlord of a mobile home park shall grant county or municipal officers or 
employees access to the mobile home park for the purposes of investigating or conducting a study related to such 
danger. 
 
 

Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

Agenda Item 6B    Page 13Packet Page 499



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: April 21, 2015 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE:  Consideration of a motion to support city participation in a 
Consortium of Cities Permanent Supportive Housing Study and authorize the city 
manager to allocate up to $20,000 for the city’s contribution.  
 
 
PRESENTERS   
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Karen Rahn, Director, Human Services  
Wendy Schwartz, Planning and Program Development Manager, Human Services 
 

  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Homelessness remains an important community concern in the City of Boulder and 
throughout Boulder County. Chronically homeless people are often dealing with multiple 
complex problems, have the greatest barriers to exiting homelessness and represent a 
significant demand on community resources. Permanent supportive housing (PSH) is a 
nationally recognized best practice in helping chronically homeless people leave 
homelessness and stabilize, reducing their utilization of community resources. 
 
Although more PSH is needed to house the estimated 300 chronically homeless people 
across the county, there has not yet been a comprehensive PSH needs analysis for the 
entire county or a plan of how to best meet that need. To address this issue and further the 
goals of the Boulder County Ten-Year Plan to Address Homelessness (Ten-Year Plan), 
the Ten-Year Plan Board has proposed a countywide PSH study to assess needs and gaps 
in housing acquisition and develop recommendations for PSH across the county. The 
City is a member of the Ten Year Plan Board and is partnering with the county on 
coordinating this study, should it go forward.  The Boulder County Consortium of Cities 
(Consortium) expressed interest in supporting the Ten-Year Plan Board PSH study, and 
has asked members to have discussions with their respective city councils about funding 
this project. 
 
The PSH study aligns with four strategies  identified in the City of Boulder Homelessness 
Strategy, currently under development: 

Agenda Item 8B    Page 1Packet Page 500

http://buildinglivablecommunities.org/HomelessPlan/index.html


• Strategy 1: Strengthen Regional Partnerships; 
• Strategy 2: Innovative Solutions to Increase Housing Options;  
• Strategy 3: Improve Local Service Integration, Coordination, Data Collection and 

Outcomes Reporting; and  
• Strategy 4: Improve Community Education and Dialogue About Homelessness. 

 
The estimated cost for the study is $60,000-$75,000. It is anticipated that Consortium 
cities would contribute funding in amounts roughly proportionate to their share of the 
county population. If council approves participation in this project, the Human Services 
Department has identified up to $20,000 from 2014 department savings as part of the 
May 2015 budget adjustment to fund the city’s portion of the study.  This amount of the 
estimated cost of the study is consistent with the city’s proportion of approximately one-
third of the county’s population.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion:  
 
Motion to support city participation in a Consortium of Cities Permanent Supportive 
Housing Study and authorize the city manager to allocate up to $20,000 for the city’s 
contribution.  
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS  

• Economic - Lack of permanent housing for homeless families and individuals 
across Boulder County creates demands and impacts in the key service centers of 
Boulder and Longmont and on resources devoted to public health and safety.  
 

• Environmental – None identified. 
 

• Social - PSH is a proven effective strategy in addressing chronic homelessness 
and can improve quality of life for residents and reduce impacts of homelessness 
on the entire community. PSH is also aligned with the city’s support for the Ten-
Year Plan and the city’s homelessness efforts, which anticipate initiatives directed 
at long-term, sustainable and cost effective programs.  
 

OTHER IMPACTS 
• Fiscal - If city council supports the Consortium of Cities Permanent Supportive 

Housing study, the Human Services Department will request up to $20,000 from 
the existing budget to fund the city’s portion of the study.  

 
• Staff resources - Staff time devoted to coordinating the city’s effort on this study 

is within the current work plan and budget.  
 
 

Agenda Item 8B    Page 2Packet Page 501



BACKGROUND  
Homelessness in the City of Boulder and Countywide 
Homelessness is an ongoing concern in the City of Boulder and throughout Boulder 
County, with an average of 1900 people counted as homeless countywide in annual Point 
In Time (PIT) homeless surveys between 2012-2014. During the same time period, an 
average of 646 people were counted as homeless annually in the City of Boulder. 
National estimates suggest PIT undercounts the homeless population. 
 
An estimated 300 people across the county are considered “chronically homeless” based 
on length of homelessness and disabling health or mental health conditions. Chronically 
homeless people often are dealing with multiple complex problems and have the greatest 
barriers to exiting homelessness. 
 
Best Practice - Housing First and Permanent Supportive Housing 
“Housing First” is a nationally recognized best practice in helping chronically homeless 
people leave homelessness and stabilize their lives. In a Housing First model, individuals 
are provided with permanent housing as soon as possible, then supported in addressing 
issues such as mental health, substance use or other problems. Research demonstrates that 
people are more successful in addressing other complex issues when their housing 
situation is stabilized. The City of Boulder endorsed the Housing First approach when it 
accepted the Ten-Year Plan in 2010. 
 
PSH is a key implementation tool of the Housing First model. PSH is permanent housing 
that includes supportive services such as case management and connection to community 
services such as counseling and health care. The city has supported PSH projects locally, 
including the new PSH development at 1175 Lee Hill, with significant capital and 
operating funds.  
 
PSH provides better outcomes for chronically homeless people, and reduces community 
costs incurred when high-need individuals stay on the streets and cycle through expensive 
services including law enforcement, the court system and emergency rooms. National 
studies suggest that PSH can save $15,000-$30,000 per person per year. A 2008 study of 
the Boulder County Housing First program found that people reduced contacts with 
police by nearly 80 percent after entering permanent supportive housing, and ongoing 
data tracking from this program demonstrates that approximately 75 percent remain 
housed after two years. 
 
The project aligns with the  following four strategies from the City of Boulder 
Homelessness Strategy, currently under development: 

• Strategy 1: Strengthen Regional Partnerships – Homelessness is a regional 
problem, and Consortium partnership on the PSH study opens up a dialogue for 
broader participation and support in addressing homelessness and an opportunity 
to leverage regional resources for solutions. 

• Strategy 2: Innovative Solutions to Increase Housing Options – Housing, 
particularly PSH, is extremely challenging to site, fund and build throughout the 
county. The engagement of Consortium partners on the PSH analysis and plan can 

Agenda Item 8B    Page 3Packet Page 502

http://buildinglivablecommunities.org/HomelessPlan/Approach/approach_implementation.html


increase momentum and support for a PSH pipeline and more strategic investment 
in housing resources and removal of barriers to these developments. Local 
housing authorities have expressed an interest in supporting communities in 
addressing homeless housing and have requested more information on what type 
of units are needed in various parts of the county. 

• Strategy 3: Improve Local Service Integration, Coordination, Data Collection and 
Outcomes Reporting – A thorough PSH analysis and plan can improve 
community understanding of gaps and needs and how to address them for better 
system-wide planning.  

• Strategy 4: Improve Community Education and Dialogue About Homelessness – 
A quality analysis of PSH needs and opportunities can be a helpful tool for 
community dialogue about PSH and future sites for PSH developments. 

 
Countywide PSH Study 
Although more PSH is needed to house the estimated 300 chronically homeless people 
across the county, there has not yet been a comprehensive PSH needs analysis for the 
entire county or a plan of how to best meet that need. 
 
As part of its work plan, the Ten-Year Plan Board has had three meetings between 
December 2014 and April 2015 with the Consortium to discuss Ten-Year Plan goals and 
needs, including understanding where and how opportunities for expanding PSH across 
the county could be realized.  The Consortium expressed interest in supporting the Ten-
Year Plan Board PSH study. The study would include: 

• Assessment of available PSH across the county; 
• Assessment of numbers of chronically homeless across the county by community; 
• Analysis of available and new data on needs and gaps by community; 
• Identification of barriers to the creation of PSH, including market forces, 

development and land use barriers or other regulatory barriers; 
• Identification of existing and new opportunities and assets to create PSH; and  
• Cost projections and potential funding mechanisms. 

 
Staff from Boulder County and the City of Boulder are researching consultants with 
demonstrated competencies in these areas of analysis. The estimated cost for the study is 
$60,000-$75,000. It is anticipated that after completing research into potential 
consultants, finalizing the scope of work and review with the Consortium, a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) could be released by July 2015, with the study completed by the end of 
2015. 
 
The Consortium has asked members to have discussions with their city councils 
regarding interest in participating in and funding this project. It is requested that 
Consortium cities contribute funding in amounts roughly proportionate to their share of 
the county population.  
 
If council supports this project, the Human Services Department will allocate up to 
$20,000 to fund this study.  
  

Agenda Item 8B    Page 4Packet Page 503



NEXT STEPS 
• June 2015 – Proposal presented (and approved) at Consortium of Cities Meeting 
• July 2015 – RFP released for Permanent Supportive Housing Study 
• December 2015 – PSH Study completed 

Agenda Item 8B    Page 5Packet Page 504







City of Boulder
2015 Work Plan
 (Tentative as of December 16, 2014)

Project 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

CC: Open Access Transmission Tariff    

SS: Power Supply 
SS (2): Rates, Energy Services, Power 

Supply
Project update  Project update

 Budget update  Budget update  Budget update  Budget update
Staff Activities Municipalization Transition Plan Municipalization Transition Plan Municipalization Transition Plan Municipalization Transition Plan

Council 
SS: Review interim goals, targets and 

strategies

Staff Activities Launch action plan 
Energy system transformation; blue 

print convening Implementation based on action plan Implementation based on action plan

Council Briefing SS (2)

Staff Activities
Housing Matters launch event, 

engagement activities 
Draft strategy development

Implementation based on adopted 
strategy

Implementation based on adopted 
strategy

SS: Direction of preferred scenario SS : Draft plan and action plan

Next Corridor - 30th St or Colorado

Staff Activities Develop East Arapahoe action plan
Council SS Direction or IP Direction or IP Direction or IP

Staff Activities Develop scoping plan Strategy analysis and development Strategy analysis and development Strategy analysis and development
Council SS Direction or IP Direction or IP

Staff Activities Issues identification Strategy analysis and development Strategy analysis and development Strategy analysis and development
Council Update and coordinate with BVCP Update and coordinate with BVCP

Staff Activities

Council Briefing Briefing
Staff Activities

SS : Review options & Update; 
including recommendations for TDM 

tool kit for new development

Council action on TDM Tool Kit for 
new development

Recommendations including planning 
code changes

SS: Review options and update 
Ongoing work plan in 7 focus areas Ongoing work plan Ongoing work plan Ongoing work plan
Alternatives analysis and specific 

option development

Specific option 

development/refinements
Joint Board workshop & public 

engagement
Joint Board workshop & public 

engagement

Council

Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan

Sustainable Streets and Centers/ East Arapahoe

Council 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

C
li

m
a

te
 a

n
d

 
E

n
er

g
y

 Comprehensive Housing Strategy (Housing 
Boulder)

 Energy Future and Associated Projects 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/L
a

n
d

 U
se

 
P

la
n

n
in

g

Climate Commitment

Resilience

Transportation Master Plan Implementation

Staff and elected official activities ongoing 
Regional Travel

Access Management and Parking Strategy (AMPS)

Staff Activities

Council

C:\Users\burnt1\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\SGAYQBHC\CAG Timeline12 12 16 14 FINAL (5)CAG Timeline12 12 16 14 FINAL (5) 1 3/26/2015



City of Boulder
2015 Work Plan
 (Tentative as of December 16, 2014)

Project 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Council SS: Parkland Concepts Plan CC: Approval of Concept Plan
Outreach to community & partners; 

create delivery plan for spring, 
summer, fall events

Deliver spring events Deliver summer activities and events
Review 2015 activation; compare lessons 

from 2014 and revise for 2016

Draft of parkland concept plan options 
for public workshop, Boards, Council 

review 

Board/Commission input on Concept 
Plan

Begin detailed design work on park 
improvements

Complete detailed design work for 
bidding 

Develop overall site master plan 
concepts, begin to formulate major 

capital projects

Initial feasibility planning on major 
capital projects

Continue to develop capital projects, 
identify potential partners, explore 

financing options

Continue to develop capital projects, 
identify potential partners, explore 

financing options

Council IP and local meals for Council Pilot

Council consideration of Local Food 
Procurement Policy; Review and 

acceptance of Ag Resources 

Management Plan

Council consideration of Local Food 
Procurement Policy; Review and 

acceptance of Ag Resources Management 

Plan

Staff Activities

SS: Review options IP 
CC: Public Hearing and Decision                                                                                                          

Recommendation & development of 
ordinances, changes and recommend 

other strategies to address 
Moratorium goals 

Follow up on other strategies & 
coordination with Hill Reinvestment 
Strategy; incorporate strategies into 

other work plan

Board review & public engagement Board review & public engagement

 Direction  on 14th Street 
redevelopment proposal 

SS 

SS: Update on strategy 
Residential service district (RSD) pilot 

program
RSD pilot program RSD pilot program RSD pilot program

Work plan implementation Work plan implementation Work plan implementation On-going work plan  implementation

Establish benchmarks  and evaluation 
criteria

Commercial district: Eco Pass Study & 
Commercial bear dumpsters

Implement volunteer program for 
clean up

Evaluate existing programs

Integration of strategy 
recommendations from Moratorium

Research options for sustainable 
governance & funding

Develop options for sustainable 
governance & funding

14th Street Lot public/private 
partnership redevelopment options re: 

work force affordable housing

14th Street Lot public/private 
partnership redevelopment options 

re: work force affordable housing

Stakeholder engagement Stakeholder engagement Stakeholder engagement Stakeholder engagement

Council IP: 2014 Accomplishments 
SS: As part of Human Services strategy 

update 
IP - Services and Regional coordination 

update
Staff Activities

Council 
Council update and input on testing 

phase
Briefing

SS: Adoption of Community Cultural 
Plan

Staff Activities
Research phase complete. Drafting 

phase complete. Testing phase begins
Testing phase complete. Certification 

phase begins
Implementation begins. New public art 

policy drafting
Public Art Policy drafting 

L
iv

a
b

il
it

y
L

o
ca

l 
F

o
o

d

Sustainable Agriculture and Local Foods 

Homeless Action Plan

C
iv

ic
 A

re
a

Community Cultural Plan 

Staff Activities

University Hill Moratorium

Council

Council

Staff Activities

 University Hill  Reinvestment Strategy 

Civic Area Implementation
Staff Activities

C:\Users\burnt1\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\SGAYQBHC\CAG Timeline12 12 16 14 FINAL (5)CAG Timeline12 12 16 14 FINAL (5) 2 3/26/2015



City of Boulder
2015 Work Plan
 (Tentative as of December 16, 2014)

Projects 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Council 

Staff Activities Ongoing redevelopment coordination
North Side of Pearl and Goose Creek 

bridge landscaping install. Bridge 
opens 

Depot Square opens 

Council Ongoing and Wastewater Collection 

System Rehabilitation program begins

Ongoing SS: 2016-2021 CIP Ongoing

Staff Activities

Council Report on 2015 City Events Summary of 2015 City Events

Staff Activities
Implement new events application and 

internal review process
Refine systems as needed Refine systems as needed

Improve events application for new 
online Landlinks System in 2016

Council SS SS

Staff Activities
Broadband Action Group formation 

and consultant assessment 
Consultant assessment continued Consultant assessment continued Present findings and recommendations 

Council
SS: Staff Recommendations design 

tools/process changes 
IP

CC: Draft recommendations/Adopt 
strategy 

Staff Activities
Issues identification/  preliminary  

work on design tools/ process changes
Technical analysis /develop options Draft recommendations

Public engagement Boards/public engagement Boards/public engagement 

Council

Staff Activities Flood Annexations - Individual Flood Annexations - Old Tale Rd Ongoing Ongoing

Council SS Public Hearing 
Staff Activities

Council

IP: Stormwater Master Plan and 
Wastewater Collection System Master 

Plan consideration

Staff
Stormwater Master Plan and 

Wastewater Collection System Master 
Plan updates continue

Stormwater Master Plan and 
Wastewater Collection System Master 

Plan updates continue

Council CC: Second reading 

Staff Activities Education campaign Enforcement begins Monitor Outcomes Monitor Outcomes

Council SS

Staff Activities
Research regulations and possible fees 

or taxes 

Human Services Strategy

O
th

er

 Boulder Junction

Capital Projects Activity 

CityWide Special Events 

Community Broadband

Design Excellence

 Flood-related  Annexations 

 Flood Management 

Smoking Ban - Implementation

Vacation Rental by Owner (VRBO)

C:\Users\burnt1\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\SGAYQBHC\CAG Timeline12 12 16 14 FINAL (5)CAG Timeline12 12 16 14 FINAL (5) 3 3/26/2015



                                                             COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

Matthew Appelbaum  Mayor 
Suzanne Jones  Mayor Pro Tem 
Macon Cowles  Council Member 

George Karakehian  Council Member 
Lisa Morzel  Council Member 

Tim Plass  Council Member 
Andrew Shoemaker  Council Member 

Sam Weaver  Council Member 
Mary Young  Council Member 

                                                               
 
                                                             COUNCIL EMPLOYEES 
 

Thomas A. Carr  City Attorney 
Jane S. Brautigam  City Manager 

Linda P. Cooke  Municipal Judge 
                                                                
 
                                                              KEY STAFF 
 

Mary Ann Weideman 
Bob Eichem 

 Assistant City Manager 
Chief Financial Officer 

Alisa D. Lewis  City Clerk 
Patrick von Keyserling  Communications Director 

David Driskell  Executive Director of Community Planning and Sustainability and 
Acting Director of Housing 

Molly Winter  Downtown, University Hill Management & Parking Services 
Director 

Heather Bailey  Executive Director of Energy Strategy and Electric Utility 
Development  

Michael Calderazzo  Fire Chief 
Joyce Lira  Human Resources Director 

Karen Rahn  Human Services Director 
Don Ingle  Information Technology Director 

Eileen Gomez  Labor Relations Director 
David Farnan  Library and Arts Director 

James Cho  Acting Municipal Court Administrator 
Tracy Winfree  Acting Open Space and Mountain Parks Director 

Jeff Dillon  Acting Parks and Recreation Director 
Greg Testa  Police Chief 

Maureen Rait  Executive Director of Public Works 
Cheryl Pattelli  Director of Fiscal Services 
Mike Sweeney  Acting Transportation Director 

Jeff Arthur  Utilities Director 
 



 Approved   02-17-2015 

 
 

2015 City Council Committee Assignments 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Beyond the Fences Coalition Morzel, Plass (Castillo – staff alternate) 
Boulder County Consortium of Cities Young, Morzel (alternate) 
Colorado Municipal League (CML) – Policy Committee Jones,  Cowles (Castillo – staff alternate) 
Denver Regional Council of Governments (DRCOG) Jones, Plass 
Housing Authority (Boulder Housing Partners) Shoemaker 
Metro Mayors Caucus Appelbaum 
National League of Cities (NLC) Appelbaum, Cowles 
Resource Conservation Advisory Board Morzel (at large seat), Plass 
Rocky Flats Stewardship Morzel, Plass (1st alternate), Castillo (2nd alternate) 
University of Colorado (CU)/City Oversight Cowles, Shoemaker, Weaver 
US36 Mayors and Commission Coalition Appelbaum 
US36 Commuting Solutions Karakehian, Morzel (alternate) 
Urban Drainage and Flood Control District Jones 

 
LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Boulder Museum of Contemporary Art (BMoCA) Young 
Boulder Convention and Visitors Bureau Plass, Cowles (alternate) 
Dairy Center for the Arts Jones 
Downtown Business Improvement District Board  Weaver, Young 
 
INTERNAL CITY COMMITTEES 
Audit Committee Cowles, Morzel, Shoemaker 
Boards and Commissions Committee Plass, Shoemaker 
Boulder Urban Renewal Authority (BURA)  
Mayoral Appointment 

Karakehian 

Charter Committee Karakehian, Morzel, Weaver 
Civic Use Pad/ 9th and Canyon Karakehian, Morzel, Young 
Council Employees Salary Review Cowles, Shoemaker 
Council Retreat Committee Jones, Morzel 
Evaluation Committee Morzel, Plass 
Housing Strategy Process Sub-Committee Morzel, Shoemaker, Young 
Legislative Committee Jones, Karakehian, Weaver 
School Issues Committee Morzel, Plass, Shoemaker 
 
SISTER CITY REPRESENTATIVES 
Jalapa, Nicaragua Jones 
Kisumu, Kenya Morzel 
Llasa, Tibet Shoemaker 
Dushanbe, Tajikistan Weaver 
Yamagata, Japan Plass 
Mante, Mexico Young 
Yateras, Cuba Karakehian, Cowles (alternate) 
Sister City Sub-Committee Morzel, , Karakehian 
 



2015 Study Session Calendar

4/15/201511:42 AM

1
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57

58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81

82

A B C D E F G H I J

Date Status Topic Location Contacts
Materials 

Due

Draft 
Summary 

Due

Final 
Summary 

Due
Deadline 

Email Sent

Approved Briefing: Housing Boulder 5-6 PM Chambers Jay Sugnet/Melinda Melton 05/07/15 05/13/15 01/15/15
Approved Human Services Strategy 6-8 PM Chambers Todd Jorgensen/Linda Gelhaar 04/16/15 05/07/15 05/13/15
Approved Hill Reinvestment Strategy Update and Policy Direction  8-9 PM Chambers Molly Winter/Ruth Weiss 04/16/15 05/07/15 05/13/15

05/12/15 Approved Boulder's Energy Future 6-8 PM Chambers Heidi Joyce/Heather Bailey 04/30/15 05/21/15 05/27/15 10/19/14
Approved Commercial and Industrial Energy Efficiency Ordinance Options 8-9 PM Chambers Kendra Tupper/Melinda Melton 04/30/15 05/21/15 05/27/15 02/10/15

Approved Briefing: Form Based Code 5:30-6:30 PM Chambers Sam Assefa/Melinda Melton
Approved Update on the Community Cultural Plan 6:30-7:30 Chambers Matt Chasansky/Carrie Mills 05/14/15 06/04/15 06/10/15
Approved AMPS Update 7:30-9PM Chambers Molly Winter/Ruth Weiss 05/14/15 06/04/15 06/10/15 12/15/14

Approved Housing Boulder 6-7:30 PM Chambers Jay Sugnet/Melinda Melton 05/28/15 06/18/15 06/24/15 01/15/15
Approved BVCP/Resilience 7:30-9 PM Chambers Lesli Ellis/Melinda Melton

06/23/15
06/30/15

Place Holder Mobile Home Parks 6-7:30 PM Chambers 07/02/15 07/23/15 07/29/15
Approved Ballot Measures 7:30-9 PM Chambers Elena Lazarevska/Bob Eichem 07/02/15 07/23/15 07/29/15

Tentative Briefing: West Fourmile area (Ponderosa MHP) planning grant 5:30-6 PM Chambers Chris Meschuk/Melinda Melton N/A N/A N/A
Approved Climate Commitment Goal and Strategy Proposal 6-7:30 PM Chambers Brett KenCairn/Melinda Melton 07/16/15 08/06/15 08/12/15 01/21/15
Approved 30th and Pearl City-owned Site Options 7:30-9 PM Chambers David Driskell/Melinda Melton 07/16/15 08/06/15 08/12/15 03/17/15

Approved 2016 CIP Study Session 6-7:30 PM Chambers Elena Lazarevska/Bob Eichem 07/30/15 08/20/15 08/26/15 12/22/14
Approved Form-Based Code Pilot 7:30-9 PM Chambers Sam Assefa/Melinda Melton 07/30/15 08/20/15 08/26/15

OPEN Briefing: 5:30-6 PM Chambers N/A N/A N/A
Approved TMP Implementation Follow Up (pending first check-in on 2/24) 6-7:30 PM Chambers Randall Rutsch/Rene Lopez 08/13/15 09/03/15 09/09/15 02/03/15

Approved
Envision East Arapahoe Transportation Analysis and Medical 
Office Use 7:30-9 PM Chambers Randall Rutsch/Rene Lopez 08/13/15 09/03/15 09/09/15

Approved 2016 Budget Study Session 6-7:30 PM Chambers Elena Lazarevska/Bob Eichem 08/27/15 09/17/15 09/23/15 12/22/14
Approved Emerald Ash Borer 7:30-9 PM Chambers Kathleen Alexander/Sally Dieterich 08/27/15 09/17/15 09/23/15 01/29/15

OPEN Briefing: 5:30-6 PM Chambers N/A N/A N/A
Approved 2016 Budget Study Session 6-7:30 PM Chambers Elena Lazarevska/Bob Eichem 09/10/15 10/01/15 10/07/15 12/22/14
Approved Mobile Home Parks 7:30-9 PM Chambers 09/10/15 10/01/15 10/07/15

OPEN 6-7:30 PM Chambers 09/17/15 10/08/15 10/14/15
OPEN 7:30-9 PM Chambers

Tentative Resilience Strategy Study Session 6-7:30 PM Chambers Greg Guibert/Melinda Melton 10/01/15 10/22/15 10/28/15
OPEN 7:30-9 PM Chambers

OPEN Briefing: 5:30-6 PM Chambers N/A N/A N/A
OPEN 6-7:30 PM Chambers 10/15/15 11/05/15 11/11/15
OPEN 7:30-9 PM Chambers

Approved AMPS Update 6-7 PM Chambers Molly Winter/Ruth Weiss 10/29/15 11/19/15 11/25/15 12/19/14
OPEN 7-9 PM Chambers

11/24/15

Approved Utility Rate Study: Preliminary Findings 6-7:30 PM Chambers Eric Ameigh/Jeff Arthur/Rene Lopez 11/25/15 12/17/15 12/23/15 12/10/14

05/26/15

06/09/15

07/14/15

07/28/15

08/11/15

Council Recess June 17-July 12
Council Recess June 17-July 12

Thanksgiving Holiday Week

04/28/15

11/10/15

12/08/15

08/25/15

09/08/15

09/22/15

09/29/15

10/13/15

10/27/15



2015 Study Session Calendar

4/15/201511:42 AM

1

A B C D E F G H I J

Date Status Topic Location Contacts
Materials 

Due

Draft 
Summary 

Due

Final 
Summary 

Due
Deadline 

Email Sent
83
84
85
86

OPEN 7:30-9 PM Chambers

12/22/15
12/29/15 New Years Holiday Week

Christmas Holiday Week



CAO to 
Prepare 

Ord.?

Power 
Point

Contact
Preliminary: 4/23 :: Final 4/29

Agenda Section Item Name Time Minutes
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 2015 Declaration of Boulder Historic Preservation Month
OPEN COMMENT 45 Minutes
CONSENT First Adjustment to Base - First Reading 15 Minutes No No Elena Lazarevska/Bob Eichem

Bee Safe Boulder Resolution Minutes no yes Rella Abernathy/Melinda Melton
First Reading Ordinance for Zero Waste Requirements yes Kara Mertz/Melinda Melton
Proposed Appropriations for Ballot Item 2A Capital Projects and Appropriations for 
Recreational Marijuana (2nd reading) - moved from 4/21

Bob Eichem/Elena Lazarevska

Motion to approve a twenty-year lease for two right-of-way encroachments for the benefit 
of the property located at 1060 5th Street no Sloane Walbert/Melinda Melton

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Oliver acquisition 20 Minutes no yes Jim Schmidt/Cecil Fenio
2nd reading ordinance rezoning 1900 Folsom 60 Minutes no yes Chandler Van Schaack/Melinda Melton
2nd reading Affordable Housing Linkage Fee 60 Minutes yes yes Susan Richstone/Melinda Melton

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER Minutes
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY Minutes
MATTERS FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL Minutes
CALL-UPS Minutes

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours:Minutes) 3:20

CAO to 
Prepare 

Ord.?

Power 
Point

Contact
Preliminary: 5/7 :: Final 5/13

Agenda Section Item Name Time Minutes
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS Declaration for the Gamm's Donation to the Dairy Center for the Arts 10 Minutes
OPEN COMMENT 45 Minutes
CONSENT First Adjustment to Base - Second Reading 15 Minutes Elena Lazarevska/Bob Eichem

Proposed cooperative transit TIGER grant application with CU Boulder                                                           Randall Rutsch/Erin Raney
Motion to approve Letter of Intent with CAGID and St. Julien regarding development of the 
civic use pad  (moved from 5/5)

Molly Winter/Ruth Weiss

BRC Supplement 123 Emergency Ordinance Mary Wallace

PUBLIC HEARINGS Second Reading Ordinance for Zero Waste Requirements 90 Minutes yes yes Kara Mertz/Melinda Melton
96 Arapahoe Concept Plan 45 Minutes no Elaine McLaughlin/Melinda Melton

2nd Reading Ordinance Amending the 9th & Canyon Urban Renewal Plan  (moved from 5/5) 45 Minutes yes yes Molly Winter/Ruth Weiss
MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER Minutes
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY Minutes
MATTERS FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL Update from Council Employee Evaluation Committee 10 Minutes no no Aimee Kane
CALL-UPS Minutes

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours:Minutes) 4:20

May 5, 2015 
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway

May 19, 2015
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway



CAO to 
Prepare 

Ord.?

Power 
Point

Agenda Section Item Name Time
Council Decision on proposed landmarking of 747 12th St. (public hearing was closed on 
4/14) 60 Minutes
2nd Reading and Consideration of Approval of Amendments to Title 9 for Medical Office 60 Minutes no yes Jeff Hirt/Melinda Melton

Minutes
Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours:Minutes) 2:00

May 28, 2015
Start Time: 6:00 PM Special Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway

PUBLIC HEARINGS



CAO to 
Prepare 

Ord.?

Power 
Point

Contact
Preliminary: 5/21 :: Final 5/27

Agenda Section Item Name Time Minutes
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS Minutes
OPEN COMMENT 45 Minutes
CONSENT Notice of Sale for Stormwater/Flood Bonds 15 Minutes no Bob Eichem/Elena Lazarevska

Study Session Summary for 5/12 Commercial and Industrial Energy Efficiency 
Ordinance Options Kendra Tupper/Melinda Melton
Study Session Summary 4/28: Human Services Strategy No Todd Jorgensen/Linda Gelhaar

PUBLIC HEARINGS Minutes
Minutes

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER Motion to accept the Boulder County Age Well Plan Update 30 Minutes no yes Betty Kilsdonk/Linda Gelhaar
MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY Minutes
MATTERS FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL Minutes
CALL-UPS Minutes

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours:Minutes) 1:30

CAO to 
Prepare 

Ord.?

Power 
Point

Contact
Preliminary: 6/4 :: Final 6/10

Agenda Section Item Name Time Minutes
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS Minutes
OPEN COMMENT 45 Minutes
CONSENT Bond Ordinance - Sale of the Stormwater/Flood Bonds 15 Minutes no Bob Eichem/Elena Lazarevska

Disposition of a Utility Easement Jim Schmidt/Cecil Fenio

PUBLIC HEARINGS Public Hearing and Acceptance of the revised Civic Area Master Plan and approval 
of the Parkland Site Plan 60 Minutes yes Joanna Crean/Melinda Melton
Living Laboratory Phase II Complete Streets pilot projects 45 Minutes no yes Marni Ratzel/Erin Raney

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER Key Questions and Guiding Principles for the Utility Rate Structure Analysis 45 Minutes no yes Eric Ameigh/Erin Raney
Consideration of Guiding Principles for the Form Based Code (FBC) 45 Minutes no yes Karl Guiler/Melinda Melton

MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY Minutes
MATTERS FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL Minutes
CALL-UPS Minutes

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours:Minutes) 4:15

June 2, 2015 
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway

June 16, 2015
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway

Council Recess - June 17 to July 12



CAO to 
Prepare 

Ord.?

Power 
Point

Contact
Preliminary: 7/9 :: Final 7/15

Agenda Section Item Name Time Minutes
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS Minutes
OPEN COMMENT 45 Minutes
CONSENT Study Session Summary for 6/9 BVCP/Resilience item 15 Minutes Lesli Ellis/Melinda Melton

Study Session Summary for 6/9 Housing Boulder item Jay Sugnet/Melinda Melton

PUBLIC HEARINGS BVCP schedule, work plan, and process for landowners and the general public to 
submit requests for changes to the plan

45 Minutes no yes Lesli Ellis/Melinda Melton

Flood Mapping Studies for Upper Goose and Twomile Canyon Creek and Skunk, 
King's Gulch and Bluebell Creeks 50 Minutes no yes Annie Noble/Erin Raney

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER Community Cultural Plan Final Review 90 Minutes no yes Matt Chasansky/Carrie Mills

MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY Minutes
MATTERS FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL Minutes
CALL-UPS Minutes

Total Estimated Meeting Time (Hours:Minutes) 4:05

July 21, 2015
Start Time: 6:00 PM Business Meeting

Location: Council Chambers, 1777 Broadway



 
                   

TO:  Members of Council 
FROM: Mary Moline, City Clerk’s Office 
DATE:  April 21, 2015 
SUBJECT: Information Packet 
 
 

1. CALL UPS 
 

A. Concept Plan Review 2440 & 2490 Junction Pl. (LUR2015-00006) 
 

B. Water Service Agreement with Avery Brewing Company 
 

2. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
A. Update on Capital Improvement Bond Projects  

 
B. Flood Recovery Status  

 
C. Review General Order 240, In-Car Cameras, Body Worn Cameras and Personal Recording 

Devices 
 

3.  BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
A. Boulder Design Advisory Board – March 11, 2015 

 
B. Landmarks Board – April 1, 2015 
 
C. Landmarks Board – March 4, 2015 

 
D. Planning Board – March 5, 2015 

 
4. DECLARATIONS 

 
A. Armenian Genocide Remembrance 
 
B. Sakura Day 

 



 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM  

 
To:  Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
  David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning + Sustainability 
  Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Planning + Sustainability 
  Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager 
  Chandler Van Schaack, Planner I 
 
Date:   April 21, 2015 
 
Subject:  Call-Up Item: Concept Plan Review 2440 & 2490 Junction Pl. (LUR2015-00006)  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
On April 2, 2015 the Planning Board reviewed and commented on an a Concept Plan application for 
redevelopment of an approximately 58,272 sq. ft. (1.34-acre) site located at 2440 and 2490 Junction 
Pl. within Boulder Junction.  Referred to as “The Commons,” the proposed commercial development 
would consist of two, 3-4 story, 55’ tall buildings totalling roughly 100,000 sq. ft. that would include 
professional office space, restaurant space and “flex” space intended as community gathering space.  
The proposal also includes 65 underground parking spaces, a proposed “mobility hub” that includes a 
car share program and B-Cycle Station, a central public plaza area and multiple multi-modal 
connections through the site.    
 
City Council may vote to call-up the Concept Plan to review and discuss within 30 days of the 
Planning Board hearing. The call up period concludes on May 4, 2015 (the end of the 30-day call up 
period falls on a weekend and so is extended to the following Monday).  There are two City Council 
meetings within this time period for call-up consideration, on April 7 and 21, 2015.  The staff 
memorandum to Planning Board, minutes, meeting audio, and other related background materials are 
on the city website for Planning Board, available here (Follow the links: 201504 APR 04.02.2015 
PB Packet). The draft minutes from the Planning Board hearing are provided in Attachment A and 
the Concept Plan submittal package is provided in Attachment B. 
 
At the Planning Board hearing, there were no neighborhood comments; however, several written 
comments from the neighborhood had been received previously and are included with the staff 
memorandum to the Planning Board.  Overall, the board found the proposal to be consistent with the 
vision and goals of the Transit Village Area Plan (TVAP). The board made some recommendations for 

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 1

https://documents.bouldercolorado.gov/weblink8/Browse.aspx?startid=47549&row=1&dbid=0


site and building improvements and parking management strategies and also suggested potentially 
adding residential units to the project.   
 
Consistent with recently amended land use code section 9-2-13(a)(2), B.R.C. 1981 City Council has 
the opportunity to call up the application to review and comment on the concept plan within a 30-day 
call up period which expires on May 4, 2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A.  Draft April 2, 2015 Planning Board Minutes 
B.  Concept Plan Submittal 

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 2



 

CITY OF BOULDER 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION MINUTES 

April 2, 2015 
1777 Broadway, Council Chambers 

  
A permanent set of these minutes and a tape recording (maintained for a period of seven years) are 
retained in Central Records (telephone: 303-441-3043). Minutes and streaming audio are also 
available on the web at: http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/ 
  
PLANNING BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Aaron Brockett, Chair 
Bryan Bowen 
Crystal Gray 
John Gerstle 
Leonard May 
Liz Payton 
John Putnam 
 
PLANNING BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 
None 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Hella Pannewig, Assistant City Attorney 
Susan Meissner, Administrative Assistant III 
Chandler Van Schaack, Planner I 
Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager 
David Thompson, Civil Engineer II, Transportation 
Molly Winter, DUHMD Manager 
Chris Hagelin, Senior Transportation Planner 
 
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 5B 
 
B. Concept Plan (case no. LUR2015-00006) for redevelopment of an approximately 58,272 sq. 
ft. (1.34-acre) site located at 2440 and 2490 Junction Pl. within Boulder Junction.  Referred to 
as “The Commons,” the proposed commercial development would consist of two 3-4 story 
buildings totalling roughly 100,000 sq. ft. that would include professional office space, 
restaurant space and “flex” space intended as community gathering space.  The proposal also 
includes 65 underground parking spaces, a proposed “mobility hub” that includes a car share 
program and B-Cycle Station, a central public plaza area and multiple multi-modal connections 
through the site.    

 
Applicant: Bill Hollicky  
Property Owner: Sy Triumph LLC 

 
Staff Presentation: 
C. Van Schaack presented the item to the board. 

Attachment A - Draft April 2, 2015 Planning Board Minutes

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 3

https://webmail.bouldercolorado.gov/owa/redir.aspx?C=I5NO4b26akWhgmZpN9k_L3ln-0EqYNAIb3BQVECXatq4pRtRPkpbxOOxLA_bEvetV-NSpTIFrBA.&URL=http%253a%252f%252fwww.bouldercolorado.gov%252f


 

 
Board Questions: 
C. Van Schaack and M. Winter answred questions from the board. 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
Bill Holicky, the applicant, presented to the board. 
  
Public Hearing: 
Bill Holicky answered questions from the board. 
 
Public Participation: 
1. Wade Anderson, lives close to the site. He thought this posed an opportunity to change the 
norm of development in Boulder. 
 
Board Discussion: 

• Members generally liked the proposed project and thought it would serve as a sustainable 
centerpiece project for Boulder Junction; they appreciated the environmental aspirations. A. 
Brockett thought that this was the type of project envisioned when the TVAP was created.  

 
• Most members agreed that the proposed plan was consistent with the TVAP. There was some 

concern that the residential criteria had not been met; Steelyards should not count toward that 
end. Some members felt that it was okay not to have a residential component given the size, 
configuration and proximity to the rail tracks while others asked the applicant to consider 
adding residential units to the Junction Place façade. The northwest portion of the project 
could work well for townhomes and would respond well to the Steelyards. Contact Solana to 
see how the residential units near the tracks are faring. Consider the overall balance of 
residential to commercial space in the Transit Village as a whole. 

 
• The massing is generally on the right track. Members agreed that it would be appropriate to 

have taller buildings facing the tracks. Some members thought it would be appropriate to have 
a shorter façade along Junction Place that could be achieved through step backs. B. Bowen 
felt that it was important to maintain the height along Junction Place. There was general 
consensus that the façade along Junction Place should be strong and work in conjunction with 
the Steelyards. 

 
• The southern façade will be critical as it will define the northeastern edge of the public space. 

Design it to be a hard edge with a sense of vibrancy as it will attract attention from Goose 
Creek; it is important to send a message that Boulder Junction is active. Show images from 
the perspective of the Goose Creek path in Site Review. 

 
• Members thought the solar panels along the eastern façade were appropriate. Consider means 

for enlivening the eastern façade along the multi-use path. Create spaces for people along the 
multi-use path. 

 
• Consider shifting the East-west corridor to the south. L. Payton suggested that it be tree-lined 

to create a sense of place and promenade.  

Attachment A - Draft April 2, 2015 Planning Board Minutes

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 4



 

 
• Board members generally liked the tow bar concept and interior courtyard space. There were 

questions as to whether the courtyard needed to be so large. Consider means for incorporating 
more natural landscaping and less hardscape. 

 
• Consider moving the proposed coffee shop space from the south to the north side to take 

better advantage of solar access. B. Bowen suggested that the applicant consider incorporating 
play structures nearby similar to Lucky Pie in Louisville. 

 
• Connect to the central courtyard from the north. This will benefit circulation and retail spaces. 

 
• The board liked the concept of flex commercial spaces on the bottom floor of the buildings. 

 
• Public access along the southern edge is important.  

 
• Consider softening the landscape. 

 
• Members generally liked the proposed architecture and the precedent images provided by the 

applicant. Assure that the style ties in with the general industrial feel and placemaking goals 
of the Boulder Junction area. There was acknowledgement that the architecture will tie into 
the sustainability features of the building. 

 
• L. May liked the cantilever over the open space and general modern feel of the architecture. 

He encouraged the applicant to be adventurous. 
 

• L. Payton cautioned against the use of too much glass. It is not conducive to the pedestrian 
experience. 

 
• The members liked the mobility hub concept and parking solutions. Accommodate charging 

stations for electrical vehicles. 
 

• Members were sympathetic to the concerns of Steelyard residents but felt that the parking 
reduction was important. The asked staff to help the neighborhood create a parking district 
and work together to incorporate them into the mobility hub design. Parking should be part of 
a system approach with the entire neighborhood. 

 
• Incorporate best practices in bike parking; consider including repair stations, lockers and 

showers. 

Attachment A - Draft April 2, 2015 Planning Board Minutes

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 5



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 6



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 7



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 8



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 9



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 10



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 11



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 12



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 13



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 14



Attachment B - Concept Plan Submittal

Call Up 
2440/2490 Junction Place

1A     Page 15



 
 

 
 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works 
 Jeff Arthur, Director of Public Works for Utilities 
 Edward Stafford, Development Review Manager – Public Works 
 
Date:   April 13, 2015 
 
Subject: Call-Up Item: Water Service Agreement with Avery Brewing Company  
  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Sections 11-1-52(j) of the Boulder Revised Code require water customers that have a water 
demand that creates a system demand greater than would be anticipated for a site (based upon the 
land use plan and utility master plans) to enter into a Water Service Agreement with the city. 
Avery Brewing Company’s recently constructed Gunbarrel facility creates a utility system 
demand that requires them to enter into a Water Service Agreement.  
 
In accordance with Section 11-1-52(j) of the B.R.C. 1981, City Council is scheduled to consider 
this agreement for call-up at the April 21, 2015 public meeting. 
 
Section 11-2-33(j) of the B.R.C. 1981 also requires customers that create a wastewater discharge 
demand greater than would be anticipated for the site to have a Wastewater Service Agreement 
with the city. Wastewater agreements are not subject to a City Council call-up; however both 
agreements have been combined into one Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery 
Brewing Company. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Additional Plant Investment Fee (PIF) revenue for both water and wastewater will be collected 
as part of this agreement, and Avery Brewing Company (Avery) will continue to pay monthly 
use and user fees for both water and wastewater.  
  

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 1



 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 
• Economic – This agreement will allow Avery to continue to utilize city water at their new 

Gunbarrel location in a similar fashion to how it has been used at their Arapahoe facility, and 
will also allow them to purchase the additional capacity needed for their new location.  This 
will also allow Avery to operate in a new, state-of-the-art craft brewery while remaining in 
Boulder. The combination of manufacturing, facility tours, product tasting and dining offered 
at the new location will attract visitors from throughout the region, which contributes to the 
city’s economic vitality.   

• Environmental – The agreement will give the city and Avery the ability to optimize the 
delivery of water while also managing the demands it creates on the city’s utility system.  

• Social – The agreement will allow Avery the opportunity to increase its production over time 
while accounting for the resulting increase in demand on the community’s water utilities 
infrastructure.  

 
BACKGROUND 
Sections 11-1-52(j) and 11-2-33 (j) of the Boulder Revised Code (B.R.C.) 1981 allow the city to 
enter into special agreements pertaining to water use demands and/or wastewater discharges. 
When a commercial or industrial water customer within the City of Boulder service delivery area 
has a specific use or manufacturing process with a water demand and/or wastewater discharge 
that creates a system demand greater than would be anticipated for a site (based upon the land 
use plan and utility master plans), the customer is required to enter into a Water and/or 
Wastewater Service Agreement with the city. The requirement for water customers to enter into 
an agreement was originally added to the B.R.C in 1992 and since then, the city has executed 
similar agreements with other commercial, industrial and governmental customers, including 
Amgen Boulder, Inc. and the  University of Colorado Boulder.  The portions of these agreements 
related to the water utility are subject to City Council call-up, while the portions that pertain to 
the wastewater system are an administrative function approved by the City Manager. These 
agreements provide the city and the customer the ability to create a framework for the 
determination of quantity, quality, terms of use, and special conditions for the provision and use 
of city utility services.  
 
Avery Brewing Company (Avery) is a unique water customer due to the nature of the craft 
brewery industry, where much of the water use is packaged as an integral component of the 
product and where overall water consumption is elevated compared to other industrial uses of 
similar size. Avery has been operating at its current location on Arapahoe Avenue, east of 55th 
Street, since incorporation in 1993, and has expanded from a single, small warehouse space to 
occupying 11 warehouse units in three buildings. As units were added, each pair of utility 
services operated within the established utility parameters, so a Water Service Agreement was 
not required.   
 
In early 2014 Avery began construction of a new, state-of-the-art brewery in the Gunbarrel area. 
The new facility was built on an empty parcel not previously served by city utility services, so 
new service connections had to be constructed to meet city standards. With this new facility on a 
single utility service, Avery has reached the threshold that requires a Water Service Agreement.  
   
  

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 2



 
ANALYSIS 
The initial change in water use and wastewater discharge at the new location will result in a 
modest increase from the combined totals for the current utility services across the 11 warehouse 
units that Avery Brewing had been operating on Arapahoe Avenue. Due to the expanded 
production capacity of the new facility and the new utility services, Avery will be required to pay 
additional Plant Investment Fees (PIFs) as part of this agreement.  
 
The agreement has been prepared in conformance with sections 11-1-52(j) and 11-2-33 (j) 
B.R.C. 1981. City Council is scheduled to consider this agreement for call-up at its April 21, 
2015 public meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
A. Water and Wastewater Agreement between the City of Boulder and Avery Brewing 

Company 

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 3



WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BOULDER AND AVERY BREWING CO 

 
This Agreement is entered into this __ day of ________________ by and between Avery 

Brewing Company, a Colorado _____________corporation having its principal place of business 
in Boulder, Colorado ("Avery"), and the City of Boulder, a Colorado home rule city (the "City"). 
 

Whereas, Avery desires to receive water from the City's treated water system for its 
industrial brewery processes, and beer production facilities and desires to discharge wastewater 
into the City's sanitary sewer system initially at its current facility located at 5763 Arapahoe 
Avenue (the "Facility") and then upon completion and issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 
(CO) (the completion and issuance of a CO is also referred to herein as “Completion”), at its new 
facility at 4910 Nautilus Court (the “New Facility”). 
 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the promises and obligations set forth below, the City 
and Avery agree as follows: 

 
I. WATER SERVICE 
 

A. SALE AND PURCHASE OF WATER SERVICE 
 

The City agrees to supply to Avery, and Avery agrees to purchase from the City, 
potable water service subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the requirements 
of the Boulder Revised Code, 1981, as amended. 

 
B. QUANTITY AND QUALITY OF WATER 
 

(l) The City shall sell and deliver to Avery, and Avery shall buy from 
the City, up to 14.7 acre-feet per year or, a maximum of 400,000 gallons per month, of treated 
water. 

 
(2) Quality of water: Avery stipulates that the current treatment 

techniques utilized by the City produce water of sufficient quality for its brewing and beer 
production purposes. All water provided now and in the future by the City shall be treated water 
typical for various municipal purposes. Except for transient failures, such water shall meet the 
drinking water requirements established by the Colorado Department of Health and the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency for municipal providers. The City shall not be 
responsible for any changes in the water quality. 
 

C. CONNECTION AND DELIVERY 
 

(1) Point of Delivery: The water supplied pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be delivered to Avery by the City initially at the Facility and, upon Completion, water shall 
instead be supplied at the New Facility. Water service to the Facility shall be discontinued within 
6 months of Completion of the New Facility.  The City shall provide, install and maintain water 
meters at the points of connection.  Avery shall, at no cost to the City, design and construct in 

Attachment A: Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery Brewing

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 4



accordance with requirements of the City of Boulder Department of Public Works “Design and 
Construction Standards”, all public and private water facilities as shown on Technical Document 
Set dated 7/19/13 and signed 8/12/13 for the New Facility (the “Approved Master Utility 
Plans”), prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) for the New Facility.  Prior to 
the issuance of a connection permit for the New Facility, all facilities must be installed, tested, 
accepted and asbuilt drawings certified by a professional engineer at Avery’s expense.  Design, 
construction, maintenance, and operation of the water system from the point of the meter into the 
New Facility shall be the sole responsibility of Avery provided, however, that Avery shall not 
make any cross connection or engage in any mode of operation that will introduce into the City's 
system water from any other source or any deleterious substance. Avery shall install all backflow 
devices as required by federal, state or local requirements. 
 

D. MONITORING AND RECORDING REQUIREMENTS 
 

The City will meter and record the delivery of water in accordance with 
standard procedures. The City shall not be responsible for sampling, monitoring or reporting the 
quality of the water. By virtue of this agreement, there are no additional special requirements for 
measurement, sampling, monitoring or reporting. 
 

E. LIMITATIONS ON WATER USE 
 

(1) The water provided by the City under this Agreement shall be used 
by Avery initially only at the Facility and, upon Completion, only at the New Facility. The City 
shall bear no responsibility for water delivery interruptions as a result of main breaks, water 
shortages, equipment malfunctions, human error or for any other reason. However, Avery shall 
notify the City of any change in the pattern of water use in excess of five (5) percent of the 
amounts set forth above. The City shall be provided the opportunity to review and comment on 
such changes, including the impact on the water utility system. In addition, the City reserves the 
right to reassess the impact of any such changes on plant investment fees and other utility 
charges, according to standard city procedures and charge schedules in effect at the time of use 
as set forth in Boulder Revised Code 1981, as amended.  

 
(2) By virtue of this agreement, Avery does not acquire any specific 

rights to City water, only a right to use such water, and if Avery does not fulfill the terms of this 
Agreement or does not utilize water to the extent contemplated in this agreement, all such water 
remains the property of the City for the City to use at its discretion.  
 

F. CHARGES 
 

(1) Plant Investment Fee 
 

Avery shall pay a $57,338.40 plant investment fee ("PIF") to the City for water service at the 
Facility until Completion of the New Facility, at which time the water service shall be transferred 
to the New Facility, pursuant to this Agreement.  The PIF includes a credit based upon 
documented historic water use at the Facility that will continue at the New Facility upon 

Attachment A: Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery Brewing

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 5



Completion.  The PIF will be paid within 3 business days of mutual execution and delivery of 
this Agreement. 
 

(a) If Avery uses in excess of the maximum of 14.7 acre-feet 
per year or 400,000 gallons per month then Avery will be charged applicable overage charges for 
such excess unless Avery elects to pay appropriate additional PIF's to the City for any water use 
above 14.7 acre-feet per year or 400,000 gallons per month according to the connection charge 
methodology and user charges required by Boulder Revised Code, 1981, as amended, at that 
time. 
 

(2) User Charges. 
 

User charges shall be assessed according to standard city procedures and charge schedules in 
effect at the time of use, as set forth in Boulder Revised Code, 1981, as amended.  
 

II. WASTE WATER SERVICE 
 

A. ACCEPTANCE OF WASTEWATER 
 

The City agrees to accept wastewater from Avery for treatment into its 
sanitary sewer system, in accordance with the provisions of this agreement and the requirements 
of the Boulder Revised Code, 1981, as amended. 

 
B. CONNECTION AND DELIVERY 
 

(1) Avery shall design and construct at their expense any additional 
facilities necessary to transmit Avery's wastewater into the City sanitary sewer system.  

 
(2) Avery shall, at no cost to the City, design and construct in 

accordance with the requirements of the City of Boulder Department of Public Works “Design 
Criteria and Standard Specifications,” all public and private sanitary sewer facilities as shown on 
the Approved Master Utility Plans. All such construction shall occur prior to the issuance of a 
CO for the New Facility. All such facilities must be installed, tested and as built drawings 
certified, prior to issuance of a connection permit. 
 

C. MONITORING AND REPORTING 
 

(1) Avery shall construct, install and maintain a suitable measurement 
and sampling station at the New Facility. This station shall be capable of measuring the flow and 
of collecting representative's samples of the wastewater prior to discharge to the City's sanitary 
sewer facilities according to the permit requirement. 

 
(2) If Avery fails to perform the work elements specified in Section C 

(1) of this Agreement, the City will assume the operation and maintenance of the measurement 
and sampling station and will report all measurement sampling results on a monthly basis. Avery 
shall reimburse the City for all costs associated with the operation and maintenance of the 

Attachment A: Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery Brewing

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 6



measurement and sampling station and all costs associated with any measurement, sampling, 
monitoring or reporting. 

 
(3) Additional monitoring and reporting requirements shall be as 

specified in the industrial discharge permit for the New Facility (the “Discharge Permit”). 
 

D. WASTEWATER DISCHARGE 
 

The wastewater discharge from the Facility and the New Facility upon 
Completion measured at the point of connection to the City's sanitary sewer system shall not 
exceed the following limits based on a thirty (30) day average: 

 
(1) Flow: 11,667 gallons per day 
 
(2) Five-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5):  as provided in 

the Discharge Permit 
 
(3) Total Suspended Solids (TSS): as provided in the Discharge Permit 
 
(4) Ammonia Nitrogen as N (NH3-N): as provided in the Discharge 

Permit 
 

 
E. CHARGES 
 

(1) Plant Investment Fee 
 

(a) Avery shall pay a $22,365.00 plant investment fee (“PIF”) to the City for wastewater 
service at the Facility until Completion of the New Facility, at which time the wastewater service 
shall be transferred to the New Facility, pursuant to this Agreement.  The PIF includes a credit 
based upon documented historic water and sewer discharge data at the Facility that will continue 
at the New Facility upon Completion..  The PIF will be paid within 3 business days of mutual 
execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

 
 
(b) The $22,365.00 PIF is based on the hydraulic loadings set 

forth in Section II D. If the actual average wastewater loading for any month (based on a 30-day 
average) exceeds the limits specified in Section II D  additional charges shall be calculated 
according to the connection charge methodology and user charges required by the Boulder 
Revised Code, 1981, as amended, at that time.  Avery may elect to pay either the appropriate 
additional PIF’s or overage charges for such excess use.  

 
(2) Other Charges. 
 

Attachment A: Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery Brewing

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 7



User charges shall be paid according to standard City procedures 
and user charge schedules in effect at the time of use, as set forth in Boulder Revised Code, 
1981, as amended.  

 
 

III. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

A. INDUSTRIAL DISCHARGE PERMIT 
 
 Avery shall be required to obtain an Industrial Discharge Permit 

(Discharge Permit) for the New Facility in accordance with Section 11-3-13, B.R.C. 1981, as 
amended, prior to the issuance of a CO for the New Facility. 

 
B. PENALTIES 
 

If the City violates its “CPDES” wastewater permit as a result of Avery’s 
violation of this Agreement, and is subsequently fined for those violations, then Avery shall pay 
its proportionate share of the fine. These monies shall be separate from additional penalties the 
City might seek for violations of Avery's Discharge Permit. 

 
D. TERMINATION 
 

(1) At any time after having given written notice to the City, Avery 
may terminate this Agreement. Upon termination all rights pursuant to this Agreement shall 
immediately revert to the City. 

 
(2) Either party may terminate this agreement upon a material breach 

by the other of any of the terms or conditions of this agreement, if such breach continues for an 
unreasonable period of time. However, this agreement shall not be terminated if the defaulting 
party remedies such breach within a period of 60 days after receipt from the other of written 
notice of the existence of such breach or, if such breach is not capable of cure within such 60-day 
period, the breaching party takes steps to commence cure within such 60-day period and 
thereafter diligently pursues and completes cure of the breach. Termination shall not, however, 
be the sole remedy of either party and the exercise of the right to terminate provided in this 
paragraph shall not preclude the pursuit of any other remedy available, at equity or at law. 
 

E. TIME OF PAYMENTS 
 

Unless otherwise specified, whenever under the terms of this Agreement 
payment is to be made by Avery to the City, Avery shall make such payment within fifteen days 
after such time as the payment is due. If Avery's payment becomes delinquent, delinquency 
charges at the rate of one percent, (1%), per month of the unpaid balance shall also be due and 
payable.  
 

F. ASSIGNMENT 
 

Attachment A: Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery Brewing

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 8



This agreement, and/or any of Avery's rights hereunder, may be assigned 
by Avery in whole or in part, provided that the assignee agrees to all of the applicable terms and 
conditions of this agreement. This agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit 
of the respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  It is the intent of the parties that 
the rights of Avery under this Agreement shall be transferred from its Facility to its New Facility 
upon Completion at no additional charge, provided that Avery otherwise complies with the terms 
herein. 
 

G. NOTICES 
 

Whenever notice is required or permitted under this agreement, the same 
shall be in writing and shall be given effect by hand delivery, or by mailing to the party for 
whom it is intended. Notices to the City and Avery shall be addressed as follows:  
 

For the City: 
City Manager's Office 
Post Office Box 791 
Boulder, Colorado 80306 

 
For Avery: 
 
Avery & Avery, LLC 
Attn:  Adam Avery 
4910 Nautilus Court 
Boulder, CO 80301 

 
with a copy to: Berg Hill Greenleaf & Ruscitti LLP 

Attn:  Patrick K. Perrin 
1712 Pearl Street 
Boulder, CO 80302 

 
 
CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO AVERY BREWING COMPANY,  
  a Colorado corporation 
 
 
 
By:       By:       

City Manager Name:  Adam K. Avery 
 Title:  President 

 
 
Attest: Attest: 
 
 
              

Attachment A: Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery Brewing

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 9



Director of Finance and Record   Secretary 
Ex-Officio City Clerk 
 
 
 

Attachment A: Water and Wastewater Service Agreement with Avery Brewing

Call Up 
Agreement with Avery Brewing

1B     Page 10



 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
 Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer  
 Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works 
 Don Ingle, Director of Information Technology 
 David Farnan, Director of Library & Arts 
 Yvette Bowden, Director of Parks & Recreation 
 Mike Sweeney, Interim Director of Public Works for Transportation 
 Mike Calderazzo, Fire Chief 
 Greg Testa, Police Chief 
 Molly Winter, Director of Downtown University Hill Mgmt /Parking Services 
 Joanna Crean, Project Coordinator  
  
Date:   April 21, 2015 
 
Subject: Information Item: Update on Capital Improvement Bond Projects 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This memorandum provides background on the Capital Improvement Bond projects and an 
update on the current status and next steps on implementation of the 85 projects. In the 
November 2011 election, City of Boulder voters approved a measure to leverage existing 
revenues to bond for up to $49 million to fund capital projects that address significant 
deficiencies and high-priority infrastructure improvements throughout the community. Because 
the city was able to leverage existing revenues, the measure did not raise taxes.  
 
Of the 85 individual bond projects throughout the city, 73 are complete. The $49 million bond 
package has a 20-year payback and 85 percent of the total proceeds of $55.11 million (including 
the bond issuance premium and accumulated interest) were required to be spent by March 22, 
2015. One-hundred percent of the total funding is required to be spent by March 22, 2017. As of 
March 22, 2015, 90 percent of the total funding had been spent, with an additional 6 percent 
encumbered. The city met the three-year spending requirement and is working to ensure 100 
percent of the total funding is spent by March 22, 2017. 
 
Council will continue to be updated on the Capital Improvement Bond progress through 
information packet memos or heads ups, as appropriate, based on specific milestones. In 
addition, the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) document will continue to include a special 
section on the Capital Improvement Bond projects until all are completed. 
 

Information Item 
Capital Improvement Bond Projects

2A     Page 1



Public updates will be provided through the Capital Improvement Bond website, press releases, 
social media and commemorative events as some of the key projects are completed. Travel 
impacts to streets or multi-use paths related to bond project work will continue to be shared with 
the public and media on the www.BoulderConeZones.net map. A map of the bond projects and 
status updates are available at www.BoulderColorado.gov/Bond-Projects.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
• These capital bond projects were approved by City Council as part of the 2011 voter-

approved Capital Improvement Bond, the City of Boulder’s Capital Improvement Program, 
and the City of Boulder budgets. Staff time for these projects has been included in the project 
budgets or in annual work plans.  
 

COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
• Economic: Capital investment in significant deficiencies, like renovations to existing parks 

and recreation facilities, and high-priority system enhancements, such as investing in key 
Boulder Junction improvements, will help Boulder maintain economic competitiveness and 
diversity. Aging infrastructure and business systems that are not properly maintained or 
upgraded become more costly to rebuild later. 

 
• Environmental: Capital maintenance for buildings, streets, and other physical assets 

supports resource systems for water, energy, and multimodal mobility. Efficient, functioning 
systems reduce impacts on the environment that would otherwise result from less efficient, 
malfunctioning systems. 

 
• Social: Taking adequate care of community assets will benefit the entire community, 

including user groups ranging in age, income levels and backgrounds. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the November 2011 election, City of Boulder voters approved a measure that allowed the city 
to leverage existing revenues to bond for up to $49 million to fund capital projects that address 
significant deficiencies and high-priority infrastructure improvements. Specifically, the bond 
requires that the funds be used for capital improvement projects that include: 
 
• Repairing and maintaining streets and pathways; 
• Repairing and replacing structurally deficient bridges and structures; 
• Completing missing links in the transportation system; 
• Repairing and renovating aging city facilities; 
• Replacing and modernizing core service computer software; 
• Modernizing basic police and fire safety facilities and equipment; 
• Renovating and repairing parks and recreation facilities; 
• Renovating portions of the Main Boulder Public Library; and  
• Improving connections and streetscapes downtown. 

 
As a result, 85 individual projects are being implemented throughout the community that are 
funded, or partially funded, by the bond.  
 
 

Information Item 
Capital Improvement Bond Projects

2A     Page 2

https://bouldercolorado.gov/bond-projects
http://www.boulderconezones.net/
https://bouldercolorado.gov/bond-projects


PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS  
A brief description of the 85 individual projects, along with a status update, is provided in 
Attachment A and a map of the projects is provided in Attachment B. Of the 85 individual 
bond projects throughout the city:  
 
• 73 are completed, 
• 11 are under construction, and 
• One is in the design and planning phase. 
 
As of March 22, 2015, 90 percent ($49.86 million) of the total bond funding ($55.11 million) had 
been spent, with an additional 6 percent ($3.52 million) encumbered. The city met the bond 
requirement of spending 85 percent of total funding by March 22, 2015 and is continuing to 
closely monitor spending on a project-by-project basis to ensure that 100 percent of the total 
funding is spent by March 22, 2017. 
 
The individual projects are grouped into 26 categories, which are briefly highlighted below, 
along with the current status of the projects as of the end of April 2015. Details related to each 
project can be found at www.BoulderColorado.gov/Bond-Projects. Key investments are 
highlighted below. 
 
Boulder Reservoir Infrastructure Improvements – This project includes improving the entry 
gate, roadway, parking lot, utility infrastructure, and grounds and landscape. The new gateway 
entrance at 51st Street provides improved traffic access, a new entry building and an improved 
inspection station for Aquatic Nuisance Species (ANS).  
 
Main Library Renovation - The Main Boulder Public Library Renovation began in January 
2014, and included extensive renovations (for a total cost of $4,472,000) that were funded 
primarily by the 2011 voter-approved Capital Improvement Bond. The Main Library remained 
open and available to serve the community through the entire 16-month renovation. Project 
components included: 
 
• Renovating and relocating the children’s area; 
• Creating a new, larger Teen Space and a “maker” space; 
• Relocating and renovating the fiction, music and movies area; 
• Replacing outdated electrical and data distribution systems; 
• Repairing clerestory windows; 
• Improving Americans with Disability Act accessibility; 
• Replacing worn carpeting; 
• Providing facilities for café service on the library bridge; and 
• Installing additional HVAC (heating, ventilation, and air conditioning) equipment to improve 

building cooling. 
 
The project will be fully complete later this month, when the Seeds Library Café on the bridge 
(operated by the Boulder County Farmers’ Markets) opens for business. Through the Boulder 
Public Library’s “Reinventing the Place to Be” campaign, and the renovations implemented with 
Capital Improvement Bond funds, customer service, technology, and the overall library 
experience have been improved for the community.  

Information Item 
Capital Improvement Bond Projects

2A     Page 3

http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/Bond-Projects


 
Fire Station #8 – Previously referred to as the Wildland Fire Station, this station consolidates the 
operations of the Boulder Fire-Rescue Department’s Wildland Fire personnel into one new 
10,500 square-foot facility on the site of the existing Fire Training Center, east of the Boulder 
Reservoir property. The facility will provide accommodations for a full-time crew of Wildland 
Fire Specialists, and storage and maintenance of vehicles and support equipment for the wildland 
fire management. Construction is anticipated to be complete later this month, with an anticipated 
move-in date early in May.  
 
Summary of Projects Under Construction 
As of the end of April 2015, 11 projects are under construction. The three remaining Parks and 
Recreation projects include the new shelters and a restroom at Harlow Platts Community Park, 
the renovated headstones and historic shed at the Columbia Cemetery, and the full renovation of 
Crestview Neighborhood Park. All of these projects are scheduled to be completed later this 
year. 
 
Transportation projects that are under construction include the installation of the Junction Place 
Bridge at Goose Creek, improvements to South Boulder Road and Manhattan  
Drive intersection, and replacement of substandard traffic signs. It is anticipated that all of these 
projects will be completed later this year.  
 
The majority of the improvements to the downtown commercial district have been completed, 
including the 15th Street project to improve pedestrian accessibility and streetscape character; a 
new interactive kiosk for public use on the Pearl Street Mall; and bus, pedestrian and bicycle 
access improvements to the Boulder Transit Center at 14th and Walnut streets. Installation of 
pedestrian and streetscape improvements on west Pearl Street between 7th and 11th streets is 
currently under construction, and is scheduled to be completed by summer 2015. 
 
Also under construction are the new accessible restrooms west of the Chautauqua Auditorium. 
The project includes construction of a new building containing Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA)-accessible restrooms, along with extensive site and infrastructure improvements. The 
new facilities are being developed in collaboration with the Colorado Chautauqua Association 
and Landmarks Board, and the site location and building design were selected through an 
extensive community engagement process. While the project is primarily funded by the Capital 
Improvement Bond, the city facility replacement funding is also being used to upgrade existing 
city utilities for this project. The new restroom facilities will be available for public use for the 
majority of the Chautauqua summer program season, which starts in mid-May 2015. 
 
The remaining projects under “construction” include software and computer equipment 
replacement and upgrades. The city is replacing the outdated financial, human resources and 
payroll systems with an integrated, more modern and comprehensive software solution. The 
project has several phases and the first phase of implementing the finance system is complete. 
The remaining phases are expected to be completed later in 2015 and 2016. The city is also 
replacing and augmenting other major business software, including the city’s permit 
management system, as well as the citywide records management and document imaging 
software. It is anticipated that these projects will be completed in summer 2017 and 2015, 
respectively.  
 

Information Item 
Capital Improvement Bond Projects

2A     Page 4



 
Summary of In-Design and Planning Projects 
The remaining project in the planning and design phase is repairing the freight elevator in the 
Public Safety Building. It is anticipated that the freight elevator will be repaired and upgraded to 
extend the useful life cycle later in 2015.  
 
NEXT STEPS 
The city met the three-year spending requirement for the bond funds and is continuing to closely 
monitor spending on a project-by-project basis to ensure that 100 percent of the total funding is 
spent by the March 22, 2017 deadline. Council will continue to be updated on the Capital 
Improvement Bond progress through information packet memos or heads ups, as appropriate, 
based on specific milestones. In addition, the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) document will 
continue to include a special section on the Capital Improvement Bond projects until all EW 
completed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
• Attachment A – Table of Capital Improvement Bond Projects and Status  
• Attachment B – Map of Capital Improvement Bond Projects and Status  

Information Item 
Capital Improvement Bond Projects

2A     Page 5



Capital Improvement Bond Projects Summary
CATEGORY STATUS NAME
Downtown Completed Pearl Street Mall Interactive Kiosks
Downtown Completed 15th Street Design District
Equipment Completed City Website/eGov Software
Equipment Completed Police Equipment Replacement
Equipment Completed Police Equipment Upgrades
Facility Completed Fire Station 8 (Wildland)
Facility Completed Fleet Services Main Chiller Replacement
Facility Completed Park Central Infrastructure Upgrade
Facility Completed South Boulder Recreation Center Floor Replacement
Facility Completed Municipal Building Electrical Upgrade

Facility Completed
Boulder Museum of Contemporary Art HVAC 
Replacement

Facility Completed Main Library Elevator Modernization
Facility Completed Dairy Center HVAC Replacement
Facility Completed Public Safety HVAC Replacement
Facility Completed Park Central Infrastructure Upgrade
Library Completed Main Library Renovation
Parking Lot Completed West Senior Center Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed New Britain Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed Park Central Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed Dairy Center Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed George Reynolds Library Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed Fire Stations #6 and #7 Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed Main Library Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed Atrium Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed Fire Stations #1 and #2 Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed Fire Stations #4 and #5 Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed FAM/BMOCA Parking Lot Repairs
Parking Lot Completed Municipal Service Center (Yards) Gate Entry Repairs
Parking Lot Completed CYF/Spruce Pool Parking Lot Repairs
Parks & Recreation Completed Eaton Park Shelter
Parks & Recreation Completed Foothills Dog Park Shelter
Parks & Recreation Completed Valmont Dog Park Shelters
Parks & Recreation Completed Valmont Bike Park Shelters
Parks & Recreation Completed Pleasant View Fields Park Shelters
Parks & Recreation Completed Columbine Park Improvements
Parks & Recreation Completed Boulder Reservoir Infrastructure Improvements
Parks & Recreation Completed Harlow Platts Park Improvements
Parks & Recreation Completed North Boulder Park Improvements
Parks & Recreation Completed Pineview Park Improvements
Parks & Recreation Completed East Palo Park Improvements
Parks & Recreation Completed Pleasant View Ballfields Improvements
Parks & Recreation Completed Canyon Park Improvements
Parks & Recreation Completed Mapleton Ballfields Improvements

Attachment A: Capital Improvement Bond Projects Summary Table

Information Item 
Capital Improvement Bond Projects

2A     Page 6



Parks & Recreation Completed Martin Park Shelter
Parks & Recreation Completed Stazio Ballfields Improvements
Transportation Completed Road Reconstruction
Transportation Completed Road Pavement Repair

Transportation Completed
Baseline and Foothills Parkway Intersection 
Improvements

Transportation Completed Baseline Road and Canyon Creek Pedestrian Crossing
Transportation Completed Canyon and 21st Street Pedestrian Crossing
Transportation Completed Replace Traffic Signal Light Bulbs
Transportation Completed Bike Sign and System Enhancements
Transportation Completed Boulder Transit Center Area Improvements: Phase 1
Transportation Completed Boulder Transit Center Area Improvements: Phase 2
Transportation Completed Mapleton Ave and 27th Street Sidewalks
Transportation Completed Table Mesa Drive Trailhead Multi-Use Path Connection
Transportation Completed Arapahoe Avenue Reconstruction
Transportation Completed Boulder Creek Multi-Use Path Connection
Transportation Completed Upland Ave Multi-use Path Connection
Transportation Completed Boulder Junction - Pearl Parkway Improvements
Transportation Completed Baseline Road Multi-Use Path Connection
Transportation Completed Gillaspie Drive Missing Sidewalk Link
Transportation Completed 63rd Street Missing Sidewalk Link
Transportation Completed Bucknell Court Missing Sidewalk Link
Transportation Completed Spine Road Missing Sidewalk Links
Transportation Completed 63rd Street Bridge Replacement
Transportation Completed Foothills Parkway Irrigation Replacement
Transportation Completed Iris Avenue Missing Sidewalk Link
Transportation Completed Folsom Street Sidewalk

Transportation Completed
Table Mesa Drive Multi-use Path Connection (RTD Park-
n-Ride to Manhattan Circle)

Transportation Completed Pine Street Missing Sidewalk Link
Transportation Completed Pearl Street Alley Wall Repair
Transportation Completed 28th Street Multi-Use Path Connection
Downtown Construction West Pearl Streetscape Improvements
Equipment Construction City Permit System Replacement
Equipment Construction City Records Management Software
Equipment Construction Replace City HR & Financial Software
Facility Construction Chautauqua Park Restrooms
Parks & Recreation Construction Harlow Platts Park Shelter
Parks & Recreation Construction Columbia Cemetery Improvements
Parks & Recreation Construction Crestview Park Improvements
Transportation Construction Replace Substandard Signs

Transportation Construction
South Boulder Road and Manhattan Drive Intersection 
Improvements

Transportation Construction Boulder Junction Bridge
Facility Planning/Design Public Safety Freight Elevator Replacement

Attachment A: Capital Improvement Bond Projects Summary Table

Information Item 
Capital Improvement Bond Projects

2A     Page 7



##

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

###

##

#

#
#

#
#
#

#

#

#
#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

###

#

#

###
#

#

#

#

#

#

#

# #
#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

##

#

#

#
Road Reconstruction

Bike Sign Enhancements

Replace Traffic 
Signal Light Bulbs

Crestview Park
Improvements

South Boulder
Recreation Center
Floor Replacement

South Boulder Road
and Manhattan Drive
Intersection Improvements

Boulder Reservoir
Infrastructure

Improvements

Columbia
Cemetery
Improvements

Dairy Center
Parking Lot
Repairs,
HVAC
Replacement

Fire Stations #4
and #5 Parking
Lot Repairs

Fire Training
Center Parking Lot
Repairs

Fire Stations #6
and #7 Parking

Lot Repairs

Harlow
Platts Park

Improvements

Pleasant View
Ballfields
Improvements

Stazio
Ballfields
Improvements

Fire Station
8 (Wildland)

Eaton Park
Shelter

North
Boulder Park
Improvements

Fire Stations #1
and #2 Parking

Lot Repairs

Pineview Park
Improvements

Harlow
Platts Park
Shelter

Mapleton
Ballfields

Improvements

Baseline and Foothills
Parkway Intersection
Improvements

Foothills
Dog Park
Shelter

Baseline Road and
Canyon Creek
Pedestrian Crossing

Police
Equipment
Upgrades

George Reynolds
Library Parking

Lot Repairs

East Palo Park
Improvements

Pleasant View
Fields Park

Shelters

Columbine Park
Improvements

Public Safety
Freight Elevator
Replacement

Martin
Park
Shelter

Bike Sign
and System
Enhancements

Valmont
Bike Park
Shelters

Public
Safety HVAC
Replacement

CYF/Spruce
Pool Parking
Lot Repairs

Boulder
Junction
Bridge

Valmont Dog
Park Shelters

Road Pavement Repair

Fleet Services
Main Chiller
Replacement

Police
Equipment
Replacement

Canyon and 21st Street
Pedestrian Crossing

Municipal Service
Center (Yards)
Gate Entry Repairs

Replace
Substandard

Signs

Canyon Park
Improvements

Bucknell
Court Missing
Sidewalk Link

Spine Road
Missing
Sidewalk Links

Iris Avenue
Missing

Sidewalk Link

63rd Street
Bridge
Replacement

Foothills Parkway
Irrigation
Replacement

Arapahoe Avenue 
Reconstruction

28th Street 
Multi-Use Path 

Connection

Baseline Road Multi-Use
Path Connection

63rd Street Missing
Sidewalk Link

Gillaspie Drive Missing Sidewalk Link

Pearl Street 
Mall Interactive 

Kiosks

Table Mesa Dr Multi-use Path
Connection (RTD Park-n-Ride

to Manhattan Circle)

Boulder Creek Multi-Use
 Path Connection

Boulder Junction
Pearl Parkway
Improvements

15th Street Design District

West Pearl 
Streetscape

Improvements

Mapleton and 27th
 Sidewalks

Upland Ave Multi-use
Path Connection

Table Mesa Dr Trailhead
Multi-Use Path Connection

Folsom St
Sidewalk

Pearl Street Alley Wall Repair

Pine St Missing
Sidewalk Link

#
#

# #

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

# Boulder Museum of
Contemporary Art

HVAC Replacement

Facility ADA
Compliance

Main Library
Parking Lot
Repairs

Main Library
Renovation

Park Central
Infrastructure
Upgrade

Main Library
Elevator

Modernization

City
Website/eGov
Software

Boulder Transit
Center Area

Improvements: Phase 2

City Permit
System

Replacement

Replace City
HR & Financial
Software

Park Central
Parking Lot

Repairs

Atrium
Parking Lot
Repairs FAM/BMOCA

Parking Lot
Repairs

West Senior
Center Parking
Lot Repairs

New Britain
Parking Lot

Repairs

Municipal Building
Electrical Upgrade

Boulder Transit
Center Area

Improvements: Phase 1
City Records
Management
Software

Arterial Road
Reconstruction

9th St

Broadw
ay

Arapahoe Av

Broadw
ay

11th St

9th St

Broadw
ay

11th St

9th St

Pearl St

Canyon BvWalnut
St

Walnut St

Canyon Bv

Walnut St

ATTACHMENT B - Capital Bond Projects and Status

Legend
2011 Capital Improvement Bond Projects
Project Status
# Planning/Design

# Construction

# Completed

Planning/Design

Construction

Completed

City Limits
Information Item 

Capital Improvement Bond Projects
2A     Page 8



 

 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works, Flood Recovery Manager 
 
Date:   April 21, 2015 
 
Subject:    Information Item: Flood Recovery Status 
 
This City Council information item provides an update on flood recovery status in relation to the 
key objectives for both near-term recovery and long-term resilience. Highlights of the progress 
made are listed below, by objective, with details provided in the body of the memorandum.  
 
1. Help people get assistance. 

• Staff is continuing targeted outreach to neighborhoods and property owners with vacant and 
uninhabitable units. Seventeen housing units remain vacant and uninhabitable.   

• Approximately 142 cases are active with the Long-Term Flood Recovery Group.   
 

2. Restore and enhance our infrastructure. 
• As of March 31, the city has spent approximately $18 million on flood recovery. 
• In terms of costs, with remaining work estimated at $10 million, recovery efforts are 64 

percent complete. 
• The city formally appealed an ineligible determination made by FEMA about sediment and 

debris removal from a portion of Fourmile Canyon Creek. The appeal was submitted to 
FEMA by the State of Colorado on Nov. 10, 2014. The state has 90 days to review, after 
which FEMA has 90 days to consider and respond to the city’s appeal. The state has since 
forwarded the appeal on to FEMA. Staff anticipates a response sometime in the second 
quarter of 2015. 
 

3. Assist business recovery. 
• The city is continuing to assist businesses with remaining flood recovery needs by 

connecting them with funding sources and business resources specific to their unique needs. 
• The city is coordinating with the Economic Development Administration (EDA), which has 

a consultant in Colorado assisting communities with developing economic resilience 
following the flood. 
 
 

 
 

 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 1



 
 

4. Pursue and focus resources to support recovery efforts. 
• The city has received $4.3 million in FEMA reimbursements to date. Compared to state 

averages, this is in line with other communities. 
• The city has been awarded $4.1 million in non-FEMA grants to support recovery and 

resilience projects in Housing, Open Space and Mountain Parks (OSMP), and Public Works 
(Utilities). 

• The city is pursuing additional CDBG-DR funds in Rounds 2 and 3 ($257 million available). 
• The city has adopted a policy to acknowledge the risk of de-obligation of funds due to 

procurement challenges by assigning a portion of FEMA receipts to a restricted fund 
balance.  

• The costs of immediate emergency response and recovery efforts have been covered by 
reserves across the city’s funds, with minimal impact to the 2014 Operating Budget. The 
2015 Budget includes a plan to replenish emergency reserves by the end of 2016. 
 

5. Learn together and plan for the future. 
• The city continues to participate in the BoCo Strong network, and will help kick off a local 

volunteer organizations active in disasters (VOAD) organization.   
• The resilience strategy (funded through the 100 Resilient Cities program) is nearing 

completion of Phase 1.  Additional information was included in the March 31, 2015 Study 
Session packet.   

 
City staff, consultants and community partners continue to work diligently to make progress in 
achieving the council-adopted objectives. Each objective is explained in the following pages, along 
with a high-level summary of progress. More detailed information can be found at the city’s 
comprehensive resource for all flood-related information, www.BoulderFloodInfo.net.  
 
Previously, council updates on flood recovery occurred quarterly. Future council updates on flood 
recovery efforts will occur through Information Packet items on an as-needed basis.     

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 2

http://bocostrong.org/
https://bouldercolorado.gov/resilience
http://www.boulderfloodinfo.net/


Facilitate access to individual assistance for affected homeowners, renters and businesses  
to support their recovery from flood impacts and strengthen long-term resilience. 

 
 FEMA TEMPORARY HOUSING UNITS  

On March 14, 2015, FEMA removed the remaining temporary housing units from the Boulder 
Meadows Mobile Home Park, thus meeting their deadline of ending that portion of FEMA 
assistance 18 months after the disaster.   
 
At its peak, 17 housing units were placed in Boulder Meadows. City staff, Long Term Flood 
Recovery Group case managers, and the State of Colorado staff worked to ensure each resident had 
a safe and sanitary place to move to prior to the removal of the temporary housing units.   
 
UNINHABITABLE, VACANT UNITS, AND REBUILDING 
The city continues to help residents in need of assistance as they recover from the flood. The city’s 
latest estimate is that 17 housing units continue to remain vacant and under construction as a result 
of the flood. Four of the housing units are expected to be completed by approximately May 1, and 
an additional 12 units are expected to be completed by approximately July 1.   

 
The Planning and Development Services Center continues to help customers with flood-related 
questions and customers seeking permits for repairs due to flood damage or for flood mitigation 
measures, but its flood-related case load has decreased. From Sept. 11, 2013 through March 31, 
2015, the city has processed 768 flood-related building permits. Since the last update to council in 
January, an additional 12 flood recovery permits have been processed.  
 
On March 17, 2015, council adopted Emergency Ordinance No. 8035, which extends the time 
period for fee waivers on flood recovery permits and reconstruction of non-standard or non-
conforming buildings to March 1, 2016. As individuals receive CDBG-DR grant funding, permits 
for the work will be needed, or retroactive permits for completed work will be required, so a small 
increase in flood recovery permits is expected.   
 
INDIVIDUAL ASSISTANCE AND CASE MANAGEMENT 
Approximately 142 Boulder households have open cases with the Long-Term Flood Recovery 
Group of Boulder County (LTFRG), with 132 cases already closed. The direct assistance provided 
by case managers includes assisting with FEMA individual assistance and insurance appeals; 
mental health programs; volunteer and nonprofit labor coordination; construction coordination; 
funding assistance through the United Way Flood Relief Fund; CDBG-DR housing rehabilitation; 
as well as referrals to other agencies for technical assistance. Approximately 50 percent of the cases 
have a remaining construction or construction reimbursement need. Twenty percent of the cases 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 3



involve a mobile home. The city’s Human Services Department has extended the financial grant to 
support case management of City of Boulder cases through 2015. There are approximately 1,063 
cases throughout Boulder County and 544 remain active.    
 
FLOOD-RELATED ANNEXATIONS 
Five additional properties were annexed on Jan. 20, 2015. The Colorado Department of Public 
Health and Environment (CDPHE) grant to fund the extension of water and sewer infrastructure in a 
flood-affected neighborhood continues in the Old Tale neighborhood, with the second reading 
scheduled for April 21. It is anticipated that, with continuing grant funding, a small group of 
individual properties may remain to be annexed as part of their flood recovery process. Staff is 
working with those owners and will group them together to be processed through the remainder of 
2015.     
 
CDBG-DR GRANT FUNDING 
CDBG-DR funding coordination is continuing countywide for the second round of funding ($199 
million for Colorado). By working with state and regional partners, the countywide collaborative 
was successful in getting the state to include a more predictable, expedited, and customized process 
for allocating this second round of funding for infrastructure and housing-related projects through a 
sub-allocation to the countywide collaborative.  
 
The city, along with the other countywide collaborative partners, has compiled remaining unmet 
needs (through a consultant) to ensure that all partners understand the need in each community for 
infrastructure and housing. Based on that study, the countywide collaborative will establish a 
percentage allocation for each community and select the projects to be funded. HUD requirements 
(such as 50 percent benefit for low- to moderate-income households) must still be met, and the 
collaborative is currently reviewing projects to understand how best to ensure compliance. The 
collaborative has drafted a plan for funding flood recovery projects in the infrastructure and housing 
individual assistance areas and submitted that plan to the State of Colorado for consideration and 
review by HUD. The intergovernmental agreement that determines that the City of Longmont will 
serve as the project’s fiscal agent will be considered by council on April 21. The city’s top 
infrastructure project for CDBG-DR infrastructure funding is the Wonderland Creek Flood 
Mitigation project.      
 
The header photos were taken at a Twomile Canyon Creek open house.   

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 4



Invest in projects to restore services and to rebuild and enhance infrastructure, as appropriate,  
in the interests of public health and safety, community quality of life, and long-term resilience. 

 
  

FLOOD RECOVERY PROJECT STATUS 
As a result of the significant flood damage to city infrastructure, the city is working to complete 
more than 300 projects across the community for repairs, restoration, replacement, and mitigation 
work. To fund these projects, the city is pursuing a variety of available resources in the recovery 
and reimbursement process, including insurance, FEMA assistance, and other agencies (e.g., 
Federal Highway Administration, Urban Drainage and Flood Control District, Colorado Water 
Conservation Board, etc.), as further described in the “Objective #4” section. 
 
Below is a summary of the total projects by department/division. Projects are considered partially 
complete if work has been started, temporary repairs have been made, or mitigation work has yet to 
be completed. As of April 3, 2015, the city has completed 74 percent of the flood-related projects 
and spent $18 million on flood recovery (see more financial details on page 12).  
  

  Total Flood-related Projects Percent Complete 
Citywide Total 318 74% 

Department/Division     
Open Space & Mountain Parks 145 57% 
Parks & Recreation 46 91% 
Public Works - Utilities 64 97% 
Public Works - Transportation 31 77% 
Public Works - Facilities & 
Asset Management and Fleet 34 74% 

 
Department-specific details are provided below. 
 
OPEN SPACE AND MOUNTAIN PARKS (OSMP)  
Typical winter weather in January and March 2015, along with record snowfalls in February, 
hampered field work on OSMP facilities damaged by the flood; however, staff offered two 
innovative approaches to taking advantage of the intermittent suitable days for work. First, last 
year’s seasonal trail workers were offered the chance to be “on-call” for work when field conditions 
allowed. Using this approach, crews were able to make progress on projects in Sunshine Canyon. At 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 5



Chautauqua Meadow, OMSP staff’s second strategy was to collaborate with Bridge House’s Ready 
to Work program, which provides homeless adults with paid transitional work. OSMP looks forward 
to future cooperative flood recovery project work throughout 2015. Staff members responsible for 
other trail, fence, and ditch repairs, as well as ecological restoration projects, have been working on 
resource assessments, establishing contractor agreements, obtaining permits, and hiring seasonal 
staff to ensure that projects are “shovel ready” once the weather clears.   
 
The State of Colorado Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (DHSEM) 
has approved both the city’s request to extend the deadline by when work must be completed for 
several OSMP projects, and the city’s request to increase the estimated recovery costs of flood 
damages eligible for public assistance by more than $3 million. FEMA’s total estimate of the 
recovery costs for damage to city open space facilities now totals approximately $5.5 million. Both 
of the state’s approvals are currently under review or in the final stages of approval by FEMA. 
 

PROJECT STATUS NUMBER OF 
PROJECTS1 

Completed 82 
Partially Completed 17 
Planning/Design 46 
TOTAL 145 

 
Staff continues to prioritize completion of flood recovery projects as part of annual work planning.  
In March, City Council approved a 2015 supplemental budgetary appropriation for one-time and 
fixed investments, including $3.86 million to accelerate the rate of flood recovery for 33 projects on 
Open Space and Mountain Parks. This accelerated funding will maximize FEMA reimbursement 
and is responsive to community expectations for flood recovery.     
 
PARKS AND RECREATION 
Approximately 34 percent, or 35 of the 98 Parks and Recreation facilities, were significantly 
damaged by the flood. Recovery work includes repair, restoration and/or replacement of facilities, 
structures, playgrounds, multi-use fields and courts, and paths.   
 

PROJECT STATUS NUMBER OF 
PROJECTS 

Completed 43 
Partially Completed 2 
Planning/Design 2 

TOTAL 47 
 
Parks and Recreation staff continues to implement flood recovery and restoration projects across the 
community, with approximately 89 percent of the projects completed so far. The department had 47 
distinct projects due to flood damage and has currently completed 41 projects, with four partially 
completed.  
The two partially completed projects include: 

1 Project numbers vary from quarter to quarter due to determinations of eligibility by FEMA, discoveries of additional 
tasks, and the separation and combination of various trails. 

 
 

                                                           

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 6



 
• Flatirons Golf Course – removal of sediment from the pond at hole #6 and #8; and   
• Evert Pierson Memorial Kids’ Fishing Ponds – full restoration of the ponds and associated park 

amenities. 
 
The remaining projects that are currently in planning and design, with FEMA coordination (if 
needed), include: 
 
• Knollwood Tennis Courts – complete replacement of the damaged courts, in addition to 

replacement of the walls and landscape restoration, with the work anticipated to be complete in 
summer 2015; and 

• Flatirons Event Center – based on council’s direction, staff anticipates demolishing the facility 
in the summer of 2015 and is currently in the planning phase to ensure an efficient transition of 
the facility. Spice of Life is remodeling space in Flatiron Industrial Park (near their current 
offices) for its new commercial kitchen and catering space.  

 
The department anticipates that all projects will be complete within the next five to seven months.  
 
UTILITIES 
Although the water utility infrastructure performed admirably and sustained minimal damages, the 
wastewater, stormwater, and major drainageway systems were overwhelmed by floodwaters and 
runoff, groundwater infiltration, and inflow to the city’s open channel and pipe conveyance 
systems. Initial flood response work included the protection of critical wastewater pipelines, 
vulnerable water delivery pipelines, and access roads to critical water infrastructure.  
 
Continuing recovery work includes:  
 
• Reconstruction of improved drainageway features, and 
• Stabilization and repair of the undermined and damaged wastewater interceptor pipe near 61st 

Street. 
 

PROJECT 
STATUS 

NUMBER OF UTILITY PROJECTS 

WATER WASTEWATER STORMWATER/FLOOD 
MANAGEMENT TOTAL 

Completed 20 15 27 61 
Partially 
Completed 0 1 0 1 

Planning/Design 0 1 0 1 
TOTAL 20 17 27 63 

 
Utilities staff continues to implement flood recovery and restoration projects for the water, 
wastewater and stormwater/flood management utilities. Approximately 95 percent of the recovery 
work is complete. Work on all critical water and wastewater infrastructure is complete. Sediment 
and debris removal from major drainageways is also complete. Repair of drainageway features, 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 7



such as drop structures and retaining walls, is more than 90 percent complete and should be 
completed by mid-2015.  
 
TRANSPORTATION  
Due to the flood, approximately 1 percent (three miles) of roadway was damaged citywide. There 
are approximately 300 miles of roads within the City of Boulder. It is estimated that approximately 
20 percent (60 miles) of the roads were covered in flood-related debris. The city also has 60 miles 
of multi-use paths within the city limits. Approximately 15 percent, or nine miles, of the paths were 
damaged. 
 

PROJECT STATUS 
NUMBER OF 
PROJECTS[1] 

Completed 24 
Partially Completed 7 
Planning/Design 0 

TOTAL 31 
 
All transportation facilities are available for full use by the public. The remaining transportation 
projects include: 
 

• Table Mesa Drive/Lehigh Street[2] – stabilizing the Bear Canyon Creek channel, 
reconstructing drop structures and repairing pavement; staff will be working with Triple M 
to get this completed in the next couple of months; 

• 47th Street at Fourmile Canyon Creek – primary work is complete and only fencing 
replacement, revegetation, and minor channel inlet riprap adjustments remain; with the 
entire project expected to be complete in the next four to six months; 

• Various Street Locations – complete minor patching and chip seal on flood-damaged streets 
(including the damaged/patched portion of Brooklawn Drive, which will get a chip seal as 
part of a larger chip seal project later this summer); 

• Boulder Creek at 4141 Arapahoe Ave. – removal of a piece of displaced concrete; which is 
expected to be complete in the next four to six months; and 

• Boulder Creek east of 55th Street – repairs to the riprap protecting the abutments of the 
pedestrian bridge are expected be complete in the next four to six months. 

 
Transportation staff anticipates that all projects will be complete within the next four to six months. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[2] Projects include FEMA and Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). FEMA oversees the disaster relief federal 
funding for the street system that carries lower traffic volumes (residential streets), and FHWA, through the Colorado 
Department of Transportation (CDOT), oversees the federal funding for streets that have higher traffic volumes. 

 
 

                                                           

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 8



FACILITIES AND ASSET MANAGEMENT (FAM): BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES  
Of the 365 city-owned buildings and structures, approximately 34 (nine percent) were damaged due 
to the flood. 
 

PROJECT STATUS NUMBER OF PROJECTS 
Completed 25 
Partially Completed 7 
Planning/Design 2 

TOTAL 34 
 
About 94 percent of the building and structural repairs have been completed. With the majority of 
the mitigation work approved by FEMA, such as installing sump pumps, rerouting roof drains, and 
adding flood walls and doors, the next step will be completing that work at the following facilities: 
   
• Fire stations #1 and #4;  
• West Senior Center;  
• Reynolds Library;  
• Main Boulder Public Library;  
• Iris Center; and  
• North Boulder Recreation Center.  
 
Additional flood recovery projects that are in the planning/design include the:  
 
• South Boulder Recreation Center –gymnasium floor design and replacement. It is anticipated 

that the floor will be replaced during the spring 2015 annual maintenance shutdown. 
 

All flood mitigation projects, with the exception of the Main Boulder Public Library, were 
completed at the end of March 2015. The Main Library flood mitigation project will be 
accomplished in mid-2015 as part of the Capital Improvement Project (CIP) work.   

The header photos were taken along Boulder Creek and at the primary interceptor pipe that 
delivers the majority of wastewater flows to the 75th Street Wastewater Treatment Facility. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 9



Work with the Boulder business community and key partners to connect affected businesses 
 with resources, recover quickly from flood impacts, and support long-term economic vitality.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The city continues to assist businesses with flood recovery needs. Impacts to Boulder businesses 
ranged from moderate damage (businesses that were repaired in a few weeks) to severe (e.g., 
complete demolition of a building with 20 tenants at 100 Arapahoe Avenue). Business assistance 
inquiries have included unique requests to specific Boulder businesses (e.g., disposal of confidential 
but severely damaged documents) and questions about funding sources and business resources. 
 
EDA TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE   
The Economic Development Administration (EDA) conducted an assessment last fall on the 
resilience of the Colorado economy, businesses and communities following the flood. The EDA has 
now funded a consultant to provide limited technical assistance to communities in Colorado. The 
Economic Vitality, Resilience, and flood recovery teams are coordinating to establish what kind of 
technical assistance would be most helpful for the City of Boulder.   
 
The header photo was taken at a business recovery meeting and the graphic was extracted from the 
Recover Colorado Business Grant and Loan program application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 10



Work in partnership with volunteers, governmental and other agencies  
to maximize financial resources and efficiencies for recovery. 

 
  

The September 2013 flooding was declared a national disaster, which created an opportunity for 
possible reimbursement through FEMA, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and the 
State of Colorado. The city is striving to maximize reimbursement from all applicable agencies, as 
well as through grant funding opportunities.   
 
FINANCIAL RESOURCES 
Due largely to the city’s reserve policies and ability to flex repair dollars, the city has been able to 
fund the emergency response and initial recovery investments. Although partial reimbursement for 
eligible expenses is expected from FEMA and the State of Colorado, and the city is seeking all 
external funding opportunities to cover both recovery and mitigation costs, as the timing of this 
funding is uncertain. Therefore, the 2015 Budget includes replenishing the General Fund reserves to 
14 percent in 2015 and building reserves to 15 percent in 2016 and beyond. This plan brings reserve 
levels to recognized best practice levels in a short timeframe, maintains adequate levels in the 
immediate term, and responsibly meets the funding needs of the city. 
 
Tables 1 and 2 (shown below) illustrate, by department/division, the anticipated city share in the 
flood recovery costs, as well as the estimated amount of reimbursement back to the city. The total 
cost estimate of $28 million represents staff’s current estimates of flood damage and recovery 
activities, following further investigation of damages and assessment of repair and recovery 
alternatives. These costs are related to the specific September 2013 flood damages and are not 
reflective of subsequent issues with additional sediment and debris during spring runoff and 
summer storms. 
 
In response to the risks of FEMA de-obligation of funds highlighted in past updates, the Flood 
Recovery Steering Committee adopted a policy that will establish an assignment of fund balance 
equal to 7 percent of FEMA reimbursements in the seven most affected funds. Based upon current 
estimates of expected reimbursement, the sum of fund designations would equal approximately $1.2 
million. If FEMA does not require return of funds at the end of the audit period (currently estimated 
around 2019 or 2020), the fund assignments would be released to unrestricted fund balance.  
 
Since the Jan. 20, 2015 update to council, the city has received an additional $1.9 million in FEMA 
reimbursements, bringing the total reimbursements to $4.3 million. Staff has experienced a slowing 
in the pace of reimbursement from the State of Colorado. The state continues to increase its scrutiny 
of reimbursement requests, digging into ever deeper minutia on procurement and contracting. The 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 11



state is taking this approach to reduce the risk of future demands by FEMA to return funds. While 
staff agrees with this approach, it is estimated that the increased scrutiny has doubled or tripled the 
amount of time needed to prepare reimbursement requests.  
 
REMAINING COST TO THE CITY (GAP) 
While FEMA and the state typically reimburse 87.5 percent of eligible projects (75 percent and 12.5 
percent, respectively), in many cases, the city’s gap between incurred costs and estimated 
reimbursements varies significantly. The most common reasons for this gap are listed below. 
 
• Through policy, FEMA has deemed many flood recovery activities ineligible (e.g., ecological 

restoration activities in OSMP, debris removal in certain areas of the streams).  
• FEMA policies generally do not reimburse for regular staff time for flood response and recovery 

activities (only overtime is eligible). While project management and direct administrative costs 
are reimbursable, actual “boots on the ground” time is typically limited to overtime labor.  

• Costs related to general administrative activities (not associated with a particular project) are 
ineligible for reimbursement (e.g., general flood coordination meetings, reporting, budgeting, 
council updates, etc.). 

 
Table 1: Costs Related to Flood Damage and Response 
 

Department/Division Total Flood Damage 
and Response Amount Spent Remaining 

Estimated Cost 

 Transportation $2,500,000  $2,485,068  $14,932  
 Utilities  $9,000,000  $8,461,623  $538,377  
 FAM/Fleet  $1,900,000  $950,193  $949,807  
 OSMP $8,800,000  $1,440,955  $7,359,045  
 Parks & Rec  $1,600,000  $1,530,765  $69,235  
 CP&S  $1,892,947  $1,892,947  $0  
 Police  $743,206  $743,206  $0  
 Fire  $112,009  $112,009  $0  
 Other  $1,500,000  $1,213,901  $286,099  
 Total  $28,048,162  $18,830,667  $9,217,496  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 12



Table 2: Sources of Funds for Flood Recovery and Response 
 

Department/ 
Division 

Actual 
FEMA/State/ 

FHWA 
Reimbursement 

Estimated 
Reimbursement 

from 
FEMA/State/ 

FHWA1 

Insurance 
Proceeds2 

Total 
Reimbursement 

Remaining 
Cost to City 

(Gap)3 

Total 
Sources of 

Funds 

Transportation  $433,536  $1,136,000    $1,921,350  $578,650  $2,500,000  
 Utilities  $1,297,708  $5,584,000    $6,928,392  $2,071,608  $9,000,000  
 FAM/Fleet  $188,488  $148,000  $1,422,388  $1,763,116  $136,884  $1,900,000  
 OSMP4 $99,111  $5,354,000  $25,097  $5,478,208  $3,321,792  $8,800,000  
 Parks & Rec  $153,245  $588,000  $186,812  $1,015,976  $584,024  $1,600,000  
 CP&S  $1,758,812  $108,000    $1,376,152  $516,795  $1,892,947  
 Police  $220,061  $28,000  $4,963  $253,024  $490,182  $743,206  
 Fire  $83,867  $11,000    $94,867  $17,142  $112,009  
 Other  $42,534  $1,000    $43,534  $1,456,466  $1,500,000  
 Total  $4,277,361  $12,958,000  $1,639,260  $18,874,618  $9,173,544  $28,048,162  

       1 Actual reimbursement amounts may vary due to actual costs incurred and/or FEMA de-obligation of costs at project closeout. 
Includes 1.34 percent management cost reimbursement.  
2 Insurance proceeds do not reflect a $1 million unscheduled property payment. The city is still determining the best use of these funds. 
FEMA may require that some or all of this payment be used to offset "duplication of benefits," which would result in a reduction of the 
FEMA reimbursement.  
3 Please refer to the “Remaining Cost to City (Gap)” and “Grants” sections of this memo for an overview of the reasons contributing 
to the gap, and the additional funding sources that city staff is pursuing to help close the gap.  
4 The majority of OSMP project worksheets have been written on estimates. As recovery work and reimbursements progress, the actual 
reimbursement from FEMA and the state may increase, as long as the work performed is consistent with the project scope and costs 
are determined to be reasonable by FEMA.  

 
GRANTS 
To help close the aforementioned gap between flood damage and response costs and FEMA 
reimbursements, the city is pursuing additional funding sources. The following table provides a 
brief overview of the opportunities currently being pursued.   
 

Program Awarded Projects/Eligible Activities 
Grants Awarded 

Community Development Block 
Grant:  Disaster Recovery  
– Resiliency Planning 

• West Fourmile Creek annexation and redevelopment 
study 

• Award: $75,625 
• OSMP natural Resources Planner 
• Award: $87,700 

Community Development Block 
Grant:  Disaster Recovery  
– Housing Rehabilitation 

• Single-family renovations and repairs 
• Relocation of single-family homes 
• Award: $1 million (city’s share of city/county funds) 

Colorado Department of Public 
Health and Environment (CDPHE) 

• 61st Street wastewater interceptor reroute (2014) 
• Area II annexation infrastructure, design, and fees 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 13



(2014) 
• Wastewater system inspection 
• 2014 Award: $1,595,000 
• 2015 Award: $300,000 

Colorado Water Conservation Board 
– Stream Restoration Grant 

• Boulder Creek restoration and relocation 
• Award: $200,000 

Community Development Block 
Grant:  Disaster Recovery  
– Infrastructure  

• FEMA local match for sediment and debris removal 
in streams 

• Award: $500,000 
Fish and Wildlife Service – National 
Fish Passage Program 

• Boulder Creek at Green Ditch Fish Passage Project 
• Award: $75,000 

Colorado Water Conservation Board 
–  Water Supply Reserve Account 
Program 

• Boulder Creek at Green Ditch Floodplain 
Reconnection Project 

• Award: $245,000 
Available Grant Opportunities 

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant 
Program 

• Hazard mitigation projects (property acquisition, 
structure elevation, dry floodproofing, generators, 
etc.) 

Urban Drainage and Flood Control 
District (UDFCD) • Repair of structures built by the UDFCD 

Natural Resources Conservation 
Service Emergency Watershed 
Protection Program 

• Debris removal 
• Streambank stabilization 
• Repair of water control structures and infrastructure 

Unites States Tennis Association • Tennis court repairs 
 
VOLUNTEERS 
Since September 2013, the city has been fortunate to have a significant level of support from 
volunteers, with approximately 1,800 volunteers working approximately 7,500 hours so far. Of 
those hours, 3,853 are eligible for FEMA reimbursement, with a projected value of $60,000.   
 
Upcoming events for public volunteer assistance can be found online at www.ow.ly/pfF4Y.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The header photos were taken at volunteer projects along the Royal Arch Trail and Mesa Trail. 

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 14

http://www.ow.ly/pfF4Y


 

BOCO STRONG 
BoCo Strong, the countywide network for resilience, has been awarded a CDBG-DR resilience 
planning grant to assist in piloting neighborhood-level resilience countywide, and to assist in the 
creation of a volunteer organizations active in disasters (VOAD) organization for Boulder County. 
This effort is being coordinated with the city’s resilience planning efforts.   
 
WEST FOURMILE CANYON CREEK STUDY 
The city received a CDBG-DR planning grant to study options related to the Ponderosa Mobile 
Home Park and vacant parcel at Foothills Community Park. The city and its consultant have begun 
the first phase of the project by gathering background information and collecting input on the 
properties, in partnership with the property owners.  A study session has been scheduled for July 28, 
to provide City Council with a community profile (existing conditions, info on residents, owners, 
assets of the community), background research and findings regarding mobile homes, and to discuss 
the preliminary analysis of options for the Ponderosa Mobile Home Park and the vacant parcel at 
the Foothills Community.   
 
 
CITY PRE-DISASTER RECOVERY PLANNING 
Efforts to create pre-disaster recovery plans for city and community recovery are underway, and 
will continue through 2015.   
 
RESILIENCE STRATEGY 
The resilience strategy (funded through the 100 Resilient Cities program) is nearing completion of Phase 1.  
Additional information was included in the March 31, 2015 Study Session packet.   
 
The header photos were taken at the Sept. 10, 2014 “The Boulder Flood: One Year Later” 
afternoon and evening events.  

 
 

Information Item 
Flood Recovery Status

2B     Page 15

http://bocostrong.org/
https://bouldercolorado.gov/resilience


 
 

 
 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Greg Testa, Chief of Police 
 
Date:   April 21, 2015 
 
Subject: Information Item: Review General Order 240, In-Car Cameras, Body Worn 

Cameras and Personal Recording Devices  
  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The 2015 Boulder Police Department (BPD) budget included approval to purchase body worn 
cameras for all uniformed officers.  The initial order for thirty cameras was placed in early 
December of 2014 and an additional 120 were ordered the last week in March. Due to the high 
demand nationwide, the original order has been delayed with an expected arrival date in April or 
May.   
 
Boulder Police Department Management Staff revised the current in-car camera general order 
(GO240) to include verbiage on body cameras.  It was adopted after it was modified by the city 
attorney’s office and reviewed by the city manager. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Equipping all uniformed officers will require the purchase of 150 cameras and carry total costs 
of $103,500, comprised of $74,250 in one-time expense and $29,250 in ongoing expense (for 
maintenance and replacement).  The police department identified $16,500 one-time funds within 
their existing budget, reducing the budget impact in 2015 to $87,000.    
 
A cost savings occurs by using the same vendor who provides the current in-car camera system 
as their software is already in use at the department.   
  
 
 
 
 
 

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 1



COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
 Economic: The use of body worn cameras can reform the behaviors of the general public and 

police which results in fewer grievances and reduces the costs of litigation and staff time 
investigating complaints.  Cameras can serve as a useful training tool to help improve 
performance.   
 

 Environmental: There are no known environmental effects associated with body worn 
cameras. 

 
 Social: Body worn cameras will be used by officers during their shifts to record enforcement 

actions, contacts with individuals involved in actual or potential criminal activity, contacts or 
situations that may become adversarial, suspicious incidents, any situation involving a crime 
where a body worn camera may aid in the apprehension and/or prosecution of a suspect and 
any other contact or situation where the officer believes that a recording would be 
appropriate and/or valuable to document an incident. Body worn cameras can increase the 
community’s confidence and trust in the police and create an additional level of transparency 
for the police department.  Using the body worn cameras can improve customer service.  
They can identify officers who abuse authority or commit misconduct and assist in correcting 
questionable behavior before it reaches an unacceptable level.   

 
BACKGROUND 
This general order was updated and adopted after extensive research was conducted into 
nationwide best practices, including the International Association of Chiefs of Police (IACP) and 
the Police Executive Research Forum (PERF).  A substantial number of agencies throughout the 
country have commenced installation of a body worn camera program.  Body worn cameras are 
to be used in conjunction with official law enforcement duties only. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Over the past decade, advances in technologies used by law enforcement agencies have been 
accelerating at an extremely rapid pace.  Police departments that deploy body worn cameras are 
making a statement that they believe the actions of their officers are a matter of public record.  
Body worn cameras are useful for documenting evidence, officer and resident contacts and 
preventing and resolving complaints from community members. They help improve the high-
quality type of public service expected of police officers and promote procedural justice that 
communities have about their police departments.  Furthermore, research shows that departments 
who have already deployed the cameras say they improve performance of officers as well as the 
conduct of the community members who are recorded.  Body worn cameras can increase 
accountability, but police agencies must also find a way to preserve the informal and unique 
relationships between police officers and the people they serve.  It is essential that a 
comprehensive general order respect the privacy of community members and officers and be 
established before the initial rollout of the cameras.  The general order will be continuously 
updated as officers encounter new situations and courts issue judicial rulings.   
 
NEXT STEPS 
Before police officers are equipped with body worn cameras, they will receive training to include 
all practices and protocols covered in the general order, an overview of relevant state laws, 
procedures for operating the equipment safely and effectively, downloading and tagging 
recorded data, accessing and reviewing recorded data and documenting and reporting any 

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 2



malfunctioning device or supporting system.  Refresher training on use of the body worn 
cameras will be required each year.  Periodic reviews of the general order will be conducted 
taking into account new technologies, compliance with new laws and ensuring it reflects the 
most up-to-date research and best practices.  BPD will inform the community before the initial 
roll-out of the body worn cameras. 
 
Attachment A – General Order 240, In-Car Cameras, Body Worn Cameras and Personal 
Recording Devices 
 

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 3



Attachment A 

 

 Boulder Police Department  
 General Order 240  

In-Car Cameras, Body Worn Cameras and 
Personal Recording Devices 

 
 
Effective: ***, 2014 
Replaces: General Order 240, November 11, 2010 
 
 240-1 In-Car Cameras (ICC) 
 240-2 Body Worn Cameras (BWC) 
 240-3 Additional Guidelines 
 240-4 Personal Recording Devices 
 240-5 Retaining or Sharing of Recordings Prohibited 
 240-6 Retention of Recordings 
   
 
POLICY 
 
In-car cameras (ICC) and body worn cameras 
(BWC) can provide useful documentation in 
the prosecution of criminal and traffic cases 
and of police and citizen actions during con-
tacts. The purpose of this general order is to 
establish guidelines for Boulder Police De-
partment officers that allow them to use the 
ICC and BWC legally, effectively and ap-
propriately while performing their duties. 
Any recorded audio or video images captured 
by these systems are the property of the 
Boulder Police Department and are governed 
by this general order and the department’s 
guidelines for the handling of those images. 
 

PROCEDURES 

240-1 In-Car Cameras (ICC) 
 

A.  Placement and Operation of Equipment 
 

All ICC equipment shall be installed in a 
manner which ensures the system can be 
activated automatically when the vehi-
cle’s emergency lights are activated, 

manually by the officer via a wireless 
transmitter and manually by the officer 
from within the police vehicle. The ICC 
will also be activated automatically if 
the police vehicle is involved in a colli-
sion or if the vehicle exceeds a preset 
speed as determined by the chief of po-
lice. The ICC also has a pre-event re-
cording feature that can be set to record 
between 30 to 90 seconds prior to a trig-
gering event. Pre-event recordings do 
not capture audio.  

 
Officer safety and collection of evidence 
will be the primary considerations for 
placement of the system components 
within the vehicle and the use of the 
equipment. Officers will be provided 
with training in the use and operation of 
the ICC prior to use. 

 
At the beginning of each shift, all offic-
ers assigned to a vehicle equipped with 
an ICC will perform a pre-operational 
inspection to ensure the video camera 
and the wireless microphones are opera-
tional and functioning properly. Any 

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 4



GO240, page 2 
 

 

malfunctions of the ICC will be reported 
to an on-duty supervisor prior to going 
in-service. The supervisor will then de-
termine if the officer takes his/her as-
signed vehicle or a replacement for that 
shift.  

 
The ICC is used for audio/video record-
ing of the following incidents that occur 
within camera and/or audio range: 

 
1. Traffic stops including DUI’s; 
 
2. Pedestrian contacts; 
 
3. Emergency responses; 
 
4. Motor vehicle pursuits; 
 
5. In-custody transports; 
 
6. Crimes in progress; and 
 
7. At the officer discretion, any incident 

in which he/she would like to have 
video/audio documentation. 

 
When the ICC is activated, officers en-
sure the audio portion is also activated so 
all events are properly documented. Of-
ficers may choose to narrate events to 
provide documentation for later court-
room presentation. Even when out of the 
view of the ICC, officers may use the 
audio recording component of the ICC to 
record that portion of a contact. 
 

B.  Officer Responsibility 
 

1. Officers log into the ICC system at 
the beginning of their shift. The log-
in process will pre-fill data fields 
identifying the officers and their ve-
hicles. The date and time stamp in-
formation can then be verified by the 
officers.  

2. With the exception of police radios, 
officers shall ensure the volume from 
other electronic devices within the 
police vehicle does not interfere with 
ICC recordings.  

 
3. Officers will notify a supervisor of 

significant recorded events or any 
recorded event a reasonable officer 
would believe is likely to result in a 
complaint. 

 
4. ICC recordings will be wirelessly 

downloaded at Boulder Police De-
partment facilities. 

 
5. Officers shall input additional infor-

mation to further identify each specif-
ic digital record. Some examples in-
clude suspect’s name, summons 
number, plate number and location. 
Officers are authorized to review their 
ICC recordings, when practical, prior 
to completing their reports. Officers 
will note in their reports/summonses 
if the event was recorded using the 
ICC.   
 

6. ICC recordings are not intended to 
replace photographs of a crime scene, 
or to be used for documentation in 
place of a written report. 

 
Once recording begins, officers record 
the incident until it concludes. Officers 
are not required to cease recording for 
anyone except at the officers’ or supervi-
sors’ discretion. The ICC has the ability 
of being temporarily “muted.”  Officers 
may use this feature as necessary to con-
fer with others during the course of an 
investigation to have private conversa-
tions not related to the investigation, or 
that involve case tactics or strategy. As 
soon as the private conversation is com-

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 5



GO240, page 3 
 

 

pleted, the officer will reactivate the au-
dio portion of the recording. 

 
Officers should assume they are being 
recorded whenever in the vicinity of an 
officer or vehicle equipped with ICC. 

   
C.   Supervisor Responsibility 
 

1. Ensure department policies and pro-
cedures regarding ICC recording sys-
tems are followed. 

 
2. Supervisors will make the decision 

whether a vehicle without an operable 
ICC will be placed into service. 

 
3. Supervisors who are informed or oth-

erwise become aware of malfunction-
ing ICC equipment shall ensure that 
information is forwarded in a manner 
to quickly address the equipment is-
sue. 

 
4. Supervisors who are advised of a sig-

nificant event captured on the ICC 
will review it with the officer, note it 
in their watch log and inform others 
of the incident as appropriate. 

 
5. Supervisors will routinely review ICC 

recordings for evaluation, training, 
compliance or other work related 
purposes. 

 
240-2 Body Worn Cameras (BWC) 

 
A.    Placement and Operation of Equipment 

 
BWCs are issued primarily to uniformed 
officers. Officers who are assigned 
BWCs shall use the equipment in com-
pliance with this policy.  

 
BWCs shall be worn in a manner which 
ensures effective recording documenta-

tion and allows the system to be manual-
ly activated by the officer.  

 
If the BWC has the ability of being tem-
porarily “muted,” officers may use this 
feature as necessary to confer with oth-
ers during the course of an investigation 
to have private conversations not related 
to the investigation or that involve case 
tactics or strategy. As soon as the private 
conversations are completed, officers 
will reactivate the audio portion of the 
recording. 

 
Officers should assume they are being 
recorded whenever in the vicinity of a 
BWC.  Officers will be provided with 
training in the use and operation of the 
BWC system prior to use.  

 
B. Required Activation of BWCs 

 
This policy is not intended to describe 
every situation in which BWCs may be 
used. It is understood that not all inci-
dents will clearly start out as needing re-
cording or have a clear ending when the 
BWC is no longer needed.  In these cir-
cumstances, officers use discretion when 
activating and deactivating BWCs. 
 
At no time are officers expected to jeop-
ardize their safety in order to activate 
their BWC.  However, the recording 
should be activated in required situations 
as soon as practical. 

 
BWCs are activated to record: 

 
1.  In-progress crimes, enforcement ac-

tions or activities; 
 

2. Contacts with individuals involving 
actual or potential criminal conduct; 
 

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 6



GO240, page 4 
 

 

3. Contacts or situations that may be ad-
versarial and during uses of force; 

 
4.  Suspicious incidents; 

 
5.  Any situation involving a crime 

where the BWC may aid in the ap-
prehension and/or prosecution of a 
suspect; and 
 

6.  Any other contact or situation where 
the officer believes that a recording 
would be appropriate and/or valuable 
to document an incident.  

 
Once recordings begin, officers record 
incidents until conclusion. Officers are 
not required to cease recording except at 
the officers’ or supervisors’ discretion, 
as otherwise restricted by this policy, or 
when the need to gather evidence no 
longer exists.  
 
Officers may choose to narrate events to 
provide documentation for later court-
room presentation. 

 
C. Officer Responsibility  

 
1.  BWC equipment is the responsibility 

of the individual officer and will be 
used with reasonable care to ensure 
proper functioning.  At the beginning 
of each shift, officers assigned a 
BWC will perform a function test to 
ensure the equipment is operating 
properly. Equipment malfunctions 
shall be brought to the attention of a 
supervisor as soon as practical.  
 

2. Officers will ensure that appropriate 
information is entered into the BWC 
system to identify which officer is us-
ing the BWC and to properly classify 
or tag recordings. The information in-
cludes the officer’s name, date and 

time, employee number and other in-
formation as required. 
 

3.  Officers will notify a supervisor of a 
significant recording event or one that 
will likely result in a complaint. 

 
4. Officers are authorized to review their 

BWC recordings, when practical, pri-
or to completing their reports.   

 
5. Officers will note in their re-

ports/summonses if an event was rec-
orded using a BWC. When an author-
ized event was not recorded, or if re-
cording stopped during the event, of-
ficers will describe the circumstances 
as to why. If the type of call/incident 
does not result in a report/summons, 
officers may narrate why the record-
ing activation was delayed or record-
ing was stopped on camera. 

 
6. BWC recordings are not intended to 

replace photographs of a crime scene, 
or to be used for documentation in 
place of a written report. 

  
7.  Officers ensure BWC recordings are 

downloaded to a server at the end of 
their shift. 

  
D. Restrictions on Using the BWC 

 
BWCs shall be used in conjunction with of-
ficers’ official law enforcement duties.  The 
BWC should not be used to record: 

 
 1.  Communication with police personnel 

during routine non-enforcement relat-
ed activities. 
 

2.   Encounters with undercover officers 
or confidential informants. 
 

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 7



GO240, page 5 
 

 

3.  Conversations that involve case tac-
tics or strategy. 
 

4.  When on break or otherwise engaged 
in personal activities. 

 
5.  Sexual assault victim interviews.  

 
6.  Any location where individuals have 

a reasonable expectation of privacy, 
such as a private conversation, re-
stroom or locker room. 

 
E.  Supervisor Responsibility 

 
1. Ensure department policies and pro-

cedures regarding BWCs are fol-
lowed. 

 
2. Supervisors who are informed or oth-

erwise become aware of malfunction-
ing BWC equipment shall ensure that 
information is forwarded in a manner 
to quickly address the equipment is-
sue. 

 
3. Supervisors who are advised of a sig-

nificant event captured on a BWC 
will review it with the officer, note it 
in the watch log and inform others of 
the incident as appropriate. 

 
4. Supervisors routinely review BWC 

recordings for evaluation, training, 
compliance or other work related 
purposes. 

 
240-3 Additional Guidelines 

 
A.  Recording from the ICCs and the BWCs 

are treated as evidence and are the prop-
erty of the Boulder Police Department. 
Department members may not dissemi-
nate or view these outside the scope of 
their law enforcement duties. This is 
strictly prohibited without the specific 

authorization of the Chief of Police or 
his/her designee. 
 

B.  Recordings from the ICCs and BWCs are 
criminal justice records unless otherwise 
classified as a personnel record.  Upon 
approval of the Chief of Police or design-
ee, recorded images and audio may be 
provided to the public when requested 
and still available, unless such recordings 
are part of an on-going investigation or 
personnel record and release of record-
ings would jeopardize the investigation, 
or it is determined disclosure would be 
contrary to the public interest per CRS 
24-72-305.  The department may charge 
reasonable fees for providing copies of 
the recordings. 
 

C.  Prior to release of video or audio records 
related to an on-going investigation, the 
Operations Deputy Chief or designee will 
be consulted and recordings will be re-
viewed to determine suitability for public 
release.  In the case of personnel records, 
the Professional Standards Unit Supervi-
sor will be consulted and department 
members will be provided notice if a per-
sonnel record is to be released. 

 
240-4  Personal Recording Devices 
 
Officers generally use department issued 
equipment for video, photographic or audio 
recording.  Use of personal audio equipment 
is allowed for report or note taking purposes.     
 
On rare occasions where officers capture 
video, photographic, or audio recordings tak-
en for evidentiary purposes on personal 
equipment, the recordings become the prop-
erty of the Boulder Police Department. The 
evidence and personal equipment is handled 
in accordance with General Order 207, Digi-
tal Evidence Capture and Storage. 
 

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 8



GO240, page 6 
 

 

240-5  Retaining or Sharing of Record-
ings Prohibited 
 
Employees do not retain or share video, pho-
tographic, or audio evidence obtained in the 
performance of their duties outside the de-
partment without expressed permission from 
the Chief of Police, regardless of whether 
personal or department equipment was used.  
This includes posting on personal or public 
social media sites, internet sites, cell phones, 
or any other electronic or digital device. 
 
This does not prohibit the department from 
taking video or photographs at various activi-
ties, incidents or crime scenes that are in-
tended to be used for historical, educational, 
informational or training purposes. 
 
240-6 Retention of Recordings 
 
Storage space is limited.  Therefore, all re-
cordings stored on the server are generally 
retained according to the schedule listed be-
low and are minimum retention timeframes, 
in compliance with the city’s records reten-
tion schedule ordinance.  Recordings will be 
maintained for longer periods when such re-
cordings have been identified as necessary to 
retain for a longer period of time as evidence 
for prosecution, civil liability cases, criminal 
investigations, administrative investigations, 
or other department needs (retained record-
ings). 
  
 Traffic or pedestrian contact; 30 days 

(no summons). 
 

 General enforcement actions or activi-
ties, for example bar checks, suspicious 
incidents and all other similar types of 
actions; 30 days (no summons); 120 
days (summons). 
 

 Traffic or pedestrian contact; 120 days 
(summons). 

 Anticipated citizen complaints; 120 
days. 

 
 DUI arrest; 18 months. 

 
 Misdemeanor investigation and/or ar-

rest; 18 months. 
 
 Felony investigation and/or arrest; 3 

years. 
 
In cases of criminal prosecution, recordings 
will be retained until the evidence is no long-
er needed and a release is obtained from the 
City Attorney’s Office or the District Attor-
ney’s Office. 
 
In cases where the department has reason to 
believe a civil liability lawsuit will be filed 
against the city, recordings are retained for a 
minimum of 2.5 years. 
  
In the event a civil lawsuit is filed, record-
ings will be retained until the final disposi-
tion of the case, including appeals, is com-
pleted and the City Attorney’s Office has 
signed a release for the evidence. 
 
In cases of administrative investigations, 
copies of recordings will be retained in the 
Professional Standards Unit according to the 
purging schedule in GO120, Professional 
Standards Investigations. 
 
With reasonable justification, any officer 
may place a hold on a recording for a practi-
cal amount of time for any of the purposes 
listed above.  Retained recordings will be 
assessed for continued retention on a regular 
basis, but no less than once per year.  Proper-
ty and Evidence will ask the original request-
ing officer if retained recordings can be 
erased.  The final decision for erasing re-
tained recordings must be approved by the 
Property and Evidence Commander. 

Information Item 
Cameras and Personal Recording Devices

2C     Page 9



Boards and Commissions 
BDAB

3A     Page 1



Boards and Commissions 
BDAB

3A     Page 2



Boards and Commissions 
BDAB

3A     Page 3



Boards and Commissions 
BDAB

3A     Page 4



 

 

CITY OF BOULDER  
LANDMARKS BOARD  

April 1, 2015 
1777 Broadway, Council Chambers Room 

6 p.m. 
 
The following are the “unapproved and unsigned” action minutes of the April 1, 2015 City of 
Boulder Landmarks Board meeting. A digital recording and a permanent set of these minutes 
(maintained for a period of seven years) are retained in Central Records (telephone: 303-441-
3043).  You may also listen to the recording on-line at: www.boulderplandevelop.net. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:   
Kate Remley, Vice Chair 
Mike Schreiner 
Fran Sheets 
 
STAFF MEMBERS: 
Debra Kalish, Senior Assistant City Attorney 
James Hewat, Senior Historic Preservation Planner 
Marcy Cameron, Historic Preservation Planner 
Lesli Ellis, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
Angela Smelker, Historic Preservation Intern 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 The roll having been called, Vice Chair K. Remley declared a quorum at 6:20 to discuss 

Action Item Structures of Merit and then the Board reconvened at 6:54 p.m. and the 
remaining business was conducted.  

  
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

On a motion by K. Remley, seconded by M. Schreiner, the Landmarks Board approved (3-
0) the minutes of the March 4, 2015 board meeting.  
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

4. DISCUSSION OF LANDMARK ALTERATION AND DEMOLITION 
APPLICATIONS ISSUED AND PENDING 
• Statistical Report 

 
5.   ACTION ITEMS 
A. Structures of Merit Informational Session 

M. Cameron gave a presentation regarding information on the Structures of Merit program. 
 
 
 

Boards and Commissions 
Landmarks Board

3B     Page 1

http://www.boulderplandevelop.net/


 

 

B. Public hearing and consideration of a Landmark Alteration Certificate to expand 
existing carriage house into a larger garage at 541 Highland Ave. in the Mapleton Hill 
Historic District, per section 9-11-18 of the Boulder Revised Code (HIS2015-00029).  
Applicant: Barbee James. Owners: Christopher and Jennifer Centeno. 

 
 
The applicant withdrew their application for redesign. 
 
 
C. Public hearing and consideration of a demolition permit for the house and five 

accessory buildings located at 1035 Kalmia Ave., non-landmarked buildings over 50 
years old, pursuant to Section 9-11-23 of the Boulder Revised Code (HIS2014-00364).  
Applicant/ Owner: Carlo Gallegos, AGR Building. 

 
Motion 
On a motion by M. Schreiner, seconded by  K. Remley, the Landmarks Board issued (3-0) a 
stay of demolition for the building located at 1035 Kalmia Ave., for a period not to exceed 180 
days from the day the permit application was accepted by the city manager, in order to explore 
alternatives to the demolition of the building, and adopted the following as findings of the board: 
 
A stay of demolition for the house at 1035 Kalmia Ave. is appropriate based on the criteria set 
forth in section 9-11-23(f) B.R.C, in that the identified property: 

 
1. May be eligible for individual landmark designation based upon its historic, 

architectural, and environmental significance; 
2. Contributes to the character of the neighborhood as an intact representative of the 

area’s past; 
3. Has not been demonstrated to be impractical or economically unfeasible to 

rehabilitate and add onto the existing house. 
 
 
6. MATTERS FROM THE LANDMARKS BOARD, PLANNING DEPARTMENT AND 

CITY ATTORNEY 
A. Update Memo  
B.  Subcommittee Update 

1) Demolition Review Process  
2) Design Guidelines and Code Revisions 
3) Outreach and Engagement 
4) Potential Resources 

 
7. DEBRIEF MEETING/CALENDAR CHECK 
   
8. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 8:41 p.m. 
 
 

Boards and Commissions 
Landmarks Board

3B     Page 2



Boards and Commissions 
Landmarks Board

3C     Page 1



Boards and Commissions 
Landmarks Board

3C     Page 2



Boards and Commissions 
Landmarks Board

3C     Page 3



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 1



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 2



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 3



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 4



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 5



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 6



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 7



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 8



Boards and Commissions 
Planning Board

3D     Page 9






	20150421_agenda packet_final_website
	00_agenda
	3A  20150203_minutes
	3B  March 31 Civic Area SS Summary
	Executive Summary, Staff Recommendation
	Background, Next Steps
	Attachment A - Mar 31 SS Summary Civic Area

	3C  March 31 Planning Update SS Summary
	Executive Summary, Staff Recommendation  
	Attachment A - Mar 31 BVCP SS Summary

	3D  IGA Disaster Recovery
	Executive Summary
	Staff Recommendation, Impacts
	Feedback, Analysis
	Next Steps
	Attachment A - IGA
	Attachment B - CDBG-DR Partial Action Plan

	3E  Cottage Foods
	Executive Summary, Staff Recommendation 
	Impacts
	Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8038

	3F  2015 Supplemental Appropriations
	Executive Summary
	Staff Recommendation, Impacts 
	Background, Analysis
	Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8044
	Attachment B - 2015 RMJ Requests
	Attachment C - BID Police Statistics

	3G  Mobile Home Ordinance
	Executive Summary
	Staff Recommendation, Impacts, Input
	Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8043
	Attachment B - Option 10-12-25

	5A  977 7th
	Executive Summary
	Staff Recommendation, Impacts
	Background, Property Description
	Analysis, Significance
	Options
	Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8036
	Attachment B - Purposes and Intent
	Attachment C - Significance Criteria
	Attachment D - Statement from Applicant

	5B 1029 Broadway
	Executive Summary
	Staff Recommendation, Impacts
	Background, Property Description
	Analysis, Significance
	Options
	Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8037
	Attachment B - Purposes and Intent
	Attachment C - Significance Criteria

	5C  Old Tale Road Annexation
	Executive Summary
	Staff Recommendation, Impacts
	Feedback
	Background
	Analysis
	Next Steps
	Attachment A - Ordinance No. 8039
	Attachment B - Annexation Map
	Attachment C - Annexation Agreements
	Attachment D - Applicants' Annexation Petitions
	Attachment E - Property Information
	Attachment F - Guidelines for Annexation Agreements

	6A  2017 Ironman World Championship
	Executive Summary, Staff Recommendation, Impacts
	Background

	6B  Mobile Home Legal Services
	Executive Summary, Staff Recommendation
	Impacts, Input, Background
	Attachment A - Mobile Home Park Act

	8B  Consortium of Cities
	Executive Summary
	Staff Recommendation, Impacts
	Background
	Next Steps


	20150421_Reference Materials
	99_Reference Materials
	1. Council Working Agreements
	2. 2015 Work Plan
	3. Key Staff
	4. Council Assignments

	Council_Master_Calendar 20150413CAC
	2015 Study Sessions
	May '15
	June '15
	July '15


	20150421_IP
	20150421 Cover Sheet
	1A Concept Plan Review 2440 & 2490 Junction Place
	Attachment A: Planning Board Minutes April 2, 2015 
	Attachment B: Concept Plan

	1B Water Service Agreement with Avery Brewing Company
	Attachment A: Agreement

	2A Update on Capital Improvement Bond Projects
	Attachment A: Summary Table
	Attachment B: Map

	2B Flood Recovery Status
	Objective 1: Assistance
	Objective 2: Infrastructure
	Objective 3: Business Recovery
	Objective 4: Resources
	Objective 5: The Future

	2C Review GO 240, In-Car Cameras, Body Worn Cameras and Personal Recording Devices
	Attachment A: General Order 240

	3A Boulder Design Advisory Board _March 11, 2015
	3B Landmarks Board - April 1, 2015
	3C Landmarks Board_March 4, 2015
	3D Planning Board_March 5, 2015
	4A Armenian Genocide Remembrance
	4B Sakura Day




